HE

BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS

BEING

REPORTS OF CASES

DETERMINED IN THE

COURT OF APPEAL, SUPREME AND COUNTY COURTS
AND IN ADMIRALTY,

WITH

A TABLE OF THE CASES ARGUED
A TABLE OF THE CASES CITED

AND
A DIGEST OF THE PRINCIPAL MATTERS

REPORTED UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF

THE LAW SOCIETY OF BRITISH COLUMBIA

BY

E. C. SENKLER, K. C.

VICTORIA, B.C.
Printed by The Colonist Printing & Publishing Company, Limited.
1933.



Entered according to Act of the Parliament of Canada in the year one thousand
nine hundred and thirty-three by the Law Society of British Columbia.



JUDGES

OF THE

Court of Appeal, Supreme and
County Courts of British Columbia and in Admiralty

During the period of this Volume.

CHIEF JUSTICE OF BRITISH COLUMBIA:
Tae HON. JAMES ALEXANDER MACDONALD.

JUSTICES OF THE COURT OF APPEAL.

CHIEF JUSTICE:
Tae HON. JAMES ALEXANDER MACDONALD.

JUSTICES:
Tae HON. ARCHER MARTIN.
Tre HON. WILLIAM ALFRED GALLIHER.
Tee HON. ALBERT EDWARD McPHILLIPS.
Tre HON. MALCOLM ARCHIBALD MACDONALD.

SUPREME COURT JUDGES.

CHIEF JUSTICE:
Tae HON. AULAY MORRISON.

PUISNE JUDGES:
Tae HON. DENIS MURPHY.
Tee HON. FRANCIS BROOKE GREGORY.
Tar HON. WILLIAM ALEXANDER MACDONALD.
Tar HON. DAVID ALEXANDER McDONALD.
Tre HON. ALEXANDER INGRAM FISHER.

LOCAL JUDGE IN ADMIRALTY:
Tue HON. ARCHER MARTIN.

DEPUTY LOCAL JUDGE IN ADMIRALTY:
Tre HON. WILLIAM ALFRED GALLIHER.

COUNTY COURT JUDGES:

His HON. FREDERICK McBAIN YOUNG, - - - - - Atlin
His HON. PETER SECORD LAMPMAN, - - - - - - Victoria
His HON. JOHN ROBERT BROWN, - - - - - - - Yale
His HON. FREDERICK CALDER, - - - - - - - Cariboo
His HON. FREDERIC WILLIAM HOWAY, - - - - Westminster
His HON. CHARLES HOWARD BARKER, - - - - - Nanaimo
His HON. JOHN DONALD SWANSON, - - - - - - - Yale
His HON. GEORGE HERBERT THOMPSON, - - - East Kootenay
His HON. HERBERT EWEN ARDEN ROBERTSON, - - - Cariboo
His HON. HUGH ST. QUINTIN CAYLEY, - . - - Vancouver
His HON. HENRY DWIGHT RUGGLES, - - - - Vancouver
Hrs HON. JOHN CHARLES Mc¢cINTOSH, - - - - - Nanaimo
His HON. WALTER ALEXANDER NISBET, - - - West Kootenay
His HON, JOSEPH NEALON ELLIS, - - - - - - Vancouver
His HON. WILLIAM EDWARD FISHER - - - - - Atlin

ATTORNEY-GENERAL:
Tue HON. ROBERT HENRY POOLEY, K.C.



MEMORANDA

On the 24th of January, 1933, William Edward Fisher,
Barrister-at-Law, was appointed Judge of the County Court
of Atlin and a Local Judge of the Supreme Court of British
Columbia in the room and stead of IHis Honour Frederick
MecBain Young, resigned.

On the 30th of January, 1933, Andrew Miller Harper, Bar-
rister-at-Law, was appointed Judge of the County Court of
Vancouver and a Local Judge of the Supreme Court of British
Columbia.

On the 27th of May, 1933, His Honour Henry Dwight
Ruggles, Junior Judge of the County Court of Vancouver, died
at the City of Vancouver.

On the 11th of August, 1933, Charles James Lennox, Bar-
rister-at-Law, was appointed a Judge of the County Court of
Vancouver and a Local Judge of the Supreme Court of British
Columbia.

On the 6th of September, 1933, Harold Edwin Bruce Robert-
son, one of His Majesty’s Counsel learned in the law, was
appointed a Puisne Judge of the Supreme Court of British
Columbia in the room and stead of the Honourable Francis
Brooke Gregory, resigued.

On the 6th of September, 1933, William Garland Ernest
MeQuarrie, one of Ilis Majesty’s Counsel learned in the law,
was appointed a Justice of the Court of Appeal in the room
and stead of the Honourable William Alfred Galliher, resigned.
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Infants Act—Neglected children—Committed to care of Children’s Aid

Society—Liability for maintenance—Residence prior to commitment—
R.8.B.0. 1924, Cap. 112, Secs. 57, 80 and 91—B.C. Stats. 1928, Cap. 18,
Secs. 8 and 4.

Section 80 of the Infants Act provides that “(1.) Any judge shall, upon

Th

o

the application of any society to whose custody or control a child is
committed, make an order for the payment by the municipality to
which the child belongs for a reasonable sum . . . for the expense
of supporting the child by the society. (2.) Tor the purposes
of this section, any child shall be deemed to belong to the municipality
in which the child has last resided for the period of one year. Nt
Section 3 of the amending Act of 1928 recites: “Provided that no child
shall be deemed to belong to a municipality or to have acquired a
residence therein for the purposes of this section by reason only of the
fact that the child has resided in the municipality as an inmate of a
home or institution in which the child was placed. . . . .”

parents of the two children in question (7 and 8 years old) with their
family came to New Westminster from Manitoba in March, 1929, but
in the following July moved to the Municipality of Surrey. During
the same month the mother became ill and she left the two children
in the Academy of the Sisters of St. Ann in New Westminster, where
they remained. Shortly after the mother was taken to the Mental
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Hospital in Essondale, and later the father falling into unemployment,
the two children, on application to the Juvenile Court in New West-
minster, were declared ‘“neglected children” and committed to the care
of the Children’s Aid Society of the Catholic Archdiocese of Vancouver,
but the order made no provision for the costs of their care and custody.
On the application of the Children’s Aid Society an order was made on
the 15th of January, 1932, that the City of New Westminster do pay
said society $4 per week in respect of each infant from the 23rd of
October, 1930, until they attain the age of 18 years.

Held, on appeal, reversing the order of Morrison, C.J.S.C. (MACDONALD,
C.J.B.C. dissenting), that it is impossible legally to hold that those
children “reside” in or ‘“belong to” the City of New Westminster
within the meaning of the Infanls Act, and the appeal should be
allowed.

APPEAL by the City of New Westminster from the order of
Mozrison, C.J.8.C. of the 15th of January, 1932, whereby the
said city was ordered to pay the Children’s Aid Society of the
Catholic Archdiocese of Vancouver the sum of $4 per week in
respect of the infants Caroline Dorothy Johnson and Mary
Charlotte Johnson, for their maintenance from the 23rd of
October, 1930, until they have attained the age of eighteen
years. The children’s father with his family came to New
Wesgtminster from Manitoba in March, 1929, but in the follow-
ing July they moved into the Municipality of Surrey where the
father still lives. The children’s mother took them to the
Academy of the Sisters of St. Ann at New Westminster in July,
1929, where they remained until the 23rd of Oectober, 1930. In
the meantime the mother’s health broke down and she was taken
to the Essondale Mental ITospital. The father, who previously
worked as a labourer, being unable to find employment, an order
was made by the judge of the Juvenile Court for New West-
minster on the 23rd of October, 1930, declaring the two children
to be “neglected children” within the meaning of the term in the
Infants Act, and they were committed for “their temporary
home” to the Children’s Aid Society of the Catholic Archdiocese
of Vancouver, but the order made no provision for the costs of
their care and custody. The order appealed from was then made
on the application of the Children’s Aid Society.

The appeal was argued at Vancouver on the 3rd of March,
1932, before Macnonarp, C.J.B.C., Marrin and MacponNaLD,
JJ.A.
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McQuarrie, K.C., (Donaghy, K.C., with him), for appel-
lants: The question is whether the two children were residents
of New Westminster for one year prior to entering the Chil-
dren’s Aid Society under the order of the judge of the Juvenile
Court on October 23rd, 1930. The two children were in St.
Ann’s Academy in New Westminster for more than a year
previous to this, but the family home was undoubtedly in the
Munieipality of Surrey where the father lived continuously and
had his home. The City of New Westminster should not be
held liable under the Act and the learned judge below had no
jurisdiction to make this order: see Guardians of Holborn v.
Guardians of Chertsey (1884), 54 L.J., M.C. 53.

A. deB. McPhillips, for Children’s Aid Society: These are
“neglected children” and when the committal order was made
the judge of the Juvenile Court made no provision for main-
tenance. Under section 80 of the Act we may apply at any time
to any judge for relief and we are not bound by any one judge:
see Digges Case (1600), Moore, K.B. 603; 72 E.R. 787. As
to the children’s “residence” previous to the order of the judge
of the Juvenile Court see The King v. City of Fredericton
Assessors (1917), 36 D.L.R. 685 at p. 689; Stoke-on-Trent
Borough Council v. Cheshire County Council (1915), 3 K.B.
699 at p. T04; Leicester Corporation v. Stoke-on-Trent Cor-
poration (1918), 83 J.P. 45; Berks County Council v. Read-
ing Borough Council (1921), 37 T.L.R. 642. The English
cases under the Poor Law Act do not apply here owing to the
difference in the statute.

H. C. Green, for the Attorney-General.

Donaghy, in reply: There is the distinction in the case of
children of tender age when the home of the father is that of
the child. The cases referred to apply to children of 15
and over.

Cur. adv. vult.

7th June, 1932,
Macponarp, C.J.B.C.: The two little girls mentioned in the
style of cause, on an application to the Juvenile Judge of New
Westminster, were on the 23rd of October, 1930, declared to be
neglected children within the meaning of the term in the
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Infants Aect above mentioned, and were committed to the care
and custody of the Children’s Aid Society of the Catholic Arch-
diocese of Vancouver. The children had resided for more than
a year previously at St. Ann’s Academy in New Westminster.
The order made no provision for the costs of their care and
custody. The afidavit of J. S. Foran, agent of the said society,
shews that the society maintained the said children at its own
expense ever since October 23rd, 1930.

On the 5th day of December, 1931, the said society made
application to a judge of the Supreme Court praying an order
against the City of New Westminster for payment of at least
$3 per week in respect of each child for her maintenance and
support, and the order was made against the city for $4 per

week each.
The city now appeals from that order, the principal grounds

being that the infants did not belong to New Westminster;
that they did not reside there for one year before their com-
mittal and that the said judge had no jurisdiction to make the
order. It also referred to the Infants Act Amendment Act.
1928, chapter 18 of the statutes of that year, but in the conclu-
sion at which I have arrived it becomes unnecessary to do so.
The father is a labourer and had no home in which the chil-
dren could have been taken care of. e lived in a shack in
South Westminster in Surrey Municipality. He was out of
employment and could not give the children adequate care; the
mother was an inmate of a mental hospital and unable to look
after them. I accept the finding of the Juvenile Court judge
that the children were neglected children. There was no appeal
against his finding. I think they belonged to New Westmin-
ster. They were left there by their mother more than a year
before the application for their committal, and further neither
the father nor mother was able although perhaps willing to take
care of the children. There was no home provided to which the
children could go. These children resided in New Westminster
and were being temporarily taken care of at St. Ann’s Academy
in New Westminster where they were left by their mother and
since it is clear that they resided in New Westminster for more
than a year with two or three weeks’ absence only during the
holiday they can fairly be held to have had their home there.
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The application for the eommittal order was made to the
Juvenile Court judge by the secretary of the said Children’s
Aid Society. His order was that

I do order that the said Caroline Dorothy Johnson and Mary Charlotte
Johnson be delivered into the care and custody of the Children’s Aid Society

of the Catholic Archdiocese of Vancouver and that they be forthwith taken
to their temporary home.

I think I must accept as valid the order of the Juvenile Court
judge, and it then comes to this—that the children had been
properly committed to the care of the said society but under
the order no term appears for the payment to the society. Sec-
tion 80 of the said Act provides that “any” judge [of whom the
judge who fixed the compensation is one designated in the inter-
pretation clause as a judge] shall make an order for compensa-
tion to the society upon the application of the society to whose
custody and control the child is committed. That section seems
to contemplate such an application to “any judge” where the
order of committal is silent on the subject which is the case
here. See also section 80, subsections (5) and (6).

I, therefore, think the order appealed from should be
affirmed. A

The appeal should be dismissed.

Martin, J.A.: This is an appeal by the City of New West-
minster from an order of Chief Justice Morrisox of 15th
January last, whereby that city was directed to pay $8 per
week to the Children’s Aid Society of the Catholic Archdiocese
of Vancouver for the support of two infant children, aged 7 and
8 years respectively, and it is submitted that the order is not
warranted by the statute on which it was based, being the
Infants Aect, Cap. 112, R.8.B.C. 1924, Sec. 80, and the amend-
ment of 1928, Cap. 18, Secs. 3-4, because the children were
transients, the residence of their parents being outside said city
for the period of time in question, and the case turns upon the
meaning of the words “municipality to which the child belongs”
and “be deemed to belong” in section 80, as further defined by
the proviso added by section 3 of 1928.

By an order of the Juvenile Court for the City of New West-
minster dated 23rd October, 1930, the custody of these children
was committed for “their temporary home” to the respondent

ot

COURT OF
APPEAL

1932

June 7.

IN BRE
JoHNSON

MACDONALD,
C.J.B.C.

MARTIN,
J.A.



COURT OF
APPEAL

1932

June 7.

Ix RE
JOHNSON

MARTIN,
J.A.

BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS. [Voi.

society and not for nearly a year and a quarter thereafter did

it obtain the said order for support now appealed from, upon a

notice of motion dated the 5th of December previous.
Subsection (2) of section 80 provides that

For the purposes of this section, any child shall be deemed to belong to
the municipality in which the child has last resided for the period of one
year; but in the absence of evidence to the contrary, residence for one year
in the municipality in which the child was taken into custody shall be
presumed.

By the said amendment of 1928 the following proviso was

added to that subsection:

Provided that no child shall be deemed to belong to a municipality or to
have acquired a residence therein for the purposes of this section by reason
only of the fact that the child has resided in the municipality as an inmate
of a home or institution in which the child was placed by the superin-
tendent or by a children’s aid society to whose custody or control the child
is committed;

The evidence, which is not in dispute, as to the “last” resi-
dence in the appellant municipality for one year previous to the
date of the committal order (23rd October, 1930) in the
attempt to establish the fact of the infants “belonging” thereto,
shews that these children with their parents, Norwegians, came
to this Provinee in Mareh, 1929, from Manitoba where they had
lived for two years, and went to live in the City of New West-
minster but left there in July to live in the Municipality of
South Westminster, and in that month the mother being ill and
the father out of work and very “hard up,” the children were
charitably and voluntarily taken by the Sisters of St. Ann into
their academy at New Westminster at the request of their
mother who brought them there and since July, 1929, they have
been residing in that academy up to the date of said committal
order and of the one now appealed from; the father says he
supported the children there “just for two months.” The
mother became insane about the end of 1929 and was
committed to Essondale Asylum; the father was still living in
South Westminster and had obtained employment but was
unable to look after his family of five children as his deposition
taken before the police magistrate of Surrey Municipality on
the 3rd of January, 1930, shews, viz.:

I am residing at South Westminster in the Municipality of Surrey. 1

moved into Surrey in July, 1929. T am working at the Timberland Mills.
My wife is sick all the time and is not at home now and I have to be away
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from and so cannot give proper attention to the children. 1 am earning
$3.20 a day. I am working every day. I have 2 children in 8t. Ann’s
Convent. I am a Catholic. I am a Norwegian. My wife was born in the
U.S.A. My wife is a Catholic. My wife at the present time is in Esson-
dale. If my wife gets better I wish the children to come home to us. I am
quite willing that the Children’s Aid Society of the Catholic Archdiocese of
Vancouver take care of the children to such time.

On that day the said magistrate made an order that the three
boys, out of the five children, should be delivered to the respond-
ent society, on the ground that they were “neglected children”
within the meaning of section 56 of said Aect, but it is only fair
to say that no imputation was or is made against the character
of the father, but simply his inability to provide for and look
after the children in their mother’s absence.

Unfortunately his wife’s condition did not improve and he
fell into unemployment and at the time of the subsequent com-
mittal (23rd October, 1930) of these remaining two little chil-

dren he said:
Do you want your children? I would like to have them if I eould do so.
Do they ever come to visit you? Not very often.
Where is [your] shack? By the first sawmill.
You are not paying rent? No, I can’t pay rent.
Were you living there when the children were taken away from you?
Yes. A policeman took them away.

During the past year the respondent society received $37.50
from an unnamed source and $5 from the father towards the
support of the children.

It will be seen from this evidence that the said proviso of
1928 applies to this case because the children were after the
committal “inmates of a home or institution in which [they]
were placed by the superintendent [of neglected children] or by
a children’s aid society to whose custody or control [they] were
committed,” and so that period of statutory custody does not
run against the City, and before that they had been placed in
said Academy by their mother with their father’s consent but
with the clearly established intention of bringing them back to
him when his unfortunate domestic conditions improved, which
intention negatives abandonment.

The said committal by the Juvenile Court was made under

section 57 of the Act, and section 91 declares that:
91. Upon an order being made by the judge for the committal of any
child to any charitable society authorized under this Part, the order shall
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specify the municipality chargeable with the maintenance of the child, and
a copy of the order with a copy of the depositions upon which the child has
been committed shall be forwarded by registered letter to the clerk of the
municipality chargeable under the committal with the maintenance of the
child; and unless the municipality moves before the judge to set aside the
order in respect of maintenance within one month after receiving a copy of
the order, the municipality shall be deemed to have consented to the order
and shall be estopped from denying liability thereunder. The judge may
at any time vary the order and charge any other municipality, upon which
order like proceedings may be taken.

It is to be noted that no more evidence of any weight or
materiality was adduced before Morrisow, C.J.S.C. in Van-
couver than was before the judge of the Juvenile Court in New
Westminster and no explanation is given for not taking the
obvious course of applying to that same Juvenile Court to “vary”
its own order instead of to another judge in another place, not
already familiar with the circumstances: this is, moreover,
quite apart from obvious objections to such a proceeding, which
is in the nature of an appeal by a side wind, and to a Court of
no greater jurisdiction ad hoc, than the one in effect, appealed
from, as is shewn by the definition of the word “judge” in
section 51 of the Act (and as employed in the relevant sections
56, 57, 80 and 91), wherein it is said:

“Judge” ineludes any Judge of the Supreme Court, any Judge of a County
Court, any Stipendiary or Police Magistrate, any Judge of a Juvenile
Court.

The only relevant additional fact since the committal is that
the children have been inmates of the respondent society’s
“institution” thereunder, but said proviso of 1928 declares that
no presumption that a child “belongs” to a municipality or has
acquired a residence therein shall arise “by reason only of
[that] fact.”

It is to he observed that the Juvenile Court judge did not
make any order “specifying the municipality chargeable with
the maintenance of the child” as the section (91) directs he

“shall” do, because, as he said in his judgment on the point:

Court: I don’t see that either munmicipality should be burdened with
this. The family only lived in New Westminster for two months and these
children were put in the home by Miss Gray, distriet nurse, whoever she is.
1 will make an order committing them, but I will make no order as to who
shall support them, having no evidence before me to warrant making an
order against either municipality.

That he was justified in adopting this course appears from
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the evidence hereinbefore cited and the statute itself shews that
there must be cases wherein its own requirements of “belonging”
would render it impossible to “specify” that any municipality
was so ‘“‘chargeable,” ¢.g., a child might have resided in this
Province for two, or indeed many years in different munici-
palities but yet has not “resided for the period of one year” in
any one of them as subsection (2) requires, and therefore there
would be no jurisdiction to make any charging order at all at
the time of committal. What the Juvenile Court did here was
to refuse to make an order against this appellant municipality,
which is included in the refusal to make any order at all, and
no good reason has, in my opinion, been shewn for disturbing
that finding assuming it was open to any other “judge” (defined
as aforesaid), or even to this Court, to do so. It is not to be
overlooked that said sections 57 and 80 refer to the “temporary
home” of the child and the committal directs that the children
“be forthwith taken to their temporary home” with the respond-
ent society.

As to the meaning of the said expression “belongs to the
municipality” several cases have been cited to us on the meaning
of “residence” under the particular language of different
statutes, and I have considered all of them, and many others,
but that word has not the same import and is one, as all the
decisions shew, which has not a fixed but an elastic meaning
varying according to the subject-matter dealt with by the par-
ticular legislation. The case of most assistance as being closest
to the facts before us (though all of them differ materially
thereupon) is Guardians of Holborn Union v. Guardians of
Chertsey Union (1885), 33 W.R. 698; 54 L.J., M.C. 137,
because it is there laid down that the intention of the father
respecting the ultimate return of the children to him from their
“temporary home” (though they had been away from him in it,
in another parish, for seven years after their mother’s death) is
a matter of the first consequence in determining their residence,
constructive or actual; and with regard to the decision of the
local Juvenile Court on that point the following observations of
the Master of the Rolls, concurred in by Baggallay and Bowen,
LL.J. at p. 139 are most apt, viz.:

If the evidence would justify a reasonable person in finding either way,
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the Court below ought not to have overruled the finding. I have a strong
opinion that the evidence is in favour of the view that the father always
intended to resume living with the children when he was in a position to
do so. I do not therefore think that the Court below ought to have over-
ruled what must in fact have been the decision of the magistrates.

And so the judgment of the King’s Bench Division was
reversed and the magistrates’ decision restored, viz., that the
children’s “residence” was with their father and not in their
“temporary home.”

In Berks County Council v. Reading Borough Council
(1921), 37 T.L.R. 642, an attempt is made to reconcile the
later English decisions, but the uncertainty expressed by Mr.
Justice Darling owing to the “very great difficulty” the Court
encountered in coming to a decision, is an indication of the
divergence in views that is to be expected in such attempt.

That the evidence before the judge of the Juvenile Court
would “justify a reasonable person in finding either way,” as
the Master of the Rolls put it, supra, is beyond question and
therefore his view of the children’s real “residence” should not
have been disturbed, as it was in substance and effect, by the
learned judge appealed from. But, as already pointed out, the
expression before us “belongs to the municipality,”
imports an element of ownership or attachment to a locality
beyond mere “residence” in the ordinary sense, though it is
difficult to obtain any authority on its meaning as applied to
human beings because it is not so employed in any of the
statutes that have come to our attention, and I have been able to

which

obtain little assistance from the few cases on its personal
application that I have been able to find.

In The “Fusilier” (1865), 3 Moore, P.C. (x.8.) 51, the
Privy Council upheld the decision of the Rt. Hon. Dr. Lush-
ington in the Admiralty Court that the words “persons belong-
ing to such ship” in the Merchant Shipping Act include passen-
gers on board the ship as well as the master and crew, Dr.
Lushington saying, p. 58:

The phrase “persons belonging to such ship,” “belonging” is certainly a
phrase of ancipitis usis, with reference to the subject-matter; but one of
the rules of construing statutes, and a wise rule too, is, that they shall be
construed loquitur ut vulgus, that is, according to the ordinary interpreta-
tion put upon the words by the mass of mankind, according to the common
understanding and acceptation of the terms; and I think that nothing is
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more common than to say of passengers on board a ship, that they are
“persons belonging to the ship.” Upon these grounds alone I should hold
that “persons belonging to the ship” included passengers.

In affirming this view the Privy Council, per Lord Chelms-
ford, said, pp. 72-3:

It would be strange indeed if an Act intended to encourage and reward
the saving of life which is in peril in consequence of the distress and danger
of the vessel in which it is embarked, should be construed so as to make a
distinction between those who were on board in different capacities and
different relations to the vessel. It is a sufficient answer to such an objec-
tion to say that nothing is more common in popular language than to
speak of “the passengers belonging to such a vessel.”

Then In the Estate of Frogley (1905), P. 137, it was held
that a will creating a trust for all the children who “might
belong” to a testatrix included her illegitimate children; and
the proprietary idea of “belong” in general is well brought out
in the decision of the House of Lords in Public Trustee v. Wolf
(1923), A.C. 544, respecting the charge imposed on the prop-
erty ‘“belonging” to married women by the Treaty of Peace
Order 1919, particularly in the judgment of Lord Birkenhead
at p. 558, where he said respectmcr the expression ‘“belonging
to her for her separate use”

“We are asked to put a limitation on the words ‘belonging to her
for her separate use,” and to add to them some such words as, ‘and not
subject to any restraint upon anticipation.” But we must apply the
ordinary rule of construction, that the words are to be read in their
ordinary sense, and in their full sense, unless there be something in the
context to limit their meaning.”

After a very careful consideration of this matter (which is
one of no small importance in the administration of the Infants
Act) it is to my mind impossible legally to hold that these chil-
dren “reside” in, much less “belong to,” the appellant munici-
pality within the meaning of said Act, and therefore, apart from
other objections arising out of section 91 as aforesaid, the appeal
should be allowed and the order complained of set aside.

Macpovarp, J.A.: T am fully in accord with the reasons for
judgment of my brother Marrix. I am satisfied that these
children of tender years do not “belong” to the Municipality of
the City of New Westminster. I will only add further that it
cannot be said of them that they had the capacity of older chil-
dren to acquire a residence where they “ate and slept” apart
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from that of their father who resided in the Municipality of
Surrey.
I would allow the appeal.

Appeal allowed, Macdonald, C.J.B.C. dissenting.

Solicitors for appellant: McQuarrie & Whiteside.

Solicitors for Children’s Aid Society: McPhillips, Duncan
& McPhillips.

Solicitors for Attorney-General of British Columbia: Collins
& Green.

H. E. HUNNINGS & COMPANY LIMITED v. HALL.

Stock-broker — Purchase of shares on margin — Broker's duty — Action
against customer for balance of account—Evidence—Onus of proof.

In an action by a stock-brokerage firm against a customer to recover the
balance due on margin transactions, the plaintiff recovered judgment.

Held, on appeal, affirming the decision of Lampmax, Co. J., per MARTIN and
MacpoNALD, JJ.A., that the trial judge having found, inter alia, that
the plaintiff as defendant’s agent and on his behalf had incurred and
discharged liabilities on stock purchases, and had all shares so pur-
chased available for the defendant on payment of the balance due from
him, the appeal should be dismissed.

Per Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C., and McPrILLIPS, J.A., that as the plaintiff had
failed to prove that it had at all times the shares so ordered available
for delivery to the defendant if paid for, the appeal should be allowed:
moreover no valid excuse had been given for not selling when the
margin was almost exhausted, thereby saving the loss incurred.

The Court being equally divided the appeal was dismissed.

APPEAL by defendant from the decision of Lampyax, Co. J.
of the 21st of December, 1931, in an action for the balance due
on stock transactions made by the plaintiffs as stock-brokers on
behalf of the defendant.

The appeal was argued at Vancouver on the 1st of March,
1932, before Macponarp, C.J.B.C., Marriy, McPrILLIPS and
Macpoxarp, JJ.A.
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C. G. Whate, for appellant: We submit that the brokers did CZEII";A‘;F
not carry out the purchase. There is no proof that the purchase
was made or that they paid out any money on behalf of the
defendant. The plaintiffs cannot recover unless they shew clearly — June 7.
that they were always in a position to deliver this stock if paid .
for in full: see Conmee v. Securities Holding Co. (1907), 38 Huxnixes
S.C.R. 601; Beamish v. Richardson & Sons (1914), 49 S.O.R. ¥
5955 Clark v. Baillie (1909), 19 O.L.R. 545 at p. 554; Cox &  Hart
Worts v. Sutherland (1888), 24 C.L.J. 55. The evidence shews
that the defendant ordered the plaintiff to sell, and if the
. instructions had been carried out there would have been no loss.

1932

Maclean, K.C., for respondents: The broker must have the Argument
stock or its equivalent available for delivery, and the learned
judge below found that he had: see Meyer on Stock-Brokers,
286. On the burden of proof that the order was not carried
out see MacDonald v. Hamilton B. Wills & Co. Ltd. (1925),
147 N.E. 616. The evidence as to the order to sell is subject
to two meanings. It cannot be acted upon unless unambiguous:
see Meyer on Stock-Brokers, pp. 269 and 271.
White, in reply, referred to Meyer on Stock-Brokers, 541.

Cur. adv. vult.

7th June, 1932.

Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C.: This is an action in the County
Court by brokers against a customer for a balance alleged to be
due on the accounts between them in stock transactions. The
transaction respecting the 450 Spooner shares is the only one
that we are concerned with in this appeal. There were previous
transactions in Illinois-Alberta shares but they were sold on MAcpoNarp,
May 9th, 1929, and the money from them applied to the pay-
ment of the margin on the said Spooner shares. The buying
order addressed to the plaintiffs and signed by the defendant is

as follows:
Buy for my account and risk 450 Spooner at mkt. OA.

It is dated 9th May, 1929.

The order was said to have been sent by the plaintiffs to
Solloway, Mills & Company to be filled, who are said to have
reported to the plaintiffs:

We have this day bought for your account 450 Spooner.
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The plaintiffs thereupon notified defendant:

We have this day bought for your aceount and risk 450 Spooner.

There is no evidence to shew the reality of this reported
transaction. Did Solloway, Mills & Company actually buy the
shares? Did plaintiffs actually receive the shares and pay for
them which they claim to have bought and reported ?

There is alleged to be the following legend on the defendant’s
buying order:

It is agreed that the only obligation undertaken by H. E. Hunnings &
Company, Ltd., is to place the above order with Solloway, Mills & Co.,
Limited, and that as from the forwarding of the order by telegraph to
Solloway, Mills & Co., Ltd., all responsibility of H. E. Hunnings & Co. Ltd.,
is at an end and the transaction is one between the undersigned and Sollo-
way, Mills & Co. Ltd., exclusively.

This legend is not above the customer’s signature. It purports
to make the contract one between the defendant and Solloway,
Mills & Company Ltd., when forwarded to them, but this is
obviously farcical since the plaintiffs are treated themselves as
the buyers. This action is brought on that assumption.

This being a sale on margin, the plaintiffs had the right to
mix the shares bought, when they received them, with other
shares of the same kind, and so long as they kept in their
common receptacle or within their control sufficient shares for
delivery to defendant, they might fill selling orders out of them,
but the law is that they must at all times have had on hand the
requisite number to meet defendant’s demand for delivery on
payment. Conmee v. Securities IHolding Co. (1907), 38
S.C.R. 601.

This rule of law is of great importance from the standpoint
of the public as well as from that of brokers’ customers. It may
make the difference between bucketing which is illegal, and
honest dealing. If not strictly observed the broker could specu-
late on his own behalf with his client’s shares or money. Indeed
a failure to have the shares always on hand may have brought
about the failure to exercise his right to sell when the margin
was running out. In this case plaintiffs did not sell when the
defendant had at least consented to let plaintiffs sell though
consent was not necessary. .

We should not, I think, countenance any laxity of care or
duty or proof on the part of the brokers. Here the plaintiffs
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failed to prove that they had at all times or at any time shares
for delivery to defendants, and, moreover, they offered no valid
excuse for not selling when the margin was almost exhausted,
and when as the evidence shews they could have saved their loss.
1, therefore, do not see that justice requires us to place that loss
upon the defendant’s shoulders.

I should allow the appeal.

Martiy, JLA.: T agree with my learned brother M. A. Mac-
pONALD in the dismissal of this appeal.

McPurrres, J.A.: In this appeal T am in agreement with
my learned brother the Chief Justice. The respondents failed
utterly to establish that the shares were purchased outright and
that at all times they were in hand ready to be delivered over
to the appellant which the law requires and settled by the well
known authorities in the Supreme Court of Canada referred to
in the argument, notably amongst others Clarke v. Baillie
(1910), 50 S.C.R. 50 and Conmee v. Securities Holding Co.
(1907), 38 S.C.R 601, where Mr. Justice Duff at p. 618 used
this language. which can be applied to the respondents in this

case:

Had they as a result of the transaction in question 300 shares of the
specified stock which on payment of the sums referred to they were legally
entitled to appropriate and deliver to the defendant? To shew that they
had was, I think, part of the respondents’ case.

At most in this case they set up—but failed even to establish
~—that they had agreed to buy the shares upon margin. Their
duty was to buy the shares outright and they were not in a
position at any time when called upon to make delivery of the
shares. For the respondents to say that they had the shares
when they commenced the action means nothing as the shares
being worthless were easily obtainable. Further the evidence
shews that the appellant was unable to carry out his purchase
and so apprised the respondents, and if it were true that the
respondents had purchased the shares on margin the respondents
should have then and there desisted from completing the applica-
tion for the shares.

Upon full consideration of all the facts and the law I am
convinced that the learned trial judge, with great respect, came
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be reversed—that is, the appeal shonld be allowed.

Macpovarp, J.A.: Findings of fact, made by the learned
trial judge, justified by the evidence, disposes of this appeal.

.NE\:GS He found, in effect, that no definite order to sell was given by

the appellant. The latter’s subsequent conduet, apart from the
evidence of respondents’ witnesses, warrants this conclusion.
He also found that the respondents had shares available for
appellant upon payment of the balance due on stocks purchased
on margin. The respondents, as appellant’s agent, at his request,
and on his behalf, incurred and discharged liabilities on stock
purchases made through Solloway, Mills & Company and the
only question involved is the balance due on this trading
account. Appellant must discharge liabilities incurred by
respondents on his behalf. Evidence admitted, without objec-

macpoNaLp, tion, shews that the shares were in fact properly purchased.

J.AL

It was suggested for the first time at the close of the argu-
ment that appellant should at least be credited with the further
sum of $225 becanse a statement filed as an exhibit indicated a
sale of shares for this amount and it was submitted this sum
should be credited to appellant. I would not give effect to this
view at this stage. I think the statement is more properly open
to the suggestion that it represents a mere valuation made for
some purpose not disclosed in evidence in no way affecting the
balance due.

I would dismiss the appeal.

The Court being equally divided the appeal
was dismissed.

Solicitors for appellant: White & Martin.
Solieitor for respondents: H. H. Shandley.
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REX v. STEWART.*

Criminal law — Trial by jury — Conviction—Appeal—Juryman previously
convicted of indictable offence—Disqualification of juror—New trial—
R.8.B.C. 192}, Cap. 128, Sec. 6 (a)—Criminal Code, Secs. 81, 921, 1011
and 1018 (c).

The defendant was convicted on a charge of attempting to incite to mutiny
His Majesty’s forces at Work Point Barracks at Vietoria, under section
81 of the Criminal Code. After the conviction it was found that one
of the petit jurors had been convicted of two separate indictable
offences of theft and had not obtained a free pardon. The defendant
then appealed from his conviction on the sole ground that said juror
was “absolutely disqualified for service as a juror” under section 6 of
the Jury Act and section 921 of the Criminal Code.

Held, on appeal, MacponaLp, C.J.B.C. dissenting, that as there was no
attempt to answer the appellant’s affidavits clearly setting out the
absolute disqualification of the impeached juror, and as this goes to the
constitution of the jury, their verdiet cannot stand and there should
be a new trial.

APPEAL by the accused from his conviction by Mureny, J.
and a jury on the 8th of October, 1931, on a charge of attempt-
ing to incite to mutiny His Majesty’s forces at the Work Point
Barracks in Vietoria, contrary to the provisions of section 81
of the Criminal Code, the sole ground of appeal being that one
of the petit jurors was “absolutely disqualified for service as
a juror” because he was a person who had been convicted of two
separate indictable offences of theft, namely, stealing blankets
from the Government of Canada, and had not obtained a free
pardon. Upon his conviction he had been let off on suspended
sentence.

The appeal was argued at Vietoria on the 11th of January,
1932, before Macponarp, C.J.B.C., Martin, McPrILLIPS and
Macpoxarp, JJ.A.

Gordon M. Grant, for appellant: This is a motion for leave
to appeal: see Rex v. Boak (1925), S.C.R. 525. Accused
appeared in person and challenged twelve jurors peremptorily
and none for cause. The juror we now object to was the second
man called and was accepted by both Crown and prisoner. This
»_*"Reversed by Supreme Court of Canada. See (1932}, S.C.R. 612.
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CEEI?;A‘;‘F man came within section 6 (a) of the Jury Act and is absolutely

——  disqualified. The only course is to grant a new trial.
1932 Johnson, K.C., for the Crown: Although this juryman was
Mareh 1. digqualified it is not a good ground of appeal after conviction
Rrex  owing to the provisions of section 1011 of the Criminal Code:
Srmoany 560 Shaw v. McDonald (1921), 29 B.C. 230; Il v. Yates
(1810), 12 East 229; The King v. Sutton (1828), 8 B. & C.
417; Reg. v. Mellor (1808), 7 Cox, C.C. 454; Rex v. Urane
(1920), 3 K.B. 236; Rewx v. Horatio B()ttomley (1922), 16
Cr. App. R. 184; Brisebois v. The Queen (1888), 15 S.C.R.
421; Rex v. Brown and Diggs (1911), 45 N.S.R. 473; ERex v.
Morrow (1914), 24 Can. C.C. 310; Regina v. Earl (1894),
10 Man. L.R. 303 ; Montreal Street Railway Company v. Nor-
mandin (1917), A.C. 170; Rex v. Boak (1925), 36 B.C. 190
at p. 192; Regina v. Loader (1896), 22 V.L.R. 254 ; Abrahams
& Co. v. Scales (1899), 25 V.L.R. 389; Sinclawr v. Harding
(1871), 2 V.R. (L.,) 185.
Grant, in reply, referred to Rex v. McCrae (1906), 12 Can.
C.C. 253 at p. 268; The King v. Tremearne (1826), 5 B. & C.
254; The King v. Wakefield (1918), 1 K.B. 216.

Argument

Cur. adv. vult.

1st March, 1932,
Macponarp, C.J.B.C.: The accused appeals from his convic-
tion by a jury one of whom was a juror who had previously been
convicted of an indictable offence. Section 6 of the Jurors Aet,
Cap. 123 of the Revised Statutes of British Columbia, 1924,

enacts that:
Every person coming within any of the classes following shall be abso-
lutely disqualified for service as a juror, that is to say:—
MACDONALD, (c.) Persons convicted of indictable offences, unless they have obtamed
C.J.B.C. 4 free pardon.

The juror in question had not obtained a free pardon.

Section 15 of the Jurors Act provides how the selectors are
to proceed. They are to meet at the time or times therein
mentioned for the purpose of selecting a preliminary list of
persons liable to serve as jurors, and the number to be included
in such list was to be in the discretion of the selectors. It will,
therefore, be seen that they are to select persons “liable” to serve
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as jurors which means, of course, qualified to serve. This direc-
tion was not followed in the present case.

There was no contention on appellant’s behalf that he had
been prejudiced by the inclusion of this man in the jury; all
that was relied upon in the notice of appeal or in argument was
the fact of the said disqualification. Many cases were cited
particularly by Crown counsel and amongst them Abrahams &
Co. v. Scales (1899), 25 V.L.R. 389, on a statute (the only onc
resembling ours in any other jurisdiction). The Victorian
statute contains sections analogous to section 6; and section
1011 of the Criminal Code of Canada. The Court in that case
refused to set aside a verdict in circumstances similar to those
in question here. Montreal Street Railway v. Normandin
(1917), 86 L.J., P.C. 113 was also referred to by Crown
counsel. That case is not so strong a case as the present since
there was no express disqualification but the matters referred to
in the judgment throw a good deal of light on the present case.
Rex v. Boak (1925), S.C.R. 525 at p. 531, was also relied upon.
That case was primarily decided upon the failure of the appel-
lant to obtain leave to appeal but the Court went further and
expressed an opinion respecting the effect of said section of the

Code 1011 upon a case of this kind. It was there said:

We incline to agree with Mr. Justice GALLIHER that s. 1011 of
the Crlmmal Code, notwithstanding the absence from it of the word “sum-
moning,” was meant to preclude the impeaching of a verdict on the grounds
such as these. The defendant’s appeal to the Court of Appeal on this
ground should, therefore, likewise stand dismissed.

The ground in that case was precisely the same as in this.
It was disqualification under said section 6 (a), where a juror
was alleged to have been disqualified by reason of deafness. The
Court said (p. 530):

Under these circumstances we are not disposed to admit the right of the
defendant to contend on appeal that the presence of Keown on the petit
jury resulted in a miscarriage of justice; and, if he should be allowed to

do so, we are fully convinced that “no substantial wrong or miscarriage of
justice has actually occurred.”

I think there could be no question apart from section 1011
about the invalidity of the verdict. Disqualification goes to the
very root of it. The prisoner was entitled to be tried by twelve
qualified jurors and he has been tried by only eleven and a
twelfth man who had no right to be there at all, but nevertheless
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Parliament had the power to provide that such a defect should
not be raised after verdiet, and in my opinion section 1011 so
declares.

It will also be noted that the Code confines challenge for
cause to four cases which do not include a challenge of dis-
qualification with which we are concerned here. It may be that
Parliament thought that section 1011 was sufficient to protect a
verdict against a defect of the kind here alleged. If it does not
then there appears to be no means provided in the procedure of
selecting a jury for guarding against what occurred in this case
except by peremptory challenge. Neither the Crown nor a
prisoner has the right to question a juror for cause as to
whether or not he has been convicted of an indictable offence.

A motion for leave to appeal on the facts was made in this
case although the question was not contested in the appeal. I
think it was accepted as common ground that the juror aforesaid
was disqualified. There was, therefore, no question of faet to
be decided. I shall formally grant leave to appeal.

I would dismiss the appeal.

Marrrr, J.A.: This is a motion under section 1013 (¢) of
the Criminal Code for leave to appeal from the convietion of
the appellant at the last Victoria Assizes, coram Mr. Justice
Mrvrpry, for an offence under section 81 of the Criminal Code,
the sole ground being that one of the petit jurors, L. C. Impey,
was “absolutely disqualified for serviee as a juror” because he
was a person who had been convicted of two separate indictable
offences of theft (stealing blankets from the Government of
Canada) and had not obtained a free pardon, contrary to the
joint effect of section 6, Cap. 123, R.S.B.C. 1924, and section
921 of the Code.

This raises a question apart from the right to challenge for
cause under section 935, or otherwise, and many cases have been
cited thereupon but since the passing in 1923 of the Act to
Amend the Criminal Code, Cap. 41, and the decision of the
Supreme Court of Canada (in accord with that of the Quebee
Court of Appeal—King’s Bench—in Rex v. McCrae (1906),
16 Que. K.B. 193; 12 Can. C.C. 253; sections 734-5 therein
corresponding to sections 1010 and 1011) in an appeal from us
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in Rex v. Boak (1925), S.C.R. 525; (and ¢f. the explanation
in 36 B.C. 190, 192) the matter has been set at rest because it
was therein decided, on another “absolute disqualification”
(deafness) under the same section 6, that such an objection
could be raised by leave under subsection (¢) of 1013 as falling
within its language—“any other ground which appears to the
Court of Appeal to be a sufficient ground of appeal.” The
Court held (529) that:

The question is as to the constitution of the petit jury. Where such a
defect in the constitution of the petit jury is charged as might involve a
misearriage of justice (s, 1014 (1) (¢)) the Court of Appeal may regard
it as something which, if established, would be a sufficient ground of appeal.
But an appeal lies under clause (¢) of s. 1013 only “with leave of the
Court of Appeal.”

We are, therefore, of the view that leave of the Court of Appeal was a
condition precedent to the defendant’s right of appeal. Inasmuch as the
Court of Appeal proceeded on the view that such leave was unnecessary it
did not-exercise the discretion conferred on it by the statute in respect to
the giving or refusing of leave. It follows that its order setting aside the
defendant’s convietion and directing a new trial cannot be maintained on
the ground on which it was based.

The Court went on to say that in “the usual course” it would
remit the case to us to pass upon it on that ground (z.e., of dis-
qualification affecting the constitution of the jury), but under
the special circumstances did not do so because the disqualifica-
tion could not be relied upon and the appeal “must fail” owing

to the appellant’s conduet as set out at p. 530, viz.:

It is thus apparent that the question of the deafness of the juror Keown
was canvassed during the trial and that, with the knowledge ‘that the
learned trial judge was aware that that question had been raised and must
have satisfied himself that Keown’s deafness was not so great as to be
incompatible with his discharge of the duties of a juror before allowing the
trial to proceed with him as a member of the petit jury, counsel represent-
ing the defendant, to suit his own purposes, acquiesced in that course being
taken.

Under these circumstances we are not disposed to admit the right of the
defendant to contend on appeal that the presence of Keown on the petit
jury resulted in a miscarriage of justice; and, if he should be allowed to
do so, we are fully convinced that “no substantial wrong or miscarriage of
justice has actually occurred.” (Cr. C. s. 1014 (2)).

We, therefore, think that so far as the defendant’s appeal to the Court
of Appeal rests on this ground it should now be dismissed.

No conduct of the kind is present in the case at Bar; on the
contrary, it appears by the affidavits filed that the disqualifica-
tion of the juror was not discovered till after the conviction.
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There was no suggestion in the Boak case that the appeal
would have failed because of the curative provisions of section
1011 of the Code, though if it did apply it would be even more
fruitless to remit the appeal because it would fail on a clear
point of law. That section was invoked by the Court in relation
to the second and entirely distinet objection to the constitution
of the grand jury (p. 530) arising out of an omission in the
special order of the trial judge in summoning additional jury-
men and to that question it is obviously restricted.

It, therefore, becomes our duty, in my opinion, to allow the
motion and grant leave to appeal on the said ground, and as we
were informed by counsel, as I understood them, that no more
evidence was to be introduced if this motion succeeded and that
we were to hear the appeal and deal with the ground which we
allow upon that evidence without further argument, it follows
that, as the ground itself must be a valid one (otherwise we
should have rejected it pursuant to the Boak case, 529) all that
remains to be done is to see if it is “established” by the
evidence, and as to that no attempt is made to answer the
appellant’s affidavits clearly setting out the absolute disqualifica-
tion of the impeached juror as aforesaid, and as this goes to the
“constitution” of the jury, their verdict cannot stand and a new
trial should be had in due course of law.

McPurrrips and Macooxarp, JJ.A. agreed in ordering a
new trial for the reasons given by Marrin, J.A.

New trial ordered, Macdonald, C.J.B.C. dissenting.

Solicitor for appellant: Gordon M. Grant.
Solicitor for respondent: A. M. Jokhnson.
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GAMON v. EASTMAN.

Motor-vehicles — Collision between motor-cycle and automobile — Plaintiff
passenger on motor-cycle—Defendant driving eutomobile negligent—
Motor-cycle operated contrary to Motor-vehicle Act—Right of action
of plaintiff——R.8.B.C. 192}, Cap. 177, Sec. 19A.

The plaintiff was a passenger on a motor-cycle driven by G. proceeding
northward on the Gorge Road in the Municipality of Saanich. The
defendant who was parked on the proper side of the Gorge Road backed
his ear across the road just as the motor-cycle was approaching, in such
a position that the driver of the motor-cycle could not, with the exercise
of reasonable care, avoid running into him, and the plaintiff was
injured. It was found that the accident was due to defendant’s
negligence, but the evidence disclosed that the driver of the motor-
cycle at the time of the accident was not sitting on the driver’s seat
(the plaintiff being on the seat and behind the driver) and was driving
in contravention of section 19a of the Motor-vehicle Act.

Held, that the civil right of the plaintiff has not been affected in any way
by G. having committed an offence under the Motor-vehicle Act that
in no way contributed to the accident, and he is entitled to recover
damages from the defendant.

ACTION by a passenger on a motor-cycle for damages result-
ing from a collision between the motor-cycle and the defendant’s
automobile when driven by the defendant. The plaintiff
claimed the accident was due to the defendant’s negligence. The
facts are set out in the reasons for judgment. Tried by
Macvonarp, J. at Victoria on the 11th of May, 1932.

E. L. Tait, for plaintiff.
Manzer, for defendant.

29th June, 1932.

Macpoxarp, J.: On the 22nd of March, 1931, the plaintiff,
while a passenger on a motor-cycle, the property of and operated
by Arthur Grant, was proceeding northward along the Gorge
Road in the Municipality of Saanich, when he was struck and
injured by an automobile driven by the defendant. Plaintiff
alleged that such accident arose through the negligence of the
defendant and various particulars of such negligence were out-
lined, but the point upon which I find the defendant liable was

MACDONALD,
J.
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MACDONALD, in driving his automobile backwards, across the Gorge Road, in
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such a manner and with such lack of care, that Grant in
operating the motor-cycle could not, with the exercise of
reasonable care, have avoided an accident. It was apparent,
at the close of the evidence, that I had reached this conclusion
upon the question of negligence and that there was also a finding
of no contributory negligence on the part of the said Grant. In
this connection, I need only add, that in arriving at these conclu-
sions I accepted the evidence of George J. Dangerfield, who was
a competent and independent witness. He observed the defend-
ant’s automobile parked on the proper side of the road. It was
then started and backed up by defendant in jerks and swerved -
out into the crown of the road and at the same time he saw the
motor-cycle approaching. It was quite apparent that a collision
was bound to take place. At the last moment Grant tried to
avoid it oceurring and escaped injury himself but the plaintiff
was not so fortunate. I reserved judgment, however, giving
counsel an opportunity of submitting written arguments, with
respect to a contention made by counsel for the defendant, that
his client was in any event not liable, on the ground that the
motor-cycle was at the time of the accident being operated con-
trary to the provisions of section 19a of the Motor-vehicle Aect
(Cap. 177, R.S.B.C. 1924). This section was enacted in 1924
and was added to and amended in 1925. It now reads as

follows:

No person shall ride as a passenger, nor shall any person permit any
other person to ride as a passenger, on the handlebars or frame of any
motor-cyele, on any highway, in front of the person driving or operating
the motor-cycle; and no person shall drive or operate a motor-cycle on
any highway unless he is seated in the driver’s seat of the motor-cycle.

It is quite clear that this section, as originally enacted, simply
prohibited the carrying of passengers upon motor-cycles in front
of the driver. It implied that in the future they should be
carried behind the driver. Then the amendment of 1925
further restricted the use of motor-cycles and required that the
driver or operator of a motor-cycle on any highway should be
seated in the driver’s seat. It is submitted that while the
plaintiff was in the rear of Grant, still that he was occupying
the driver’s seat, to the exclusion of Grant who, as driver, was
utilizing a seat improvised for that purpose. It appears this



XLVI.] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS.

2

<
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mode of operation had previously been in vogue by Grant and MACDONALD,

was not simply adopted upon the day in question. In strictness,
however, I think, in this respect, the Act was not complied with.
The point then to be determined is whether, if I be correct in
this conclusion, it deprives the plaintiff of any remedy against
the defendant. It would be apparent that Grant would thus
have been guilty of an offence under the statute and liable to
the penalty therein provided. It is contended by the defendant
that not only could such penalty be imposed, but the plaintiff
would have any civil right he possessed destroyed. I do not
think such a result follows. The earlier decisions might have
supported a defence as against Grant, should he have been
injured and seeking redress. I however consider the point in
this Province now concluded by several authorities. In Boyer
v. Moillet (1920), 30 B.C. 216 any responsibility, beyond
incurring the penalties prescribed, under provisions of the
Motor-vehicle Act, was considered. Macponarp, C.J.A., after
discussing the particular section there in question, dealt with
the matter of civil liability, as distinguished from a penalty
under the Act, as follows (p. 220):

There is nothing in the Act from beginning to end to suggest that the
rights of individuals in civil aetions were to be disturbed.

Then McPrizrirs, J.A., at p. 224, said:

It therefore follows that, in my opinion, the British Columbia legisla-
tion, in its whole purview, confines the responsibility to the penalties
imposed by the Act. (See Atkinson v. Newcastle Waterworks Co. (1877),
2 Ex. D. 441; Groves v. Wimborne (Lord) (1898), 2 Q.B. 402 at p. 407).

In Walker v. B.C. Electric Ry. Co. (1926), 36 B.C. 338
the question was considered and in Burchill v. City of Van-
couver (1932) [45 B.C. 169], 1 W.W.R. 641, the matter
received further consideration. Macpoxarp, J.A. in the latter
case discussed the authorities at length. He drew a distinction
between an action, in which parties were jointly using a high-
way, and one where a remedy is sought by a party, so using the
highway, against the owner thereof, usually a municipality.
He said at p. 648:

This Court held in Walker v. B.C. Eleciric Ry. Co. (1926), 1 W.W.R.
503, 36 B.C. 338 that the failure of the owner and driver of a car to possess
a licence did not prevent him from recovering damages against a negligent

defendant. In Boyer v. Moillet (1921), 3 W.W.R. 62, 30 B.C. 216 it was
also held that statutory prohibitions in the Act were of a penal nature,
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MACDONALD, passed for the protection of the public and to punish offenders, and did not
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affect civil rights. The case at Bar is different and other considerations
arise. Respondent’s claim is not against another negligent driver but
against the owner of the highway.

So that, even if Grant had a civil remedy against the defend-
ant, it would not be destroyed by his failure to comply with
such provisions in the Motor-vehicle Act, in operating his
motor-cycle. This of course is subject to the qualification that
the non-compliance did not bring about or contribute to the
aceident.

Then, if Grant be in this position, as to not having a civil
right destroyed, it follows that the plaintiff should be in as good
a position as Grant. It is contended that the judgment of
Latchford, J. (now C.J.) in Roe v. Township of Wellesley
(1918), 43 O.L.R. 214 at p. 216, supports a contention of the
defendant to the contrary. The citation from this judgment
submitted by the defendant might lend him some assistance, if
read by itself, but when the entire judgment is considered, it
seems quite evident that the success of the defendant was due
to the failure of the plaintiff to shew negligence on the part of
the defendant. Turther that the accident could have been
avoided by the exercise of reasonable care by the plaintiff’s son.
It is true that the judgment concludes with a reference to the
son as follows: ‘“who, moreover, was prohibited by the statute
from acting as the driver of a motor-vehicle.” This statement
was in a sense obiter and did not form the basis of the judgment.

Then again, if Grant had committed an offence under the
Motor-vehicle Aect which would render his operation of the
motor-cycle an unlawful act, it would only afford a defence to
the defendant, if such unlawful act caused or contributed to the
accident.

In Barron’s Canadian Law of Motor Vehicles, p. 533, the
law as to prohibitory statutes, depriving a party of redress, is
as follows:

When the law prohibits an act, then that act is unlawful, and the doing

of an unlawful act deprives the person who does it of the right to recover
damages resulting from such unlawful act.

The accident was in no way attributable to the manner in
which Grant was operating the motor-cycle or to the breach of
any statute. He was not a trespasser “in the sense in which
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that word is strictly and technically used in law”: Vide Lord MACPONALD, )
Halsbury in Lowery v. Walker (1911), A.C. 10—nor was he  ——
an “outlaw” and deprived of the use of the highway. 1932

I think the civil right of the plaintiff has not been affected in  June29.
any way and that he is entitled to recover damages from the G, yox
defendant. The amount to be awarded to him is difficult to v

. . s . . EasTMAN

determine. Plaintiff had to undergo a major operation. Then
his leg had to be rebroken and a second operation required. Ile
thus endured considerable pain and suffering. There was
permanent disability but to a limited extent. The large amount Judgment
paid by John C. Gamon, father of the plaintiff, for medical,
surgical, hospital and other expenses should not be considered,
as plaintiff has no right of recovery in respect thereto. I think
a fair and reasonable amount to allow the plaintiff for damages
would be $1,800 with costs. Judgment accordingly.

Judgment for plaintiff.
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REX v. MORLEY.

Criminal laow-—Indion Reservation—Killing pheasants thereon by one other
than an Indian—Conviction under Game Act—=Effect of the Indian Act
—R.8.C. 1927, Cap. 98, Secs. 2, 84, 35, 36, 117 and 156; R.S.B.C. 1924,
Cap. 98, Sec. 9.

An appeal to the County Court from the conviction of a white man for
shooting a pheasant in the close season on an Indian reserve was
dismissed.

Held, on appeal, affirming the decision of Swanson, Co. J. (MACDONALD,
C.J.B.C. and Macpoxarp, J.A, dissenting), that the conviction is valid
as founded upon a Provincial statute respecting property and ecivil
rights, an exclusive jurisdiction of the Province under the B.N.A. Act,
and the legislation is not ultra vires in respect to Indian Reserves.

APPEAL by defendant from the decision of Swawxson, Co. J.
of the 14th of May, 1931, affirming the conviction of the appel-
lant by D. W. Rowlands, stipendiary magistrate for the County
of Yale, on the 9th of April, 1930, for that he at Kamloops
Indian Reserve in the County of Yale, on or about the 2nd of
November, 1929, being the close season, unlawfully did kill a
pheasant, contrary to section 9 of the Game Act. He was fined
$25 and costs. The accused appealed on the ground that the
Game Act is ultra vires of the Provincial Legislature as regards
Indian Reserves. The appeal was argued at Vancouver on the
27th of April, 1930, before Macnonarp, C.J.B.C., GALLIHER,
McPamries and Macpoxarp, JJ.A., when judgment was
reserved. The Court later ordered that the appeal be reargued.

The appeal was re-argued at Victoria on the 3rd of July, 1931,
before Macpnoxarp, C.J.B.C., MarriN, Garriaer, McPrInLIps
and Macpo~arp, JJ.A.

Burns, K.C., for appellant: The shooting was on an Indian
Reserve, and all Indian Reservations are controlled by the
Indian Act (Dominion). The Dominion Parliament has entered
this field and is paramount, and the Province is excluded. Game
birds are part and parcel of the land itself. That this is within
Dominion legislation see St. Catherine’s Milling and Lumber
Co. v. The Queen (1888), 58 L.J., P.C. 54 at p. 57. As it had
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already been entered into by the Dominion the Province eannot
enter: see Rex v. Bdward Jim (1915), 22 B.C. 106; Rex v.
Cooper (1925), 35 B.C. 457; Rex v. Rodgers (19238), 33 Man.
L.R. 139; In re Combines Investigation Act and S. 498 of the
Criminal Code. Proprietary Articles Trade Association v.
Attorney-General for Canada (1931), 1 W.W.R. 552 at p. 562;
Bex v. Anderson (1930), 2 W.W.R. 595 at p. 598.

Pratt, for respondent: The Indian Act is qua Indians and
Indian lands. Werely on section 92 (13) and (16) of the B.N.A.
Act. The cases referred to by appellant apply to Indians only.
Any person other than a member of the reserve is subject to the
Provineial Act: see Rex v. Hill (1907), 15 O.L.R. 406; Cun-
nmingham v. Tomey Homma (1903), A.C. 151; Maxwell on
Statutes, 3rd Ed., 71; Aétorney-General for the Dominion of
Canada v. Attorneys-General for the Provinces of Ontario,
Quebec and Nova Scotia (1898), A.C. 700 at p. 716 ; Canadian
Pacific Railway v. Corporation of the Parish of Notre Dame de
Bonsecours (1899), A.C. 367 at p. 372; Sanderson v. Heap
(1909), 11 W.L.R. 238 at p. 241; Attorney-General for Canada
v. Giroux (1916), 53 S.C.R. 172; Rex v. McLeod (1930), 2
W.W.R. 37. Should the Indian Reserve be abandoned the land
would come back to the Provinee.

Burns, in reply: The conviction states this was on an Indian

Reserve.
Cur. adv. vult.

6th October, 1931.

Macponarp, C.J.B.C.: The appellant a white man was con-
victed under the Game Act of the Province of shooting a pheas-
ant on an Indian Reserve and this appeal is from his convietion
for such offence under that Act.

Shortly after the Treaty of Paris, 1763, the Crown shewed
its interest in protecting the Indians in their hunting fields and
throughout the various changes which have since occurred in the
management of the Indians and their lands that interest has
been maintained. Section 91 (24) of the British North America
Act assigns exclusively to the Dominion Parliament the right to
legislate concerning Indians and the management of their lands.

The Province under the said Provincial Act fixed certain
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seasons as closed seasons, that is to say seasons in which game
might not be shot and the offence in question was committed on
the Indian Reserve during one of these closed seasons and hence
the prosecution. The Indian Act, section 34, enacts that:

No person, or Indian other than an Indian of the band, shall without the
authority of the superintendent general, reside or hunt upon, occupy or use
any land or marsh, or reside upon or occupy any road, or allowance for
road, running through any reserve belonging to or oceupied by such band.

Sections 35 and 36 provide punishment for breach of this
section. It is, therefore, clear that the Dominion, by its legisla-
tion, occupies the field in question. The contention of the
Province is that the question is one falling within section
92 (13), namely, property and civil rights, the right to legislate
thereon being assigned by the said section to the Province. It
may be conceded at once for the purposes of this case, that each
had power to so legislate but the legislation, I think, must be
confined to its respective field of operation. While there has
been much dispute concerning the property rights of the Indians
in Indian Reserves or more correctly of the Dominion Govern-
ment, there has been no such dispute concerning the Dominion
legislation in respect of Indians and the management of their
lands. The pheasants on the reserve belong to the reserve and
the Indian Act was passed, inter alia, to protect the interest of
the Indians in these pheasants and to prohibit the hunting of
them on Indian Reserves. In Grand Trunk Railway of Canada
v. Attorney-General of Canada (1907), A.C. 65 at p. 68 the
Privy Couneil said:

But a comparison of two cases decided in the year 1894—wviz., Attorney-
General of Ontario v. Attorney-General of Canade (1894), A.C. 189 and
Tennant v. Union Bank of Canadae [ib. 31]—seems to establish these two
propositions: First, that there can be a domain in which provincial and
Dominion legislation may overlap, in which case neither legislation will be
wultra vires, if the field is clear; and, secondly, that if the field is not clear,
and in such a domain the two legislations meet, then the Dominion legisla-
tion must prevail.

That statement of the law is peculiarly applicable to the
present case.

In the recent decision of the Privy Council in In re Combines
Investigation Act and S. 498 of the Criminal Code (1931), 1
W.W.R. 552 at p. 562, the law is stated thus:

If then the legislation in question is authorized under one or other of the
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heads specifically enumerated in section 91, it is not to the purpose to say
that it affects property and civil rights in the Provinces.

And see the saving clause at the end of section 91.

In Rex v. Rodgers (1923), 33 Man. L.R. 139, it was held that
where the offence against the Provincial Act occurred beyond
the limits of the Indian Reserve the Indian offender must be
punished under the Provincial Act; here the offence was com-
mitted not outside the Reserve but within it and I think must
be dealt with under the Indian Aect, the field being occupied by
that Aect. Section 69 of the Indian Act enables the superinten-

dent general to give public notice that the Provincial laws of
Manitoba, Saskatchewan or Alberta, or the Territories, or respecting such
game as is specified in such notice, shall apply to Indian Reserves within
the said Province or Territories, as the case may be, or to Indian Reserves
in such parts thereof as to him seems expedient.

This section does not apply and in any case has not been
applied in this Province.
The appeal must therefore be allowed with costs.

Marrix, J.A.: On the 9th of April, 1930, the following con-
viction of the appellant was made by the stipendiary magistrate
at Kamloops, B.C., viz.:

For that he, the said Henry L. Morley of the City of Kamloops in the
County of Yale, Solicitor, at Kamloops Indian Reserve in the County of
Yale aforesaid on or about the second day of November, 1929, being the
close season unlawfully did kill a pheasant contrary to section 9 of the
Game Act being R.S.B.C. 1924, chapter 98, and I adjudge the said Henry L.
Morley for his said offence to forfeit and pay the sum of Twenty-five dollars
to be paid and applied according to law; and also to pay to the prosecutor
the sum of Six dollars and twenty-five cents, for his costs in this behalf

[and to imprisonment upon default of such payment].

An appeal was taken from this conviction to His Honour
Judge Swansox of the County Court of Yale and its was dis-
missed by him, whereupon a further appeal was taken to this
Court.

I pause here to note that by some strange error and oversight
this eriminal appeal (¢f. Chung Chuck v. The King (1930),
A.C. 244, 251, 254, 257-8) was not lodged or entered upon the
list in the usual way under the proper title or heading pertaining
thereto (as in e.g., Rex v. Edward Jim (1915), 22 B.C. 106;
Rex v. Cooper (1925), 35 B.C. 457; Rex v. McLeod (1930),
2 WW.R. 37; and Rex v. Rodgers (1923), 33 Man. L.R. 139),
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Pt but was wrongly entered as if it were an ordinary civil appeal,
——  which error gives a misleading complexion to the whole matter
1931 and is of importance in view of certain decisions hereinafter to

Oct. 6. he cited; therefore I give the proper title herein, viz., Rex v.
pex  Morley.

Monipy From the outset it is to be borne in mind that this case is not
one of the convietion of an Indian but of a white man who tres-
passed upon an Indian Reserve and therein committed the
offence complained of, and the ground of his appeal is that the
said “Game Act . . . 1isultra vires of the Province as regards
Indian Reserves.”

It becomes unnecessary therefore to consider what is the
application of the said Game Acts to Indians in general or those
of the particular band living upon the reserve in question, in
regard to which it is to be observed that we have no evidence in
the record and no other information than the admission by
counsel of the bare fact that it is a “Reserve” within the mean-
ing of the Indian Act, R.8.C. 1927, Cap. 98, Sec. 2, though
under other cirecumstances full information on the history of the
reserve would be essential to define the rights of particular
Indians as many reported cases shew, e.g., Attorney-General for
Canada v. Giroux (1916), 53 S.C.R. 172.

In support of said ground it is submitted that the National
Parliament has under the “exclusive authority’” over “Indians,
and Lands reserved for the Indians,” conferred upon it by sec-
tion 91, class (24), of the B.N.A. Act, occupied the field in
question to the entire exclusion of the exclusive right of the
Provincial Legislature to make “laws in relation to property and
civil rights in the Province” and “Generally all matters of a
merely local or private nature in the Province” as conferred by
classes (13) and (16) respectively of section 92 of said Act.

MARTIN,
J.A.

On legislation respecting animals fere nature we are fortu-
nate in having for our assistance the leading and convincing
judgment of the Manitoba Appellate Court in The Queen v.
Robertson (1886), 3 Man. L.R. 613, delivered by Mr. Justice
Killam, wherein it was decided that the Game Protection clauses
of the Agricultural Statistics & Health Act, 1883, of the Mani-
toba Legislature were intra vires under both of said classes (13)
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and (16), and so a conviction of the appellant for having a
moose in his possession during the “protected season” was
affirmed. The whole judgment merits careful perusal but as it
does not relate primarily to Indian Reserves and as its conclu-
sions are not indeed attacked but sought to be avoided I shall
make only three citations therefrom which throw light upon the
present question, viz., p. 622:

The prohibitions against the killing or taking of wild birds or other
animals, and against having them in possession are prohibitions pure and
simple of the exercise of eivil rights. This was disputed upon the argu-
ment of the application, but it appears too clear to require any considerable
discussion.

Sir Wm. Blackstone, in his Commentaries on the Laws of England, Vol.
2, e. 28, p. 403, lays down the principle, “With regard, likewise, to animals
fere naturce all mankind had by the original grant of the Creator a right
to pursue and take any fowl or insect of the air, any fish or inhabitant of
the waters, and any beast or reptile of the field; and this natural right
still continues in every individual unless where it is restrained by the civil
laws of the country. And when a man has once so seized them, they become
while living his qualified property, or if dead, are absolutely his own.”

And at p. 623 after an informing citation from Brown &

Hadley’s Commentaries on the Laws of England he proceeds:

This last citation exhibits the plain distinetion which exists between the
personal right of each individual to pursue and take or kill animals fere
neture and the right to do so upon particular land, and this serves to shew
that although in this Province as claimed in argument, the right to enter
upon and pursue game over ordinary public lands can, as against the Crown,
be conferred only by the officers of the Crown for the Dominion, yet the
right to do so in a particular manner or at a particular season or even to
do so at all is not necessarily on that account subject to the control of the
Dominion Parliament.

It is to be remembered that at the time the learned judge was
speaking the “ordinary public lands” of the Crown in Manitoba
belonged to the Dominion and therefore his observations are of
particular force in this Province which has always owned such
lands.

At p. 625 he says:

I must, however, cite one sentence from the remarks of Chief Justice
Ritehie in the same case, The Citizens’ Insurance Co. v. Parsons [ (1880) 1,
4 S.C.R. 243, “I think the power of the Dominion Parliament to regulate
trade and commerce ought not to be held to be necessarily inconsistent with
those of the Local Legislatures to regulate property and civil rights in
respect to all matters of a merely local and private nature, such as matters
connected with the enjoyment and preservation of property in the Province,
or matters of contract between parties in relation to their property or deal-

3
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ings, although the ewercise by the Local Legislatures of such powers may
be said remotely to affect matters connected with trade and commerce,
unless, indeed, the laws of the Provincial Legislatures should conflict with
those of the Dominion Parliament passed for the general regulation of trade
and commerce.”

But a “conflict” is suggested to arise herein from section 34
of said Indian Act as follows in the group of six sections under
the heading

Trespassing on Reserves.

34. No person, or Indian other than an Indian of the band, shall without
the authority of the superintendent general, reside or hunt upon, occupy or
use any land or marsh, or reside upon or occupy any road, or allowance for
road, running through any reserve belonging to or occupied by such band.

2. All deeds, leases, contracts, agreements or instruments of whatsoever
kind made, entered into, or consented to by any Indian, purporting to
permit persons or Indians other than Indians of the band to reside or hunt
upon such reserve, or to occupy or use any portion thereof, shall be void.

Section 35 follows to provide for the “removal or notification”

of such trespassers and others in general, viz.:

35. If any Indian is illegally in possession of any land on a reserve, or if
any person, or Indian other than an Indian of the band, without the licence
of the superintendent general,

(@) settles, resides or hunts upon, occupies, uses, or causes or permits
any cattle or other animals owned by him, or in his charge, to trespass on
any such land or marsh;y

(b) fishes in any marsh, river, stream or creek on or running through
a reserve; or

(e¢) settles, resides upon or oceupies any road, or allowance for road, on
such reserve;
the superintendent general or such other officer or person as he thereunto
deputes and authorizes, shall, on complaint made to him, and on proof of
the fact to his satisfaction, issue his warrant, signed and sealed, directed
to any literate person willing to act in the premises, commanding him forth-
with as the case may be,

(@) to remove from the said land, marsh or road, or allowance for road,
every such person or Indian and his family, so settled, or who is residing or
hunting upon, or occupying, or is illegally in possession of the same;

- And it goes on to deal similarly with the other classes of tres-
passers and to empower the Indian Agent to deal with trespassers
in certain cases. Section 36 provides for the punishment of
“any person or Indian” who returns to the reserve for said
prohibited purposes after being removed therefrom, by arrest
under warrant of the superintendent general and imprisonment
on summary conviction by certain specified magistrates. Section
37 directs the sheriff to deliver the conviet to the proper gaoler
and the final section 38 directs and declares that:
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38. The superintendent general, or such officer or person aforesaid, shall
cause the judgment or order against the offender to be drawn up and filed
in his office.

2. Such judgment shall not be appealed from, or removed by certiorari
or otherwise, but shall be final.

Therefore we find in this group of “Trespass” sections a
special and final tribunal created for the purpose of preventing
trespassing of all kinds upon Indian Reserves and for summarily
punishing offenders of that class. Power is also given by section
115 to impose the additional penalty of a fine and costs, “half of
which penalty shall belong to the informer.”

With the greatest respect for other opinions I find myself
unable to perceive any real conflict of jurisdiction between the
National Parliament and the Provincial Legislature in the said
special provisions of general prohibition against encroachments
of any kind upon an Indian Reserve not only, be it noted, by
“any person” but also by those Indians who are not “of the
band” occupying the reserve in question. Even were there no
game laws in existence such legislation would be necessary to
protect these aboriginal wards of the Crown from the incursions
of trespassers in general (as has been done “from the earliest
period”—Totten v. Watson (1858), 15 U.C.Q.B. 392, in banco)
and the matter is not dealt with in the said Indian Act qua
game but as a general prohibition against “hunting” (<.e., pur-
suing to capture or kill, Game Aect, Sec. 2) of any kind, even
though the thing, be it furred or feathered or scaled, “hunted”
is not “game” in the ordinary sporting sense (¢f. article, “Game
Laws,” Encyclopeedia of the Laws of England, Vol. VI, p. 36),
or as defined in the B.C. Game Act, Secs. 2 and 9, now under
consideration, which deals not only with the “hunting, trapping,
taking, wounding or killing” of ordinary “game” and “game
birds” but with “fur-bearing animals as defined in this Aect”
(which definition is constantly changing to meet new conditions,
e.g., the introduection of wild turkeys—section 9 (v.) amended)
and a variety of cognate subjects, and authorizes and even offers
bounties (section 41 (e)) for the destruction of certain preda-
tory birds and animals (e.g., sections 6 (d), 13) which are
beyond the pale of the Act as being either enemies of game or
dangerous and destructive to domestic stock and otherwise, e.g.,
eagles, timber wolves and cougars.
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Ever since the British conquest of Quebec at least it has been
the declared policy of the Government, by the Royal Proclama-
tion of 7th October, 1763,
that the several nations or tribes of Indians with whom we are connected,
and who live under our protection, should not be molested or disturbed in
the possession of such parts of our dominions and territories as, not having
been ceded to us, are reserved to them, or any of them, as their hunting-
grounds;. .

And we do further declare it to be our Royal will and pleasure, for the
present as aforesaid, to reserve under our sovereignty, protection and
dominion, for the use of the said Indians, all the land and territories not
included within the limits of our said three new governments, or within the
limits of the territory granted to the Hudson’s Bay Company; as also the
land and territories lying to the westward of the sources of the rivers which
fall into the sea from the west and northwest as aforesaid; and we do
hereby strictly forbid, on pain of our displeasure, all our loving subjects
from making any purchases or settlements whatever, or taking possession
of any of the lands above reserved, without our special leave and licence for
that purpose first obtained.

And we do further strictly enjoin and require all persons whatsoever,
who have either wilfully or inadvertently seated themselves upon any lands
within the countries above described, or upon any other lands which, not
having been ceded to or purchased by us, are still reserved to the said
Indians as aforesaid, forthwith to remove themselves from such settlements.

Though this Proclamation did not extend to what is now this
Province, which had not then been visited even by the two later
Royal Naval expeditions of the King of Spain, which preceded
by several years the arrival of Captain Cook, R.N., on this
Pacific Coast in 1778, yet it is a striking indication of the initial
policy of excluding trespassers in general from Indian Reserves
which is preserved till today by the group of sections above
quoted.

There is to my mind no practical obstacle in the continuation
of that historical Imperial policy in favour of the Indians and
also in the later inauguration of the wider Provincial policy,
since Confederation at least, of the preservation and regulation
of wild life at large for the general benefit of all the “residents”
(section 2), including the Indians, of the Provinces as the local
Legislatures may think best under their widely varying con-
ditions, in the due exercise of their sald powers under the
B.N.A. Act.

It is clearly established by repeated decisions of the Privy
Couneil that the incidental oceupation by the Dominion in the
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exercise of its exclusive powers of an otherwise exclusive Pro-
vineial area can only be justified by and must be restricted to
the reasonable necessity of the case, which becomes a question of
degree under the circumstances—trenching to any extent,” as
Lord Watson put it in Tennant v. Union Bank of Canada
(1894), A.C. 31, at p. 45. Thus in Citizens” Insurance Com-
pany of Canada v. Parsons (1881), T App. Cas. 96 it was said
at p. 108, in a passage cited by Killam, J. in the Eoberlson case,
supra, p. 626:

Notwithstanding this endeavour to give pre-eminence to the Dominion
Parliament in eases of a conflict of powers, it is obvious that in some cases
where this apparent conflict exists, the Legislature could not have intended
that the powers exclusively assigned to the Provincial Legislature should
be absorbed in those given to the Dominion Parliament.

And again, . at pp. 108-9:

In these cases it is the duty of the Courts, however difficult it may be, to
ascertain in what degree, and to what extent, authority to deal with matters
falling within these classes of subjects exists in each Legislature, and to
define in the particular case before them the limits of their respective
powers. It could not have been the intention that a conflict should exist;
and, in order to prevent such a result, the two sections must be read
together, and the language of one interpreted, and, where necessary, modi-
fied, by that of the other. In this way it may, in most cases, be found
possible to arrive at a reasonable and practical construction of the language
of the sections, so as to reconcile the respective powers they contain, and
give effect to all of them. In performing this difficult duty, it will be a
wise course for those on whom it is thrown, to decide each case which arises
as best they can, without entering more largely upon an interpretation of
the statute than is necessary for the decision of the particular question
in hand.

This view was later reaffirmed and adopted by the same
tribunal in John Deere Plow Company, Limited v. Wharton
(1915), A.C. 330, wherein at p. 338, while considering said
sections 91 and 92 “and the degree to which the connotation of
the expressions used overlaps” their Lordships first said it was
“unwise on this or any other occasion to attempt exhaustive
definitions of the meaning and scope of these expressions”
because this “must almost certainly miscarry,” and then went
on to say:

It is in many cases only by confining decisions to concrete questions which
have actually arisen in circumstances the whole of which are before the
tribunal that injustice to future suitors can be avoided. Their Lordships

adhere to what was said by Sir Montague Smith in delivering the judgment
of the Judicial Committee in Citizens’ I[nsurance Co. v. Parsons [supra] to
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the effect that in discharging the difficult duty of arriving at a reasonable
and practical construction of the language of the sections, so as to reconcile
the respective powers they contain and give effect to them all, it is the wise
course to decide each case which arises without entering more largely upon
an interpretation of the statute than is necessary for the decision of the
particular question in hand. The wisdom of adhering to this rule appears
to their Lordships to be of especial importance when putting a construction
on the scope of the words “civil rights” in particular cases. An abstract
logical definition of their scope is not only, having regard to the context of
ss. 91 and 92 of the Act, impracticable, but is certain, if attempted, to cause
embarrassment and possible injustice in future cases. It must be borne in
mind in construing the two sections that matters which in a special aspect
and for a particular purpose may fall within one of them may in a different
aspect and for a different purpose fall within thie other. In such cases the
nature and scope of the legislative attempt of the Dominion or the Provinee,
as the case may be, have to be examined with reference to the actual facts if
it is to be possible to determine under which set of powers it falls in sub-
stance and in reality. This may not be difficult to determine in actual and
concrete cases.

And again on p. 342:

Lines of demarcation have to be drawn in construing the application of
the sections to actual concrete cases, as to each of which individually the
Courts have to determine on which side of a particular line the facts place
them.

In Attorney-General for Manitoba v. Altorney-General for
Canada (1928), 98 L.J., P.C. 65; (1929), A.C. 260, the
Privy Council said, after a consideration of the leading cases,
p. 267:

As a matter of construction it is now well settled that, in the case of a
company incorporated by Dominion authority with power to carry on its
affairs in the Provinces generally, it is not competent to the Legislatures
of those Provinces so to legislate as to impair the status and essential
capacities of the company in a substantial degree.

And went on to hold that “the statutes now under considera-
tion do so impair the status and powers of such a company . . .”

In the British Columbia Fisheries Reference case, Attorney-
General for Canada v. Attorney-General for British Columbia
(1930}, A.C. 111, it was contended by the National Govern-
ment that certain sections of the National Fisheries Act of 1914
(authorizing the minister of fisheries to withhold licences to
fish) were valid on the ground (p. 120) that they were “‘neces-
sarily incidental to effective legislation upon an enumerated
subject” (class 12. “Sea Coast and inland fisheries”) though
otherwise the matter admittedly fell within the exclusive juris-
diction of the Province as “property and ecivil rights,” but it
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was held (pp. 121-2) that they were not so incidental and con-
sequently “the impugned sections . . . cannot be supported.”

On page 118 four “propositions” were stated on the question
of legislative conflict of which the 3rd and 4th are of special
relevaney, viz.:

(3.) It is within the competence of the Dominion Parliament to provide
for matters which, though otherwise within the legislative competence of
the Provincial Legislature, are necessarily incidental to effective legislation
by the Parliament of the Dominion upon a subject of legislation expressly
enumerated in s. 91: see Attorney-General of Ontario v. Attorney-General
for the Dominion (1894), A.C. 189; and Attorney-General for Ontario V.
Attorney-General for the Dominion (1896), A.C. 348.

(4.) There can be a domain in which Provincial and Dominion legisla-
tion may overlap, in which case neither legislation will be ultra vires if the
field is clear, but if the field is not clear and the two legislations meet the
Dominion legislation must prevail: see Grand Trunk Reilway of Canada
v. Attorney-General of Canada (1907), A.C. 65.

Still more recent is the decision of the same tribunal in Pro-
prietary Articles Trade Association v. Attorney-General for
Canada (1931), A.C. 310 wherein the principles hereinbefore
cited from the Citizens and John Deere Plow cases were
approved pp. 316-7 with the additional observation:

The object is as far as possible to prevent too rigid declarations of the
Courts from interfering with such elasticity as is given in the written con-

stitution. With these two principles in mind the present task must be
approached.

And it was held that the “pith and substance” of the
impugned Federal statute was, under the circumstances, not “in
substance” (p. 325) an encroachment on the exclusive power of
the Provinces to legislate on property and civil rights, though
in The Board of Commerce Act case (1922), 1 A.C. 191 (which
was much relied upon by the Provinces concerned, but was now
distinguished on the facts, p. 325) it was held by the same
tribunal that there had been on the part of the Dominion
“attempts to interfere with Provincial rights,” sought to be
justified under the head of criminal law, but which had been
made “colourably and merely in aid of what is in substance an
encroachment.”

And at p. 317 it was said:

Their Lordships entertain no doubt that time alone will not validate an
Act whieh when challenged is found to be ultra vires; nor will a history of

a gradual series of advances till this boundary is finally crossed avail to
protect the ultimate encroachment. But one of the questions to be con-
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sidered is always whether in substance the legislation falls within an
enumerated class of subject, or whether on the contrary in the guise of an
enumerated class it is an encroachment on an excluded class. On this issue
the legislative history may have evidential value.

In the attempt to determine the vexed question as to whether
the two legislations really “meet” (which must mean meet in
conflict) in a fleld which is not clear, great difficulty is often
encountered in drawing the “lines of demarcation” on the ever
varying facts before the Court. Upon rare occasion there is litile
difficulty, e.g., in Madden v. Nelson and Fort Sheppard Rarlway
(1899), A.C. 626 wherein it was found (p. 628) that the Pro-
vineial Legislature had attempted to “enter into a field
which is wholly withdrawn from them and is therefore, mani-
festly ulira vires.” But in so holding the Privy Couneil referred
to a case which was on the line, viz., their own very recent
decision in Canadian Pacific Badway v. Corporation of the
Parish of Notre Dame de Bonsecours, ib. 367, and which is
relied upon by the present respondent, and it undoubtedly does
assist his submission that even a great railway corporation,
created by special Act of Parliament for exceptional National
purposes, may still be under Provincial obligations (there to
keep its own authorized ditches clean) delegated to municipali-
ties, even though, as Lord Watson said, p. 871:

It is not matter of dispute that, by virtue of these enactments, the Par-
liament of Canada had and have the sole right of legislating with reference
to the matter of the appellants’ railway.

On the other hand, we have a later decision of the same
tribunal, also with regard to a Dominion railway, Grand Trunk
Railway of Canada v. Attorney-General of Canada (1907), A.C.
65, that it was “truly railway legislation” on the part of the
company to enter into contracts with its employees which were
prohibited by Parliament even though (p. 68) “it is true that in
so doing it does touch what may be described as the civil rights
of those employees. But this is inevitable. 7

Then the leading case from this Province of Cunningham v.
Tomey Homma (1903), A.C. 151 is noteworthy and very
instructive on the present question because it was one of an
alien, and only two classes of persons as such are specifically
enumerated in said sections 91 or 92, viz., “(25.) Naturaliza-
tion and aliens,” and “(24.) Indians,” ete. It was sought in
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that case to expand the personal rights of naturalized aliens, and
the power of Parliament over that exclusive subject-matter, to
such an extent that they had the right to have their names placed
upon the Provinecial register of voters, and it was submitted (p.
155) that under said class (25) “the whole subject of natural-
ization is reserved to the exclusive jurisdietion of the Dominion”
and that by the Naturalization Act of Canada a naturalized
alien is within Canada entitled to all political and other rights
powers and privileges to which a natural-born British subject is
entitled in Canada. But this submission was rejected, their
Lordships saying, pp. 156-7:

The truth is that the language of that section does not purport to deal
with the consequences of either alienage or naturalization. It undoubtedly
reserves these subjects for the exclusive jurisdiction of the Dominion—that
is to say, it is for the Dominion to determine what shall constitute either
the one or the other, but the question as to what consequences shall follow
from either is not touched. The right of protection and the obligations of
allegiance are necessarily involved in the nationality conferred by natural-
ization; but the privileges attached to it, where these depend upon resi-
dence, are quite independent of nationality.

This decision was followed in another case from this Province
—DBrooks-Bidlake and Whittall, Ld. v. Attorney-General for
British Columbia (1923), A.C. 450 wherein it was stated,
p. 457:

It is said that, as s. 91, head 25, of the British North America Act
reserves to the Dominion Parliament the exclusive right to legislate on the
subject of “naturalization and aliens,” the Provincial Legislature is not
competent to impose regulations restricting the employment of Chinese or
Japanese on Crown property held in right of the Province. Their Lordships
are unable to agree with this contention. Sect. 91 reserves to the Dominion
Parliament the general right to legislate as to the rights and disabilities
of aliens and naturalized persons; but the Dominion is not empowered by
that section to regulate the management of the public property of the
Province, or to determine whether a grantee or licensee of that property
shall or shall not be permitted to employ persons of a particular race.
These functions are assigned by s. 92, head 5, and s. 109 of the Act to the
Legislature of the Province; and there is nothing in s. 91 which conflicts
with that view.

Then there is the important decision of the Supreme Court
of Canada in Quong-Wing v. The King (1914), 49 S.C.R. 440
wherein it was held that a general prohibition, to be enforced
by penalties after conviction, in a Saskatchewan statute, against
the employment by any person, of white women or girls in “any

restaurant, laundry or other place of business or amusement
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owned, kept or managed by any Chinaman” was intra vires even
though the Chinese appellant convicted thereunder was a nat-
uralized alien, and Tomey Homma’s case, supra, was relied
upon, and the submission was again rejected that under said
class (25) Parliament had exclusive authority over all matters
which directly concern the rights, privileges and disabilities of
naturalized aliens. Mr. Justice Davies said, p. 447:

While it [elass 25] exclusively reserves these subjects to the jurisdiction
of the Dominion in so far as to determine what shall constitute either
alienage or naturalization, it does not touch the question of what conse-
quences shall follow from either, I am relieved from the difficulty I would
otherwise feel.

The legislation under review does not, in this view, trespass upon the
exclusive power of the Dominion Legislature. It does deal with the subject-
matter of “property and ecivil rights” within the Province, exclusively
assigned to the Provincial Legislatures, and so dealing cannot be held ultra

vires, however harshly it may bear upon Chinamen, naturalized or not,
residing in the Province.

And p. 448:

I think the pith and substance of the legislation now before us is entirely
different. Its object and purpose is the protection of white women and
girls; and the prohibition of their employment or residence, or lodging, or
working, ete., in any place of business or amusement owned, kept or man-
aged by any Chinaman is for the purpose of ensuring that proteetion. Such
legislation does not, in my judgment, come within the class of legislation or
regulation which the Judicial Committee held wltra vires of the Provincial
Legislatures in the case of Union Colliery Company of British Columbia v.
Bryden (1899), A.C. 580.

Mr. Justice Duff said, p. 462:

The enactment is not necessarily brought within the category of “crim-
inal law,” as that phrase is used in section 91 of the British North America
Act, 1867, by the fact merely that it consists simply of a prohibition and
of clauses prescribing penalties for the non-observance of the substantive
provisions.

The authority of the Legislature of Saskatchewan to enact this statute
now before us is disputed upon the ground that the Act is really and truly
legislation i relation to a matter which falls within the subject assigned
exclusively to the Dominion by section 91 (25), “aliens and naturaliza-
tion,” and to which, therefore, the jurisdiction of the Province does not
extend.

And he proceeds to dispose of that submission, basing his
convineing opinion largely upon Tomey Homma's case, which
removed (p. 466 ef seq.) the obstacle raised by Lord Watson’s

observations in Bryden’s case.
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Finally* I refer to the first case cited herein, Chung Chuck
v. The King (1930), A.C. 244, which followed Nadan v. The
King (1926), A.C. 482, wherein it was held that each of the
two distinet appeals from the Appellate Court of Alberta affirm-
ing separate convictions, was a “criminal case” within section
1025 of the Criminal Code, even though one of the convictions
was under the Alberta Liquor Control Act, 1924, for unlawfully
having liquor in possession, and the other was under the Canada
Temperance Act, R.S.C. 1906, for unlawfully transporting
liquor through that Province: on the first charge the appellant
was fined $200 and costs and the liquor and his motor-car for-
feited, and on the second he was fined $500 and costs, and in
default of payment to be, in each case, imprisoned.

Both the appeals were dismissed even though it was desired
(p- 496) to question the validity of the respective Provincial
and Dominion statutes on which the separate convietions were

based, their Lordships saying in conclusion, p. 496:

It is of the utmost importance that a decision on a eriminal charge so
reached should take immediate effect without a long drawn out process of
appeal, and it is undesirable that appeals upon such decisions should be
encouraged by the Board.

In Chung Chuck’s case, supra, which was a conviction for
shipping vegetables contrary to the Produce Marketing Act of
this Province, leave to appeal was also refused upon the same
ground, as appears from the judgment at pp. 251, 257, 257-8,
particularly at p. 251, wherein is approved the judgment of
Lord Sumner in Rex v. Nat Bell Liquors, Ld. (1922), 2 A.C.
128 “that there was a part of the criminal law which was within
the competence of the Provincial Legislature,” though by class
(27) of said section 91 the Parliament of Canada is given exclu-
sive jurisdiction over the subject-matter of “The Criminal
Law,” except the constitution of Courts of eriminal jurisdiction,
but including the procedure in eriminal matters.

These two cases, therefore, are a striking illustration of the
way in which in the practical working out of liquor control or
prohibition the enactments of two distinet Legislatures may

¥ Nore.—To these cases should now be added the later and confirmatory
decision of the Privy Council in Mayland and Mercury Oils Ltd. v. Lymburn
et al. (1932), 1 W.W.R. 578, 582-3; and cf. also In re Silver Bros. Lid.
Attorney-General for Quebec v. Attorney-General for Canada, ib. 764,
767 —A. M.
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stand side by side and be reasonably enforced without meeting
in conflict in the field.

Approaching, then, the present circumstances in the light of
all the foregoing principles as a guide I have little difficulty in
reaching the conclusion the “lines of demarcation” between
these statutes should be drawn to hold that the total prohibition
in the said group of sections of the Indian Act, entitled “Tres-
passing on Reserves” against all kinds of trespassers upon
reserves, extending even to Indians not of the band in occupancy
thereof, does not meet in conflict the said Game Act of this
Province in its practical operation so far as concerns any “per-
son,” who comes within the definition in the Indian Act, See. 2,
of that word as meaning “an individual other than an Indian,”
and there is nothing to induce me to think or apprehend that in
its “special aspect” and for the attainment of its “particular
purpose’ (to use the very apt expressions already cited from the
Parsons case) said Act has not been and will not be fully effec-
tive, taken in conjunction with other sections, such as 118, to
protect the Indians from the encroachments of trespassers of all
kinds including hunters and fishermen, and there is no necessity
to seek for or resort to other incidental powers which would con-
flict with those of property and civil rights as asserted by said
Game Act for the general benefit of all residents of the Province
as aforesaid. In other words, a trespassing “person” who
violates the special prohibitions of said sections may, as in Rex
v. Nadan, so act as to find himself open to two distinet proseeu-
tions and penalties, first, to one under said trespass group of
sections and section 115, and second to the additional one of
violating the game laws of the Province.

The truth is, that in order to secure the practical working out
of Parliamentary powers relating to such a special and personal
subject-matter as Indians not only the Courts but the respective
Legislatures must “in performing a difficult daty” work in
harmony to find a way to make it

possible to arrive at a reasonable and practical construction of the language
of the sections, so as to reconcile the respective powers they contain, and
give effect to all of them.

as was laid down by the Parsons and John Deere Plow cases,
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supra, and in the Indian Treaty case, Dominion of Canada v.
Province of Ontario (1910), A.C. 637, it was said, p. 645:

The Crown acts on the advice of ministers in making treaties, and in
owning public lands holds them for the good of the community. When
differences arise between the two Governments in regard to what is due to
the Crown as maker of treaties from the Crown as owner of public lands
they must be adjusted as though the two Governments were separately
invested by the Crown with its rights and responsibilities as treaty maker
and as owner respectively.

With respect to the effect of the words “without the authority
of the superintendent general to reside or hunt upon, occupy or
use any land or marsh . . . 7 said section 84, it is not neces-
sary for the disposition of this case to consider them because no
“authority” was in fact given, and so the question does not arise,
therefore I shall content myself by saying that under certain
circumstances the superintendent would unquestionably have the
power, in the exercise of general control over the subject-matter
of trespassing, to give authority to any Indians to oceupy reside
or hunt upon any part of any reserve where it would be for the
benefit of them or its Indian occupants to do so: it might, e.g.,
be for the general or particular benefit of the Indians in a
Province to allow some of them to occupy temporarily the
reserve of another band and to hunt and fish thereon in times of
scarcity for food, or to cut timber for fuel, and even also to allow
other “persons” (defined as aforesaid) to enter the reserve for
the benefit of the Indians, but never otherwise: e.g., to hunt and
destroy wolves and cougars as aforesaid, or wild horses under
the Animals Aect, Cap. 11, R.S.B.C. 1924, Sec. 18, or sea lions
interfering with their fisheries, or other harmful beasts birds or
insects, etc. But whether that authority could lawfully be
extended to allow game to be hunted on reserves by such “per-
sons” during a close season defined by a Provincial Game Act is
a question which will require full and careful consideration
should it ever arise. That it would not be lawful for the super-
intendent to get up a shooting party on an Indian Reserve for the
benefit of himself or his friends or allow anyone else to do so in
a close season or at any time, may be conceded, though it is not
for a moment to be presumed that he would sanction such
improper proceedings.

INustrations may well be given, as some of my learned
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two respective legislations to an extremity, but then any power,
even judicial, may be abused and we must assume that the Gov-
ernments concerned will act in concert in a reasonable manner
in the practical furtherance of the two distinet matters under
their control. So far, happily, that wise course has been
adopted, and several sections in this Provincial Game Act shew
that the Legislature is alive to the just claim of the Indians for
protection, and indeed special consideration, respecting game
(cf. sections 6, 9, 22, 40 and 41) which, as my brother GaLL1HER
says, is peculiar owing to the mobile habits of birds and animals,
and it is just as much, if not more, in the interest of Indians
that game should be generally preserved outside their reserves
because the more it is produced outside the more will be found
inside them.

During the argument it was submitted that the game on this
Indian Reserve is part and parcel of the land itself and the
absolute property of the National Government, as pertaining to
its ownership of the land, but no authority was cited to support
that position, which, though doubtless sound as to Nationally-
owned “Territories,” is as regards the Provinces contrary to the
whole ground of the decision in The Queen v. Robertson, supra,
and to the line of decisions by the Privy Council beginning with
St. Catherine’s Milling and Lumber Co. v. The Queen (1888),
14 App. Cas. 46, and continuing through Ontario Mining Com-
pany v. Seybold (1903), A.C. 73, and the Indian Treaty case,
Dominion of Canada v. Province of Ontario, supra, at 644-6,
and also not overlooking Burk v. Cormier (1890), 30 N.B.R.
142, and Lord Herschell’s statement in Atforney-General for the
Dominion of Canada v. Attorneys-General for the Provinces of
Ontario, Quebec, and Nova Scotia (1898), A.C. 700 at 709 that:

It must also be borne in mind that there is a broad distinction between
proprietary rights and legislative jurisdiction. The fact that such jurisdie-
tion in respect of a particular subject-matter is conferred on the Dominion
Legislature, for example, affords no evidence that any proprietary rights
with respect to it were transferred to the Dominion. There is no presump-
tion that because legislative jurisdiction was vested in the Dominion Par-
liament proprietary rights were transferred to it.

The case of Attorney-General for Canada v. Giroux, supra, is
instructive though it was one of a special title through a com-
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missioner. In Quirt v. The Queen (1891), 19 S.C.R. 510 at
p. 519, Mr. Justice Strong truly said, “the rights of the Crown
as regards Indian lands are of . . . an anomalous and peculiar
nature”; and cf. also Martin’s Hudson’s Bay Company’s Land
Tenures, 1898, Cap. V., on “The Indian Title and Half-Breed
Claims.”

With respect to the language “of which legal title is in the
Crown” in the said definition of “reserve,” the word “Crown”
is used in the broad sense indicated in the Dominion of Canada
case, supra, at pp. 645-6 as including the Crown Provineial in
appropriate circumstances, as had also been held by the same
tribunal in the earlier Vancouver “Street Ends case,” Attorney-
General for British Columbia v. Canadian Pacific Railway
(1906), A.C. 204, at p. 211.

There remain for consideration sections 117 and 156 and 69.
The first relates only to cases where the Indians of a band have
consented to the leasing or granting “to any person” of shooting
or fishing privileges over their reserve in whole or in part, and
“in such case” there is a general prohibition, with a penalty,
against “every person” not entitled under such lease or grant
(which would include the consenting Indians themselves) from
shooting or fishing within such leased or granted area. This is
so clearly the special case of active participation by the Indians
themselves in the disposition and restriction of their own per-
sonal rights in their own reserve that it would undoubtedly be a
matter falling within the jurisdiction of Parliament under class
24, and it would be, obviously, in any event, a necessary incident
to that jurisdiction that “every person” other than the Indians
should be excluded from fishing or shooting in the “leased or
granted” area, quite apart from any fish or game laws that might
lawfully be enacted by the Province respecting its “property and
civil rights”: in other words, the two legislations do mnot in
reality “meet.”

Section 156 is simply in essentials a repetition, for no appar-
ent purpose, of the prohibition contained in said section 117,
and therefore governed by the same observations.

Section 69 provides that:

69. The superintendent general may, from time to time, by public notice,
declare that, on and after a day therein named, the laws respecting game in
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couRT OF force in the Province of Manitoba, Saskatchewan or Alberta, or the Terri-

APPEAL  tories, or respecting such game as is specified in such notice, shall apply to
- Indians within the said Province or Territories, as the case may be, or to
1931 Indians in such parts thereof as to him seems expedient.

Oct. 6. This is an enabling section to authorize the application of

Rex  Federal and certain Provincial game laws in whole or in part,
Momipy DUt as it does not extend to this Province it is not relevant to this
case. Obviously it has reference to the origin and history
(alluded to in The Queen v. Robertson, supra, pp. 616-7, 619,
and discussed in “The Rise of Law in Rupert’s Land,” 1890, 1
West. Law Ti. 49, 73 and 93) of those three Provinces and of
the old North-West Territories (under Cap. 49 of 1875), for-
merly Rupert’s Land and the easterly part of the Indian Terri-
tories, out of which they were after Confederation partly carved
(as long before was also the Colony of Vancouver Island in 1849
by 12 & 13 Viet., Oap. 48) the “ordinary Crown lands” of which
were, as has been noted supra, till quite recently the property of
the Dominion of Canada, and still are in the case of the “Terri-
tories” named in said section, which by the interpretation sec-
tion 2 (m) “means the North-West Territories and the Yukon
Territory”; and in all cases its application is not general as it
is only declared to “apply to Indians within the said Province
or Territories as the case may be N

MARTIN,
J.A.

We are not informed that the superintendent general has
taken advantage of the power so conferred upon him which
might well be usefully exercised in co-operation with the said
Legislatures to the mutual benefit of all concerned, though that
is purely a matter for them to decide upon their varying condi-
tions (cf. The Queen v. Robertson, supra, 619) which differ
greatly from those on this Pacific Coast, and we must assume, as
the Privy Council said in the Strest Ends case (supra) “that all
necessary communications between the Governments would
always take place.”

Pursuant to the “wise course” suggested in Parsons’ case,
supra, I have refrained from considering more than is absolutely
necessary the status or rights of Indians as distinguished from
other “persons” under the legislation in question, and though
several cases have been decided upon that interesting question
(the principal ones being Totten v. Watson (1858), supra; Reg.
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v. Gibb (1870), 5 Pr. 315; Rex v. Hill (1907), 15 O.L.R. coUrTor

406; Rex v. Beboning (1908), 17 O.L.R. 23; Rex v. Martin
(1917), 41 O.L.R. 79; Sanderson v. Heap (1909), 19 Man.
L.R. 122; Rex v. Rodgers (1923), 33 Man. L.R. 139; Rex v.
Edward Jim (1915), 22 B.C. 106; Rex v. Chan Lung Toy
(1924), 34 B.C. 194; Rex v. Cooper (1925), 35 B.C. 457; and
Rex v. McLeod (1930), 2 W.W.R. 387), I need only refer to our
decision in Rex v. Cooper for the sole purpose of saying that it
was a case wherein an Indian was personally concerned by the
selling of intoxicating liquor to him, and we were of opinion
that the Liquor Act of this Province did not apply to such an
offence because there had been “a complete occupation ad hoc by
the Federal Parliament of this particular field,” which I may
add is peculiarly one that that Parliament should have the con-
trol of so as to protect the Indians as much as possible from the
shocking results of inflaming them with intoxicants.

It follows that in my opinion the learned judge appealed from
was right in affirming this convietion, doubtless in pursuance of
the views expressed in his prior carefully prepared judgment in
Rex v. McLeod, supra, with which I am in general accord, and
therefore this appeal should be dismissed.

Garviner, J.A.: I agree in the result with my brother
McPuiruies. The act complained of was for shooting a pheas-
ant during the close season. The offence took place on an
Indian Reserve over which the Dominion Government have
jurisdiction and the Federal Government under the Indian Act
have passed a law making it an offence to shoot birds at any time
upon the Indian Reserves without permission and was designed
for the preservation of game generally in the interests of the
Indians.

The Provincial Act is one passed for the protection of game
in the Province and a close season is fixed from time to time
between certain dates in which it is unlawful to shoot game
dealing with certain species of game birds and animals.

The prosecution was under the Provincial Game Act and
among other objections raised to the conviction is that the
Dominion Government having entered the field prosecutions
must be under that Act where the offence is committed on an
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i‘;‘;iig“ Indian Reserve. It is well known that each Province has its

——  own game laws restricting the shooting of wild game and fixing
1931 close seasons.

Oct. 6. It is scarcely to be thought that in dealing with the subject

Rex D @ general way the Dominion would have had in mind that

. they were covering a subject where owing to climatic and other
MoRrLEY

prevailing conditions the different Provinces would and have
different restrictions and different close seasons where they could
by permission given to certain persons allow indiscriminate
shooting on Indian Reserves regardless of any Provinecial laws
passed for the preservation of game generally.

We all know of the flight of birds and their moving from one

earuimer, Area to another. ' ‘ |
JA. Today numbers of birds may be on an Indian Reserve and in

a few days outside that reserve entirely so that as I view it the
Provinces are dealing with the protection of the game generally
as game and the Dominion was dealing with the subject not so
much directly for the protection of the game as for the protec-
tion of the Indians on the reserve. In other words, in my view,
they were not dealing with the matter in the same aspect as the
Provinces have in legislating as to close seasons.

In this view I would uphold the conviction and dismiss the
appeal. My brother McPairrips has dealt at length with other
aspects of the case which it is unnecessary for me to enter into
but which I think carry weight.

McoPuririres, J.A.: This appeal is one from the judgment of

His Honour Judge Swanson affirming a conviction made by a
stipendiary magistrate in the County of Yale whereby the
appellant was convicted for that he at Kamloops Indian Reserve

in the County of Yale on or about the 2nd day of November,

1929, being the close season, unlawfully did kill a pheasant
mcprILLIPS, contrary to section 9 of the Game Act, being R.S.B.C. 1924,
oA Cap. 98, and a fine was imposed of $25 and failing payment
imprisonment for the term of seven days would follow. The
appeal is put upon the ground that the Game Act is ultra vires

of the Province as regards Indian Reserves. This certainly
brings up a very important matter but at the outset I venture to

say that the contention is wholly fallacious. Further it would



XLVI] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS.

be a most astounding result if the contention made had merit.
It would in its result have the effect of a serious and disastrous
result upon the game of the Province; it would mean that game
could be, in the close season, slaughtered upon Indian Reserves,
in truth, all that would be necessary would be to carry out a
drive of game on to the Indian Reserve and there a wholesale
slaughter could take place. That this could be is unthinkable
and of course it is not difficult to at once call up authority to
absolutely controvert any such contention. I may say that this
is not a case of an Indian upon the reserve shooting, although
I do not consider that even he would be entitled to disobey the
Provincial law.

It is pressed that the decision of this Court in the case of Rex
v. Cooper (1925), 35 B.C. 457 stands in the way of it being
held that the conviction in the present case is a valid one. With
great respect to all contrary opinion that is not my view. The
case there was express Dominion legislation (section 135, Cap.
98, R.8.C. 1927) covering the offence, and the holding was that
the Provinecial statute did not apply to a sale of liquor which is
within the terms of the Indian Act and the conviction was
quashed. We have no such case here. What we have here is
Provincial legislation imposing a ban on shooting throughout
the Province during certain close seasons and it was within a
close season that the shooting took place. It was not shewn that
the appellant came within section 115 of the Indian Aet, z.e.,
that he had the authority of the superintendent general to hunt
upon the reserve but if he had he still would be subject to the
Provincial law and could not shoot out of season. This is not
the case of the same act as that legislated against by the Domin-
ion. Here even if the appellant had not the authority of the
superintendent general to hunt upon the reserve and would be
subject to a penalty, the act that is covered by the Provincial
legislation is shooting out of season, a very different act. The
gist of the decision in Rex v. Cooper, supra, as defined by the
learned Chief Justice of this Court is found on p. 460 of the
report and reads as follows:

The assertion of the right by two distinct legislative bodies to make
the same act an offence and subject the offender to a double penalty, is, I
think, contrary to the accepted principles of our law and contrary to the
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British North America Act. No doubt that result may sometimes be
brought about indirectly but there is no case in the books which goes the
length of holding that when the Dominion has created a particular act a
crime the Province may for its purposes create the same act a crime.

I would refer to a judgment of Killam, J. (as he then was,
afterwards Chief Justice of Manitoba, later one of the justices
of the Supreme Court of Canada and later again Chief Railway
Commissioner for Canada), a most learned judgment of that
very eminent and distinguished Canadian jurist in The Queen
v. Robertson (1886), 3 Man. L.R. 613, dealing with the Mani-
toba statute 46 & 47 Viet., Cap. 19 as amended by 47 Viet., Cap.
10, s. 25, s-s. (g) regulating the killing and possession of game
at certain seasons of the year, and it was held that the legisla-
tion was inéra vires being within the clauses of the B.N.A. Act
relating to “Property and civil rights” and “Matters of a merely
local or private nature.”

The learned judge dealt with the object of the Manitoba Act

at p. 620:

The object of the Act, or the portion relating to the protection of game,
is essentially local. It is to secure the increase, or to prevent, at any rate
as far as possible, the decrease of the supply of game within the Province,
in order that the people of the Province may enjoy the sport of pursuing
and killing the birds or other animals mentioned in the Act, or may have
at hand a ready supply of them for food or for profit. All of the enact-
ments against having them in possession or exporting them, are evidently
so many accessories to the prohibition upon the killing at certain seasons,
and all are plainly directed to the purpose mentioned.

Then at p. 622 we have this language:

The prohibitions against the killing or taking of wild birds or other
animals, and against having them in possession are prohibitions pure and
simple of the exercise of civil rights. This was disputed upon the argument
of the application, but it appears too clear to require any considerable
discussion.

The appellant in the present case had imposed upon him, as
well as upon all the inhabitants of British Columbia, inhibition
of not being entitled to shoot pheasants during the close season.
I would here again call attention to the language of Killam, J.,
above quoted:

“The prohibition against the killing or taking of wild birds or other
animals, and against having them in possession are prohibitions pure and
simple of the exercise of civil rights.

No matter where the appellant was—upon an Indian Reserve

with or without authority—the Provincial legislation is para-
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mount in respect of ‘“(13) Property and civil rights in the
Provinee” (British North America Act). The Game Act is
legislation in the way of regulation of property and civil rights.
In passing for instance fire regulations under the ¥Fire Marshal
Act (Cap. 91, R.S.B.C. 1924) such regulations would have
application in Indian Reserves, if not see the peril that would
result from fire upon an Indian Reserve perilous to adjoining
territory! Would not the Provincial legislation extend into the
reserve ! Assuredly this would be so.

Then we have Lord Watson in St. Catherine’s Milling and
Lumber Company v. The Queen (1888), 14 App. Cas. 46 at
p. 55 saying:

There has been all along vested in the Crown a substantial and para-

mount estate, underlying the Indian title, which became a plenum dominium
wherever that title was surrendered or otherwise extinguished.

I would refer to what Lefroy has said in his work on the
Constitutional Law of Canada, at p. 141:

it does not follow that when the Dominion Parliament has drawn
an Act into the domain of criminal law, the right of the Provineial Legis-
latures to pass laws in regard to such an Act necessarily ceases. They may
still, in many instances, legislate against the same Act in another aspect.

Compare Clement’s Canadian Constitution, 8rd Ed., pp.
586-7; Regina v. Boardman (1871), 30 U.C.Q.B. 553, 556;
Quong-Wing v. The King (1914), 49 S.C.R. 440, 462. See
also Regina v. Boscowitz (1895), 4 B.C. 132.

The short point really in this appeal is this that the legislation
(Game Act) has effect throughout the whole Province inclusive
of Indian Reserves and must be obeyed. I would again make a
quotation from Killam, J., in The Queen v. Roberison case at
p- 627:

The Provincial Legislature, under its authority to legislate upon the
subject of “Property and civil rights,” eould undoubtedly limit civil rights,
could take away some already existing, could prohibit their exercise as such.
If it could do this, it could do it in the interests of the Province, and those
in the Province, at large, as well as in the interest of special individuals
or classes of individuals. Tt must then follow that, the power being
expressly given to it by statute, it can enforce its law by the imposition of
punishment, and cannot be considered as thereby enacting a “criminal law,”
or legislating upon the subject of “eriminal law” within the meaning of the
British North America Act.

I am therefore clearly of the opinion that the conviction here

was a valid one founded upon a Provincial statute respecting
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property and civil rights, an exclusive jurisdiction of the Prov-
ince under the British North America Act and it is idle to
contend that the legislation is wlfra wvires as respects Indian
Reserves. The legislation of the Dominion as respects hunting
on reserves is one aspect but the other aspect is materially
different—it is a prohibition from shooting within the close
season. This is an interference with civil rights and clearly
within the power of the Provincial Legislature, an exclusive
power into which domain the Dominion Parliament cannot
enter. That being the case His Honour Judge Swansox was
right in his affirmance of the convietion. It follows that the
appeal in my opinion should be dismissed.

Macpowarp, J.A.: This is an appeal from a convietion of
one Morley (not an Indian) by a stipendiary magistrate,
affirmed on appeal by His Honour J. D. Swansox, judge of the
County Court of Yale, for unlawfully killing a pheasant in
November, 1929 (during the close season), on the Kamloops
Indian Reserve contrary to section 9 of the Provincial Game
Act, being Cap. 98, R.8.B.C. 1924. The point raised is that
the Game Act does not extend to Indian Reserves; that the
Province has no authority to create the act complained of an
offence or to prosecute in respect thereto and that a conviction,
if any, could only be made by the Federal authorities under the
Indian Act (Cap. 98, R.S.C. 1927) exclusive legislative
authority over “Indians and lands reserved for the Indians”
being vested only in the Dominion Parliament (B.N.A. Act,
Sec. 91 (24)).

By section 2 (¢) of the Indian Act the term “Indian lands”
means any reserve or portion of a reserve which has been sur-

rendered to the Crown and by subsection (j)

“Reserve” means any tract or tracts of land set apart by treaty or other-
wise for the use or benefit of or granted to a particular band of Indians, of
which the legal title is in the Crown, and which remains so set apart and
has not been surrendered to the Crown, and includes all the trees, wood,
timber, soil, stone, minerals, metals and other valuables thereon or therein.

If an Indian living on the reserve had been convicted of this
offence under a Provincial statute it would be invalid (Rex v.
Edward Jim (1915), 22 B.C. 106). What is the situation

where, as here, a white man enters a reserve and kills a pheasant
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contrary to the provisions of the Provincial Game Act? Has
the Federal Parliament jurisdietion to legislate with respect to
a person other than an Indian, who may commit an offence on
an Indian Reserve? I think it has but that does not conclude
the point. It purports to exercise that right by several sections
of the Indian Act. By section 10, subsection (4) (R.S.C. 1927,
Cap. 98) any “person” with whom an Indian child resides who
fails to cause such child between certain ages to attend the
industrial or boarding schools provided as required by that
section is liable to a fine. “Person” in that Aect means “an
individual other than an Indian.” Here we have legislation
applying to a white man, living off a reserve, in respect to his
conduct towards Indians under Dominion supervision. If
Dominion legislation is necessary before a white man living off
the reserve can be prosecuted it does not follow that because of
failure to make such provision—assuming for the moment it is
within the power of the Dominion Parliament to do so—the
Provincial Parliament has authority to legislate on the same
point (Madden v. Nelson and Fort Sheppard Railway Company
(1899), A.C. 626). If that class of legislation is wholly within
Federal jurisdiction, whether the field is occupied by Dominion
legislation or not, the Provincial Parliament will not be per-
mitted to enter it. It follows that if the Dominion Parliament
has authority to make it an offence for a white man to enter a
reserve and shoot game thereon the local Legislature cannot
under its Game Protection Act make a similar act an offence.

However, it is not necessary to go as far as indicated. The
Dominion Parliament did legislate in respect to persons, other
than Indians, trespassing or “hunting” upon parts of a reserve
without authority and have therefore oceupied the field. Sec-
tion 34 provides that

No person, or Indian other than an Indian of the band, shall without the
authority of the superintendent general, reside or hunt upon, occupy or use
any land or marsh, or reside upon or occupy any road, or allowance for
road, running through any reserve belonging to or occupied by such band.

The caption of this section is “Trespassing on Reserves.” 1
cannot agree, however, with respect, with the view of Swaxsox,
Co. J. in Rex v. McLeod (1930), 2 W.W.R. 37 at p. 41 in giv-

ing a restricted meaning to the word “hunt” confining it to a
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trespass. Hunting may not eventuate in the killing of game
but if game is killed on part of a reserve the offender, as a
necessary and natural sequel, must have been engaged in hunt-
ing. The accused, to kill the pheasant, must necessarily have
hunted on part of the reserve, and would be liable to the penal-
ties imposed under section 115 of the same Act; and, if so, and
these sections are inéra vires of the Dominion Parliament the
local Legislature cannot make the same act an offence by a
Provincial statute. Other sections in the Indian Aect dealing
with game and hunting by white men or Indians indiscrim-
inately are sections 35, 117, and 156. It follows therefore that
the Dominion Parliament having legally occupied the field any
legislation of the local Legislature creating the same act an
offence is, to the extent that it does so, displaced (Rex v. Cooper
(1925), 35 B.C. 457).

The Dominion Parliament has authority to legislate and did
legislate in respect to birds found on or over a reserve. It is
within its rights in making it an offence to “hunt” game of any
kind on the reserve and having done so the Provincial Legisla-
ture cannot make the same act an offence. Rex v. Cooper, supra,
governs this case unless upon the construction of the relevant
sections of the Indian Aect it should be held that the offence of
“hunting” on a reserve is something different from “killing a
pheasant.” It is enough to say that one who kills a pheasant
while out for game cannot be heard to say that although he did
0 he was not hunting.

If the appellant produced authority from the superintendent
general for hunting upon the reserve he would not be guilty of
an offence in killing a pheasant thereon. The respondent’s con-
tention really is that such authority would be without validity
during the close season for game provided by the Provincial
Game Act. In other words, if one armed with such authority
should shoot a pheasant in the close season he could be prose-
cuted under the Provincial Act. That is no so, however. The
reservation of Federal jurisdiction in respect to “Indians and
lands reserved for the Indians” has a definite object in view,
viz., safeguarding the rights and privileges of the wards of the
Dominion at all times, and one of its main purposes is to protect



XLVI] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS.

game on the reserve for the exclusive use of the Indians, sub]ect
to minor exceptions. Section 34 ante does not apply to “a
Indian of the band.” They do not require authority to hunt.
They may hunt on the reserve at any time and a Provincial Act
cannot curtail that right by attempting to establish a close season
applicable to reserves.

If therefore the rights of the Indians are to be preserved in
these limited areas known as reserves it is incidentally neces-
sary to prevent appellant and others of the white race from
“hunting” and killing game thereon at all times of the year.
Such an Act is legislation in respect to “Indians,” ¢.e., in respect
to the requirements of Indians. If too the Provincial Legisla-
ture has authority to provide for a close season for shooting
game on Indian Reserves it could by the same authority except
reserves from the operation of the local Game Act and permit
all and sundry to “hunt” thereon throughout the year. The
Provincial Legislature would have power, if it chose to exercise
it, to declare a close season for certain kinds of game, or for all
kinds of game, in all parts of the Province except for example
the District of Cariboo. Could it also declare a close.season for
the shooting of pheasants in all parts of the Province except
upon Indian Reserves permitting indiscriminate slaughter in
that area: and if so would not the latter part of the Aect be ultra
vires and anyone attempting to take advantage of it liable to
prosecution under the Indian Act?

When authority was reserved to the Federal authorities to
legislate in respect to its wards, the Indians, it means in respect
to all matters affecting their welfare and civil rights. If their
welfare is to be protected, others besides Indians must be
restrained if they enter reserves. They cannot commit acts—
such as shooting game—Ilikely to interfere with their well being,
if the Indian Act prevents it. The preservation of game affects
their well-being and to preserve it the ordinary eivil rights of
others must be curtailed.

This contention is presented against the views I have out-
lined. Mankind, it is said, have a natural right to pursue and
take game at all times and a law interfering with it (such as
providing for a close season) is an invasion of that civil right
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and therefore within Provincial authority to enact it. It is said
to be a matter affecting “property and civil rights” of a “merely
local and private nature”: that the object of the Provincial
Game Act is the protection of game in this Province and hence
an essentially local matter. It is a prohibition pure and simple
of the exercise of civil rights. But the civil rights of an Indian
may be affected and are affected by Dominion legislation by
certain sections of the Indian Aect and it cannot be said that
such sections are wléra wvires of the Dominion Parliament
because, “property and civil rights” is a subject of legislation
reserved to the Provinces. If interference with civil rights alone
brings the matter within the jurisdiction of the Province these
sections would be wltra vires. A division of legislative authority
was provided by the British North America Act and under it
the eivil rights of all may be curtailed by the Dominion Parlia-
ment if by exercising them they conflict with the superior rights
of the Indians on reserves to have the game thereon preserved
for their own use and sustenance. If we had no Game Act and
no Provincial legislation to interfere with the natural right of
men to hunt at all seasons it would be possible, if this contention
prevailed, to hunt on reserves at all times, notwithstanding the
prohibitions contained in the Indian Act. If that view prevailed
one of the purposes in reserving to the Dominion Parliament
questions respecting ‘“‘Indians and Lands Reserved for Indians”
would be defeated. Protection of game on an Indian Reserve
is under Dominion control. Incidental to that protection is the
necessity of preventing hunting and shooting by anyone. It
may be faulty or improvident legislation. That would not
permit the Province to legislate in respect to the reserves to
supplement it or to make it more effective. With some excep-
tions the Federal Parliament provides for a close season on
reserves at all times. If the Provincial Aect applies shooting
would only be prevented for a limited period in each year. It
necessarily follows that if it is illegal to shoot on a reserve by
Provincial law during the close season it would be permissible
to do so outside that period. That, however, is not the case. The
Dominion Act prevents anyone, except those of a certain class—
Indians of the band—or those having authority from the super-
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intendent to hunt at any time. The appellant herein was within
the prohibition of that Act. He could be convicted under it for
the offence committed unless he produced authority to hunt from
the superintendent; and Federal legislation preventing him
from destroying game on a reserve ig legislation in respect to
Indians inasmuch as it preserves for them hunting privileges
and a means of livelihood.
I would allow the appeal.

Appeal dismissed, Macdonald, C.J.B.C. and
Macdonald, J.A. dissenting.

MARSHMAN v. SCOTT & PEDEN.

Interpleader — Execution creditor — Bill of sale — Validity — Fraudulent
preference—County Court—Jurisdiction—Form of interpleader order—
R.8.B.C. 1924, Cap. 53, Secs. 40 (1) and 86; Cap. 97, Sec. 3.

M. brought action in the County Court against B. for wages on the 4th of
January, 1932. On the 13th of January following B. transferred to
S. & P. by bill of sale a herd of cows and two horses. M. obtained
judgment and an execution being issued on the 22nd of January, the
sheriff seized one of the cows and the two horses. On the trial of an
issue ordered to decide as to the ownership of the animals seized it was
held that the bill of sale was void under section 3 of the Fraudulent
Preferences Act, and M. recovered judgment.

Held, on appeal, affirming the decision of Lamemax, Co. J., that the appeal
should be dismissed. }

Per Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C.: Section 86 of the County Courts Act confers
jurisdiction upon the County Court in interpleader. The learned judge
not having founded his decision on fraud, it was contended he had no
jurisdiction under section 40 (1) of said Act unless there was fraud.
If there was want of bone fides in giving the bill of sale this would
amount to fraud and entitle him to try the issue. The evidence dis-
closes that the bill of sale was obtained by fraud and it is open to this
Court to give the judgment that should have been given in the Court
below, and the conclusion there arrived at should be affirmed.

Per MarTIN, J.A.: By section 86 of the County Courts Act general juris-
diction over interpleader is conferred on the County Court in matters
within its jurisdiction, and there is nothing in either the County Courts
Act or the Fraudulent Preferences Act disbarring parties to an inter-
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pleader issue from establishing their title to the property in dispute by
invoking any statute which declares an opposing instrument of title to
said property to be “utterly void” under certain circumstances by
reason of the acts of the parties concerned in its creation.

Held, further, per MARTIN, J.A., that the issue to be tried was incorrectly
stated in the interpleader order by being broken up into two “ques-
tions,” the first improperly relating to the validity of the bill of sale
and the second properly being in substance “whether at the time of the
seizure by the sheriff the goods seized were the property of the elaim-
ants as against the execution creditor.” The second was the sole and
only question to be tried and the addition of another is contrary to
precedent, misleading, and should be struck out.

APPEAL by Scott & Peden plaintiffs in the issue from the
decision of Lamparax, Co. J. of the 13th of February, 1932, on
an interpleader issue. The defendants in the action, Breadin
and Christie, leased what is known as the Rithet Farm in 1922,
where Christie kept his cattle and supplied Breadin who had a
dairy in Victoria with milk. Breadin took the milk at a certain
price and provided Christie with supplies on the farm. Christie
gradually got into Breadin’s debt, and in 1927 they moved the
cattle to what is known as the Bunker’s Farm, where the defend-
ant in the issue, Marshman, was employed by Breadin to assist
Christie in looking after the stock at $17.50 per week. Marsh-
man was not paid regularly and on the 4th of January, 1932,
he started an action in the County Court against Breadin for
$407.15, the balance due for wages. In the meantime Scott &
Peden had been providing Breadin and Christie with feed and
other supplies, the debt accumulating to $1,600, and by bill of
sale of the 13th of January, 1932, Breadin and Christie trans-
ferred to Scott & Peden seventeen cows, a Jersey bull, a eolt and
a filly for $605. Scott & Peden removed the stock with the
exception of one cow, and the two horses, and later the sheriff
under the plaintiff Marshman’s execution, seized the cow and
the two horses. On the application of the sheriff an inter-
pleader was ordered between Scott & Peden as plaintiffs and
Marshman as defendant as to (1) Whether or not the bill of sale
under which the claimants claim certain of the goods seized by
the sheriff, to wit, one cow and one mare and one colt is a good
and valid bill of sale so far as the sheriff and the execution
creditor are concerned. (2) Whether or not the said goods
claimed were at the date of the said seizure by the said sheriff
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the property of the claimants as against the execution creditor.

The appeal was argued at Vancouver on the 2nd and 3rd of
March, 1932, before Macpowarp, C.J.B.C., Martin, McPHiL-
rrps and Macpoxarp, JJ.A.

D. 8. Taut, for appellant: We submit (1) That there was
no evidence upon which to found a judgment, that there
was a fraudulent preference and (2) the County Court judge
had no jurisdiction to entertain an application under the Fraud-
ulent Preferences Act: see Parsons Produce Co. v. Given
(1896), 5 B.C. 58; Brethour v. Davis and Palmer (1919), 27
B.C. 250.

Prior, for respondent: New grounds of appeal cannot be
raised now: see Re Hilton; Ex parte March (1892), 67 L.T.
594; Halsbury’s Laws of England, Vol. 17, p. 612. That the
County Court judge had jurisdiction see West v. Ames Holden
& Co. et al. (1897), 38 Terr. L.R. 17 at p. 35; Cole v. Porteous
(1892), 19 A.R. 111,

Macoowarp, C.J.B.C.: We will now hear Mr. Tail on the
question of jurisdietion.

Tait: The procedure is under section 7 of the Fraudulent
Preferences Act: see Maclennan on Interpleader, p. 254. The
County Court has no power to set aside deeds for fraud or
mistake. It is not open to the County Court judge.

Prior, in reply: At the time of the bill of sale there were
three executions against Breadin and Christie: see Parker on
Frauds, pp. 176 and 210.

Cur. adv. vult.

7th June, 1932.

Macponarp, C.J.B.C.: Marshman is an execution creditor
of one Breadin and Scott & Peden are purchasers of Breadin’s
stock, consisting of a herd of cows and a couple of horses. The
sheriff seized one cow and two horses, parcel of the herd trans-
ferred as aforesaid and Scott & Peden made a claim under their
bill of sale necessitating an interpleader between Marshman and
them. It is from the judgment in the interpleader that this
appeal is taken. Section 86 of the County Courts Act confers
jurisdiction upon the County Court in interpleader. Objection
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was taken that the learned judge held Scott & Peden’s bill of
sale to be void under the Fraudulent Preferences Act. It was
contended upon behalf of the defendants that the County Court
had no jurisdiction unless there was fraud under section 40 (1)
of the County Courts Act. The learned judge, however, did
not found his decision upon fraud. If, however, there was a
want of bona fides in the granting of the bill of sale, this would
amount to fraud and entitle the County Court to try the issue
in this case. That, I think, is the 7atio decidend: in the decision
in Adams and Burns v. Bank of Montreal (1899), 8 B.C. 314;
(1901), 32 S.C.R. 719; and Hazell v. Cullen (1914), 20 B.C.
603. See also Parsons Produce Co. v. Ghiven (1896), 5 B.C. 58,
decided before subsection (1) was added to the Act. Section 40
amended by adding (1) after the decision in Parsons Produce
Co. v. Given gives the County Court jurisdiction in questions of
fraud up to the sum of $2,500 and this case is within that sum.
If, therefore, the bill of sale in question here was not bona fide,
and falls within the principle of the cases aforesaid, the plaintiff
18, I think, entitled to succeed. I agree with the findings of faect
of the learned trial judge that a preference was given to the
defendants and the question in this appeal is was such pref-
erence given with intent to hinder and delay the plaintiff and
the other creditors of the grantors. In other words it was,
though innocent as a preference, fraudulent as against creditors.
I may add here that Breadin was alleged to have been the owner
of the cattle in question although Christie also professed to have
been the owner. This issue was found by the learned judge in
favour of the plaintiff.

Peden, one of the defendants, was asked at trial: “How did
it come about that you took the bill of sale #’ His answer shews
that for six or eight months defendants had been trying to buy
the cattle from Christie though they, as found by the judge,
belonged to Breadin; that the grantors finally agreed to sell
them to the defendants, both alleged owners joining in the agree-
ment. The defendants knew that the plaintiff had a claim
against Breadin for wages and that Breadin was insolvent fo
the knowledge of both defendants and Christie. Plaintiff sued

in the County Court on the 4th of January, nine days before the
date of the bill of sale. The defendants had been carrying
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Breadin and Christie along for months, purchases being made
from day to day and generally for cash and claimed that at the
date of the bill of sale there was owing from the grantors
$1,600. At the time of the execution of the bill of sale the
defendants paid an execution then in the hands of the sheriff.
This was as alleged by defendants to clear title to the property
so that the defendants might take the bill of sale. Judgment
was about to be entered for the plaintiff in his County Court
action for wages at the date of the bill of sale and Breadin was
asked to instruct the defendants’ solicitors to file a dispute note
which was done. That staved the judgment off for a sufficient
time to let the bill of sale be completed. The price of the herd
of cattle was agreed upon in the solicitor’s office at $605, no
cash was paid except that paid to the sheriff—8$110.23. The
defendants removed the cattle, except those in question here, to
another place, and the sheriff seized under the plaintiff’s execu-
tion for wages upon those which were left. Mr. Marchant one
of the defendants’ solicitors called by them said that Peden and
Christie came to his office to have the bill of sale drawn and
Peden said that Christie was arranging to sell the herd of cattle.

It is quite apparent to me that, with knowledge of Breadin’s
insolvency which was proved, and which is further shewn by
the executions against him, the intent to hinder and delay the
plaintiff and other creditors by the staving off of the plaintiff’s
action for wages until the bill of sale should have been com-
pleted, and the failure to prove pressure (there appears to have
been no bona fide pressure, if any, used by defendants), the bill
of sale was obtained by fraud, and the County Court had juris-
diction to so declare. The learned trial judge has mnot so
declared, but it is open to this Court to give the judgment which
he should have given. The learned judge decided under section
3 of the Fraudulent Preferences Act that it was void, proceed-
ings having been taken within 60 days.

I would, therefore, affirm the conclusion arrived at by him
(for, with deference, erroneous reasons) and dismiss the appeal.

MarTin, J.A.: This is an appeal from the judgment of the
County Court of Vietoria in favour of the defendants on the trial
of a sheriff’s interpleader issue to determine the ownership of
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certain goods, live-stock, seized by the sheriff on an execution
of the plaintiff for $182.50 and claimed by the defendants under
a chattel mortgage which was declared by said judgment to be
void under the Fraudulent Preferences Act, Cap. 97, R.S.B.C.
1924. )

The first ground of appeal is that the said Act does not apply
to those interpleader proceedings and so the learned judge had
no jurisdietion thereunder, and reliance is placed upon the
decision of Mr. Justice Draxe in Parsons Produce Co. v. Given
(1896), 5 B.C. 58, which was upon an action brought under the
equitable jurisdiction of the County Court to set aside a chattel
mortgage, and it was held that such an action would not lie for
lack of jurisdietion. But by section 86 of the County Courts
Act, Oap. 53, R.8.B.C. 1924, general jurisdiction over the
matter of interpleader is thus conferred upon those Courts: ‘

86. - Relief by way of interpleader may be granted:—

(a) [At the instance of an] “applicant” [liable to be sued for debt or

goods] by two or more parties making adverse claims

() [At the instance of] a sheriff or other officer charged with: the
execution of process, .

And ¢f. Order XII1. for the practice thereupon.

Such relief would, of course, be confined to amounts and
claims within the Court’s jurisdiction, but within it there is no
provision in either the County Courts Act or the Fraudulent
Preferences Act debarring the parties to an interpleader issue
from establishing their title to the property in dispute by invok-
ing the assistance of any statute that declares an opposing instru-
ment of title to said property to be “utterly void” (section 3)
under certain circumstances by reason of the acts of the parties
concerned in its creation, just as also, e.g., by failing to have it
“duly attested and registered’”” within the appointed time, or for
other defects rendering it “null and void” under the Bills of
Sale Act, Cap. 22, R.S.B.C. 1924, Sec. 8, or because it was a
fraudulent document apart from any statute, e.g., as being a
forgery.

Our attention has been drawn to the special summary pro-
cedure under sections 7-10 of the said Fraudulent Preferences
Act and an argument was founded on the restriction of its
application “to the Supreme Court or a Judge or Local Judge
thereof,” but the special tribunal thereby created has jurisdie-



XLVI.] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS.

tion only over “a conveyance or other disposition of any of his
[judgment debtor] lands in the land registration district in
which the judgment is registered,” and does not extend to
personal property with which we are now dealing.

In coming to this conclusion I have not overlooked the addi-
tion, subsequent to Parsons Produce Co. v. Given, supra, of
clause (1) to section 40 of the County Courts Act conferring
jurisdiction in :

(1) Actions for relief against fraud or mistake in which the damage
sustained, or the estate or fund in respect of which the relief is sought,

does not exceed in amount or value the sum of two thousand five hundred
dollars.

This is taken verbatim from section 67 (8) of the English
County Courts Act, 1888, with the sole change from pounds to
dollars (Annual County Courts Practice, 1932, p. 59) and it is
suggested that it applies said Frandulent Preferences Act to the
trial of issues in interpleader proceedings, but having regard to
the language of that subsection and the definition in section 2
of our County Courts Act that ¢ ‘action” . . . means a civil
proceeding commenced in manner prescribed by Rules of Court,”
the submission of Mr. Tasl that it is not applicable but relates
only to substantial proceedings initiated in that specified
manner has so much weight that I prefer to base my decision
upon the former and firm ground (as I regard it) leaving this
uncertain one for future consideration when that necessity
arises.

This first ground of appeal, therefore, in my opinion, is not
supportable; and as to the second one, viz., that on the facts the
judgment is not sustainable, it is sufficient to say that the con-
clusion reached by the learned judge below is not, I think, one
that we should be justified in disturbing.

During the argument we pointed out the incorrect way the
sole issue to be tried was stated, being wrongly broken up into
two “questions” so called, the first improperly relating to the
validity of the bill of sale, and the second properly being, in
substance, “whether at the time of the seizure by the sheriff the
goods seized were the property of the claimants as against the
execution creditor”—County Court Form No. 32: that issue
was the sole and only question to be tried, and the addition of
another miscalled one is not only contrary to proper precedent

5
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but confusing and misleading and therefore it should be struck
out. It is well to remember what the Master of the Rolls said in
Mason v. Bolton’s Library, Limited (1913), 1 K.B. 83 at 88:

Now the words “interpleader issue ordered” are technical terms. They
are, I should have thought, pre-eminently technical terms in interpleader
proceedings.

And Farwell, L.J., said, p. 90:

The proviso is expressed in terms of art; teechnical phrases are used.
It is a stringent rule of construction that in construing an Act of Parlia-
ment or a deed containing technical words those words must be given their
technical meaning. It is idle to speculate what the Legislature might have
done if its attention had been called to the fact that there are other modes
of disposing of an interpleader summons than by ordering an interpleader
issue.

And Hamilton, L.J., said, at p. 92:

The term “interpleader issue” has been so long in use, since the statute
1 & 2 Will. 4, ¢. 58, created a mode of trying such questions by a feigned
issue, and then the statute of 8 & 9 Viet. e. 109 altered the form from a
feigned issue to an issue framed in the manner prescribed by that statute,
that an interpleader issue and an order for an interpleader issue on an
interpleader summons have not only had in the technical but in the general
language of the law a perfectly precise meaning. I do not think we are at
liberty to amend this proviso by giving it another meaning.

Seeing that on several occasions of late such issues, improp-
erly framed in substance, have come before us it is desirable to
keep these observations in mind for future guidance. The way
in which the issue is tried and the onus of proof thereupon, are
well displayed by the decision of the Court of Appeal in Peake
v. Carter (1915), 85 L.J., K.B. 761; (1916), 1 K.B. 651.

It follows that the appeal should be dismissed.

McParmrps, J.A.: I would dismiss the appeal. The learned
trial judge, in my opinion, arrived at the proper conclusion and
was clothed with complete jurisdiction in the interpleader pro-
ceedings to adjudicate upon all questions arising therein inclu-
sive of the question of fraud.

Macponarp, J.A.: I would dismiss the appeal.
Appeal dismissed.

Solicitors for appellants: Tait & Marchant.
Solicitor for respondent: C. J. Prior.
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NEWTON v. CITY OF VANCOUVER ET AL. MAODgNALD,

Defamation—Libel—Report by “Commassioners” on hospitals in Vancouver e
—Justification—Qualified privilege—Publication—Costs. 1932

The plaintiff owned and operated the Grandview Private Hospital in Van- July 14.
couver. The three defendants, Haywood, MacEachern and Walsh,
Doctors of Medicine, were appointed by the Provincial Government, the NEWTON
City of Vancouver and the Vancouver General Hospital to make a CI,;;‘, oF
survey of the Hospital situation in greater Vancouver, and after mak- Vaxcouver
ing an inspection of the hospitals they made a detailed report which
included the following:

“Grandview Hospital.

“This institution is in charge of a lay woman who was graduated
from the London Homeopathic Hospital. This hospital is in a poor
locality of the ecity and those using it are of very moderate means. At
the time this building was visited it was dirty, odorous and very
poorly equipped for the class of work attempted. It has accommoda-
tion for fifteen patients. There are no facilities for sterilization, the
whole place seemed to be in a very poor condition and the impression
was gained that very questionable work might be done here without
interference.” In an action for damages for libel:—

Held, that if the words were published “without lawful justification or
excuse” they constituted a libel and on the evidence the Commissjoners’
plea of justification fails, but in making their report they were ful-
filling a task undertaken on behalf of their employers and under such
circumstances the occasion was privileged and the plaintiff having
failed to shew any malice the action as against them is dismissed.

Held, further, that as the city, upon receipt of the Commissioners’ report,
gave instructions to have it printed and subsequently circulated it, and
the Vaneouver General Hospital having received copies of the printed
report and circulated them, publication is established in both cases and
they are equally liable in damages.

AOTION for libel arising out of statements in a report made

by Commissioners appointed by the Provincial Government the
Vancouver General Hospital and the Vancouver City Counecil

to make a survey of the whole hospitalization situation as affect- Statement
ing greater Vancouver. The facts are set out in the reasons for
judgment. Tried by Macponarp, J. at Vancouver on the 10th

of June, 1932.

Dickie, for plaintiff.

McCrossan, K.C., and Lord, for defendants Vancouver Gen-
eral Hospital and City of Vancouver.

Reid, K.C., for defendants Haywood, MacEachern and
Walsh.
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14th July, 1932.

Macponarp, J.: This action for libel arises out of statements
contained in a small portion of a lengthy printed report, pub-
lished in April, 1930, containing “a Survey of the Hospital
situation” in Greater Vancouver. It represented the united
labour of the three defendants: Doctors Haywood, MacEachern
and Walsh, hereafter called “the Commissioners.”

For many years prior to such publication it had been recog-
nized by the directors of the General Hospital, the Vancouver
Medical Association and the City Council, that knowledge should
be acquired, as to the actual hospital situation in Greater Van-
couver, to the end that plans might be formulated for the future
and remedies afforded where deemed advisable. It was a diffi-
cult problem to solve and in the selection of the members to
make, what is termed a “Hospital Survey,” those interested,
were required to go outside the Province. They rightly deter-
mined that it was only by adopting such a course, that results
would be obtained, which would have due weight and be bene-
ficial. They thus selected commissioners who were skilled
physicians of wide international reputation. They had made a
special study of hospitalization and executed previous “surveys”
of a similar nature. They might be termed experts and were
well qualified to perform the important work which they
undertook.

The report submitted by the commissioners to the Provineial
Secretary, the City Council and the Board of Directors of the
Vancouver General Hospital shewed great research and a close
study of the situation. It contained criticisms and also recom-
mendations for improvements. They considered it mnot only
within the scope of their authority, to inspect and report upon
hospitals receiving government aid, in the cities of Vancouver,
New Westminster and North Vancouver, but also to take a like
course with respect to private hospitals in the City of Vancou-
ver. The latter were dealt with in the report under the caption
“proprietary institutions for the care of the sick (organized for
profit).” Then followed this reference:

The following institutions which might be called ‘“nursing homes” since
few, if any could be properly classified as complete hospitals, were visited.

Nine of these institutions were inspected and the result dis-
cussed in the report. It was quite apparent that the commis-
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sioners did not deem it within their power to recommend any MACDONALD,

changes in these licensed institutions, where defects existed.
The object of these inspections and report thereon, was appar-
ently only, to give information, as to the nature and extent of
private hospital accommodation. The Grandview Private Hos-
pital owned and operated by plaintiff was referred to in the
report at p. 143 in the following terms:

Grandview Hospital.

This institution is in charge of a lay woman who was graduated from
the London Homeeopathic Hospital. This hospital is in a poor locality of
the city and those using it are of very moderate means. At the time this
building was visited it was dirty, odorous and very poorly equipped for the
class of work attempted. It has accommodation for fifteen patients. There
are no facilities for sterilization, the whole place seemed to be in a very
poor condition and the impression was gained that very questionable work
might be done here without interference.

Plaintiff complains that the statements contained in this
“criticism,” so terming it, would injure her reputation “in the
minds of ordinary, just and reasonable citizens,” per MceCardie,
J.in Myroft v. Slewght (1921), 90 L.J., K.B. 883 and thus were
defamatory and, if untrue, became actionable. These statements
referred not only to the manner in which the plaintiff was carry-
ing on her private hospital, but also to the condition of the
hospital itself and thus affected her trade or occupation and in
this respect came within the scope of South Hetton Coal Com-
pany v. North-Eastern News Association (1894), 1 Q.B. 133.
I deem it unnecessary to enlarge upon this phase of the situa-
tion. I will simply refer to the fact that more than one of the
doctors called on her behalf, in supporting the good character,
reputation and usefulness of this private hospital in the Grand-
view distriet, also added that such portion of the report would
be calculated to give it “a black-eye.” Even if I had not been
assisted by the evidence produced on the part of the plaintiff,
I would not have had any doubt that these statements would
have the result to which I have referred. If they were published
“without lawful justification or excuse” they constituted a
libel, “whatever the intention may have been”: Vide Parke, B.
in O’Brien v. Clement (1846), 15 M. & W. 435 at p. 437.

The commissioners however did not withdraw any of their
statements upon complaint being made, and action then com-
menced. They justified their actions and pleaded, that such
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other words, that these statements, which might be considered
defamatory, were not untrue and falsity forms an essential of
libel. If they were successful in this plea of justification, then
it afforded a complete defence to all the defendants. The
defendants the City of Vancouver and Vancouver General Hos-
pital, while not pleading justification, assisted to some extent
with evidence in its support.

Then as to the truth or falsity of the statement complained of,
a number of prominent and well-known citizens, as well as the
doctors who were more closely connected with the institution,
gave evidence proving that upon several points the statements
were untrue. After referring, without any apparent signifi-
cance, to the fact that the institution was in charge of a lay
woman, who was graduated from a London Homeopathic Hos-
pital, it then adds that the hospital is in a poor locality of the
city. This was admitted by the defendant Haywood as not
being true and he explained how the mistake had occurred. It

“does not seem very material nor would it by itself be defama-

tory. The object of any reference to the locality in which the
institution might be situate or the financial ability of its patients
is not apparent. This criticism of the locality however invited
discussion in the City Council and formed the subject of a con-
demnatory resolution. Then it was stated that the building was
dirty. From the standpoint of the character or efficiency of the
institution this was important. The reference however was only
made as applying to the time, when the inspection took place.
I find that there was abundance of evidence from doctors of good
reputation and in active practice who had utilized this hospital
with satisfaction and found it clean, odorless and properly
equipped at all times. I accept their evidence and think that
the defendant Haywood must either have found an exceptional
condition upon the day of his short inspection of the institution
or perchance placed it upon too high a standard. He may have
overlooked for the moment, what he properly mentioned, after-
wards, in formulating his report, as to this and other institu-
tions, only being “nursing homes and that they could not be
properly classified as complete hospitals.”

Upon the question of equipment, lengthy evidence was pro-
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duced tending to support the statement that “there are no facili- MACDONALD,

ties for sterilization.” This statement is not correct. The
apparatus for sterilization was produced in Court and its four
parts became exhibits. They had been used for years by the
doctors, who utilized the hospital, though they were not up to
date and plaintiff was well aware of that fact. They were
similar to those at one time in use in the Vancouver General
Hospital. The lack of any sterilizing facilities would be a
serious defect in an institution where confinements took place
and one of the witnesses called on behalf of the defence termed
these four appliances simply a means of disinfecting, as dis-
tinguished from sterilizing. Defendant Haywood however
candidly called the apparatus a semi-sterilizer. I think the
report should read that the “facilities for sterilization” were not
adequate or up-to-date. The sting, however, which formed the
greatest cause of complaint from the plaintiff’s standpoint, was
in the last part of the alleged libel reading as follows:

The impression was gained that very questionable work might be done
here without interference.

Plaintiff submitted that this statement, coupled with what
preceded it, meant and was intended to mean, not only that the
plaintiff was incapable and unfitted to be in charge of the
Grandview Hospital, but that the inspection properly gave the
impression referred to. Further that this statement made in
such a manner would convey to the minds of ordinary, just and
reasonable citizens that the institution had either allowed or had
connived at the procuring of abortions. Such interpretation of
this particular statement was supported by reputable witnesses.
I am not bound by their evidence in this respect, but in view of
all the circumstances I do not consider that their conclusions are
unreasonable and I accept them. Defendant Haywood was very
emphatic in disavowing any intention to convey any such mean-
ing to the prospective readers of the report. He referred to the
fact that there were no records or rather that the records were
not kept in a satisfactory manmner. It is quite true that they
did not afford the information nor follow the practice of large
hospitals, though they seem to have complied with the require-
ments of the Provincial Government. Doctor Haywood gives
the lack of such complete records, as a basis upon which he
formed the “impression” referred to, but omitted to make any
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tion, for the statement complained of. It is not however, as T
have mentioned, the intention which a party states, he may have
had, when the libel was published, which governs, but the mean-
ing which may be attached to the words, through independent
witnesses or determined by the Court from the document itself
and without the assistance of extrinsic evidence. The law does
not consider the motive or intention of the publisher, but its

tendency and the consequences, in determining liability:
It does not signify what the motive of the person publishing the libel
wag, or whether he intended it to have a libellous meaning or not:

Per Lord Esher, M.R. in Newvill v. Fine Arts and General
Insurance Company (1895), 2 Q.B. 156 at p. 168.

A person who publishes matter injurious to the character of
another must be considered in point of law to have intended the
consequences resulting from that Act (per Lord Tenterden, C.J.
in Fisher v. Clement (1830), 10 B. & C. 472 at p. 475). Then
again “he cannot defend himself by shewing that he intended
in his own breast, not to defame” or that he intended not to
defame the plaintiff, if in fact he did both (per Lord Loreburn,
L.C. in E. Hulton & Co. v. Jones (1910), A.C. 20 at p. 23).
Objection was taken to Dr. Haywood giving evidence, as to his
intention, in reporting his “impression” and while not nnmind-
ful of the law, as I have just stated it, I allowed him to give
such evidence. 1 considered that under the circumstances, it
was only fair to remove any stigma which might be attached to
the plaintiff and her hospital, in the matter, especially in view of
the interpretation which had been placed upon this statement by
witnesses for the plaintiff. It follows, without further discus-
sion, that the plea of justification fails and this issue, consuming
a considerable portion of the trial, is found in favour of the
plaintiff.

Defendant commissioners then contended that in any event
they were relieved from any liability, on the ground, that in
making and transmitting the said report, the occasion was privi-
leged. If this plea succeeded then such relief would be afforded.
It is founded upon public policy, requiring that upon certain
occasions, a person may make statements which are found to be
untrue, if he does so honestly and not from any indirect or
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wrong motive. He obtains what is termed a “qualified privi- MACD;WAU’,

lege” and it depends entirely upon his honesty in making the
statements complained of. The protection thus given to a
defendant exists under divers circumstances. Here the commis-
sioners, having been appointed for the purpose indicated, submit
that they simply carried out their duties and made their report
honestly believing it to be true. With respect to the portion of
the report, the subject of this action, and which arises from the
inspection of the defendant Haywood, there was no attack made
upon the honesty of such defendant in the matter. I might add
that if his honesty had been impugned it would have been of
no avail.

It is then contended that the commissioners went beyond the
scope of their authority and duties, in inspecting and reporting
upon private hospitals. There is no question that the inspection
and consequent report of the commissioners was intended to deal
with “the hospital situation of Greater Vancouver.” The letter
transmitting the report makes a reference to that effect. Appar-
ently, while originally the Vancouver General Hospital moved
in the matter, subsequently the City Council became inter-
ested and when the Provincial Government assisted and agreed
to bear a portion of the expense, it was intended that the com-
missioners should make a survey of the whole hospitalization
situation, as affecting Greater Vancouver. As I have already
mentioned, they considered to some extent this situation, in the
cities of New Westminster and North Vancouver. So far as
private hospitals are concerned, as they are licensed by the
Government and come under the Hospital Act, I think it was
fully intended that the survey should include these institutions.
They were properly inspected by the commissioners and coming
within their research, required to be dealt with in their report.
They were thus fulfilling the task undertaken on behalf of their
employers. I think under such circumstances, that the occasion
was privileged. It was in discharge of their duty and intended
by their engagement.

Plaintiff can only destroy the relief thus obtained by these
defendants from liability by proving actual malice on their part.
In view of what I have already stated, I deem it only necessary
to add, that the plaintiff has failed to shew any malice on the
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without an adequate remedy. In this connection I refer to the
remarks of Lord Sands, in Dunnet v. Nelson (1926), S.C. 764
at p. 769

It may be unfortunate that a person against whom a charge that is not
true is made should have no redress, but it would be contrary to public
policy and the general interests of business and society that persons should
be hampered in the discharge of their duty or the exercise of their rights
by constant fear of actions for slander.

Then to shew the extent to which persons are relieved from
liability, where there is a qualified privilege “for the common
convenience and welfare of society” (per Parke, B. in Toogood
v. Spyring (1834), 1 C.M. & R. 181 at p. 193) I might refer to
two citations, in Gatley on Libel and Slander, 2nd Ed., p. 213

as follows:

It was in the public interest that the rules of our law relating to privi-
leged occasions and privileged communications were introduced, because it
is in the public interest that persons should be allowed to speak freely on
oceasions when it is their duty to speak, and to tell all they know or
believe, or on occasions when it is necessary to speak in the protection of
some [self or] common interest. (Per Bankes, L.J. in Gerhold v. Baker
(1918), W.N. at p. 369). In such cases no matter how harsh, hasty,
untrue, or libellous the publication would be but for the circumstances, the
law declares it privileged because the amount of public inconvenience from
the restriction of freedom of speech or writing would far out-balance that
arising from the infliction of a private injury. (Per Willes, J. in Huntley
v. Ward (1859), 6 C.B. (x.s.) at p. 517.

The “Commissioners” thus being relieved from liability what
is the defence presented by the defendants, the City of Vancou-
ver and the Vancouver General Iospital as against the allega-
tion that they “published” the statements affecting the plaintiff,
which I have found to be defamatory? In a lengthy plea, out-
lining the circumstances attendant upon the report they, to put
it shortly, submit that they are relieved from liability, on the
ground that the report emanating from the commissioners was
received by these defendants innocently and in good faith, with-
out knowledge of its contents. Further that with such lack of
knowledge and being entirely unconscious of the fact that such
report might contain any matter defamatory to the plaintiff,
they assisted finanecially and otherwise in the printing, publica-
tion and distribution of many copies of the report. It is neces-
sary for them to prove that they did not know that the report
contained or was of a character likely to contain a libel. Also
that such ignorance was not due to any negligence on their part.
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While each case must depend upon its own facts, the defendants MACDONALD,

submit that the facts herein are such that I should follow the
judgment in Emmens v. Pottle (1885), 16 Q.B.D. 354. The
judge at the trial in that case, upon findings of the jury, ordered
judgment to be entered for the defendants and in the Court of
Appeal Lord Esher said (pp. 856-7) : ‘

I agree that the defendants are prima facie liable. . . . But the
defendants did not compose the libel on the plaintiff, they did not write it
or print it; they only disseminated that which contained the libel. The
question is whether, as such disseminators, they published the libel? If
they had known what was in the paper, whether they were paid for circu-
lating it or not, they would have published the libel, and would have been
liable for so doing. . . . But here, upon the findings of the jury, we
must take it that the defendants did not know that the paper contained a
libel. I am not prepared to say that it would be sufficient for them to
shew that they did not know of the particular libel. . . . Taking the
view of the jury to be right, that the defendants did not know that the
paper was likely to contain a libel, and, still more, that they ought not to
have known this, which must mean that they ought not to have known it,
having used reasonable care—the case is reduced to this—that the defend-
ants were innocent disseminators of a thing which they were not bound to
know was likely to contain a libel.

The above passage was quoted by A. L. Smith, L.J. in Vize-
telly v. Mudie’s Select Library, Limited (1900), 2 Q.B. 170,
C.A. at pp. 175, 176. Emmens v. Pottle (1885), 16 Q.B.D.
354 C.A., was followed by Ridgway v. Smith and Son (1890),
6 T.L.RR. 275, Mallon v. W. H. Smith and Son (1893), 9 T.L.R.
621, and Martin v. British Museum (Truslees) & Thompson
(1894), 10 T.L.R. 338, as stated in the judgment of Romer,
L.J., in Vizetelly v. Mudie’s Select Library, Lamited, supra, at
p. 180. The result of the cases was thus summed up by Romer,
L.J. (ibid):

I think that, as regards a person who is not the printer or the first or
main publisher of a work which contains a libel, but has only taken, what
I may call, a subordinate part in disseminating it, in considering whether
there has been publication of it by him, the particular circumstances under
which he disseminated the work must be considered. If he did it in the
ordinary way of his business, the nature of the business and the way in
which it was conducted must be looked at; and if he suecceeds in shewing
(1.) that he was innocent of any knowledge of the libel contained in the
work disseminated by him; (2.) that there was nothing in the work or the
circumstances under which it came to him or was disseminated by him
which ought to have led him to suppose that it contained a libel; and (3.)
that, when the work was disseminated by him, it was not by any negligence
on his part that he did not know that it contained the libel, then, although
the dissemination of the work by him was prima facie a publication of it,
he may nevertheless, on proof of the before-mentioned facts, be held not to
have published it. But the onus of proving such facts lies on him, and the
question of publication or non-publication is in such a case one for the jury.
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It is to be noted that Romer, L.J. in a previous portion of his
judgment, just referred to, discussing Emmens v. Pottle, supra,
expressed an opinion, that the decision in that case, worked
substantial justice, but the manner in which such result was
reached did not appear to him, altogether satisfactory. He did
not think that the judgments, in that case, very clearly indi-
cated, on what principles Courts ought to act, in dealing with
similar cases in the future. Apparently his view of the law was
that the “reasoms,” supporting the judgment in Emmens v.
Pottle, supra, ought not necessarily be followed. Aside from
consideration of this point, it is quite evident that the defence
of being an “innocent disseminator,” is not applicable to a
printer or the first or main publisher of a work, which contains a
libel. It may be said, in a general way, to apply only to vendors
of newspapers and booksellers, though of course including porters
and carriers. In discussing the defence of being “innocent dis-
seminators” Odgers on Libel and Slander, 6th Kd., pp. 139-40

reads as follows:

“If the paper [e.g., a newspaper] was sold in the ordinary way of busi-
ness by a newsvendor who neither wrote nor printed the libel, and who
neither knew nor ought to have known that the paper he was so selling did
contain or was likely to contain any libellous matter, he will not be deemed
to have published the libel which he thus innocently disseminated. The
onus of establishing this defence lies upon the defendant.

Then follows this important statement:
Such defence is not open to the author, printer or the original publisher
of the libel (Morrison V. Ritchie & Co. (1902), 4 F. 645 (Ct. of Sess.)).

A perusal of this Scotch case, supports such statement of the
law. The defendants who were proprietors and publishers of
the “Scotsman” had innocently inserted a birth notice, which
was false, and plaintiff’s right of action was sustained. Emmens

v. Pottle, supra, was discussed as follows (p. 651):

In the absence of any Scottish decision in his favour, the defenders’ counsel
endeavoured to bring this case within the principle of a class of cases, of
which the English case of Emmens v. Pottle (16 Q.B.D. 354) is an illus-
tration. That case extended to newsvendors, that is persons who merely
sell newspapers at bookstalls or in the streets, an exemption from liability
which had previously been accorded to porters, carriers, and other such
persons who are ordered to carry or deliver letters or papers which con-
tain a libel, but who have no occasion and perhaps no right to know the
contents of such letters or papers. Technically every person who passes on
or delivers a letter or paper containing a libel is held in England to have
published the libel; but according to the law of England, in the cases to
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which I have referred, the persons in question (a limited class) are held MACDONALD,
to have freed themselves from liability provided they satisfy a jury that J.
they did not know that the letter or paper contained a libel, and that their —
ignorance did not proceed from negligence. The burden, however, is put on 1932
the defendants to establish this; and if they succeed they are held not to  July 14.
have published the libel, but simply to have innocently disseminated it.

NEWTON

Then again in Dunning v. Thomson & Co., Ltd. (1905), T.H. ».
313 Emmens v. Pottle, supra, was also considered, but not Vf;g&fm
applied as affording any relief to the defendants. It was there
held that newsvendors, who, in ignorance of its defamatory con-
tents, circulated a newspaper containing a libel should be liable
in damages, on the ground that they acted, not as innocent dis-
seminators of the newspaper in question, but more as registered
publishers thereof. Though they had not printed the newspapers
they had utilized them for purposes foreign to those of mere
newsvendors. Here, these defendants, were not pursuing their
“ordinary business” in printing and circulating the reports con-
taining the defamatory matter. Are they not then deprived of a
defence of this nature? There is no doubt that the city, upon
receipt of the typewritten report from the commissioners, instead
of simply filing it for further consideration, with a view of act-
ing upon any recommendations or benefits to be derived there- Judgment
from, gave instructions to have it printed. Under the circum-
stances, I think the printing of itself amounted to publication,
though the correctness of an earlier decision on this point has
been questioned. The reason why I consider, that the printing
alone amounted to ‘“publication,” was because, although the
mechanical work was done by the printers, who were under con-
tract to the city, still the proof-reading was done by a portion of
the staff in the city clerk’s office. Control and supervision was
exercised. Kven if the printing did not constitute publication
still the subsequent extensive circulation by the city had that
effect. Then the defendant Vancouver General Hospital, hav-
ing received a number of copies of such printed report, circu-
lated them in such a manner as to amount to publication. See
on this point the Exhibits 8 and 16, also evidence of J. H.
MecVety and Dr. A. S. Monro. Neither of these defendants was
under any obligation to print or circulate copies of this report.
In my opinion they do not, upon several grounds, come within
the provisions of the relief, afforded and referred to, in the above
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extract from the judgment of Romer, L.J. They did not exer-
cise due care and thus were negligent. They became, as it were,
printers and publishers, as distinguished from innocent dissem-
inators. They were in the same position, as the publishers of a
newspaper, containing libellous statements. Both defendants,
in my opinion, are equally liable in damages. Vide Odgers on
Libel and Slander, 6th Ed., p. 143:

Every one, who writes, prints or publishes a libel, or is in any way
responsible for its being written, printed or published, may be sued by the
person defamed. And to such an action it is no defence that another wrote
it, or that it was printed or published by the desire or procurement of
another, whether that other be made a defendant to the action or not. All
concerned in publishing the libel or in procuring it to be published are
equally responsible for all damages which flow from the joint publication,
whether the author be sued or not; for there is no contribution between
tort-feasors.

As to the damages which should be awarded to the plaintiff,
I find difficulty in arriving at a proper estimate of the amount.
I should consider the whole defamatory document, per Gaselee,
J. in Blackburn v. Blackburn (1827), 3 Car. & P. 146 at p.
159. The plaintiff seeks to recover over $20,000 as damages.
I think this claim is excessive, to say the least. The evidence
was not sufficient to warrant me in considering such an amount.
There is no doubt that her business has not been as profitable as
it was formerly. I think, however, that this is due, in a great
measure to the depression, coupled with opposition and cheaper
means of obtaining hospital relief, than utilizing a private hos-
pital. Still the wide circulation of the report might have
affected her character as well as the reputation of her institu-
tion. It is true that this attack has been wunsuccessful and
plaintiff’s character has been vindicated. It is not a case where
only nominal damages should be awarded. I think a reasonable
amount should be allowed under the circumstances. The dam-
ages are at large—vide Lord Esher, M.R. in South Hetton Coal
Company v. North-Eastern News Association (1894), 1 Q.B.
133. Compare Dorion, C.J. in Mail Printing Co. v. Laflamme
(1888), M.L.R. 4 Q.B. 84 and Cameron, C.J. in Massie v.
Toronto Printing Co. (1886), 11 Ont. 362. Wilde, C.J. in
Turner v. Meryweather (1849), 7 C.B. 251 affords me assist-
ance in the matter. In view of the nature of the libel, affecting
both her character and business, and “having no certain test for
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ascertaining the precise measure of damages” in the case, 1
think a proper amount to allow would be $500. The result is
that the plaintiff is entitled to judgment against the defendants,
the City of Vancouver and The Vancouver General Hospital. As
to the defendants, Doctors Haywood, MacEachern and Walsh
(the commissioners), the action is dismissed with costs “minus
such costs as the plaintiff can prove to have been occasioned by
the plea of justification: wide Odgers on Libel and Slander, 6th
Ed., p. 361 and cases there cited. Judgment accordingly.

Judgment for plaintiff.

TAYLOR v. MILLMAN.

Practice—Application for payment out of Court—Costs—Taxation—Appen-
dix “N,” items 6 and 7.

Items 6 and 7 of Appendix “N,” Tariff of Costs in the Supreme Court are
as follows: “6. Fee to cover each interlocutory application brought by
any party in the action or proceeding to go to such party as may be
ordered. 7. All process for payment into and out of Court.”

The plaintiff having recovered judgment applied for and obtained an order
for payment out of certain moneys in Court and in taxing the costs of
the application he sought to include both items 6 and 7 in the bill.
On review of the taxation:—

Held, that as soon as the application is launched and the order made item 7
can no longer apply, as the “process” was involved in the application.
Item 6 should therefore be allowed and item 7 disallowed.

REVIEVV of taxation from the deputy district registrar at
Vancouver. Heard by Morrisox, C.J.8.C. in Chambers at
Vancouver on the 13th of August, 1932.

Craig, K.C., for the application: The registrar should have
allowed the costs of the application for payment out of Court to
the plaintiff of the amount of his judgment. This item should
be allowed under Appendix “N,” item 6, “Fee to cover interlocu-
tory applications.” This is not covered by item 7, which includes
merely the clerical work of obtaining the money out of Court
after the order has been made: Bradshaw v. British Columbia
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judgment: see In re Lewis. Lewis v. Williams (1886), 31 Ch.
D. 623; Blakey v. Latham (1889), 43 Ch. D. 23; In re
Wheater (1928), Ch. 223,

Hossie, contra.

17th September, 1932.

Morrison, CLJ.8.C.: This is a review of taxation from the
deputy distriet registrar in the above canse. It appears that on
the settlement of the judgment, Mr. Hossie for the defendant
declined to approve it unless the paragraph ordering the sum
of $3,000 to be paid out to the plaintiff be elided. The judg-
ment was settled with this paragraph struck out and the costs
taxed pursuant thereto.

Subsequently an application was made on behalf of the
plaintiff for payment out and the order was made. The plaintiff
seeks to tax a bill of costs in connection with this application in
which he invokes items 6 and 7 of the Appendix “N.”

In my opinion resort cannot be had to item 7. As soon as the
application is launched (and I take it that that is what the
plaintiff is relying on to invoke item 6) and the order made,
item 7 can no longer apply as the “process” was involved in the
application. I cannot think that the framers of the tariff eon-
templated the writing out of a precipe as “process.” The word
“process” should not have found itself associated with the other
words and phrases in these schedules. “Process” is defined in

all the law dictionaries:

Since the Judicature Acts the process for the commencement of all actions
is the same in all Divisions of the High Court. It is either a writ of
summons or an originating summons:

Mozley and Whiteley’s Law Dictionary, 3rd Ed., 259. See also
Byrne’s Law Dictionary. In none of the definitions does the
word bear the meaning sought to be put upon it in the present
instance. These observations are of course irrelevant to the
particular point which has arisen in this case. Item 6 is
allowed, item 7 disallowed. There will be no costs of this
review.

Application granted.
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QUICKSTAD v. McNEILL AND CONNORS. MCDONALD, J.
1031

Contract—Mineral claims—Agreement for sale—Breach—Damages—Former
Judgment—Parties—Intervention—Res judicata. July 2.

On the 18th of May, 1925, the defendants, owners of the Red Top group of COURTOF
. . . APPEAL
mineral claims near Stewart, B.C., gave an option to one Johnson for R
the purchase of the claims for $250,000 and $1,000 was paid on account 1932
thereof. Johnson was acting as agent for the plaintiff, and on the 25th
of May following, a formal agreement was prepared to carry out the
preliminary agreement, and on being signed by the defendants and QUICKSTAD
Johnson a further $1,000 was paid. The agreement was delivered by v,
the parties to Dexter Horton National Bank in Seattle, along with an  McNEeLL
escrow agreement containing a bill of sale of the property, a term of the
escrow providing that in case of default the bank, unless and until the
defendants had demanded the return to them of their bill of sale,
might accept any past due payment whereupon the agreement would
be reinstated. The plaintiff and two of his associates then proceeded
to work the property and expended considerable money in development.
The next payment under the option of $10,000 fell due on the 20th of
July, but it was not paid. The defendants did not withdraw the bill of
sale from the bank, and on the 8th of August following, the plaintiff,
with the financial assistance of one Duthie, paid $10,000 into the bank,
and he and Duthie then proceeded to Stewart to examine the property.
They told the defendants that the $10,000 was deposited in the bank,
but when they attempted to enter the property they were foreibly
ejected by the defendants. The plaintiff then telegraphed the bank to
stop payment of the $10,000 to the defendants. The defendants then
proceeded to Seattle and brought action against the bank to recover
the $10,000. The plaintiff intervened under the provision of a Wash-
ington statute, and by order of the Court made with the consent of
the parties the money was paid into Court and the question of the
right to the fund was left to be decided as between the plaintiff and
the defendants. Later the Court, with a jury, decided the fund
belonged to the plaintiff. In an action for damages by reason of the
defendants’ breach of contract in ousting the plaintiff from the prop-
erty, the defence was raised that the defendants, by bringing their
action in the State of Washington, attorned to the jurisdietion and
were bound by any judgment given on a cross-action by the present
plaintiff, that the plaintiff should have then brought these proceedings,
that the claim was therefore res judicate, and he was estopped from
bringing this action. It was held that the onus was on the defendants
to establish that the plaintiff was estopped, and in this they failed.
The damages were assessed as follows: $2,000 being the payments
made under the option, $2,000 special damages, and $6,000 general
damages, in all $10,000.

Marech 11.
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MCDONALD,J. Held, on appeal, affirming the decision of McDoxarp, J. (McPrirLies, J.A.
I dissenting), that by the case and statute law of the State of Washing-

1931 ton, where a foreign plaintiff resorts to the Courts of that State to
July 2. enforce a claim, not against the respondent but against the bank in
which the subject in controversy is defined, the respondent cannot
COURT OF intervene except on the basis of a claim to that particular fund, and
APPEAL the defence of res judicata therefore fails.
1932

March 11 AAPP]E;\L by defendants from the decision of McDovarn, J.

in an action for damages for breach of a contract of the 25th of

> May, 1925, made between the defendants and one David John-

MeXNEILL son for the sale to the said Johnson of eleven mineral claims, the
property of the defendants, situate in the Portland Canal Min-
ing Division, Cassiar Mining District in British Columbia,

Statement Which said contract was prior to the said breach, assigned by the
said Johnson to the plaintiff, with the knowledge and consent
of the defendants, said breach occurring at or near the town of
Stewart in British Columbia. The further relevant facts arve
set out in the judgment of the trial judge. Tried at Vietoria on
the 27th and 28th of May, 1931.

QUICKSTAD

D.S. Tait, and C. H. Tait, for plaintiff.

Maitland, K.C., and J. G. A. Hutcheson, for defendant
MeNeill.

(. B. Duncan, for defendant Connors.

2nd July, 1931.

McDoxarp, J.: On 18th May, 1925, the defendants
MeXNeill and Connors being the owners of certain mineral
claims known as the Red Top, situate near Stewart, B.C., the
defendant MeNeill received from one David Johnson, on behalf
of himself and his co-owner $1,000 as a first payment npon.an
option to purchase said claims for the price of $230,000. At
some later date, not given in evidence, Johuson, for a considera-
tion of $1, assigned to the plaintiff and to one T. M. Winlow
and to one F. J. Winlow all his interests in “the said proper-
ties.” I, J. Winlow is since deceased and T. M. Winlow claim-

MCDONALD,J.

ing no interest in the matters in litigation is added as a matter
of form as a defendant. Quickstad swears that Johnson in
acquiring the option was acting as his agent, and I see no reason
for not accepting that evidence. It is true Quickstad’s evidence
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is not in all respects satisfactory, but I find no difficulty in MOPONALD,J.

reaching the conclusion that as to that fact he has stated the
truth.

On 25th May, 1925, a formal agreement was prepared in
Seattle to carry out the preliminary agreement and was signed
by MeNeill, Connors and Johnson. This agreement purports
to have been made in quadruplicate and to have been ‘“signed,
sealed and delivered.” Three counterparts are produced, none
of them bearing a seal and one counterpart admittedly was
delivered by the parties to Dexter Horton National Bank in
Seattle along with an escrow agreement and a bill of sale duly
sealed. The bank has been unable to produce its counterpart
and it is contended that that document bore the seals of the con-
tracting parties. Upon the whole of the evidence I am unable
so to find, and shall treat the agreement as a simple contract. It
was a term of the escrow agreement that in case of default the
bank, unless and until McNeill and Connors had demanded the
return to them of their bill of sale might accept any past due
payment, whereupon the agreement should be reinstated, “to
the extent of payment made.”

Shortly after the agreement was made, the plaintiff and the
Winlows proceeded to work the property and expended consider-
able money in development and in building roads. On 20th
July, 1925, a payment of $10,000 fell due and was not paid.
The plaintiff was meanwhile occupied in interesting in the
property one Duthie, a wealthy mining man of Seattle. Certain
telegrams passed, as a result of which the plaintiff procured
Duthie to pay into the bank $10,000 on or before 8th August.
In my opinion the option had not then expired and the bank
was entitled to receive the money, and to forward as it did a
“cashier’s cheque” for $5,000 each to MeNeill and Connors.
On 10th August the plaintiff and Duthie arrived at Stewart,
met MeNeill (who throughout represented his partner Connors),
and told him that the $10,000 had been deposited in the bank.
MeNeill instead of accepting this statement as true, or (as a
reasonable man would have done), instead of telegraphing to
the bank to ascertain the fact, assumed the statement to be
untrue, and on 11th August when the plaintiff and Duthie
arrived upon the ground to inspect the mine, in the most unrea-
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sonable and high-handed manner refused to allow an inspection
and ordered them off the property. Duthie thereupon went to
Stewart and telegraphed the bank to “stop payment” of the
cheques. Whether the bank had power to do so is beside the
point; the faet is, it did do so.

In my recital of the facts so far, I have omitted mention of
certain details as to failure of the plaintiff to pay wages, as to
assignments of interests, etc., not because I have overlooked
them or the arguments based upon them, but because I think
they do not go to the decision of the case. I think the action
does not fail for want of parties and I think that if there was
any breach of the contract to pay wages such breach was waived.

We now come to what I consider the really important and
difficalt phase of the case. Shortly after payment of their
cheques had been stopped, the defendants MeNeill and Coonnors
proceeded to Seattle and there entered actions (later consoli-
dated) against the bank for the recovery of the $10,000 in ques-
tion. Thereupon plaintiff consulted counsel and the latter,
taking advantage of a statute of the State of Washington
entered into a “stipulation” with counsel for MeNeill and
Connors, which stipulation was afterwards made an order of
the Court, whereby it was agreed that the question of the title
to the fund in question should be decided as between Quickstad
on the one hand, and MeNeill and Connors on the other, and
that the bank, being merely a stakeholder, should be eliminated
from the litigation. The proceeding so far as I can understand
is exactly similar to our proceeding in interpleader. The Court
and jury in that action decided that the fund must be paid over

to the present plaintiff.
The present action is brought for damages suffered by the

plaintiff by reason of the defendants’ breach of contract in oust-
ing him from the property, and the main answer is that this
claim, if it exists, ought to have been litigated in Seattle in the
action above-mentioned.  Mr. Griffiths of the Washington Bar
was called for the plaintiff and he testified that both under the
statute which allows a third party to intervene and under the
only agreement which he was able to make with opposing
counsel, the only question which could have been litigated in
Seattle was the question of the ownership of the $10,000 fund.
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Mr. Gregory, called for the defendants, was of opinion that the MODONALD,J.
present defendants by bringing their action in the State of 1931
Washington, thereby attorned to the jurisdiction, and would gy o
have been bound to submit to any judgment given in the cross-

action of the present plaintiff even though such action included "fﬁ;‘; A(;F
a claim for damages for breach of the contract in respect of
which the $10,000 was paid. Both these gentlemen gave their
evidence in a perfectly satisfactory manmner, and according to
their best skill and ability. I have had the greatest difficulty Quickstap
in reaching a conclusion and I finally base my judgment on &
this: that the onus is upon the defendants to establish that the
claim now in question is res judicata or in the alternative that
the plaintiff is estopped, and, in my opinion, that onus has not
been discharged.

1932
March 11.

MCDONALD, J,

The evidence as to damages is not definite and is in some
respects incapable of satisfactory analysis. The fact that the
plaintiff expended money belonging to the Barite Mining Com-
pany of which he was chief owner does not I think affect the
case. e is entitled to recover the combined down-payments of
$2,000. The evidence as to special damages is very indefinite.
I think on this heading at least $2,000 has been proven; and I
assess his general damages at $6,000 though I know quite well
there is no basis on which I can fix them. There will be judg-
ment for the plaintiff for $10,000.

From this decision the defendants appealed. The appeal was
argued at Vancouver on the 30th of Oectober to the 5th of
November, 1931, before Macvoxarp, C.J.B.C., Marnix,
McPurrrirs and Macpboxarp, JJ.A.

Maitland, K.C., for appellant McNeill: The original option
was given to Johnson who assigned to Quickstad and the two
Winlows, but on May 25th a formal agreement was entered into
between the defendants and Quickstad to carry out the original
agreement. The first payment of $10,000 was due on July
20th, but it was not paid and the option expired on that date.
On the 8th of August following Quickstad paid $10,000 into
the bank where the escrow was deposited, and two days later
arrived at Stewart to examine the mine, but McNeill ordered

Argument
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claims a breach, but we submit that at this time they were in
default: see Johnson v. Jones (1897), 50 Pac. 983.

(. B. Duncan, for appellant Connors: Security was wanted
about August 1st for wages due for work done on the property,
and Winlow obtained $500 for this purpose but he absconded
with the money. As to the $10,000 paid into the bank on
August 8th, it was not paid in compliance with the agreement,
as the money should have been paid to the bank as our agents,
whereas it was paid in such manner as to leave the bank in
control of the money. Damages cannot be claimed as well as
rescission: see Towers v. Barrett (1786), 1 Term Rep. 133 at
p. 186; Redgrave v. Hurd (1881), 20 Ch. D. 1; Newbigging
v. Adam (1886), 34 Ch. D. 582; Smith v. Mitchell (1894), 3
B.C. 450; Williams on Vendor and Purchaser, 3rd Ed., 1011;
Davis v. Street (1823),1 Car. & P. 18. The plaintiff was given
damages under three heads. In trover you cannot recover dam-
ages for what you lose: see Mayne on Damages, 6th Ed., 414 ;
Johnson v. Stear (1863), 33 L.J., C.P. 130. As to the effect of
the option not being under seal seec In re Seymour; Fielding v.
Seymour (1918), 1 Ch. 475 ; Alexander v. Yorkshire Guarantee
and Securities Corporation (1916), 23 B.C. 1; Ashdown v.
Manitoba Land Co. (1886), 3 Man. L.R. 444; Bowstead on
Ageney, 8th Ed., 311; Halsbury’s Laws of England, Vol. 7,
p. 333, sec. 686; Berkeley v. Hardy (1826), 5 B. & C. 355;
Henderson v. Henderson (1843), 3 Iare 100 at p. 115 et seq. ;
In re International Contract Co. (1871), 6 Chy. App. 525.

D. 8. Tait, for respondent: All we had to do was to pay the
money to the bank and our rights were safeguarded. They
drove us off the property and broke the contract. There was
rescission of the contract and we sue for damages. A foreign
judgment is never a bar to an action here. The Court is free in
acting on a foreign judgment: see Smith v. Nicolls (1839), 5
Bing. (x.8.) 208; Bank of Australasia v. Harding (1850), 9
C.B. 661; Hall v. Odber (1809), 11 East 118. Estoppel in
case of a former judgment is not an inflexible rule: see Taylor
v. Hollard (1902), 1 K.B. 676; Dicey’s Conflict of Laws, 5th
Ed., 409; Barber v. Lamb (1860), 8 C.B. (n.s.) 95 at p. 99;
Winter v. Dewar & Co. (1928), 40 B.C. 228; (1929), 41 B.C.



XLVI] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS.

87

336 ; Brunsden v. Humphrey (1884), 14 Q.B.D. 141; Conquer MCPONALD,J.

v. Boot (1928), 2 K.B. 336; Callandar v. Dittrich (1842), 4
Man. & G. 68; Hunter v. Stewart (1861), 31 L.J., Ch. 346 at
p. 380; Nelson v. Couch (1863), 15 C.B. (w.s.) 99. In
Seattle they only litigated as to the money in Court, .e., the
$10,000 paid into the bank by the plaintiffs, and it was agreed
that the case would be confined to this. We were allowed $2,000
for development but this is not sufficient as we spent over $4,000.
Maitland, and Duncan, replied.

Further argument was heard by the Court at Vancouver on
the 4th of March, 1932, on the question of parties to the action.

Duncan (Hutcheson, with him), for appellants: Quickstad
assigned certain interests to Wored and Johnson and they should
be parties to the action: see Durham Brothers v. Robertson
(1898),1 Q.B. 765 at p. 769; William Brandt’s Sons & Co. v.
Dunlop Bubber Company (1905), A.C. 454 at p. 462 ; Perform-
ing Right Society, Ld. v. London Theatre of Varieties, Ld.
(1924), A.C. 1 at p. 13; Halshury’s Laws of England, Vol. 7,
pp. 436-T; Roberts v. Holland (1893), 1 Q.B. 665. In the
case of joint promises both must be parties: see Cullen v.
Knowles (1898), 2 Q.B. 380; Wilson, Sons & Co. v. Balcarres
Brook Steamship Company (1893), 1 Q.B. 422 at pp. 426-7;
Kendall v. Haomalton (1879), 4 App. Cas. 504 at p. 534;
Hudson v. Ferneyhough (1890), 34 Sol. Jo. 228; Daniell’s
Chancery Practice, 8th Ed., 151.

Tait, for respondent: Quickstad first came in as.Johnson’s
principal. Later there were qualified assignments from Quick-
stad to Johnson and Wored of small interests of which no
notice was given. They both verbally gave back their respective
interests later. None of the cases referred to has any bearing
on the facts here. That they are not necessary parties to the
action see Alevander v. Yorkshire Guarantee and Securities
Corporation (1916), 23 B.C. 1; Jell v. Douglas (1821), 4 B.
& Ald. 374 at p. 3755 Heath v. Chilton (1844), 12 M. & W.
632. The defendants have shewn no case where the assignees
should be made parties. Non-joinder of these parties is no
defence to the action: see Abouloff v. Oppenheimer (1882), 30
W.R. 429; Smith v. Boyd (1916), 10 WW.R. 222; Werder-
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MODONALD, I. man, v. Societe Generale d’Electricite (1881), 19 Ch. D. 246;
1931  Annual Practice, 1932, p. 255. The proper parties are before
July 2. the Court.
———  Duncan, replied.

ngggff Clur. adv. vult.
1932 11th March, 1932,

Mareh 1. Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C.: T would dismiss the appeal.

Quiexseap  Marrix, J.A.: This is a difficult and complicated case and

MoNeny after giving it careful consideration in all its unusual aspects

I find myself unable to say that the learned judge has mnot

martiN, reached the right conclusion and therefore the appeal should be
A dismissed.

McPminrres, J.A.: This appeal calls for consideration of all
the facts attendant upon a contract for the acquisition of certain
mining property in the Cassiar Mining District, Province of
British Columbia. The transaction was entered into by an
escrow agreement deposited with the Dexter Horton National
Bank of Seattle, the purchase price to be $248,000 and a bill
of sale of the mining property was executed by the appellants in
favour of one David Johnson and the respondent claimed to be
entitled to enforce the escrow agreement but In my opinion
failed to establish at the trial that he was so entitled. However,
I do not propose to wholly rely upon that point which, of course,
would alone entitle the action being dismissed. To comply with

MCPHILLIPS, the escrow agreement pavments had to be made as follows:
TA. $10,000 on or before July 20th, 1925; $30,000 on or before
July 20th, 1926; $40,000 on or before July 20th, 1927 ; $168,-

000 on or before July 20th, 1928. Now the first payment of
$10,000 was not paid on the due date but only paid into the

bank on the 8th of August, 1925, by one Duthie alleged to have

made the payment on account of the respondent and with refer-

ence to the escrow agreement. There was some evidence or a
contention made that it was agreed that the appellants shonld

have a telegram from the bank when the payments were made—

the appellants received no such advice. On the 10th of August

the respondent and Duthie at Stewart, B.C\., in the neighbour-

hood of which town the mining property was, advised one of the
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appellants (McNeill) that the $10,000 was deposited to the MOPONALD,J.

appellants’ account in the bank but did not support the state-
ment by any proof and when the respondent arrived at the
mining property, accompanied by Duthie, MceNeill refused to
allow the respondent and Duthie to inspect the mining property
upon which work had been done. It would then seem that the
respondent accepted this action as being a breach of the contract
which it would not be at all in my opinion. The onus was upon
the respondent to shew compliance with the escrow agreement by
the due payment of the $10,000. This the respondent could
have done but did not do, as although the July payment of
$10,000 was not made until the 8th of August there is a pro-
vision in the escrow agreement that payment could be made at
any time before the appellants withdrew the bill of sale from
the bank. It is evident in my opinion that the respondent
desired to put an end to the escrow agreement upon his part and
his failure to satisfy the appellants is evidence of it as he
caused Duthie who had accompanied him and who had really
paid the money into the bank to wire the bank to stop payment
of the $10,000 to the appellants—that is, in law, the respondent
elected to treat the escrow agreement as at an end. One of the
parties only to a contract cannot end it and it subsequently being
established that the $10,000 was paid into the bank the situa-
tion was that the contract was still existent and the $10,000 was
the property of the appellants. It was as easy for the respond-
ent to wire the bank to apprize the appellants of the payment
as to wire stopping payment of the cheques which it was well
known would in due course go forward to the appellants. The
explanation of all this was in my opinion the desire to end the
escrow agreement and to in some way in fraud of the appellants
prevent the $10,000 getting to the appellants. The cheques
that did go forward from the bank to the appellants were cheques
of the bank known as cashier’s cheques and the $10,000 was
represented by two of such cheques of equal amount making
together $10,000 to the respective orders of the appellants in
their individual names. Therefore, there was no breach of
contract as I look at it on the part of the appellants—anything
of that nature was wholly upon the part of the respondent. This
conduct of the respondent fraudulent in its nature as it pre-
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vented the appellants getting money that was due to them is
sufficient in itself to disentitle this Court, in my opinion, from
giving any relief to the respondent even if in law he was entitled
to any. It is within the power of the Court to ex mero motu
find frand and having found it the action should upon that
ground alone stand dismissed. The result of the fraudulent act
of the respondent in countermanding payment of the cheques
was that the appellants were compelled to sue the bank in the
Superior Court of the State of Washington for King County
(at Seattle) upon the cheques. In the course of the proceedings
the bank was dismissed out of the action and what is known as
a stipulation was entered into which reads as follows: [After
setting out the stipulation the learned judge continued].

Following the execution of this stipulation the action went to
trial and it is only necessary to peruse the proceedings to have it
made apparent that if the respondent ever had a cause of action
that the judgment of the Court establishes bevond a doubt that
the matter is res judicala and that there can be no reagitation of
the matters in issue or which could have been agitated in the
Superior Court of the State of Washington for King County.
L would now refer to the judicial eenfirmation of the stipulation,
the instructions given by the Court and the judgment: [After
setting these out the learned judge continued .

It is evident from the instructions of the Court given to the
jury that the jury could only give the verdict they did by find-
ing in answer to instruction No. 8 that the appellant MeNeill’s
refusal to permit an inspection of the mine was made with the
intent to cancel the contract. It naturally follows that the
$9,974.50 allowed by the jury was damages for the wrongful
refusal of MeNeill to permit an inspection of the property and
was made with the intent to cancel the contract and constituted
a breach of the contract. Instructions Nos. 8 and 9 of the learned
judge (Charles P. Moriarty) make his conclusion perfectly
clear. Im this Court we had the learned counsel for the respond-
ent admit that he could not contend that the $10,000 paid into
the bank was not the money of the appellants and as later
represented by the cheques, therefore, the money in Court in
Seattle being the money of the appellants was appropriated to
pay the damages awarded by the jury for the breach of contract
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by the appellants. This in my opinion ends the matter and if ¥CPONALD,J.

the respondent had an enforceable claim it has been litigated
and found by a competent Court and the judgment has been
satisfied out of moneys of the appellants. It has been contended
in this Court that the stipulation was in some way restrictive
and was confined to whether the cheques were really representa-
tive of moneys of the appellants or the respondent. IHow can
that be? It is only necessary to see the comprehensiveness of
the points submitted to the jury by the learned judge and the
very precise and able manner in which they were presented and
with a true exposition and pronouncement of the law thereon.

Further we have the admission made at this Bar that the
cheques were representative of moneys of the appellants and the
moneys of the appellants. This is incontestable that unless it
was so then the escrow agreement was at an end and MeNeill
was perfectly entitled to refuse inspection of the mining prop-
erty and the respondent could have recovered nothing in the
Superior Court of Washington. How could there have been any
breach of contract at all unless that at the time of the alleged
breach the contract was in good standing ? The only way that it
could be said to be in good standing was for the respondent to
prove the $10,000 was really paid to the appellants; therefore
the admission was made and could not be contested that the
$10,000 was paid into the bank to the credit of the appellants
and afterwards the cashier’s cheques went to them. That being
the fact how idle to say that the real contest and what was
fought out was—who was entitled to the cheques?

It was argued and pressed very strongly that the term of the
stipulation was confining in its nature and that it could not be
said that the judgment recovered in the Superior Court, Wash-
ington State, was in its nature a final judgment in relation to
the matters in question in the present action and that the
defence of res judicata is not a conclusive answer to the action.
Mr. George W. Gregory an eminent member of the Bar of the
State of Washington resident at Seattle was called as a witness
on behalf of the appellants. Mr. Gregory was asked the follow-
ing question and made his answer thereto:

Now in this stipulation is there any limitation of any kind that you find?
Not that I find. The stipulation as I read it is nothing more nor less than
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to get the Dexter Horton National Bank out of the proceeding, let them
pay the money into Court, and let the parties go ahead and fight out their
differences.

Later when recalled, he said:

In this case the parties went in voluntarily, went in to settle the matter
by giving the Court jurisdiction. It is my opinion that attorneys and liti-
gants outside the Court cannot by stipulation confer jurisdiction upon a
Court in addition to that which it has, or take away its jurisdiction. I
had that matter up just a few days ago in Washington, where parties
attempted to stipulate that such and such would be the evidence.

Once you are there you are in the hands of the Court? Onece you are
there you are in the hands of the Court, you cannot enlarge or take away
from the jurisdiction of the Court. It is against public policy.

Then we have the following answers by Mr. Gregory:

How far could you go as to bringing actions or causes of action between
those same two parties under that stipulation in the State of Washington?
Well, my opinion is all, all of the rights; that they submitted themselves to
the Court to determine all of the rights involved in this subject-matter.

Tar Court: What do you mean by this subject-matter? The contract
and damages growing out of the contract.

Where do you get that idea? Well, I get that idea from the decisions of
the Court all over the State, we have several in the district. In fact I
differ from Mr. Griffith here, I don’t think the service statute is involved
in this case at all; I think that section 241 of Remington & Ballinger’s
Code—I think it is section 241 is the section that regulates and controls
the parties in this action; because these parties—there was no attempt
made to serve them in any way, they voluntarily submitted to the juris-
diction of the Court; and when people do that, our statute—it is statutory,
section 241: ‘“Appearance, What Constitutes.—A defendant appears in an
action when he answers, demurs, makes any application for an order
therein, or gives the plaintiff written notice of his appearance. After
appearance a defendant is entitled to notice of all subsequent proceedings;
but when a defendant has not appeared, service of notice or papers in the
ordinary proceedings in an action need not be made upon him. Every such
appearance made in an action shall be deemed a general appearance, unless
the defendant in making the same states that the same is a special
appearance.”

All right; you have two kinds of appearance? Yes. There is a long line
of decisions here—there have been Court decisions on the question. I think
one of these volumes here Mr. Griffith had—TI think there is a case in one
of those volumes here in which the Court discusses what comes under a
general appearance.

Tue Covrr: What do you call a general appearance there? The usual
appearance is filing the answer and cross-complaint. There are only two
parties in our practice, in so far as parties to an action are coneerned, that

is parties plaintiff and parties defendant.

The plaintiff here becomes Quickstad, doesn’t he, when he intervenes?
He is a defendant in so far as this case is coneerned beeause he asserts an
interest adverse to the plaintiff. And then he does, as all other defendants
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do when they have any affirmative relief they want, they file a cross-com- MCDONALD,J.
plaint in addition to their answer. —

And Quickstad did that? He did. 1931
And what did Connors and MeNeill do with that? They replied. July 2.
Did they file an answer to that counterclaim? Yes. They have a

right to do. COURT OF

Where is that? Look through the records and see; I have not seen that.  APPEAL
I never paid so much attention to that pleading, your Lordship.

You say section 241 you are talking about is referring to a defendant, 1932
as I read it? Well, yes. March 11.
All right; we will treat Connors and MecNeill as defendants to the cross-
action brought by Quickstad. QUICKSTAD

In my opinion it is quite unnecessary to make any further Mcl:r)m,;
quotations from the evidence of Mr. Gregory. Unquestionably
his evidence is and his statement of the law of the State of
Washington is unqualifiedly that the stipulation as entered into
was a submission by the parties to all matters in difference
between them and the question of breach of contract or no
breach and the damages that might be awarded were open to
the Court for decision. I have, I think, well demonstrated that
not only were they open but were submitted to the jury and with
precise instruetions upon the points of law. In my opinion it
is impossible to contend otherwise and all the questions being
presented to the jury the jury awarded damages to the amount
of $9,974.50 against the appellants. Is it necessary to enquire
what these damages were allowed for? The only answer reason-
ably possible is for breach of contract on the part of the appel-
lants and there could be no breach of contract unless at the
time of the breach the escrow agreement was in good standing.
The $10,000 on deposit in the bank must be deemed to be pay-
ment to the appellants and as to this we have the admission of
counsel for the respondent at this Bar that it was the money of
the appellants. Ounly upon this premise was it possible for the
respondent to be allowed any damages and in due course the
damages awarded were directed by the Court to be paid out of
the moneys in Court admittedly the money of the appellants.
Upon this state of facts is it possible to arrive at any other con-
clusion than that the subject-matter of the present action is
concluded by the result of the action in the Superior Court of
Washington ¢ There can be but the one answer and that is that
the defence of res judicata has been amply established.

If it could be successfully contended that the cause of action

MCPHILLIPS,
J.A.
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here sued for was not tried out in the Superior Court of Wash-
ington which, of course, I am clear upon that it was then we
have Mr. Gregory’s evidence directed to that point res judicata
would still be an insuperable barrier to the present action. The
evidence given on this point was brought out in eross-examina-
tion. [After setting out the evidence at length the learned
judge continued ].

It is therefore evident as I view the law of Washington that
whether all matters of difference between the parties relative to
the cause of action litigated were or were not gone into or
pressed it is not permissible for the parties to split their claims
and later sue in respect thereof. In this respect the law of
England, and as we have it, is not at variance.

It being conceded at this Bar that the money covered by the
cheques was the money of the appellants and counsel could not
but concede it otherwise how could the respondent have any
cause of action for breach of contract? Then it is apparent that
what was litigated was not the money represented by the cheques
but damages for breach of contract and that I think was what
was litigated and the defence of res judicala constitutes a com-
plete bar. 1In Henderson v. Henderson (1843), 3 Hare 100
(Piggott on Foreign Judgments, 3rd Ed., Part I., pp. 69-72),
Wigram, V.C. at pp. 115-16 said:

where a given inatter becomes the subject of litigation in, and of
adjudication by, a Court of competent jurisdietion, the Court requires the
parties to that litigation to bring forward their whole case, and will not
(except under special circumstances) permit the same parties to open the
same subject of litigation in respect of matter which might have been
breught forward as part of the subject in contest, but which was not
brought forward, only because they have, from negligence, inadvertence, or
even accident, omitted part of their case. The plea of res judicata applies,
except in speeial cases, not only to points upon which the Court was actu-
ally required by the parties to form an opinion and pronounce a judgment,
but to every point which properly belonged to the subject of litigation,
and which the parties, exercising reasonable diligence, might have brought
forward at the time. . . . Now, undoubtedly the whole of the case
made by this bill might have been adjudicated upon in the suit in New-
foundland, for it was of the very substance of the case there, and prima
facie, therefore, the whole is settled.

Further the respondent’s whole case was breach of contract.
Davis v. Street (1823), 1 Car. & P. 18 was a case where it was
held that
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if a contract is broken, an action for money had and received will not lie MCDONALD,J.
for money paid under it; an action for the breach of contract is the proper
remedy: but if the contract has been rescinded it is otherwise. 1931

IHere no question of rescission arises. There is seemihgly _ July 2.
attempted in this case to be argued that the action in the gourror
Superior Court of Washington was one for the money repre- AFFEAL
sented by the cheques. How fallacious that is! The money 1932
had to be paid to keep the contract alive, therefore it was and yrren 11,
could only be an action for breach of contraet and would be for —————
damages. This Court in Winter v. J. A. Dewar Co. (1929), 41 QUICIJ_STAD
B.C. 336 gave consideration to this question of res judicata. It McNEILL
is apparent that the present case as in that has relation to mat-
ters that were in existence at the time of the action in the
Superior Court of Washington and which the respondent had
an opportunity to bring before the Court as elements of damage.
There cannot be two actions for damages for the same breach
of contract; it was for the respondent to array all his elements
of damage before the Superior Court of Washington and pre-
sumptively he did so. In any case, he cannot reagitate the
matter now. As it is he had obtained the very substantial sum
of $10,000 as damages for breach of contract receiving the

. . MCPHILLIPS,
amount, the money of the appellants, upon deposit in the TA.
Superior Court of Washington, yet comes to this jurisdiction
and sues again. Of course he had not the temerity to sue again
in Washington State but evidently was of the view that the
Courts of this Provinee would be more tolerant and indulgent
in the matter.

1 have at some length gone into the subject-matter of this
appeal in that it has many phases requiring close attention and
many authorities have been cited that need no particular atten-
tion as they are decisive of well-known principles of law and
counsel upon both sides have very ably debated the salient points
calling for decision. - My conclusions as to the disposition of the
appeal are as follows: '

Firstly, The respondent has in my opinion failed to satis-
factorily establish his right to enforce his alleged cause of
action—that is, that there is no satisfactory evidence establish-
ing that the proper parties are before the Court.

Secondly. That in any case the transaction throughout as to
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the right to sue for breach of contract is so infected with fraud
(see Campbell River Lumber Co. v. McKinnon (1922), 64
S.C.R. 396) that the respondent cannot recover. Without the
payment of $10,000 to the appellants the escrow agreement was
at an end and the respondent fraudulently-—although compelled
to admit that the money represented by cashier’s cheques from
the bank were forwarded by the bank to the respondent—inter-
posed himself and stopped payment by the bank of the cheques
thereby creating a position of default in payment which would
be that of a non-existent contract and has persisted in that posi-
tion to the end.

Thirdly. When the learned counsel for the respondent is
pressed by the point that unless this $10,000 is admitted to be
the appellants’ money—and he has admitted it—he persists in
submitting that the decision of the Washington Court had rela-
tion only to the cheques and the money payable thereunder and
that it was only determined by that Court that the money was
the money of the respondent-—a fallacious contention and
against his own admission—a wholly untenable argument for
if that be the case that in itself puts this action at an end as
the escrow agreement would be at an end because of the default
of payment of the $10,000, the appellants never having received
payment thereof.

Fourthly. Finally brushing away everything of a frandulent
and confusing nature the situation becomes a plain one indeed,
That the action in the Superior Court of the State of Washing-
ton was an action for breach of contract, 7.e., of the escrow
agreement and that the damages there awarded were damages
for breach of contract, then what results? There has been one
action, there cannot be another, the principle of res judicata
applies and no further action at law is permissible.

In this most confusing and involved action which it would
seem to me could have been presented in a clearer manner my
only conclusion can be, with great respect to the learned trial
judge, that the judgment must be set aside being convinced that,
not only on the ground of fraud but upon the other stated
grounds as well, no relief should be accorded the respondent,
that is, in my opinion, the appeal should be allowed and the
action dismissed.
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Macponarp, J.A.: Appeal from a judgment awarding MCPONALD,J.

$10,000 damages against appellants for breach of an agreement
dated May 25th, 1925, for the sale by appellants to one David
Johnson (agent for respondent) of eleven mineral claims
(known as the Red Top) in the Cassiar Mining District for
$250,000 payable as follows: $2,000 on the execution of the
agreement (an option); $10,000 on or before July 20th, 1925,
and the balance in three consecutive years. This option or
working bond was executed in quadruplicate and appellants
submitted that seals were affixed to the original copy. The trial
judge found otherwise, treating it as a simple contract and that
finding should not be disturbed. The rule therefore, that a
principal may not sue on an instrument under seal executed by
his agent on his behalf, cannot be invoked. The evidence too
supports the finding that Johnson was the agent of the
respondent.

An escrow agreement signed by appellants and Johnson was
deposited in the Dexter Horton National Bank of Seattle along
with the records and an executed bill of sale of the mineral

claims. The material clause therein follows:

In the event any past due payment is tendered to you [the bank] before
demand for the delivery of the said bill of sale to said Connors or McNeill
[appellants] is made upon you, you are authorized and instructed to accept
said past due payment, and the escrow shall be again considered in good
standing to the extent of said payments made.

Appellants thereby made the bank their agent to accept pay-
ment of any instalment tendered after the time for payment
provided in the original option passed, and unless prior thereto
the bank received a demand for the bill of sale (or unless tele-
grams exchanged altered this situation) payment to the bank by
respondent, without any notification to appellants, would be a
payment under the working bond referred to.

Johnson executed an assignment of his interest in the agree-
ment to the respondent and two Winlow brothers and appellants
thereafter dealt with respondent and the said Winlows as prin-
cipals.  F. Winlow and respondent however executed the fol-

lowing document addressed to Johnson:

Subject to you paying $10 by way of wages or work in the development
of Red Top mine purchased today we hereby assign to you one-tenth interest
in said property. Sale is to be effected by us and any sale that we make
you are to ratify and sign necessary papers or transfer on demand by us

7
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If sale is made the original amounts and all expenses are to be paid and a
division of profits, if any, is to be made thereafter.

I assume that this interest is still held by Johnson. Tt was
submitted that he should be a party to this action. I do not
think so. He is not a joint covenantee with his prineipals, the
respondent and the two Winlow brothers, nor is there any
privity of contract between him and the appellants. As assignee
under an equitable assignment (no notice given) he would in
any event, in respect to his interest, have to sue in the name of
the respondent. The same observations apply in respect to a
fifteen per cent. interest later assigned to one Wored.

On the 4th of August, 1925, after the first instalment of
$10,000 was past due (an extension being arranged in the mean-
time) the respondent and Wored entered into an agreement with
a capitalist, one J. F. Duthie, who for certain considerations
agreed to advance the money to develop the property. The

material parts of that agreement follow:

Wrereas said Quickstad and Wored are desirous of having J. F. Duthle
become interested with them in the purchase of said mining group.

Now THEREFORE, for and in consideration of said Duthie advancing the
sum of $5,000 for the purpose of making payment on said option, said
Quickstad and Wored agree to put up real estate security consisting of
lots 7 & 8, block three Holbrook & Clise Addition West Seattle also lot 11,
block 10 Baker Addition Seattle also 50,000 shares Barite Stock as security
for said $5,000 payable in six months. Provided however that upon exam-
ination of said property by said Duthie or his representative, and upon his
notification to said Quickstad and or said that he is desirous of becoming
interested in said mining group then said Duthie shall immediately furnish
$5,000 additional to pay on said option making a total of $10,000 and shall
immediately release said securities deposited.

Upon the payment of $10,000 by said Duthie said Quickstad and Wored
agree to assign a 52 per cent. interest in and to said Red Top mining group
and the properties shall be worked to the mutual advantage.

While respondent was arranging for this financial assistance
the time for the first payment (July 20th, 1925) having expired
(without demand by appellants for the bill of sale) telegrams
were exchanged in reference thereto. Their only effect, apart
from special terms, if any, introduced, is that the payment of
this instalment is governed by the stipulations contained in the
wires exchanged. Respondent wired appellant MeNeill on
July 21st:

Have $5,000 ready will have balance in 5 days. Answer.

On July 24th, appellant MeNeill wired respondent:
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Will extend time for $5,000 [i.c., the balance] to August 8th subject to McpPONALD,J.

your paying $5,000 to bank on option immediately. When advised by bank
that $5,000 is paid we will wire bank to extend time as above. Wire answer.

(The condition “when advised by bank’ should be noted as one
of the grounds later advanced for turning respondent off the
property was the complaint that appellants did not receive notice
from the bank when the full payment was made.) On July

29th respondent wired appellant MeNeill:
Can pay $5,000 now and $5,000 in 60 days. Wire answer.

to which MeNeill replied on July 30th:

Pay bank $5,000 on option immediately subject to Connors and I extend-
ing payment for $5,000 to August 8th. Have bank advise me when pay-
ment is made. 1 will wire bank immediately to extend time of payment of
$5,000 as above and will advise Connors to wire bank immediately. Will
expect reply tomorrow.

On August 1st Fred Winlow, one of the brothers referred to,
who was on the property doing development work and in touch

with McNeill, wired to respondent as follows:

Deposited $350 escrow bank cover part wages. MeNeill takes possession
Monday if $5,000 unpaid bank Monday but will give time balance to August
15th. Have bank wire McNeill Monday sure,

Following the arrangement made by appellants MeNeill with
F. Winlow the former on August 9th, 1925, wired to the bank
as follows:

If parties will deposit $5,000 on option next Tuesday I will extend other
payment of $5,000 to August 15th. Please wire me if payment is made
Tuesday.

This is appellant’s final stipulation. While he requests the
bank to advise him he does not make the extension of time con-
ditional upon the bank advising him of the payment. We have
here instructions by appellant to his agent and if the latter
failed to notify him it could not affect the respondent.

On August 10th the bank wired to MeNeill: ‘

Ten thousand paid August 8th. Your share sent to Stewart.

This wire was not received until the 13th and in the mean-
time the breach oceurred. The payment was therefore made
seven days before the time mentioned in appellants’ last tele-
gram. Other wires exchanged are not material.

While the foregoing wires were being exchanged the respond-
ent under the agreement with Duthie antz was endeavouring to
provide securities for the conditional advance obtained from him.
If respondent borrowed $10,000 from Duthie the payment to
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the bank would be a payment by respondent. On the other
hand, if Duthie advanced it for a 52 per cent. interest in the
ted Top mining group, other considerations would arise because
1t was submitted that respondent parted with a substantial part
of his interest in the property. The agreement with Duthie
provided that upon payment by him of $10,000 respondent and
Wored would “assign a 52 per cent. interest in and to the said
Red Top mining group” whereas for a breach occurring after
its execution respondent alone sues as the sole party interested.
Before action Fred Winlow died and Tom Winlow (who dis-
claimed any interest) was added as a party defendant. I think
the sum of $10,000 advanced by Duthie must be treated as a
loan to respondent to be converted into an interest when (and
if) after examination of the property by Duthie he notified
respondent that he was prepared to take the interest referred to
and provide at least part of the working capital. The first
$5,000 paid by Duthie was undoubtedly a loan. Securities
were deposited by respondent and if Duthie decided after exam-
ination to withdraw he could, failing repayment, realize on the
securities. The second advance was to be made after examina-
tion of the property. Duthie however waived that condition
and advanced the remaining $5,000 without examination.
Before doing so he received additional securities from respond-
ent, the intention no doubt being that as time was passing—the
15th of August being the last day for payment—he would post-
pone examination with the right to demand return of the
moneys advanced or failing that realize on the securities if the
later examination did not satisfy him. It was only too when
the securities were released and the final payment of $10,000
made that Duthie could demand an assignment of a 52 per
cent. interest. He departed from the terms of the agreement
for the reason mentioned but if no breach occurred and he
finally after a later examination, decided to withdraw he could
I think do so and realize on the securities if necessary. In any
event, no interest was ever transferved to Duthie. Because of
the breach and respondent’s acquiescence it was impossible to
transfer any interest to him. It was contemplated that a com-
pany should be formed in which Duthie would hold 52 per cent.
of the stock. Before that time arrived the option was at an end.



XLVI.] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS. 101

The agreement was drawn in contemplation of the Red Top MCPONALD,J.
remaining the property of the respondent under the option. 1931
Duthie therefore had no interest in the Red Top mine when July 2.
respondent commenced this action. The agreement to assign a

52 per cent. interest could not be implemented. O o
The sum of $10,000 to provide for the payment due under the  -—
option on July 20th, 1925, having been paid, as outlined, Duthie 1932
March 11.

and a mining engineer (Turner) arrived at Stewart, B.C., on
the 10th of August to examine the claims. McNeill (who repre- quicksran
sented his partner (Connors) informed them that he had repos- MoN L
sessed himself of the claims. He refused to allow them to enter
for any purpose. On the following day he refused to allow an
inspection and ordered them off the premises. They might have
insisted that the option was in good standing but did not do so.
The ground of interference was that appellant had no advice
that the $10,000 had been deposited in the bank. He declined
to accept their assurances. Iis position was wholly untenable.
His latest wire did not make notice a condition precedent and
in any event payment to the bank was equivalent to payment to
him. The respondent was not affected by his agent’s alleged
failure to notify appellant. A further ground advanced for sacpoxarp,
turning them off the property was that wages were not secured ~ 7*
as provided for in the option agreement. This feature (without
merit because wages were either paid or provided for) was in
fact only advanced as a justification of appellant’s action in
insisting that he should have proof that the $10,000 was in the
bank. It does not assist him; his complaint, if any, was against
his agent. Upon this unwarranted stand being taken by appel-
lant and upon his refusal to allow entry respondent could as
stated either insist that the option was valid or submit to the
ouster and claim damages. He chose the latter course.
In the meantime the $10,000 referred to was in the mail on
the way to appellants MeNeill and Connors in the form of
cashier’s cheques. Omn being dispossessed Duthie, after con-
sulting respondent (without authority) wired the bank to stop
payment. The bank could only take instructions from its
principal. It was nevertheless the natural course for laymen to
adopt. They did not want to lose the property and the $10,000
paid and take their chance of recovering it as damages. The
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MCDONALD,J- bank stopped payment. Appellants urged that in acting upon
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this wire it was Duthie’s agent. I do not think so. The fact
that he was a director of the bank is not material. There is no
evidence to shew that the payment to the bank was conditional
reserving to Duthie or respondent a right of withdrawal. The
payments had to be made either to appellants direct or to their
agent; mno provision was made for direct payment. The bank
therefore should not have heeded these instructions and appel-

Qurckstap lants might complain of its action.

v.
McNEILL

The next series of events raises the question of res judicata.
Appellants after the breach sued the Dexter Horton National
Bank in the State of Washington on the two cheques issued.
They claimed to be holders thereof for value and entitled to
payment. They, in effect, alleged that they were entitled to this
$10,000 under the option whereas in the present action they
take the position that because they were not advised of payment
into the bank pursuant to alleged terms in telegrams exchanged
no payment in fact was made. The respondent and Wored by
intervention under a statute of the State of Washington became
a party to that action and the bank upon payment of the amount

macnonarp, into Court was dismissed therefrom. A contest therefore arose

J.AL

between appellants and vespondent in the Seattle Courts in
respect to this sum of $10,000. A stipulation, as it is called,
afterwards ratified by the Court, was entered into by the attor-
neys for the present appellants (plaintiffs in that action) the
attorneys for the bank and the present respondent and Wored.
It recited the commencement of the action by the present appel-
lants against the bank; the fact that the present respondent
and Wored claimed to be entitled to receive from the bank a
sum equal to that demanded by the present appellants; that the
bank admitted its obligation to pay the amount to the parties
entitled and provided :

It is the intention and purpose of this stipulation to permit the deter-
mination of the matters and things in controversy herein between the real
parties interested without annoyance or prejudice to the Dexter Horton
National Bank, but the rights of all of said parties, exeept the Dexter
Horton National Bank, shall be in all respects settled, determined and
adjusted as if said funds had not been paid into the registry of the Court,
and as if The Dexter Horton National Bank had not been dismissed from
said actions.

The present respondent, as intervener, filed a pleading therein
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reciting the history of his relations with the present appellants MODONALD,J.
and taking the ground in respect to the payment of the said 1931
$10,000:

That in accordance with said contract there became due on the 20th day
of July, 1925, the sum of $10,000. That for the purpose of making said courroF
payment, the interveners deposited in the Dexter Horton National Bank  APPEAL
under the escrow agreement hereinbefore mentioned, said sum of $10,000 to —
be paid to the said MeNeill and Connors as directed by said escrow agree- 1932
ment. That at the time said money was so paid to the escrow holder the Mareh 11.
interveners did not know and had no reason to believe that MeNeill and
Connors had breached and violated the terms of said agreement and did not QUICKSTAD
know that the said interveners had been ousted from the possession of the \ICI:JT.EILL
said property foreibly and did not know that said contract had been ter- ~
minated by the said MeNeill and Connors.

July 2.

The prayer of their complaint is:

That said cheques be cancelled and held for naught, that said MeNeill and
Connors recover nothing by their complaint in this action. That the said
money now in the registry of the Court be adjudged to be the money of the
interveners and that judgment be entered herein against the said McNeill
and Connors for the costs and disbursements and that the interveners and
each of them have such other further, general, special or equitable relief
as they may be entitled to in the premises.

Tt will be noted that the present respondent alleges, contrary
to the facts, that the contract was cancelled before the cheques
were 1ssued. MACDONALD,

Both parties, wittingly or not, adopted a position in the oA
Seattle action inconsistent with their present attitude. The
action was tried by a jury in the Seattle Court and a verdict in
favour of the interveners returned “in the sum of $9,974.507
finding that “the money belonged to the interveners.” It is not
recorded in the formal judgment that it was recovered as
damages.

In the present action the claim for damages is in respect fo
an initial payment of $2,000, moneys expended in development,
equipment purchased, ete., and general damages. Could this
claim be litigated in the Seattle action? Experts testified on
behalf of both parties and as their evidence differed we may
inquire independently into the statute and case law of the State
of Washington. IHad the Seattle Court jurisdiction to award
the damages now claimed (a) under the pleadings as framed
(b) or as they might have been framed under the laws of that
State? Damages resulting from one cause of action can be sued
for and recovered only once. Difficulty arises in ascertaining
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the precise cause of action in the Seattle Courts. In Callandar
v. Dittrich (1842), 4 Man. & G. 68 at p. 90 Coltman, J. said:

On the best consideration I have been able to give this case, it appears to
me, that the suit in the Court of Commerce at Koenigsberg, was not
brought for the same cause of action as the action now before this Court.
The proceedings in the foreign Court appear to be either very imperfect in
their nature, or not to be fully before us. The suit in the Prussian Court
seems to be rather for the rescission of the contract; while the present
action is for damages resulting from a breach of that contract. Now it
seems clear that a party may not be entitled to rescind a contract, and yet
may be entitled to an action for the breach of it. Upon this ground, there-
fore, I think the plea is no answer to this action.

This language might be applied to the proceedings in the
Seattle Court. It is difficult to say that it was final and con-

clusive between the parties. And again:

The judgment of a Court of concurrent jurisdiction directly upon the
point is, as a plea, a bar, or as evidence, conclusive upon the same matter
directly in question in another Court.

And,

One of the criteria of the identity of two suits in considering a plea of

res judicate is the inquiry whether the same evidence would support both:

Hunter v. Stewart (1861), 31 L.J., Ch. 346 at 350.
If concerned with a former action in our Courts the law is

that,—

where a given matter becomes the subject of litigation in, and of adjudiea-
tion by, a Court of competent jurisdiction, the Court requires the parties
to that litigation to bring forward their whole case, and will not (except
under special circumstances) permit the same parties to open the same
subject of litigation in respect of matter which might have been brought
forward as part of the subject in contest, but which was not brought for-
ward, only because they have, from negligence, inadvertence, or even acci-
dent, omitted part of their case. The plea of res judicata applies, except in
special cases, not only to points upon which the Court was actually required
by the parties to form an opinion and pronounce a judgment, but to every
point which properly belonged to the subject of litigation, and which the
parties, exercising reasonable diligence, might have brought forward at
the time:

Henderson v. Henderson (1843), 3 Hare 110 at 115. If the
present claim for damages “properly belonged to the subject of
litigation” in the Seattle Court and the intervener by “exercis-
ing reasonable diligence’” might have brought it forward the
defence prevails. Matters once adjudicated cannot again be
reasserted in another Court. The burden of proof, however,

and the learned trial judge so found,—
is on the party setting up the estoppel of alleging and establishing this



XLVI.] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS. 105

identity of subject-matter~—that is to say, that his opponent is seeking to MCDONALD,J.
put in controversy and reagitate some question of law, or issue of faect, —
which is the very same question or issue which has already been finally 1931
decided between the same parties by a tribunal of competent jurisdiction: July 2

Spencer Bower on Res Judicata, 115.

Obviously this defence cannot be raised if by the law of the coum oF
State of Washington it was not possible to include the present
claim; nor if, as contended, the intervener could only partici- 1932
pate in that action on special terms confining him to the claim Mareh11.
of the respective parties to the sum of money paid into Court
by the bank. From the instructions to the jury it would appear
that, the money was recovered on the ground that it was paid on
a contract that was terminated. That was not in accordance
with the facts. If, on the other hand, the interveners contended
—as alleged in the present action—that the $10,000 was paid to
appellants on August 8th whereas the breach occurred on the
11th, it could only be recovered as damages. No claim, in terms,
for damages was made. They asked that “the said money be
adjudged to be the money of the interveners” and “such other
further, general, special or equitable relief as they may be
entitled to.” Both parties adopted positions inconsistent with
the true facts and with their present attitude. That cannot macpoxarn,
enure to the benefit or detriment of either in this action. I

The attorney called for respondent (he acted for him in the
Seattle action) testified that no question of damages was
involved in that action—simply the ownership of the $10,000—
and that the question of damages in any larger amount could not
be involved therein. As appellants’ attorney called as a witness
combated this view I examine the question independently.

The view advanced on one hand was that the present appel-
lants being in the Seattle Court only to prosecute an action could
not be served by civil process at the instance of the present
respondent with a claim for the special and general damages
recovered in the present action.

State v. Superior Court of King County (1920), 189 Pac.
1016 was referred to. It decides that a non-resident party, who
came into the State solely for the purpose of defending a suit
was, while within the State for such purpose, exempt from
service of summons in a new suit.

If the present appellants sued the respondent in Washington

QUICKSTAD

.
McNERLL
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under the option the latter might counterclaim for damages but
because respondent was not a party to the action as originally
framed he could only become identified with it by reason of a
section of a statute of the State of Washington permitting inter-
vention in a pending suit by one who claims an interest in the
subject-matter then in litigation. The material part of that Act

(Remington & Ballinger’s Code, Sec. 202) reads as follows:

Any person may, before the trial, intervene in an action or proceeding,
who has an interest in the matter of litigation, in the success of either
party, or an interest against both. An intervention takes place when a
third person is permitted to become a party to an action or proceeding
between other persons, either by joining the plaintiff in claiming what is
sought by the complaint, or by uniting with the defendant in resisting the
claims of the plaintiff, or by demanding anything adversely to both the
plaintiff and the defendant, and is made by a complaint setting forth the
ground upon which the intervention rests, filed by leave of the Court or
judge on the ex parte motion of the party desiring to intervene.

The only clause wide enough to admit a claim for general

damages is,— P
Or by demanding anything adversely to both the plaintiff and the
defendant.

I think as this section has been construed the respective rights
of the parties were limited to the sum of $10,000 originally
claimed by appellants. This view, as to the limited rights of
the intervener, is supported by the case of State v. Superior
Court (1916), 157 Pac. 28 where in an action by a sub-con-
tractor against the main contractor and a vailway company
another sub-contractor sought to intervene claiming a balance
due from hoth of the other parties eoncerned in the litigation
it was held that the interest which entitled a person to intervene
must be in the matter in litigation and of a direct character.
Main, J., at p. 29, quotes with approval Mr. Justice Field as

follows:

The interest mentioned in the statute, which entitles a person to inter-
vene in a suit between other parties, must be in the matter in litigation,
and of such a diveet and immediate character that the intervener will either
gain or lose by the direct legal operation and effect of the judgment.

It follows that if respondent intervened in an action confined
solely to a demand to enforce payment of two cheques and
claimed that he was entitled to recover not only the proceeds of
the cheques but money spent in development work and gencral
damages for breach of contract he would be told that these
matters were not “in litigation” in the action he sought to
become a party to. Nor can it be said that once he becomes a
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party in this special manner he can assert other claims. His MCPONALD,J.

right to become a party is statutory and he is bound by the
terms of the Act and although the words “demanding anything
adversely to both” appear to be wider than indicated our view
should be governed by the American decisions on the construe-
tion of this section. The same principle is laid down in Hind-
man v. Greal Western Coal Development & Mining Co. (1907),
92 Pac. 139 where Crow, J. says, at p. 140:

To authorize an intervention, therefore, the interest must be that created
by a claim to the demand, or some part thereof, . . . which is the sub-
jeet of litigation.

We must also be guided by the stipulation already referred
to and outlined in part. Both attorneys agree that it is proper
practice to enter into an agreement of this sort. Mr. Gregory,

appellant’s expert, says:

A stipulation is where the parties to an action stipulate certain things into
the record; certain facts; or certain matters agreed upon and that is
permissible under the practice.

He maintains however that under it all the rights of the
parties (including a claim for general damages) might have
been asserted. I think Mr. Gregory’s view is incorrect. The
inquiry is limited to the matters and things in controversy, viz.,
the right to the $10,000 referred to. It is not emlarged by

reason of the words in the last paragraph:

The rights of all of said parties [that is in respect to the matter in
controversy] shall be in all respects settled, determined and adjusted as if
such funds had not been paid into the registry, ete.

He said his view was supported by “the decisions of the
Courts all over our State.” After discussing the law governing
appearances under section 241 of the Washington Code he

asserted that:
The Courts of our State will not entertain jurisdiction of a matter unless
they can completely determine the rights of the parties.

It would follow, if this view is correct, that the matter
involved in the present litigation properly belonged to the sub-
ject-matter in litigation in Seattle. He refers to Woodland v.
First National Bank (1923), 214 Pae. 630. Tt is of no assist-
ance. It deals only with the ordinary case of res judicata. The
same remark applies to Bruce v. Foley (1897), 50 Pac. 935 and
Olson v. Title Trust Co. (1910), 58 Wash. 59; 109 Pac. 49
also referred to. These are the only authorities cited by Mr.
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Gregory on this point if I may rely on a memorandum handed
in by counsel and they are of no assistance on the vital point,
viz., whether or no when one from beyond the jurisdietion sues
in the State of Washington, not the party he now asserts is
estopped, but another (the bank) in respect to a particular
transaction; one becoming a party thereto under an interven-
tion statute may virtnally control the proceedings and assert
claims against the non-resident beyond the terms of the stipula-
tion permitting him to intervene. The statement of Mr.
Gregory in reference to different kinds of appearances, and his
view that after the present appellants submitted themselves to
the jurisdiction of the Court any and all claims arising under
the breach of the option agreement might be pressed is not borne
out by any cases cited.

There is another aspect to consider in respect to the stipula-
tion. It was an agreement between the attorneys for the three
parties originally concerned, later confirmed by the Court. M.
Griffith for respondent, when asked why he did not provide for a
claim for damages beyond the $10,000 referred to, said “I could
not have had the stipulation to intervene if I did that,” and
further:

Why? Because the counsel would not let us intervene.

Why would McNeill and Connors object to that? I don’t know why they
would, but they did, and refused absolutely to make any stipulation or
terms of an intervention unless we would consent that the only thing to be
considered would be the money of the bank.

The learned trial judge found that both Mr. Griffith and Mr
Gregory “gave their evidence in a perfectly satisfactory man-
ner.” The evidence quoted could not of course be controverted
by Mr. Gregory but it was, I assume, possible to call the attor-
neys who acted for appellants and the bank to contradict this
evidence if possible. I think in any event, on all the facts, from
the terms upon which the present respondent was permitted to
intervene, even if it were legally possible in some manner to
extend the scope of the action tried, we have at least those
“special circumstances” referred to in the judgment quoted in
Henderson v. Henderson, supra, to take it out of the general
rule. I go further and say that by the case and statute law of
the State of Washington, it was not possible with a foreign
plaintiff resorting to the Courts of that State to enforce a claim,
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not against respondent but against the bank in which the sub- MCDONALD,J.
jeet in controversy was defined, for respondent to intervene g3
except on the basis of a claim to that particutar fund although July 2.

in asserting it he was permitted to traverse ground, part of it

v . . OURT OF
more fittingly applicable to the present action. The defence of 0.7
res judicata therefore fails without resorting to the law applicc ——
. . . . .. 2
able where a foreign judgment is under review raising further 193
March 11.

difficulties for the appellants.

We have therefore a breach of an existing contract on the Quicksrap
11th of August, 1925. Respondent could sue for specific per- yroners
formance but he accepted rescission and sued for damages. It
was urged that the amount awarded was excessive. I do mnot
think we can reduce it. An initial payment of $2,000 was made.

A large sum was spent on development work, supplies, tools,
packing and travelling expenses, etc., and over $2,000 paid in AMACDONALD,
wages. There was evidence that there were “good showings” — sa.
on the property. The value was enhanced by its proximity to
another property in which respondent was interested. It was

said that money derived from the sale of stock in a company
owning the adjoining property was used in development work.

The trial judge regarded this as immaterial. In any event the
damages awarded may be justified apart from this special item.

The property was sold before under option, first in 1900 for
$150,000 in which $4,000 was paid and forfeited (under it

about $12,000 was expended in development work) and again in

1928 on a bond for $300,000 of which $100,000 was to be paid

in cash and $200,000 in shares. On this bond $5,000 was paid

and forfeited and $6,000 expended in development. With the
evidence of value afforded by these sales, the work done and ore

bodies disclosed, while the damages might be estimated on a
different basis the general result should not be disturbed.

I would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissed, McPhillips, J.A. dissenting.

Solicitors for appellant MeNeill: MWaitland & Maitland.
Solicitors for appellant Connors: McPhillips, Duncan &
MePhillips.

Solicitors for respondent: Tait & Marchant.
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MERRILL RING WILSON LIMITED ET AL. v.
WORKMEN’S COMPENSATION BOARD.

Workmen’s Compensation Act—Assessments made under sub-class 2 of

class 1—Assessments to defray expenses of previous years—~Cost of
medical aid—Administration ewpenses—Legality—R.S.B.C. 1924, Cap.
278, Secs. 28, 32 and 33.

WORKMEN’S The members of sub-class 2, class 1, under the Workmen’s Compensation

COMPENSA-
TION BOARD

Act claiming that a large portion of the accident cost levied for their
class by the Workmen’s Compensation Board for 1931 was disbursed
for accidents occurring in former years, brought action against the
Board, inter alia, for a declaration that under section 32 of the Act a
duty was cast on the Board to levy and collect from the employees in
said sub-class sufficient money to provide for all aceidents occurring in
that year, and that the Board is not entitled to pay out of the moneys
so collected in any year for accidents occurring in previous years, for
a declaration that the Board was not entitled under section 33 of the
Act to proportion the additional amounts required to meet the cost of
medical aid according to the amounts actually collected from the
plaintiffs but according to the pay-rolls of the plaintiffs, and that the
Act does not specifically authorize levies for administration expenses.
The Board, after making four assessments, purported to impose fifth
and sixth assessments, and an interim injunction was granted restrain-
ing the Board from levying the assessments until the trial.

Held, that the Board is required by section 32 to make an estimate of the

money necessary to make full provision for all accidents occurring in
each year in the industry carried on by each c¢lass and to make a levy
or levies upon each such class to obtain the requisite funds, and the
chairman of the Board testified that this is what the Board actually
did, although admitting a deficit in the class in question through error
in judgment in making too low an estimate, owing to the rapid increase
of accidents in this class. The Board did not finally adjust all claims
within the year in which the accident occurred, but section 32 only
requires that the Board shall make an estimate as already set out and
levy in accordance with such estimate against each class, and not that
it must finally adjust all claims. The testimony of the chairman of
the Board is accepted and the contention that the Board acted on a
wrong principle fails.

Held, further, that section 32 of the Act expressly empowers the Board to

levy assessments, inter alia, to provide in connection with section 33 a
special fund to meet the cost of medical aid and further empowers the
Board to rate such assessments upon the pay-roll or in such other
manner as the Board may deem proper. An assessment is none the
less o general assessment when made on the basis used by the Board,
and section 32 being the empowering section, it authorizes the course
so taken.
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Held, further, that the administration costs by necessary implication fall MURPHY,J.
within the meaning of “sufficient funds” which the Board must esti- —
mate for and levy in order to carry out the objects set out in section 32. 1932

April 18.
C‘ONSOLIDATED ACTIONS, the plaintiffs, suing on behalf  yrpp o
of themselves as well as all other members of sub-class 2 of W I;INGL
. . ILSON L.TD.
class 1, created by the Workmen’s Compensation Act, being ».

; ; o o N O < 1 WORKMEN’S
engaged in the.mduatry o.f loggmg We?t of the Cascade jMoun— ConBENBA-
tains, for certain declarations, infer alia, that under section 32 miox Boarp
of the Act there was an imperative duty cast upon the Work-
men’s Compensation Board to levy and collect from the
employers in the said sub-class sufficient money by an assessment
upon the pay-roll to provide for all accidents occurring in that
year; and for a declaration that the defendant was not entitled
to pay out of the moneys so collected in any calendar year com-

pensation for accidents occurring in previous years.

The plaintiffs alleged that a large deficit had accumulated in
the funds of the said sub-class by reason of the failure to levy
sufficient funds to meet the accident cost of each year.

It was further alleged that for a number of years it had been
the practice of the Board to stand over for final award a certain
number of the more serious accident cases and that when a final
award was made in these cases, the cost thereof was levied in
the assessment for the year in which the award was made instead
of having provision made therefor in the year in which the
aceident occurred.

Statement

It was further alleged that the year 1931 was one of extreme
depression in the lumber industry and at the instance of the
members of sub-class 2 of class 1 an investigation was made by
a chartered accountant approved by the Provincial Government
into the affairs of the Board, whose report disclosed that about
70 per cent. of the accident cost levied for 1931 was attributable
to accidents occurring in former years. The Board purported
to impose two extra assessments on sub-class 2 of class 1 for the
year 1931, and the plaintiffs then obtained an inferim injunction
restraining the Board from proceeding with such assessment
until the trial of the action. It was further alleged that the
Board failed tocomply with section 33, subsection (2) of the Act,
in that additional amounts required to meet the cost of medical
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aid were provided by proportioning the additional amounts
required against the moneys actually collected from the plaintiffs
instead of proportioning such additional amounts according to
the pay-rolls of the plaintiffs. Tried by Mureuy, J. at Van-
couver on the 16th of March, 1932,

Mayers, K.C., and O’Brian, K.C., for plaintiffs.

Craig, K.C., J. W. deB. Farris, K.C., and Carmichael, for
defendants.

18th April, 1932.

Mvurrny, J.: Section 74 of the Act gives the Board exclusive
jurisdiction to determine all matters of fact and law arising
under Part I., and provides that the decision of the Board shall
be final and not open to review. No enquiry can be made into
the material upon which the Board comes to a decision upon
anything within the scope of the Act. Peler v. Yorkshire
Estate Co. (1926), 95 L.J., P.C. 91. 1If, therefore, the existing
injunction is to be continued it must be shewn that the Board in
levying the fifth and sixth assessments is acting outside the scope
of the Act. Exhibit 31 sets out the basis upon which these
assessments were made. This exhibit shews that in assessing
to cover cost of 1931 accidents the Board acted according to
what is hereinafter held to be the correct principle. It shews
further that even if these two assessments ave collected there
will still be a deficit and in addition that no provision will
thereby be made for unknown 1931 claims which may be put
forward in the future.

From what is set out above it follows that but two items in
Exhibit 31 can be questioned, medical aid and administration
costs. For plaintiffs it is contended that medical aid assess-
ments are governed exclusively by section 33 and that said sec-
tion requires that medical aid assessments must be assessed over
the whole body of industry—exclusive of that portion operating
under approved medical plans—and that the only way medical
ald can be so assessed is by proportioning the amount to each
industry according to the ratio which the pay-roll of such
industry bears to the total pay-rolls of all industries—again
exclusive of the pay-rolls of industries operating under approved
medical plans. For the defence it is maintained that medical
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aid is as much compensation as are the money payments, that
medical aid assessments go into the Accident Fund which the
Act makes one and indivisible and that the construction con-
tended for by plaintiffs should not be adopted unless the lan-
guage of the Act intractably demands that this be done since it
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directed to be adopted in the case of the money payments and Workmex’s

would be markedly inequitable.

The Board has computed the medical aid amount set out in
Exhibit 31 in the manner described at page 87 of the transeript
by making assessments actually paid and not pay-rolls the basis
of its ealculations. Section 83 is not the only section dealing
with medical aid assessments. Section 32 expressly empowers
the Board to levy assessments, infer alia, to provide in connec-
tion with section 33 a special fund to meet the cost of medical
aid. Section 32 further empowers the Board to rate such assess-
ments upon the pay-roll or in such other manner as the Board
may deem proper. Unless, therefore, the words in section 33
“by assessment upon employers generally,” and the subsequent
provision therein for annual adjustment to result in a general
assessment are to be construed as cutting down the power of the
Board given by section 32 it cannot be held that the Board in
making the charge for medical aid in Exhibit 31 is acting with-
out the scope of the Act. I do not think the language referred
to intractably demands such a construction. An assessment is
none the less a general assessment because it is made on the
basis used by the Board instead of on the basis suggested on
behalf of plaintiffs. Section 32 is the empowering section and
it I think authorizes the course taken by the Board.

As stated the only other item in Exhibit 31 open to considera-
tion by this Court is the charge for administration. It is urged
that nowhere does the Act specifically authorize levies for admin-
istration expenses. But as counsel for defendant pointed out
these administration costs are the costs of levying, collecting,
and disbursing the assessments. I would say that by necessary
implication they fall within the meaning of “sufficient funds”
which the Board must estimate for and levy in order to carry
out the objects set out in section 32. The Board has assessed
these costs on the same principle upon which it has assessed the

3
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medical aid costs. If I am right in holding they have power to
make these assessments then section 32 empowers them to do
what they have done. If these views are correct then the Board
has proceeded within the scope of the Act in levying the fifth
and sixth assessments and the infer¢m injunction obtained must
be dissolved.

In my opinion the Board is required by section 32 to make
an estimate of the amount of money necessary to make full pro-
vision for all accidents occurring in each and every year in the
industry carried on by each class as enumerated in the Act and
then to make a levy or levies upon each such class to obtain the
requisite funds. The chairman Winn testified that this is what
the Board actually did. He admits there is a deficit in sub-
class 2 of class 1 but explains that this was occasioned by an
error in judgment in making too low an estimate owing to the
very rapid increase of aceidents in this sub-class. He is the
member of the Board who dealt with this feature of the Board’s
duties. He has been making these estimates for some 16 years
and he must know on what principle he proceeded in reference
thereto.

It is urged that his testimony should be rejected. If so it
must be because the Court is forced to disbelieve him. There
can be no question of mistake on his part in giving this testi-
mony. To put the matter bluntly the Court if it rejects his
evidence must do so on the ground that he is deliberately trying
to mislead it.

The reasons urged are first certain statements contained in
the annual reports transmitted by the Board to the Legislature
in accordance with provisions in the Act. As to this it is to be
observed that some of these reports do set out that the Board
acted on what I hold to be the correct principle. DBut the real
answer I think is that the Board in that portion of the reports
relied upon is not dealing with the principle it acted upon at all.
Tt is concerned with a very different matter. It is trying to
make clear that that portion of the accident fund which 1is
invested In securities amounting to some millions of dollars is
not a surplus but represents money which with the interest
thereon will be needed as to every dollar thereof to carry out
the duties imposed upon it by the Act. In consequence that
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precision of language which would have been used were the
Board concerned in stating the principle it acted upon was not
always observed since that was not the subject under discussion.

Then it is urged that Gilmour in his discovery and particu-
larly in his letter to the Attorney-General, Exhibit 34, admits
that the Board has not been acting upon the correct principle as
above set out. Gilmour, however, was not the member of the
Board who attended to this matter. Winn was the man who
did so. Doubtless Gilmour as a member concurred in the mak-
ing of the levies but he may have done so as seems indeed to
have been the case, without knowing on what exact principle
they were imposed. The same reasoning applies with much
greater force to letters written by employees of the Board which
are also relied upon as reasons for rejecting Winn’s evidence.

I accept Winn’s testimony and it follows that the contention
that the Board acted on a wrong principle fails.

Admittedly the Board did not finally adjust all elaims within
the year in which the accident occurred, nor did it do so before
March 1st of the ensuing year. But in my view of section 32
what is thereby required is that the Board shall make an esti-
mate as already set out and levy in accordance with such estimate
against each class not that it must finally adjust all elaims. Tt
must also endeavour to collect the levies so made and this the
Board has done and over a course of years has done quite success-
fully. But it is said this is to ignore section 43.

I had prepared a draft judgment dealing with this contention
and with the other prayers for a declaratory judgment contained

in the statement of claim but the amendments to the Act which’

became law at the session of the Legislature just closed have
rendered 1t unnecessary to revise and hand it down, since no
attempt to collect the existing deficit is in question in these pro-
ceedings and the amendments settle that and the other features
discussed for the future.

The ntervm injunction is dissolved and the actions dismissed.

Aetions dismissed.
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LITERARY RECREATIONS LIMITED v. SAUVE
AND MURRAY.

Post office—Order refusing use of mails—Cross-word competition—Game of
chance—Tort by Government officials—Sued individually—R.8.C. 1927,
Cap. 161, Sec. 7—Postal regulation 219.

The plaintiff carried on cross-word puzzle competitions necessitating con-
siderable mail matter passing through the mails. The Postmaster
General, concluding there was an element of chance in obtaining cor-
rect answers to the puzzles and that the contest might be considered
as tending to deceive or defraud the public, declared it not to be
“mailable matter” within the Post Office Act and regulations and
issued a prohibitory order refusing the use of the mails to the plaintiff,
and thereafter all mail matter sent to the plaintiff through the mails
was returned to the senders. An action against the Postmaster Gen-
eral and the Distriet Superintendent of Postal Service in their indi-
vidual capacities for damages for wrongful interference with the
plaintiff’s business and for an injunction was dismissed.

Held, on appeal, affirming the decision of MORRISON, C.J.S.C. that clause
(d) of section 7 of the Post Office Act declares what shall not be
“mailable matter” and regulation 219 gives the Postmaster General
discretion, if the offence be established to his satisfaction, to declare
what shall be “mailable matter.” Acting on that discretion the Post-
master General declared the matter in question not to be “mailable
matter.”” The Postmaster General having authority to prohibit the
use of the mails to the plaintiff, being a matter in his entire discretion,
it is not open to review by a Court. Even if it were open to review
this discretion was properly exercised, as the “contest” as shewn by
the evidence is open to many apparent solutions and therefore a game
partly of chance.

APP EAL by plaintiff from the decision of Mozrisox, C.J.S.C.
in an action tried by him at Vancouver on the 23rd of February,
1932, against the Postmaster-General and the Distriet Superin-
tendent of Postal Service in their individual capacity for dam-
ages for wrongful interference with the plaintiff’s business, for
an injunction preventing the defendants from interfering with
mail matter either addressed to or sent by the plaintiff, and for
a declaration that the plaintiff’s use of the mails is lawful. The
plaintiff is an incorporated company doing business in Vancou-
ver and carries on what is popularly known as “cross-word
puzzle” competitions, and in connection with it a large amount
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of mail matter passes to and fro through the mails. The Post-
master General decided there was an element of chance in cross-
word puzzles, that the correspondence carried on between the
plaintiff and the public was not “mail matter” within the Post
Office Act and the regulations, and the plaintiff was advised by
letter to discontinue the use of the mails with respect thereto.
Some correspondence between the parties ensued, but the
plaintiff continued to use the mails in his operations, which
resulted in a prohibitory order being issued refusing the
plaintiff the use of the mails and the mail sent to the plaintiff
was returned to the senders marked “Mail for this address
prohibited.”

Mayers, K.C., and E. I. Bird, for plaintiff.
O’ Brian, K.C., for defendants.

4th March, 1932.

Morrison, C.J.8.C.: Making due allowance for the paucity
of the English language and not ignoring gossamery refinements
of construction, I find the provisions of the Post Office Act and
the particular regulation applicable to the point in issue herein
rather easy to understand. I have not a copy of the Act in
French at hand. That which the plaintiff complains of as hav-
ing suffered at the hands of the Postmaster General was done
in the course of his duties as such. They were done as the cases
put it qua Postmaster General-—a high Minister of State. He
is empowered and indeed bound in behalf of the public to exer-
cise his sound discretion in the matter. That, in my opinion,
he has done. Were it not for the closely reasoned submission of
Mr. Mayers and the time taken to peruse the numerous authori-
ties cited by himself and Mr. O’Brian, I would have sooner
handed down by decision. It would not serve any useful pur-
pose if I elaborated my bare opinion just stated which is sup-
ported by an unbroken line of authority.

The action stands dismissed.

From this decision the plaintiff appealed. The appeal was
argued at Vancouver on the 1st and 4th of April, 1932, before
Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C., Marrry, McPuirries and Macpoxarnn,

JJ.A.
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Mayers, K.C. (E. 1. Bird, with him), for appellant: This
appeal requires consideration of the Post Office Act and the
regulations, and there are two questions, first whether the Post-
master General had the right to prohibit our use of the post
office and second, whether a subject can sue two Crown officers
in an action for tort. The plaintiff conduets cross-word puzzle
competitions and the postmaster took the view that they are
games of chance or illegal lotteries. We submit that regulation
219 is in excess of the statute: see McGee v. Pooley (1931), 44
B.C. 338 at p. 349; Munister of Health v. Regem (19315, 100
L.J., K.B. 306 at p. 310. Crown servants cannot shelter them-
selves under the plea that it is an act of State: see Musgrave v.
Pulido (1879), 49 L.J., P.C. 20; The Devontan (1901), 70
L.J., P. 66 atp. 71; Johnstone v. Pedlar (1921), 90 1..J., P.C.
181 at p. 185; Baker v. Ranney (1866), 12 Gr. 228 at p. 234
As to the Attorney-General being a party see China Mulual
Steam Navigation Co. v. Maclay (1917), 87 L.J., K.B. 95 at
p. 101; Mackenzie-Kennedy v. Air Council (1927), 96 L.J.,
K.B. 1145 at p. 1153; Rattenbury v. Land Settlement Board
(1929), S.C.R. 52 at pp. 63-4. Respondents say we have
suffered no wrong because we had no right: see Rogers v.
Rajendro Dutt (1860), 13 Moore, P.C. 209 at p. 241.

O’Brian, K.C., for respondents: Regulation 219 is author-
ized by section 7 (d) of the Post Office Act and has the same
force as a statute: see Institute of Palent Agents v. Lockwood
(1894), A.C. 347 at p. 354.  An action will not lie for a tort by
an officer of the Crown: see Robertson’s Civil Procedure by and
against the Crown, pp. 638 and 640; Gilleghan v. Minister of
Health (1932), 1 Ch. 86 at p. 92; Raleigh v. Goschen (1898),
1 Ch. 73 at p. 80; South African Republic v. La Compagniec
Franco-Belge du Chemin de Fer du Nord, 1b. 190 at pp. 192
and 194; Wheeler v. Commissioners of Public Works (1903),
2 I.R. 202 at p. 214; Bambridge v. The Postmaster-General
(1906), 1 I.B. 178 at pp. 190-1; Gidley v. Lord Palmerston
(1822), 3 Br. & B. 275 at p. 291 Sullivan v. Barl Spencer
(1872), 6 Ir. R. C.L. 1735 Luby v. Wodehouse (1865), 17 Ir.
C.L.R. 618; The Queen v. Secretary of Slate for War (1891),
2 Q.B. 326 at p. 338; Dyson v. Atlorney-General (1911), 1
K.B. 410. The Crown canuot be impleaded without its con-
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sent: see Hosier Brothers v. Derby (Earl) (1918), 2 K.B. 671
at p. 673; Roper v. Public Works Commissioners (1915), 1
K.B. 45 at p. 50; Im re Fenton (1931), 1 Ch. 85 at p. 92;
Vanderpant v. Mayfair Hotel Co. (1930), 1 Ch. 138 at p. 158;
Wigg v. Attorney-General for the Irish Free State (1927), A.C.
674; Markwald v. Attorney-General (1920), 1 Ch. 348 ; Smath
v. Attorney-General for Ontarto (1922), 52 O.L.R. 469 at pp.
473-4; (1924), S.C.R. 331 at p. 338; Mackenzie-Kennedy v.
Avr Council (1927), 2 K.B. 517.

Mayers, in reply, referred to Halsbury’s Laws of England,

Vol. 23, p. 327, sec. 673.
Cur. adv. vult.

7th June, 1932.

Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C.: This is an action against the Post-
master General and the District Superintendent of Postal
Service for a tort alleged to have been committed against the
plaintiff. The plaintiff is an incorporated company doing busi-
ness in British Columbia at the City of Vancouver and was at
the time of the commission of the alleged tort using the Cana-
dian Post Office for the purposes of advertising a competition
or contest known as a “cross-word puzzle” and the communica-
tions to their clients were circular letters setting out the terms
of the contest, the amount to be paid for the privilege of com-
peting, and the prizes that might be won.

The plaintiff denies the defendant Sauve’s authority as Post-
master General to so prohibit the use of the mail, and it there-
fore becomes necessary to inquire what his powers are under the
Post Office Act. The only section to which we were referred,
and T presume the only one relevant to this appeal, is section 7
of the Post Office Act, R.S.C. 1927, Cap. 161, from which I
shall make excerpts dealing with the question of the Postmaster
General’s powers.

7. The Postmaster General may, subject to the provisions of this Aect,

(a) establish and elose post offices and post routes;

{d) make regulations declaring what shall and what shall not be deemed
to be mailable matter for the purposes of this Act, and for restricting
within reasonable limits the sending of [certain substances and communica-
tions] . . .; and for marking on the covering of letters, . . . offer-

ing prizes, or concerning schemes devised or intended to deceive or defraud
the publie, for the purpose of obtaining money under false pretences. . .
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a warning that they are suspected to be of a fraudulent character and for
returning [them] to the senders.

(w) make such regulations as he deems necessary for the due and effec-
tive working of the post office and postal business and arrangements, and
for carrying this Act fully into effect. )

Subsection 2 of section 7 provides that:

Every such regulation shall have force and effect as if it formed part of
the provisions of this Act.

We have, also, a regulation, 219, which is part of the Act:
Per Lord Russell in Chartered Institute of Patent Agents v.
Lockwood (1894), 63 L.J., P.C. 74 at p. 85.

Now the Postmaster General has power to make regulations
declaring what shall and what shall not be deemed to be “mail-
able matter” for the purpose of the Act and by said regulation

No. 219, it is declared that:

If it be established to the satisfaction of the Postmaster General that
any persons are using, or endeavouring to use the post office for any fraud-
ulent or illegal purpose, then in any such case it is hereby declared that no
letter, packet, parcel, newspaper, book, or other thing sent or sought to be
sent through the post office, by or on behalf of or to or on behalf of such
person shall be deemed “mailable matter.”

The Postmaster General and the plaintiff carried on an
extensive correspondence relating to the offence of which the
defendant was accused, and the position was fully ventilated
and discussed, and the plaintiff was warned that unless it dis-
continued its alleged wrongful acts the privileges of the post
office. would be withdrawn from it. The plaintiff, however,
stuck to its guns which resulted in a prohibitory order refusing
the use of the mails, see statement of claim, paragraph 12, where
it is alleged that mail sent to the plaintiff was returned to the
senders marked “mail for this address prohibited.” Now it
will be noticed that clause (d) declares what shall not be “mail-
able matter,” and that the Postmaster General is authorized to
declare that, and that regulation 219 (to be deemed part of the
Act) gives the Postmaster General discretion, if the offence be
established, to his satisfaction to declare what shall not be “mail-
able matter.” Acting on that diseretion the Postmaster
General declared, the matter in question in this action, not
mailable matter. TIf, therefore, the Postmaster General had
authority to prohibit the use of the mails to the plaintiff that
was a matter in his entire discretion and is not open to review
by a Court. If, however, it were open to review, I think I
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should have to come to the conclusion that his descretion was MORRISON,
properly exercised, since the said “contest” as shewn by the  —
evidence is open to a great many apparent solutions, and there- 1932
fore a game partly of chance. This is stated by the plaintiff’s March4.
principal witness Pirie who said that contest No.7 was capableof . =
some 7,680 apparently correct solutions. IHe says: “Yes, always, APPEAL
bearing in mind the words ‘appeared to be’ yes” and that contest
No. 13 appeared to be open to 49,152 apparently corvect solu-
tions. This is said to be verified in Exhibit 16—the last item in Iﬁf}gﬁgt‘f
the exhibit. But I have already said I donot think it necessary to Trons Lrp.
consider whether the Postmaster General was right or wrong in g, %er
coming to the conclusion that the matter in question was not

“mailable matter.” Clause (d) of section 7 is a long clause

dealing with many different kinds of matters, which might be

sent through the mails, but I think the excerpts which I have

selected above may be regarded as a fair synopsis of that clause,

and I think that a fair inference may be drawn from that clause

and regulation No. 219 that the Postmaster General was author-

ized in his discretion to exclude from the mail whatever he

thought was not mailable matter. "

Having come to this conclusion it becomes unnecessary to macpoxarp,
decide several other submissions made at our Bar because if the 7%
Postmaster General was right then no tort has been committed
and the question of whether the plaintiff could sue the defend-
ants individually or not for tort is immaterial. That subject is
dealt with and authorities cited in Robertson’s (livil Proceedings
by and against the Crown, at pp. 639 and 350 et seq.

In my opinion unless the Postmaster General was authorized
by said section 7, he would be liable personally for the tort, if
it were one, which without such authority I think it would be.

Another question was as to whether in any ecase the Post-
master General owed a duty to the plaintiff or persons in their
position. It was argued at considerable length that he owed no
such duty and therefore could not be sued for tort for breach of
duty. I am inclined to think that this submission is not well
founded. The Post Office Act was enacted by the Dominion
Parliament for the benefit of the public. It is true that it was
not bound to pass a post office Act, but having done so those who
use the post office, I think, have the right to expect that it will

June 7.
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with the rights of those who use it. The principle I think is the
same as that which governs companies such as railway com-
panies who while not bound to furnish all conveniences for their
passengers yet if they do furnish one they are bound to use it in
such a way as not to injure their passengers. The post office is
in reality a public utility erected for the convenience of the
public at their expense, thereby giving those who use it the right
to demand immunity from torts such as the one which was
alleged to have been committed here.
I would dismiss the appeal.

Marrin, J.A.: Having regard to the history of the estab-
lishment of the General Post Office, particularly by Cap. 35 of
12 Car. IT. (1660) “sometimes called the Post Office Charter”
(¢f. Encyclopedia of the Laws of England, Vol. 10, p. 251;
and 173 L.T. Jo. 306, April 23rd, 1932) and the general recitals
and provisions as get forth in its preamble and sections 1, 20,
10-11, 15 and 16, and the extension thereof by 9 Anne, e. 10
(1710)
throughout . . . [the] Colonies and Plantations in North America, and

the West Indies, and all other her Majesty’s Dominions and Territories, in
such manner as may be most beneficial to the People of these Kingdoms, . . .

and to our National Post Office Aet, R.S.C. 1927, Cap. 161, it
is now long too late to deny the right of all members of the
public in Canada to make use of the public postal service in
accordance with said Post Office Act. Nor is there sound sup-
port for the submission that in the discharge of their statutory
duties the Postmaster General and other lesser executive officers
acting under him can escape the usual personal consequences for
acts done in excess of the powers conferred by Parliament, and
if those powers are exceeded they will be in no better position
than were former representatives of the Crown in what is now
(Canada and must likewise protect themselves by an Aet of
indemnity, if they can fortunately secure one, as was done, e.g.,
in 1838 in the case of Lord Durham, the Governor of Lower
Canada, by the Indemnity Aet of that vear, 1 Viet.,, Cap. 9,
respecting his illegal action in sending Canadian prisoners from
the Papineau rebellion to the Bermudas (Houston’s Constitu-
tional Documents of Canada, 1891, pp. 140, 148), and in the
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case of James Douglas, the Governor of Vancouver Island, for
illegal acts done outside his jurisdiction on the Mainland, by
the Indemnity Proclamation of 19th November, 1858; a recent
illustration of the same kind in England is the Restoration of
Order in Ireland (Indemnity Aet, 1923, Cap. 12), arising out
of illegal deportations to Ireland.

This subject has been lately considered by this Court in
McGee v. Pooley (1931), 44 B.C. 338, and I shall only add
*the cases of China Navigation Co. v. Attorney-General (1932),
2 K.B. 197 at 211, per Scrutton, L.J., and Boyd & Company v.
Smath (1894), 4 Ex. C.R. 116, wherein that very sound judge,
Mzr. Justice Burbidge, well summarizes the law on the point at
p. 127, thus:

For acting without authority of law, or in excess of the authority con-
ferred upon him, or in breach of the duty imposed upon him, by law, a
public officer is personally responsible to any person who sustains damage
thereby. The officer may also, it seems, be liable though there be no excess
of authority or breach of duty if in the exercise of his powers he is guilty
of harsh and oppressive conduct.

Turning then to the section of the said Post Office Act imme-
diately in question, 7, and to regulation 219, I can only reach
the conclusion, after a very careful consideration of them, that
apart from all other specified powers there is bestowed upon the

Postmaster General under (d) the primary and general one to
make regulations declaring what shall and what shall not be deemed to be
mailable matter for the purposes of this Act.

This express power of further defining (by regulations hav-
ing the same force as if part of the Act Sec. 7 (2)) the inclu-
sions of “mailable matter” under section 2 (A) is, in my opinion,
independent of those further powers which follow it in the same
subsection, beginning with fixing the weights and dimensions
of letters and packets, and prohibition of explosives, ete., and
ending with the marking of a warning “on the covering of let-
ters, circulars or other mailable matter suspected to concern
illegal lotteries, ete. . . . or concerning schemes devised or
intended to deceive or defraud the publie . 7

This last power of warning is not a limitation upon the right
to define the mailable matter which alone can be “sent by post”
(section 2 (h)) but confers the additional right of marking a

* Nore. Cf. also the decision on 21st June, 1932, of the Privy Council in
James v. Cowan, 48 T.L.R. 564.—AM.
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warning upon “matter” even though it is “mailable” ordinarily
and also, if deemed advisable, for returning such matter to the
senders instead of impounding or destroying it, as could be done
in the case of certain prohibited matter at least.

By regulation 219 it is provided that

If it be established to the satisfaction of the Postmaster General that
any persons are using, or endeavouring to use the Post Office for any
fraudulent or illegal purpose, then, in any such case, it is hereby declared
that no letter, packet, parcel, newspaper, book, or other thing sent or
sought to be sent through the Post Office by or on behalf of or to or on
behalf of such person shall be deemed mailable matter.

In the present case the Postmaster General after an extended
inquiry and correspondence with the appellants satisfied himself
that the post office was being used for a “fraudulent or illegal
purpose’” in the “$500 Prize Puzzle Contest” and “$700 Cross-
word Competition” that they were carrying on through the mail,
and prohibited that illegal use, and therefore this Court has no
jurisdiction to interfere with an adjudication so made within
the ambit of the statute.

This view of the case disposes of it in the main and therefore
it becomes unnecessary to consider its other aspects, and so the
appeal should be dismissed.

McPurmries, J.A.: This appeal is one from the judgment of
the learned Chief Justice of the Supreme Court who dismissed
the action. The action was brought against the defendants in
their individual capacity not against the Postmaster General
(The Honourable Arthur Sauve) and the District Superin-
tendent of Postal Service (J. F. Murray). The relief asked
was general and special damages for wrongful interference with
the business of the appellant—an injunction preventing the
interference with mail matter either addressed to or sent by
the appellant and a declaration that the use of the mail by the
appellant is lawful. The appellant was carrying on what is
popularly known as cross-word puzzles and in connection there-
with a great amount of claimed legal mail matter was passing
to and fro in mails and the Postmaster General in due course
and in the exercise of claimed statutory authority refused the
privileges of the post office to the appellant in that the tendered
mail matter was not in law mailable matter and was in contra-
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vention of the Post Office Act (R.S.C. 1927, Cap. 161 and
regulation 219 made in pursuance of section 7 (d),(e), (x),
(2) of the Post Office Act. Regulation 219 is in the following
terms:

219. If it be established to the satisfaction of the Postmaster General
that any person is engaged or represents himself as engaged in the business
of publishing any obscene or immoral books, pamphlets, pictures, prints,
engravings, lithographs, photographs or other publications, matter or thing
of an indecent, immoral, seditious, disloyal, scurrilous or libellous char-
acter, or in the business of an illegal lottery, so called gift concerts, or
other similar enterprise offering prizes or concerning schemes devised or
intended to deceive or defraud the public for the purpose of obtaining
money under false pretences, or in the business of selling or in any wise
disposing of eounterfeit money or what is commonly called “Green Goods,”
or of drugs, medicines, instruments, books, papers, pamphlets, receipts, pre-
scriptions, or other things with the object or with the pretended object of
preventing coneeption or procuring abortion, and if such person shall, in
the opinion of the Postmaster General, endeavour to use the post office for
the promotion of such business, or if it be established to the satisfaction
of the Postmaster General that any persons are using, or endeavouring to
use the post office for any fraudulent or illegal purpose, then, in any such
case, it is hereby declared that no letter, packet, parcel, newspaper, book,
or other thing sent or sought to be sent through the post office by or on
behalf of or to or on behalf of such person shall be deemed mailable matter.

Section 7 and subsections (d), (¢), (x), (2) read as follows:

7. The Postmaster General may, subject to the provisions of this Act,

(d) make regulations declaring what shall and what shall not be
deemed to be mailable matter for the purposes of this Aet, and for restriet-
ing within reasonable limits the weight and dimensions of letters and
packets and other articles sent by post, and for prohibiting and preventing
the sending of explosive, dangerous, contraband or improper articles,
obscene or immoral publications, prints or photographs, or obscene or
immoral post-cards, or letters or post-cards having printed, stamped, or
written on the outside thereof any words or devices which, in the opinion
of the Postmaster General, tend to injuriously affect the commercial or
social standing of the persons to whom they are addressed; and for mark-
ing on the covering of letters, circulars or other mailable matter suspeeted
to concern illegal lotteries, so-called gift concerts, or other illegal enter-
prises of like character, offering prizes, or concerning schemes devised or
intended to deceive or defraud the publie, for the purpose of obtaining
money under false pretences, whether sueh letters, circulars or other mail-
able matter are addressed to or received by mail from places within or
without Canada, a warning that they are suspected to be of a fraudulent
character and for returning such letters, circulars or other mailable matter
to the senders;

(e) establish the rates of postage on all mailable matter, not being
letters, newspapers or other things hereinafter specially provided for, and
prescribe the terms and conditions on which all mailable matter other than
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letters shall, in each case or class of cases, be permitted to pass by post,
and authorize the opening thereof, for the purpose of ascertaining whether
such conditions have been complied with;

(¢) make such regulations as he deems necessary for the due and effec-
tive working of the post office and postal business and arrangements, and
for carrying this Act fully into effeet.

2. Every such regulation shall have force and effect as if it formed part
of the provisions of this Aect.

Now it would appear that the Postmaster General acting
within his powers given to him by statute and regulation 219,
which has the force of statute law—see section 7 (2) as above
set forth-—determined that the mail matter the appellant is
insisting upon sending and receiving through His Majesty’s
mails is not mailable matter for the purposes of the Post Office
Act and in contravention of regulation 219; that is to say, the
Postmaster General held that it had been established to his
satisfaction and within the purview of the Post Office Act and
regulation 219, that the appellant was endeavouring to use the
post office and send and receive letters, ete., which to his—the
Postmaster General’s—satisfaction was not mailable matter and
which in fact was declared by him not to be mailable matter.
It is clear that the Postmaster General by virtue of the Post
Office Act and regulation 219 which has the same force and
effect as the other portions of the Act has an absolute discretion
and sovereign right to determine what is and what is not mail-
able matter. This being so how idle it is for the appellant to
bring an action against the respondents when all that has been
done is in plain pursuance of the authority conferred upon the
Postmaster General by statute and regulation having the force
of statute law, in fact, that which the Legislature has authorized
the Postmaster General to do (Hawley v. Steele (1877), 46
L.J., Ch. 782, Jessel M.R., at p. 784).

The Legislature having clothed the Postmaster General with
these extreme powers—but I have no doubt proper powers con-
sidering the question of peace order and good government—it is
not within the provinee of a Court of Justice to say what is the
reasonable use of the conferred powers granted by statute. That
is to say the diseretion given by statute to the Postmaster

General is an unfettered diseretion to determine what shall and
what shall not be deemed to be mailable matter. How is it
possible for the Court to say that the Postmaster General has
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exercised a wrong discretion here? The language of the Legis- MOBBISON,

. o - . . ) c.J.8.C.
lature 1s “ . . . 1if it be established to the satisfaction of —_——
the Postmaster General . . . mno letter . . . or other 1932
thing sent or sought to be sent through the post office . . . March4

shall be deemed mailable matter.” (Regulation 219). That the .
Postmaster General having pursued the statutory authority apeEav
vested in him and having arrived at the conclusion that the

June 7.
appellant was using or endeavouring to use the post office for a ——
fraudulent or illegal purpose—declared against the attempted IQTERARY

ECREA-

user—something he was authorized to do and having exercised wioxs Lrp.
the power it is not for the Court to say that he has come to a g, ovg
wrong conclusion—he has acted and made his declaration all
within the conferred powers granted to him by the Legislature.
I cannot see that there is any right in the Court to invade the
authority of the Postmaster General so elearly and pronouncedly
granted by the statute law. Now the respondents are being sued
in their individual capacity as and for an actionable wrong
which is permissible as I view it. Raleigh v. Goschen (1897),
67 I.J., Ch. 59 was a case where Romer, J. so held even
although such acts being actionable wrongs were done by the
authority of the Government. But the present case presents no MOPHILLIES,
features of that character. No actionable wrong could be said o
to have been threatened here or took place—the respondents in
all that they did were acting in accordance with the provisions
of the Post Office Act and regulation 219, which must be read
as the statute reads “as if it formed part of the provisions of
this Act” (R.S.C. 1927, Cap. 161, Sec. 7 (2)).
In Bainbridge v. Postmaster General (1903), 75 L.J., K.B.
366, Collins, M.R., at p. 372, said, speaking of individual lia-
bility, “so is the Postmaster for any fault of his own.” But
again neither of the respondents has been shewn to have been
guilty of any actionable wrong in the present case—all that has
been done is clearly referable to statutory authority and steps
taken in pursuance thereof and not otherwise. It is interesting
to note the language of Jessel, M.IR., in Hawley v. Steele, supra,
as reported in 6 Ch. D. 521, at p. 530, and apply the language
on the principle that it enunciated to the actions of the respond-

ents in the present case, notably under regulation 219:
It appears to me, therefore, that here you have a legislative recognition



128

MORRISON,
C.J.8.C.

1932
March 4.

COURT OF
APPEAL

June 7.

LITERARY
RECREA-
TIONS LD,
v.
SAUVE

MCPHILLIPS,
J.AL

BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS. [VorL.

of the rightfulness of the discretion exercised by the War Department, in
preferring this land for the purpose; and without intending, as I said
before, finally to decide the question, it seems to me it would be a very
strange exercise of authority for me to hold that such a user of the land
so authorized by the Legislature is a common nuisance which ought to be
restrained by injunction.

In the present case by virtue of the Post Office Act the Post-
master General has an absolute power authorized in no uncer-
tain language to make regulations declaring “what shall and
what shall not be deemed mailable matter” (R.S.C. 1927, Cap.
161, Sec. 7 (d)) and regulation 219 which forms part of the
provisions of the Post Office Act specifically covers and supports
all the actions of the respondents complained of at this Bar and
in the Court below.

I do not propose to deal any further with the question as to
whether the present action is properly constituted and as to
whether the respondents were capable of being sued in their
individual capacities save to refer to the judgment of New-
combe, J. in Ratlenbury v. Land Setilement Board (1929),
S.C.R. 52 at pp. 56-64. At p. 56 “The judgment of Mignault,
Newcombe and Rinfret, JJ. was delivered by Newcombe, J.,”
and at p. 64 we have this language:

It is not necessary for me to consider the position of the individual
members of the Board, because I hold that, as such, they are not before the
Court; but, upon the authorities, it seems to be established that the doer
of a wrongful act cannot escape liability by setting up the authority of the
Crown, unless in proceedings by a foreigner against a British subject, in
which case an exception is introduced, as appears by Feather v. The Queen
(1865), 6 B. & 8. 257, at pp. 279, 295, 296, in which Baron Parke’s charge
in Buron v. Denman (1848), 2 Ex. 167, was explained. It seems to be only
in such a case that it is of any use to justify upon the authority of an act
of State:

Walker v. Baird (1892), A.C. 491.

In the present case the respondents are entitled to justify
under the Post Office Act and regulation 219 and there is in my
opinion clear and unmistakable authority written into the
statute law for all the acts alleged against the respondents being
acts supported by statute law and there is no action known to
the law which can be postulated or founded upon conduct in
conformity with and authorized by statute and that is the
present case.

The learned Chief Justice, in my opinion, in the Court below
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arrived at a proper conclusion in dismissing the action. There- MORBISON,

fore, it follows that my opinion is that this appeal should be  ——

dismissed. 1932
March 4.
Macpoxary, J.A.: Appellant company promoted cross-word
COURT OF

puzzle contests and offered the public for a consideration prizes ~\ppear
for correct solutions. It sent through the post office mail matter
advertising the competition with the rules governing the contest.
Solutions, correct or otherwise, were returned to appellant Literary
through the same agency. The respondents are respectively His JECRES
iroug ¢ same agency. Lhe resp pectively T10N8 LD,
Majesty’s Postmaster General for Canada and the Distriet o
o . : . . . . AUVE
Superintendent of Postal Service in British Columbia.
Respondent Murray, acting on instructions from the Postmaster
General, wrote appellant on December 15th, 1931, as follows:
The Postmaster General has decided that as there is distinctly an element
of chance in obtaining the correct answers selected by the promoters of the
puzzles the contest may be considered as tending to deceive or defraud the
public and that in the ecircumstances the use of the mails cannot be
sanctioned.

I am, therefore, requested by the Secretary of the Post Office Department
at Ottawa to inform you to this effect and to call upon you to furnish an
assurance that you will discontinue your activities in connection with these
puzzle contests in so far as the mails are concerned and I am also instructed
to say that in the event of your failure to comply the usual prohibitory
order will be issued denying you mailing privileges in Canada.

This ruling or order was later issued and implemented.

Appellant during the course of the correspondence between
the parties, was prosecuted in the police Court at Vancouver for
“unlawfully advertising an offer to the public to foretell the
result of a contest.” The charge was dismissed on the ground
that the problem involved skill and by diligence a correct solu-
tion was possible. 1 refer to this only to say that it has not, as
submitted, any bearing on the point in issue. Authority may be
given by statute to prohibit the use of the mails in connection
with a business held by the Courts to be legal. It is solely a
question of statutory authority.

Appellant brought this action for damages for wrongful inter-
ference with the operation of its business, for an injunetion, and
a declaration that 1ts use of postal facilities was lawful. It was
conceded that the acts of the respondents amounted to a pro-
hibition of the use of the mails.

Respondents’ counsel submitted that appellant had no right

9

June 7.

MACDONALD,
J.A.
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of action based on tort on the ground that while the post office
affords public facilities appellant was not affected in the exer-
cise of a legal right; in other words that the use of the post
office is a concession or privilege and may be withdrawn. Rogers
v. Bajendro Dutt (1860), 13 Moore, P.C. 209 particularly at
p- 241 does not support this view. It merely decides that a
lawful exercise of a right is not actionable although detrimental
to the party complaining. If the right to use a commercial
agency maintained by the public for many years is denied to a
citizen a legal right is invaded. Further a mere threat to inter-
fere with this right is actionable. As stated by Lord Davey in
Nireaha Tamaki v. Baker (1901), 70 L.J., P.C. 66 at p. 72:

Their Lordships hold that an aggrieved person may sue an officer of the
Crown to restrain a threatened act purporting to be done in supposed
pursuance of an Act of Parliament, but really outside the statutory
authority.

He refers, at p. 71, to a fallacy submitted on behalf of the
respondents in this appeal, viz., “to treat the respondent as if he
were the Crown or acting under the authority of the Crown.”
Respondents act under the authority of a statute.

Counsel also urged that respondents are agents of the Crown
and responsible only to His Majesty and to Parliament; that
the Attorney-General of Canada should be a party defendant;
that the matter complained of was the performance of an Act
of State and the remedy, if any, by petition of right. The case
last referred to disposes of these contentions.

The point turns solely on the construction of the Post Office
Act and the regulations. Unless the act complained of, viz.,
prohibition of the use of the mails can be justified by the statute
(R.S.C. 1927, Cap. 161) respondents are liable in damages as
two individuals who stepped outside the ambit of their official
duties to commit a tort, one for ordering the commission of the
act, the other for implementing it. The interests of the Crown
are not affected ; nor the publie revenues placed in jeopardy and
1t 1s not necessary that the Attorney-General should be a party.
We are not concerned with a high officer of State from or
through whom appellant seeks to recover moneys under public
control. It follows that the procedure is not by Petition of
Right.

Nor is it a defence to say that whether acting within or
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beyond the scope of the Act, if the Postmaster General, in fact M?ﬁ?""“’
purported to act as such, he is not subject to an action in the
Courts. In Musgrave v. Pulido (1879), 49 L.J., P.C. 20, it ~ 1932
was held that the authority of the Governor of a Colony was March4.
derived only from his commission and limited to the powers  jupror
expressly or impliedly entrusted to him. At p. 24, Sir Montague  APPEAL
E. Smith said: une

Let it be granted that for acts of power done by a Governor under and
within the limits of his commission, he is protected, because in doing them TLiterary
he is the servant of the Crown, and is exercising its sovereign authority; RECREA-
the like protection cannot be extended to acts which are wholly beyond the TIONS LTD.
authority confided to him. Such acts, though the Governor may assume v
to do them as Governor, cannot be considered as done on behalf of the
Crown, nor to be in any proper sense acts of State.

If we had no statute limiting authority and the act com-
plained of was a political act of State performed pursuant to
sovereign authority other considerations would arise. Where,
however, authority is defined by statute or by a commission we
must look in that quarter for justification for the act attempted
or performed. Even if acting for the Crown the agent would
be responsible for tortuous acts. He might be indemnified but
the right to compensation by the party injured is beyond ques-
tion (Rogers v. Rajendro Dult (1860), 13 Moore, P.C. 209 at y,cponarn,
236. The sanction of the State will not protect the agent for -4

the commission of a tort.
The doer of a wrongful act cannot escape liability by setting up the
authority of the Crown:

Newecombe, J. in Rattenbury v. Land Settlement Board (1929),
S.C.R. 52 at 64).

To hold otherwise would be to seriously interfere with the
rights and liberty of the subject.

On the point that an action will lie against an officer of the
State for a declaration that an act done by him cannot be sup-
ported by any Act of Parliament or State authority, I also refer
to China Mutual Steam Navigation Co. v. Maclay (1917), 87
L.J., K.B. 95, All difficulties disappear when it is borne in
mind that this action is against individuals in their private
capacity for the commission of unauthorized acts, viz., presum-
ing to act under a statute but really, as alleged, outside the
authority conferred. The principle that an action for a tort will
not lie against the Crown or against any body representing the

June 7.
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Crown, not in its private but in its official capacity, is not
relevant.  (Mackenzie-Kennedy v. Air Council (1927), 96
L.J., K.B. 1145). True a minister or a departmental head as
the servant of the Crown cannot be sued in his official capacity
and thus subject the public funds to a levy. (Palmer v. [Hutch-
inson. (1881), 6 App. Cas. 619). That is not this case. “The
King can do no wrong” and therefore cannot authorize a wrong-
ful act. It follows that the King’s authority cannot be invoked
as a defence to an action brought in respect to an illegal act
committed by an officer of the Crown (Robertson’s Civil Pro-
ccedings by and against the Crown, 638). It is, therefore, no
answer to say that the Postmaster General in any event pre-
sumed to act officially or that want of authority—if it existed

was due to mistake.

The same result would follow even if respondents acted in
obedience to the order of the IExecutive or of any officer of State,
assuming of course, that the act complained of was not author-
ized by statute. (Raleigh v. Goschen (1898), 1 Ch. 73 at
p. 77).

We were veferred to Luby v. Wodehouse (1865), 17 Tr.
C.L.R. 618, to support the proposition that the act was done qua
Postmaster General and that with or without legislative sanc-
tion it is mot actionable. The ground of the decision is shewn
however by a true appreciation of the following extract at pp.
6530-40:

Well, the point decided by the Court in this case was this—that, if an
action be brought against the Lord Lieutenant of the day, for an act done
by him in his capacity of Lord Lieutenant (and there was no pretence for
saying that the acts were done here in his individual capacity as contra-
distinguished from his capacity of Lord Lieutenant), such an action is not
maintainable.

Also:

We entertain no doubt whatever that it would be contrary to the prin-
ciples of all law, and contrary to reason, to hold that, while the Governor
of a country is discharging the high duty that he is entrusted with by the
Crown, even though there may be a private wrong, that can be redressed
by an action such as this.

And again as to the faets it was disclosed,——
upon the plaintifi’s own shewing, and his own aflidavits, that this act
complained of is an aet coming within that rule.

This was followed in Sullivan v. Earl Spencer (1872), 6 Ir.
R.C.L. 173, where it is clear from the judegment of Whiteside,
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C.d., at p. 177, that the Viceroy was exercising “the supreme Mg‘;’ffgm
authority vested in him by the Crown.” True the act may be  ——
wrongful for as Fitzgerald, J. points out at p. 179 the legality = 1932
of the acts may be open to question and it is because of this March4.
aspect that these cases were cited for our consideration but the = =
illegality referred to is of the same character as an act or order  APPEAL

made by a judge in his judicial capacity not in accordance with

June 7.
law. In such a case no action “‘for acts done in that capacity —
lies against a judge” (p. 177). If, however, a judge steps out- %gg:éf_‘{

side his judicial funections and commits an illegal act he is Tioxs Lrp.
. ., . .
answerable in law and it is no defence to say that when the tort g, uve
was committed he was in fact a judge nor yet that he erroneously
thought he was acting in that capacity. In the case referred to
the act complained of, viz., preventing a public meeting likely
to cause mischief, was an act conducive to the peace and safety
of the public and therefore within the Viceroy’s authority.
As stated the case turns solely on the construction of the
statute and regulations, and I only referred briefly to the points
outlined because we were urged to give effect to them. It is
important too that private rights should be protected against
assumed authority. MACDONALD,
J.AL
I find, however, that respondents are protected by the statute.
The material section, viz., 7 (d) and (e¢) reads as follows:
[Already set out in the judgment of McPuirrres, J.A.].
“Mailable matter” as referred to is thus defined by section 2
(h) of the Act:
“mailable matter” includes any letter, packet, parcel, newspaper, book or
other thing which, by this Act, or by any regulation made in pursuance
of it, may be sent by post.
The latter part of the material regulation, number 219 (the
first part is also pertinent) passed pursuant to the Act (and it
is not wltra vires) reads thus:
If it be established to the satisfaction of the Postmaster General that
any persons are using, or endeavouring to use the post office for any
fraudulent or illegal purpose, then in any such case it is hereby declared
that no letter, packet, parcel, newspaper, book, or other thing sent or
sought to be sent through the post office, by or on behalf of or to or on
behalf of such person shall be deemed mailable matter.
Section 7 (d) ante authorizes the Postmaster General (sub-
ject to the provisions of the Act) to make regulations under (it
was submitted) four heads. In my view there are five headings
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in the subsection. Mr. Mayers treated the first five lines as one
group and submitted that it referred only to the physical nature
of matter that might be sent by post. I find two headings in
these five lines: 1. Regulations as to ‘“what shall and what
shall not be deemed to be mailable matter” and 2. ‘“for restrict-
ing . . . the weight and dimensions of letters and packets . .
sent by post.” The subsequent headings provide for: 3. Pro-
hibiting and preventing the mailing of dangerous or contraband
articles and prohibiting and preventing the sending of obscene
publications. 4. Prohibiting and preventing the sending of
letters having stamped or written on the outside words or
devices that would in the opinion of the Postmaster General
tend to injuriously affect the person addressed. 5. Make regu-
lations for marking (i.e., by the postal authorities) on the
covering of letters circulars, ete., suspected “to concern illegal
lotteries so-called gift concerts, or other illegal enterprises of
like character offering prizes or concerning schemes devised or
intended to deceive or defraud the public for the purpose of
obtaining money under false pretences . . . a warning that
they are suspected to be of a fraudulent character and for
returning such letters circulars or other mailable matter to the
senders.”

The acts complained of were authorized under the first head-
ing outlined. It was submitted that only under heading number
5 could the Postmaster General act in the case at Bar and that
far from conferring a right to prohibit or prevent the use of the
mails in the cases referred to authority only is given to stamp
on the outside of the offending missives (no power even to open
them) a “warning” and to return them to the senders. It was
also urged that as the subject-matter involved in this action is
specifically dealt with under this heading and only a limited
power conferred we cannot resort to the first heading, viz., to
make regulations declaring “what shall and what shall not be
deemed to be mailable matter,” and find in these general words
authority for the action taken. It must be conceded that if the
clause last referred to stood alone the appellant must fail as only
“mailable matter” may pass through the post, and under that
heading the Postmaster General has arbitrary power by the Act
and the regulation quoted—if established to his satisfaction to
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say that the letters in question are not mailable. The Courts MO?SSN’
might regard it in another light: that is not material. Parlia-  ——
ment conferred discretion on the minister to form his own 1932
opinion on the question of fraud or illegality. March 4.

Does it follow that where we find an express power only “to  courr or
stamp on the outside a warning and to return to the sender” — AFPPFAL
admittedly covering the case at Bar—because appellant was  jype 7.
“suspected of engaging in an illegal enterprise”—that the point
is there fully dealt with excluding the possibility of finding %;f;*gf_‘f
implied powers elsewhere? I do not think so. First because rions L.
the power given under heading (1) anfe to make regulations as  Sauvve
to what may be treated as “mailable matter” is in itself direct
and explicit, inserted no doubt for a useful purpose. One can
call to mind cases where in the interest of public health and
safety, as my brother MarTiN pointed out during the argument,
letters perfectly legitimate should be regarded as non-mailable
for a time. The words, however, are not necessarily restricted
to exceptional situations: they are of general import. “Mail-
able matter” by the interpretation section includes all letters.

In this case the regulations provide, as quoted, that the letters

in question are not “mailable matter” if it is established to the ., povary,
satisfaction of the Postmaster General (and he so decided) that ..
the purpose in view was illegal. Secondly as to heading number

(5) preventing vesort to number (1) the principle invoked must

be applied with care. In Colquhoun v. Brooks (1888), 57 L.J.,

Q.B. 70 at p. 73 Wills, J. said:

I may observe that the method of construction summarized in the maxim
“Bxpressio unius exclusio alterius” is one that certainly requires to be
watched. . . . The failure to make the “expressio” complete very often
arises from accident, very often from the fact that it never struck the
dranghtsman that the thing supposed to be excluded needed specific men-
tion of any kind.

Lopes, L.J., in the Court of Appeal, said in Colquhoun v.
Brooks (1888), 57 L.J., Q.B. 439 at p. 446:

The maxim [referred to] has been pressed upon us. I agree with what is
said in the Court below by Mr. Justice Wills about this maxim. It is
often a valuable servant, but a dangerous master to follow in the construe-
tion of statutes or documents. The exclusio is often the result of inadver-
tence or accident, and the maxim ought not to be applied when its applica-
tion, having regard to the subject-matter to which it is to be applied, leads
to inconsistency or injustice.
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Of course if it is clear that the Legislature expressly author-
ized a special method for dealing with a condition any other
mode is excluded unless authorized. But two courses of action
may be provided for, as for example in the case at Bar, viz., a
prohibition or a warning, the latter a subordinate remedy.

I would dismiss the appeal.

Appeal dismissed.

Solicitors for appellant: Bird & Bird.
Solicitor for respondents: C. M. O’Brian.

REX v. FERRIER.

Criminal law —— Theft with violence — Jury — Crown counsel’s address—
Indirect comment on accused’s failure to testify——Misdirection—R.8.C.
1927, Cap. 59, Sec. 4, Subsec. (5).

Counsel for the Crown in a criminal prosecution, after dealing with the
evidence for the prosecution, said: I think there should be some
explanation.”

“Tue CoURT: Be careful, Mr. MacNeill.

“MacNeill: Should there not be some explanation on the part of the
defence?

“Tae Court: Mr. MacNeill, be careful.”

Counsel for the accused then asked that the jury be dismissed and that

. there be a new trial. This application was refused and the case pro-
ceeding to its termination, the accused was convieted.

Held, on appeal, affirming the decision of Fisugr, J., that the remarks by
Crown counsel in no way indicated what it was that needed explana-
tion or who the person was who could give it, and cannot be distorted
into “comment” within the meaning of subsection (5) of section 4 of
the Canada Evidence Act.

;[\PPEAL by accused from his conviction by Frsuer, J. on the
23rd of Mareh, 1932, for stealing by means of violence and
when armed with an offensive weapon, a pencil from one Joseph
Wright on the 19th of February, 1932. No evidence was called
for the defence and the main ground of appeal was that counsel
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for the Crown made improper comments to the jury which
influenced them against the accused by referring to the failure
of the accused to testify. ‘

The appeal was argued at Vancouver on the 7th of April,
1932, before Macvoxarp, C.J.B.C., Marrin, McPurrrips and
Macponarp, JJ.A.

Cahan, Jr., for appellant: Wright was held up by two men
and $1.75 in cash, a milk ticket and a small lead pencil were
forcibly taken from him. Three days later the accused was
arrested and the lead pencil was found on his person. He was
not identified by Wright. There was no evidence submitted for
the defence and Crown counsel made comments in his address
contrary to the provisions of section 4, subsection (5) of the
Canada Evidence Act, and there should be a new trial: see Rex
v. Morton (1928), 51 Can. C.C. 96; Bigaouette v. The King
(1927), S.C.R. 112; Rex v. Gallagher (1922), 37 Can. C.C.
83; Caron v. Regem (1930), 49 Que. K.B. 299; Rex v. King
(1905), 9 Can. C.C. 426 at p. 437; Rex v. Coppen (1920), 33
Can. C.C. 264 at p. 269.

Christopher Morrison, for the Crown: The whole question is
whether the words used by Crown counsel in his address so
influenced the jury that there should be a new trial. What was
said is not a breach of subsection (5) of section 4 of the Act.
In the case of being in possession of stolen property the onus is
on him to explain how he got it, and if he fails the presumption
is that he is the thief: see Roscoe’s Criminal Evidence, 15th
Ed., 22. That there was no violation of the Act see Rex v.
Portigal (1923), 2 W.W.R. 289; Rew v. 4ho (1904), 11 B.C.
114; Rex v. Skelly (1928), 1 D.L.R. 619; Rex v. Burdell
(1906), 11 O.L.R. 440; Rex v. Kaplansky (1922), 51 O.L.R.
587; Rex v. Brayden (1926), ¢ D.L.R. 765 at p. 770.

Cur. adv. vult.

7th June, 1932.
Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C.: This is an appeal under section 4,
subsection (5) of the Canada Evidence Act, complaining of a
reference by the Crown counsel which was supposed fo intimate
that the prisoner had failed to give evidence on his own behalf.
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The only facts we have before us is a copy of the words used by
him which are as follows:

Mr. MacNeil, Crown counsel, in his address to the jury,
said:

I think there should be some explanation.

TaeE CourT: Be careful, Mr. MecNeill.

MacNeill: Should there not be some explanation on the part of the

defence?
THE Courr: Mr. MacNeill, be careful.”

That is all we have before us to guide us in our conclusion.
What it was that needed explanation or who was the person or
only person who could give it is in no way indicated. The cases
in which a reference of this sort alleged to be obnoxious to the
accused usually shew such circumstances as are an indication
that the reference is to the accused and that the explanation
should be given in the witness box by the accused. Here we
have nothing of the kind.

The most authoritative case on the meaning of section 4, sub-
section (5) is Bigaouette v. The King (1927), S.C.R. 112,
where Mr. Justice Duff states the rule that ought to govern.
Also Rex v. Aho (1904), 11 B.C. 114, where the full Court of
this Province declined to interfere in a much stronger case for
the accused; also on the same subject Rea v. Coppen (1920),
33 Can. C.C. 264.

I would dismiss the appeal.

MarTtin, J.A.: By this appeal from the eonviction of the
appellant for stealing a pencil from the person of one Joseph
Wright by means of violence, “then being armed with an offen-
sive weapon, to wit, a pistol,” two questions were raised in
argument, but the first, a motion for leave to appeal on questions
of fact, was unanimously refused, leaving only the second, wiz.,
that:

Counsel for the Crown in his address to the jury improperly referred to
the failure of the accused to testify.

Section 4 of the Canada Evidence Act, Cap. 59, R.S.C. 1927,
relied on provides that:

(5.) The failure of the person charged, or of the wife or husband of
such person, to testify, shall not be made the subject of comment by the
judge, or by counsel for the prosecution.

In support of the prosecution two police officers were called
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who testified to the arrest of the accused at about midnight two
days after the robbery and finding upon his person, in his vest
pocket, the pencil that had been stolen from Wright. The
accused’s counsel did not call any witness in defence, and the
Crown counsel in his address to the jury said:

MacNeill: T think there should be some explanation—

Tue Court: Be careful, Mr. MacNeill.

MacNeill: Should not there be some explanation on the part of the
defence—

TaE Courr: Mr. MacNeill, be careful.

The official report proceeds:

Cahan: At this point T will enter an objection, and would ask that the
jury be dismissed, and would ask for a new trial of the prisoner.

Tae CourT: Mr. MacNeill, what have you to say? I refuse the applica-
tion. You may go on.

MacNeill: Yes, my lord, I will.

[MacNeill concludes address to jury.]

In his charge to the jury the learned judge, referring to the
finding of the pencil, said:

JAf it is'proved to your satisfaction beyond reasonable doubt to
Whleh I will refer later—if the prosecution have proved recent possession

of stolen goods, then in the absence of any explanation which may reason-

ably be true, the jury may find a prisoner guilty, but are not bound to do so.

No objection was taken here or below to this instruetion of
the learned judge (though he used the same word, “explana-
tion,” the use of which by counsel is objected to) mnor could it
properly be taken having regard to high and unquestioned
authority upon the point, particularly the unanimous decision
of the five judges of the Court for Crown Cases Reserved in the
leading case of Reg. v. Langmead (1864), Le. & Ca. 427,
wherein Chief Baron Pollock said, 438:

If a man is found in possession of stolen goods shortly after they are
stolen, he must give some account of them; and the rule is the same,
whether the person in whose possession they are found is the thief or the
receiver.

And Mr. Justice Blackburn said, p. 441:

When it has been shewn that property has been stolen, and has been
found recently after its loss in the possession of the prisoner, he is called
upon to account for having it, and, on his failing to do so, the jury may
very well infer that his possession was dishonest, and that he was either
the thief or the receiver according to the circumstances.

This last passage was accepted as the exposition of the law by
Mr. Justice O’Connor in the High Court of Australia in
Trainer v. The King (1906), 4 C.L.R. 126, at 139; and Chief
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Justice Griflith spoke to identical effect at p. 132 (after the case
had been cited, p. 130) that:

It is a well-known rule that recent possession of stolen property is evi-
dence, either that the person in possession of it stole the property, or
received it knowing it to have been stolen, according to the circumstances
of the case. Prima facie, the presumption is that he stole it himself, but if
the circumstances are such as to shew it to be impossible that he stole it,
it may be inferred that he received it, knowing that someone else had
stolen it.

In the Irish Court for Crown Cases Reserved, in Reg. v.
McMahon (1875), 13 Cox, C.C. 275, Chief Justice Whiteside
said, p. 281, that “it is the duty of the judge who tries the case
to point out the difference between the different offences” and it
is beyond question that the learned trial judge in this case
properly discharged the duty incumbent upon him when he told
the jury that the circumstances of the case required the accused
to give an “explanation” of them, which is a milder way of
saying, in the said language of Reg. v. Langmead, that he was
“called upon to account for having possession” of the stolen
property. Now if that is so in the case of one who oceupies the
commanding and impartial position of the presiding Judge of
Assize, much more is it so in the case of counsel to whose
similar expressions the jury would properly attach less weight,
and it would be putting an unwarrantable strain upon the said
section of the Ividence Act to hold that a direction or observa-
tion “by judge or by counsel” essential to justice in the proper
understanding of the case constituted a “comment” upon “the
failure of the person charged . . . to testify.”

This view of the matter was, in principle, taken unanimously
by four judges of the old Full Court of this Province, including
Mr. Justice Duff now of the Supreme Court of Canada, and
myself, nearly 28 years ago in the leading case of Rex v. Aho
(1904), 11 B.C. 114 wherein the Chief Justice said, per
curiany, at pp. 116-7:

To hold that a direction to the jury that the accused has failed
to aecount for a particular occurrence, when the onus has been cast upon
him to do so, amounts to a comment on the failure to testify, would para-
lyze the action of the Court in the discharge of its most essential function,

viz.: to charge the jury on all questions of law which have any relevant
bearing on the case including the question as to when the onus shifts.

This decision has not only never been questioned in this
Province but approved and followed more than once in cases
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reported and otherwise, e.g., by this Court in Rex v. May
(1915), 21 B.C. 23, wherein (p. 24) the trial judge had
commented on the fact that the accused had failed to account for a par-
ticular occurrence to which, by reason of the testimony adduced against
him, the onus was cast upon him to answer.

All the five judges were of opinion that this did not constitute
an infraction of the said section.

In Rex v. Burdell (1906), 11 O.L.R. 440 (a case of a tobacco
pouch being found upon the prisoner) the five judges of the
Court of Appeal of Ontario unanimously decided that the trial
judge had given a proper direction to the jury when he told
them, p. 441:

. if a man is found in possession of goods which were shewn to
have been stolen, and is found in possession of them shortly after they
were stolen, then he is expected to be able to tell how he came by them,
and if he gives a satisfactory account of how he came by them, or satisfies
the jury in any way by the evidence of other people how he came by them,
then he goes free. But if he is unable to satisfy a jury, or to tell how he

came by them, then it is not unreasonable to suppose that he came by them
by having stolen them.

In delivering the judgment of the Court of Appeal Mr.
Justice Osler said, p. 448:

after a careful consideration of the charge I am quite satisfied
that the trial judge did not suggest or intend to suggest to the jury that
the prisoner might have given evidence in his own behalf, or that an infer-
ence unfavourable to him might be drawn from the fact that he had not
done so. The learned judge merely told the jury of the presumption which
might, under all the circumstances of the case, be drawn from the fact of
his not having given an aceount of how the stolen property came into his
possession, an account and presumption entirely unconneected with his not
giving evidence on his own behalf as a witness at the trial: Kops v. The
Queen (1894), A.C. 650, 651.

This is in accord with the instruetion to the jury given by
Mr. Justice Duff in Rex v. Theriault (1904), 11 B.C. 117 at
120, viz.:

I told the jury that if they were satisfied on the evidence that
exhibits 1 and 2 had been stolen from the prosecutors’ shop by somebody
and if they were satisfied, from the place in which the goods were found,
that the goods had been placed there by the prisoner and that his personal
possession of them was the only reasonable explanation of their being found
there, then the onus was on the aceused to account for his possession of
them: and, in the absence of some reasonable explanation of his possession
they might find him guilty of theft.

This direction was unanimously upheld by the Full Court,
sitting for Crown Cases Reserved, including Mr. Justice Duff
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and myself, and we said that “there was an onus cast upon him
[the accused] to account for the possession,” and that, p. 121:
“it was not necessary for the Crown to negative such hypotheses
as that the owner had not given them away, or that some child
might have taken them,” ete.

And in the leading case of Rex v. Schama (1914), 84 L.J,,
K.B. 396, the Court of Criminal Appeal in England, on that
rare occasion composed of five judges, said, per Lord Reading,
C.J. (p. 398):

In a case, such as the present, where a charge is made against a person
of receiving stolen goods well knowing the same to have been stolen, when
the prosecution have proved that the person charged was in possession of
the goods, and that they had been recently stolen, the jury should then be
told that they may, not that they must, in the absence of any explanation
which may reasonably be true, convict the prisoner. But if an explanation
has been given by the accused, then it is for the jury to say whether upon
the whole of the evidence they are satisfied that the prisoner is guilty. If
the jury think that the explanation given may reasonably be true, although
they are not convinced that it is true, the prisoner is entitled to be
acquitted, inasmuch as the Crown would then have failed to discharge the
burden imposed on it by our law of satisfying the jury beyond reasonable
doubt of the guilt of the prisoner. The onus of proof is never changed in
these cases: it always remains on the prosecution. That is the law.

The Aho case has often been cited and relied upon by the
Courts of Canada, e.g., in Rex v. Skelly (1927), 61 O.L.R. 497,
501 (C.A.); in Rex v. King (1905), 6 Terr. L.R. 139 (en
banc); in Rex v. Romano (1915), 24 Can. C.C. 30, 33 (K.B.
Que.); Rex v. Kaplansky (1922), 51 O.L.R. 587, 590, and in
Caron v. Regem (1930), 49 Que. K.B. 299, 303; the only
instance in which I can find any doubt ever having been
expressed regarding it is by Mr. Justice Stewart in Rex v.
Gallagher (1922), 17 Alta. L.R. 519; 1 W.W.R. 1183, wherein
he said that “he was rather inclined to the opinion that the
Court went too far,” but his solitary views in that respect were
not shared by the other members of the Bench and they were
really obiler because the case before him turned precisely upon
the point that though the possibility of explanation or denial of
statements made by the accused to the police respecting his
possession of firearms rested solely npon his testimony yet the
judge instructed the jury, “that is not denied by the defendant”
and, “there is no suggestion from the defence or any other
person that he could have gone any other way” which instrue-
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tions are thus emphasized by italics in the leading judgment of
Mr. Justice Beck. These marked references to the accused’s
personal capacity to testify were construed by the Court as
“referring to the opportunity of the accused to give evidence at
the trial,” and therefore constituting “indirect and covert allu-
sion to defendant’s silence.”

Upon this ground alone, in my opinion, and with all respect,
can that judgment be supported, and it is decidedly not an
authority for the further and general proposition that it is
“comment” for the judge merely to tell the jury that a state-
ment of fact is uncontradicted even when the defendant is the
only person who can contradict it, and in that respect the
unanimous decision of the Manitoba Court of Appeal in Rex v.
Portrgal (1923), 33 Man. I.R. 46, correctly states the law in
the language of Chief Justice Perdue at p. 47, and of M.
Justice Fullerton at p. 49, and of Mr. Justice Dennistoun at
p. 53, wherein the Gallagher case is distinguished and confined
to its proper limits and the error in the head-note corrected.
The Chief Justice said, pp. 47-8:

What is forbidden is comment by the judge, or the counsel for the prose-
cution, on the failure of the person charged to testify in his own behalf.
The alleged comment complained of in the present case is that counsel for
the Crown in his address to the jury twice referred to the fact that
important evidence for the prosecution had not been contradicted. This,

it appears to me, was merely a statement as to the evidence before the jury
and was not a comment upon the failure of the accused to testify.

Fullerton, J.A., at p. 49, referring to counsel’s submission
that the Crown’s witnesses could only be contradicted by the

accused and therefore indirect comment had resulted, said:

One answer to this contention is that the evidence in the case is not
before us and we do not know that it can only be contradicted by the
accused. Assuming, however, such to be the case, I would still be of the
opinion, in the circumstances of the present case, that the contention is
unsound.

And after considering and restricting the Gallagher case he
proceeded, p. 50:

One can easily understand that when a judge is dealing with a specifie
piece of evidence which obviously ean only be contradicted by the accused
he may very easily use language which will contravene the statute, but
each case must depend on its own circumstances and no general rule can be
laid down applicable to all cases.

Dennistoun, J.A., after citing with approval some of the
valuable extended observations of Mr. Justice Riddell in Rex
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v. Kaplansky, supra (to which I refer without citation) at
589-90, adhering to his former ruling in Rex v. Gluerin (1909),
18 O.L.R. 425, went on to say, pp. 53-4:

Similarly a general remark by Crown counsel to the jury that the case
for the Crown has not been contradicted is surely permissible. To hold
otherwise would, to my mind, unduly hamper the presentation of the case
for the prosecution, and it is not in the interests of justice, nor was it the
intention of the Legislature, that the Courts should strain the language
used to afford an escape to an accused person who has otherwise been fairly
tried and convicted.

These views are also supported by, e.g., Rex v. Coppen
(1920), 33 Can. C.C. 264; Rex v. Brayden (1926), 4 D.L.R.
765, 770; and, particularly, Rex v. Skelly (1927), supra.

It is, with respect, unfortunate, in my opinion, that the Court
in the Gallagher case founded its judgment upon the Texas case
of Dawson v. State (1893), 24 S.W. 414, when that case (which
was peculiar in the graphic and pointed way that the prosecut-
ing attorney referred to the lack of denial) had been unani-
mously rejected as bad law by the Supreme Court of Iowa in
State v. Hasty (1903), 96 N.W. 1115, at 1119, the head-note
of which correctly gives the decision of that Court, viz.:

12. A statement by attorney for the State that the testimony of an
alleged eyewitness of the crime was uncontradicted was not a comment on
failure of accused to testify in his own behalf, econtrary to Code, § 5484,
though defendant was the only person who was in a position to contradict
such testimony.

Moreover, the ostensible citation of the “view expressed in”
the Dawson case that the Alberta Court relied upon, 522, does
not at all appear in that case, but is merely an editorial annota-
tion to Reg. v. Corby (1898), 1 Can. C.C. 457, 466, adopted
without verification.

Lf resort is to be had to American decisions upon our eriminal
law, a leading case on this aspeet of it is the well-known one of
Comumonwealth v, Webster (1850), 59 Mass. 205 and 386,
which is remarkable in that it was of a nature corresponding
to our trial at Bar, and held before four judges of the Supreme
Conrt of that State (the “full Conrt in the fivst instance,” 394)
wherein the aceused, a professor of chemistry in the medical
college in Boston, was charged with murder under extraordinary
ciretimstances.  The case is of unusual interest because it con-
tains the unusually fine and instructive charge to the jury
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delivered on behalf of the Court by that eminent jurist Chief
Justice Shaw® and in the course of it the Court, p. 316, directed
the jury in a well-known passage (cited, e.g., by Wigmore on
Evidence, Vol. 3, Can. Ed., sec. 2273):

A few other general remarks occur to me upon this subject, which I will
submit to your consideration. Where, for instance, probable proof is
brought of a state of facts tending to criminate the accused, the absence
of evidence tending to a contrary conclusion is to be considered,—though
not alone entitled to much weight; because the burden of proof lies on the
accuser to make out the whole case by substantive evidence. But when
pretty stringent proof of circumstances is produced, tending to support the
charge, and it is apparent that the accused is so situated that he could
offer evidence of all the facts and eircumstances as they existed, and shew,
if such was the truth, that the suspicious circumstances can be accounted
for consistently with his innocence, and he fails to offer such proof, the
natural conclusion is, that the proof, if produced, instead of rebutting,
would tend to sustain the charge. But this is to be cautiously applied, and
only in cases where it is manifest that proofs are in the power of the
accused, not accessible to the prosecution.

It remains to consider the decision of the Supreme Court of
Canada in Bigaouette v. The King (1927), S.C.R. 112, which
was much relied upon by the appellant. In that case it was
held that comment could fairly be implied from the emphasized
language in the passage from the judge’s charge cited in the
judgment, the Court, per Mr. Justice Duff, said (p. 114):

It seems to be reasonably clear that, according to the interpretation
which would appear to the jury as the more natural and probable one, the
comment implied in this passage upon the failure of la defense to explain
who committed the murder would, having regard to the circumstances
emphasized by the learned trial judge, be this, namely, that it related to
the failure of the accused to testify upon that subject at the trial.

That language, doubtless appropriate to those particular
facts, could not fairly be applied to these.

His Lordship then proceeded to a general principle:
The law, in our opinion, is correctly stated in the judgment of Mr. Justice
Stuart in Rex v. Gallagher [supral, in these words:
“It is not what the judge intended but what his words as uttered
would convey to the minds of the jury which is the decisive matter. Even
if the matter were evenly balanced, which I think it is not, and the lan-

* Note: His *very able and elaborate judgment” in Farwell v. The Bos-
ton and Worcester Rail Road Corporation (1842), 4 Mete, 49, on eommon
employment, was adopted by the House of Lords in Bartonshill Coal Com-
pany v. Reid (1858), 3 Macq. H.L. 266, 297, and received the unusual dis-
tinction of being printed in that volume at p. 316: cf. also Beven on
Negligence, 4th Kd., 819, and Fanton v. Denville (1932), 48 T.I.R. 433, per
Serutton, L.J., at p. 435 —A.M.
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guage used were merely just as capable of the one meaning as the other,
the position would be that the jury would be as likely to take the words
in the sense in which it was forbidden to use them as in the innocuous
sense and in such circumstances I think the error would be fatal”

That equally unexceptional language is also not applicable to
this case because it is not one of an “even balance” of meaning,
but one wherein the jury could not in reason, having regard to
its nature and circumstances “take the words in the sense in
which it was forbidden to use them.”

It should be noted that there is no indication of any doubt on
the part of the Supreme Court of the correctness of the decision
in the Aho case, wherein Mr. Justice Duff had taken part as
already mentioned. In the case at Bar there were several
obvious ways in which the accused, if innocent, could have
“explained” or “accounted for” his recent possession of the .
stolen article by calling witnesses other than himself to prove,
if possible, e.g.:

(1) That he was not present at the time of the theft, which
alibi would be his best defence, Commonwealth v. Webster,
supra, p. 319, because it would establish that at worst he was a
receiver and not the thief as charged; (2) that he had been in
possession of the property before the theft; (3) that John Doe
had found the property and given it to him; (4) that he had
found it when in John Doe’s company; (5) that it had been
sold to him by Richard Roe, ete., ete.

Whatever, therefore, might be said in other cases the language
used by counsel in this one cannot be distorted into “comment”
within the meaning of the said Act.

There are many cases, in their ever varying circumstances,
in which it was held, and properly so, it may respectfully be
said, that the statute had been infringed, but they are all, when
examined, clearly distinguishable from the case at Bar, e.g.,
our own decision in Rex v. Mah Hon Hing (1920), 28 B.C.
431; Reg. v. Coleman (1898), 2 Can. C.C. 523; Reg. v. Corby
(1898), 30 N.S.R. 830; Rex v. McGuire (1904), 36 N.B.R.
609; Rex v. King (1903), supra; Rex v. Romano (1915).
supra; and Caron v. Regem (1930), supra, which last turned
upon the judge's reference to “I'accuse,” pp. 302-3.

It follows from all the foregoing that the statutory prohibition
has not been violated by what occurred herein and the ruling of
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the learned trial judge was sound in law, and therefore the O o

appeal should be dismissed. —
-+ 1932

McPuirrres and Macooxawp, JJ.A. agreed for the reasons  June 7.
given by Marrix, J.A.

Rex
L v.
Appeal dismissed. FERRIZR
Solicitor for appellant: C. H. Cahan, Jr.
Solicitors for respondent: MacNeill, Pratt & MacDougall.
AGNEW AND AGNEW v. HAMILTON. MACDONALD,
J.
Landlord and tenant—=Suite above a store—Defective premises—Personal 1932
injuries to tenant’s wife—Demised premises—Liability of landlord.
June 13.

The defendant, who was the owner of a store building containing two suites AGNEW
above the store, rented one of the suites to the plaintiff R. J. Agnew. .
There was access to the suites by stairs both at the front and the back, HamILTON
and at the back was a porch which was common to the two suites. The
tenant’s wife, who lived in the suite, leaned against the railing on the
poreh when cleaning a rug and the railing giving way, she fell to the
ground below sustaining injuries.

Held, that a finding in the plaintifi’s favour as to the railing being a trap
would not avail them unless it was found that it existed with respect
to a portion of the building which the defendant had not demised and
which was under his control as landlord, but the railing formed =
portion of this so-called porch and the poreh was a part of the demised
premises and so treated by the tenants in their joint user, the plaintiffs
therefore have no redress,

‘ACTION for damages for injuries sustained by the plaintiff,
Lyla Stein Agnew, in falling from a porch in the rear of the
premises in which she lived with her husband. The railing on
the outside of the porch gave way as she leaned against it. The
defendant was owner of the premises, being a store building, the
floor above the store consisting of two suites, one of which

Statement
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MACDONALD: was rented to plaintiff R. J. Agnew and occupied by himself

1932
June 13.

AGNEW
.
HaMILTON

Judgment

and his wife. The porch at the rear was common to the two
suites and used by both tenants. While Mrs. Agnew was shak-
ing a rug on the porch she leaned against the railing which
gave way and she fell a considerable distance to the ground,
sustaining severe injuries. The relevant facts are set out in the
reasons for judgment. Tried by Macvoxarp, J. at Vancouver
on the 13th of June, 1932.

G'rossman, for plaintiffs.
O’ Brian, K.C., and A. C. DesBrisay, for defendant.

Macponarp, J.: The plaintiff seeks to recover damages from
the defendant through a regrettable accident which oceurred on
the 9th of January, 1932, and from which the plaintiff Lyla S.
Agnew sustained serious injuries. It appears that the defend-
ant gave the plaintiff R. J. Agnew possession of a suite, consist-
ing of one-half the upper part of a store building owned by the
defendant on Broadway West, Vancouver. There was an under-
standing at the time when such possession was given, that rent
should not be payable by the tenant until such tenant was earn-
ing wages, and thus in a position to make payment. After a
time, in pursuance of this arrangement, rent was paid by the
plaintiff R. J. Agnew, but at the time of the accident such rent
was considerably in arrears. However, the plaintiff R. J.
Agnew was still a tenant at the time, and the defendant as a
landlord, was responsible to him and his family. The plaintiff,
Lyla S. Agnew, the wife of the said plaintiff R. J. Agnew, while
in pursuance of her household duties and shaking dust from a
rug or piece of carpet, on what has been termed a porch, in the
rear of the demised premises, must according to my view of the
matter, have pressed so heavily against the railing at that point
that it gave way and she fell a considerable distance to the
ground, and suffered the injuries to which I have referred.
Reference is made to this railing in the plaintiff’s statement of
claim, and it is alleged that it appeared to be in a good and solid
condition for the purpose for which it was to be used, but it is
then stated that it was actually out of repair and dangerous
to persons lawfully using the same.
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Several defects are outlined in the pleadings as to this railing, MACDONALD,
but the situation is summed up in the close of the paragraph  —
relating thereto, by a statement that the railing or fence con- 1932
stituted a trap or hidden danger. It was submitted that if it June13.
should be held that the condition of the railing was such as to  Aexew
be a trap, causing the accident, that the defendant was liable to p, oo
the plaintiffs on the ground of negligence, it being contended
that there was a breach of duty on the part of the defendant
which ereated the liability, even though he was unaware of the
existence of such a trap.

Numerous authorities were cited upon this and other points
which arose during the trial, but no good purpose would be
served by my attempting to discuss these authorities at any
length, or reserve my judgment for that purpose. I intimated
to counsel for plaintiffs during the argument that a finding in
their favour as to the railing being a trap, would not avail them
unless I first found that it existed with respect to a portion of
the building, which the defendant had not demised and which
was under his control as landlord. In other words, that if the
railing was upon the demised premises, that the plaintiffs had
no redress. Plaintiffs relied upon the law as shortly stated in
the Canadian edition of Williams on Landlord and Tenant, at
p. 875

If the landlord permits access to the demised premises through entrances
or over passages or stairways retained in his possession and control, the
extent of his liability is that he is bound not to create a trap or concealed
danger. In other words the means of access must be what it appears to be;
if he provides a stairway it must be a proper stairway—one defective step
renders it an improper stairway—if he provides a balustrade it must be
sufficient to withstand reasonable pressure.

Judgment

The correctness of my view, that a finding to this effect was
essential in order that the plaintiffs should succeed, is borne out
by numerous authorities. I need only refer to the leading case
in the House of Lords, of Cavalier v. Pope (1906), A.C. 428,
at p. 430, where the law as laid down by the Court of Common
Pleas, in Robbins v. Jones (1863), 15 C.B. (w.s.) 221, was
approved of to the following effect:

“A landlord who lets a house in a dangerous state is not liable to the
tenant’s customers or guests for accidents happening during the term: for,
fraud apart, there is no law against letting a tumble-down house; and the
tenant’s remedy is upon his contract, if any.”
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Without further dealing with the law on the subject, in my
opinion the situation is narrowed to the extent, to which I will
shortly refer. While to some extent the happening of the acei-
dent might cast some burden upon the owner of the premises,
still the sitnation is such that if that portion of the demised
premises has been leased to these plaintiffs, then they have no
complaint or right of recovery as against the defendant. Then
was the railing a portion of the demised premises? It is alleged
in the statement of claim that the access to these demised prem-
ises from the street was by a common staircase, and there was a
common staircase from the rear of the demised premises, also
that there was a common hallway and a common rear porch, all
of which it was alleged being under the control or possession of
the defendant, and not coming, as it were, under the control and
possession of the plaintiff R. J. Agnew, as a tenant. I had the
opportunity, with the approval of counsel, of viewing the prem-
ises, and while not disagreeing with that statement as to the
situation, I think I prefer to put it in my own way, and it is this:
The entrance to these two sets of premises, or suites, was from
the street by a broad staircase, with swinging doors. Then at
the top of the staircase, there was an open space which would be
useful for both tenants and their families. From that open
space there was a narrvow hallway with swinging doors to the
rear of the building. On the way to the right there was a
laundry room which was provided for the use of both tenants.
Then this area, or porch, as it has been described, was in the
rear. It has been termed a “porch,” and for the sake of a better
term I will apply it, to that portion of the building. It was not
a mere landing. 1t was of considerable size. It was utilized by
the tenants jointly, there being a set of shelves or lockers and
Mrs. Matthison, the other tenant, used a portion for her refrig-
erator. Then as you went to the rear of this porch, on the
right you encountered a staircase which afforded access to the
vard in the rear, and thence to the coal and wood-shed provided
by the landlord for the use of his tenants. It was not an open
portion of the building except at the rear. In other words, it
was covered in and became a useful part of the demised premises.

I was concerned at first with the case of McPherson v. Credit
Foncier Franco Canadien (1929), 2 W.W.R. 623. It seemed
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to me unless the facts differed from those here presented, that MACD;’NALD:
this would be an authorlty which I should, in deference to the — ——
Court of Appeal of Alberta, follow. I found there that the facts, 1932
on closer perusal, are altogether different, or are so different as June 13.
to create in my mind a conclusion that this case is mot an 4, cpw
authority which should be followed. Returning, then, to a con- v.
sideration of this so-called porch, the evidence shewed user hy HasLzoN
both tenants jointly. It is true that the defendant had paid for
the lighting, but the details of that payment are not present for
the moment to my mind. Beyond this he in no way exercised
any control or supervision of that portion of his building. In
renting to his tenants he did not reserve any portion of the
upper part of the building, and if my recollection serves me
right, there was some discussion as to how the hallways might
be kept clean, and this matter of cleanliness was left to be deter-
mined and arranged between the two tenants. The defendant
did not supply any janitor service, nor in any way, to my mind,
shewed that he was exercising any rights over the upper portion
of the building leased to two tenants. I think that the railing
formed a portion of this so-called porch, and that such porch
was a part of the demised premises, that it was so considered Judgment
and treated by the tenants in their joint user. They could have
excluded anyone from occupying it, just as they could have done
with the laundry room provided for their joint benefit.
Having reached this conclusion, and bearing in mind the law
with respect to the obligations of a landlord, to the extent even
of renting tumbledown houses, I do not consider that the
defendant was liable to the plaintiff in connection with this
accident. I do not think any liability can be created by
the conduct of the defendant after the accident, and certainly
not by his actions in making payment to the doctor, and paying
some of the expenses attendant upon the nursing. If he is not
already liable, those actions should not create a liability. They
were in accord with his treatment of his tenant before the tenant
became in a position to pay rent. The result is that the action
is dismissed.

Action dismissed.
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REX v. HARDY.

Eaxcise Act—Seizure of foreign vessel within territorial waters—Alcohol on
board—Conviction of owner—Habeas corpus—QCertiorari—Vessel bound
from Seattle, US.A. to Alaska—dJurisdiction—R.8.C. 1927, Cap. 42,
See. 111—Can. Stats. 1930, Cap. 18, Sec. 9.

The accused, a foreigner, owned a foreign vessel that cleared from Seattle,
U.S.A., bound for Alaska. The vessel was seized in the territorial
waters of British Columbia and accused was convicted on a charge with
respect to aleohol found on board, under section 181 of the Excise Act.
On habeas corpus proceedings with certiorari in aid:—

Held, that assuming the waters in question are territorial waters, they are
so placed that passage over them is necessary or at least convenient,
and generally used for the navigation of open seas and should be
deemed international in that sense. The accused is a foreigner sailing
a foreign vessel from a foreign port bound on a foreign voyage, passing
through territorial waters, so placed that passage over them is con-
venient and generally used as the most direct route for vessels such as
the accused’s en route from Seattle to Alaska. Jurisdiction must be
given by express and specific legislation, and there being the absence
of such, want of jurisdiction has been established by the accused and
he is entitled to his discharge.

APPLICATION for a writ of habeas corpus with certiorart in
aid. The accused was convicted by a magistrate of having in
his possession 375 gallons of aleohol in tidal waters within the
boundaries of the County of Vietoria, under section 181 of the
Excise Act. The accused, an American, was the owner of a
foreign vessel, the “Advance,” which had cleared from Seattle,
Wash., U.S.A., bound for Ketchikan, Alaska. The vessel was
seized in the waters of Trincomali Channel between Salt Spring
Island and Galiano Island on the course which is the most con-
venient and direet route from Seattle to Alaska for small vessels,
and the alcohol was found on board. The further relevant facts
are set out in the reasons for judgment. Heard by Frsmer, J.
at New Westminster on the 28th of June, 1932.

L. H. Jackson, for applicant.
(ilchrist, for the Crown.
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12th July, 1932,

Fisuer, J.: This is an application on behalf of one John
Lester Hardy for his discharge on habeas corpus proceedings.
It would appear that the applicant was convicted the 22nd day
of April, 1932, on the charge
that he did, on or about the 8th day of April, 1932, in the waters of Trin-
comali Channel, being tidal waters within the boundaries of the County of
Vietoria, Province of British Columbia, as defined by the Counties Defini-
tion Act, Revised Statutes of British Columbia, chapter 50 and amendments
thereto, unlawfully, whether the owner thereof or not, without lawful
excuse have in his possession a quantity of spirits, unlawfully imported,
namely approximately 375 gallons of aleohol, contrary to the form of statute
in such case made and provided.

Tt is first contended by counsel on behalf of the prosecution
that in view of the wording of sections 122 and 181 of the
Excise Act the onus was on the accused to prove that he had
lawful possession of the aleohol. The question of the jurisdie-
tion of the magistrate, however, is raised on the threshold on
behalf of the accused and in such case unless and until the juris-
diction of the Court to try the accused for the offence charged
is established I cannot see that the burden of proof rule can be
invoked. Want of such jurisdiction may be proved by evidence
dehors the record—see Rew v. Montemurro (1924), 2 W.W.R.
250. An affidavit by the accused has been read on the applica-
tion and I have also before me, pursnant to the writ of certiorar:
issued, the information, conviction and other proceedings before
the magistrate.

It is quite apparent that the accused here is a foreigner
charged with respect to alecohol on board a foreign vessel
“Advance” which had cleared from Seattle, Wash., U.S.A,,
bound to Ketchikan, Alaska, and was at the time in question in
the waters of Trincomali Channel between Salt Spring and
Galiano Islands on the course which is, according to the said
affidavit, the “most convenient and direct route” from Seattle to
Alaska and admittedly so on the evidence for small boats on such
a voyage. Under such circumstances the offence, if any, would
appear to have been committed by a foreigner on a foreign ship
in such waters bound from one foreign port to another. Counsel
on behalf of the prosecution, however, relies on the contention
that such waters are territorial waters of Canada or waters
within three miles of the coasts or shores of Canada and not
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international waters. It may be noted that section 181 of the

Excise Act creating the offence alleged reads in part as follows:
Every person, whether the owner thereof or not, who, without lawful

excuse, the proof whereof shall be upon the person accused, . . . has in

his possession any spirits unlawfully manufactured or imported,

and the prosecution refers to and relies upon section 111 of the

Customs Act, reading in part as follows:

For the purpose of the levying of any duty, or for any other purpose of
this Act or any other law relating to the Customs,

(a) the importation of any goods, if made by sea, coastwise or by inland
navigation, in any vessel, shall be deemed to have been completed from the
time such goods were brought within the limits of Canada, meaning when
the waters are not international, within three miles of the coasts or shores
of Canada, and if made by land, then from the time such goods were brought
within the limits of Canada.

Counsel on behalf of the accused agrees that the vessel was at
the time in question within three miles of the coast or shores of
Canada on waters that might be called territorial but cites The
Queen v. Keyn—The Franconia (1876), 46 L.J., M.C. 17
where the judgment of the majority of the Court quashing the

~conviction was rested on the ground of there having been no

jurisdiction in former times in the Admiral to try offences by
foreigners on board foreign ships whether within or without the
limit of three miles from the shore. At pp. 63-4 and 70 Cock-

burn, C.J. says in part as follows:

That the negligence of which the accused was thus guilty, having resulted
in the death of the deceased, amounts according to English law to man-
slaughter can admit of no doubt. The question is, whether the accused is
amenable to our law, and whether there was jurisdiction to try him?

The legality of the conviction is contested, on the ground that the
accused is a foreigner; that the Franconia, the ship he commanded, was a
foreign vessel, sailing from a foreign port, bound on a foreign voyage; that
the alleged offence was committed on the high seas. Under these circum-
stances, it is contended that the accused, though he may be amenable to
the law of his own country, is not capable of being tried and punished by
the law of England.

The facts on which this defence is based are not capable of being dis-
puted; but a two-fold answer is given on the part of the prosecution:—
first, that . . . it occurred within three miles of the Knglish coast;
that, by the law of nations, the sea, for a space of three miles from the
coast, is part of the territory of the country to which the coast belongs;
that, consequently, the Franconia, at the time the offence was committed,
was in English waters, and those on board were therefore subject to Knglish
law,

These decisions are conclusive in favour of the accused in the present
case, unless the contention, on the part of the Crown, either that the place
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at which the occurrence, out of which the present enquiry has arisen, was,
though on the high seas, yet within British waters, by reason of its having
been within three miles of the English shore, or that, the death of the
deceased having occurred in a British ship, the offence must be taken to
have been there committed, so as in either case to give jurisdiction to the
Admiralty, or the Courts substituted for it, shall prevail. These questions
it becomes, therefore, necessary carefully to consider.

On entering on the first, it is material to have a clear conception of
what the matter in controversy is. The jurisdiction of the Admiral, so
largely asserted in theory in ancient times, being abandoned as untenable,
it becomes necessary for the counsel for the Crown to have recourse to a
doctrine of comparatively modern growth, namely, that a belt of sea, to a
distance of three miles from the coast, though so far a portion of the high
seas as to be still within the jurisdiction of the Admiral, is part of the
territory of the realm, so as to make a foreigner in a foreign ship, within
such belt, though on a voyage to a foreign port, subject to our law, which
it is clear he would not be on the high seas beyond such limit. It is neces-
sary to keep the old assertion of jurisdiction and that of today essentially
distinet; and it should be borne in mind that it is because all proof of
the actual exercise of any jurisdiction by the Admiral over foreigners in
the narrow seas totally fails, that it becomes necessary to give to the three-
miles zone the character of territory, in order to make good the assertion
of jurisdiction over the foreigner therein.

Now, it may be asserted without fear of contradiction that the position
that the sea within a belt or zone of three miles from the shore, as distin-
guished from the rest of the open sea, forms part of the realm or territory
of the Crown, is a doctrine unknown to the ancient law of England, and
which has never yet received the sanction of an. English ceriminal court of
justice.

Referring to the Keyn decision it may be noted that Tremeear
in his notes to section 591 of the Criminal Code, 4th Ed., pp.
773-4 says:

In consequence of this decision the Territorial Waters Jurisdiction Act,
1878, was passed; and it dealt and dealt only with offences committed on
board foreign ships, whether by foreigners or by British subjects on board
such ships, within the territorial waters of Her Majesty’s dominions, that
is, within one marine league of the coast measured from low water mark.
Parliament in passing this Act was assuming a new jurisdiction; that over
foreigners on foreign ships in territorial waters, a claim of jurisdietion to
which other nations might not assent.

With respect to the Territorial Waters Jurisdiction Act,
counsel for the accused has pointed out that the new jurisdiction
asserted was definitely restricted to offences ‘“punishable on
indictment.” In the present case the information was laid and
proceeded with as being one with respect to an offence punish-
able on summary conviction without the consent of the accused
and, in my opinion, the offence so charged and dealt with sum-
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marily cannot be considered as one included in the Territorial
Waters Jurisdiction Act so as to give jurisdiction merely because
1t might also be punishable on indictment. I pause here to point
out, however, that though Tremeear in the passage cited says that
Parliament in passing said Act “was assuming a new jurisdie-
tion—that over foreigners on foreign ships in territorial waters,
to which other nations might not assent,” it would appear even
from the judgment in the Keyn case that it was generally con-
ceded that Parliament had undoubtedly the right to legislate
over an area of three miles from its shores for the purpose of
prevention of “frauds on customs laws” which stood on a differ-
ent footing from the ordinary criminal laws but such legislation
must be express and specific if intended to apply to foreigners
on foreign ships. It seems to me therefore that the question to
be determined here is whether or not the said Excise and Cus-
toms Acts or sections in question were meant to operate with
respect to any and all persons and ships over the whole of that
territory within which there is the right to legislate. Perhaps
the real issue is better stated as being whether or not there is
express and specific legislation to be applied to the existing case
or whether in order to meet the exigency thereof there has been
what has been elsewhere termed “usurpation of a jurisdiction
which without legislation we do not judicially possess.” The
rights of a foreigner on a foreign ship, under the circumstances
recited, must be carefully considered. THall in his International
Law, Tth Ed., pp. 162-3 says:

In all cases in which territorial waters are so placed that passage over
them is either necessary or convenient for the navigation of open seas, as
in that of marginal waters, or of an appropriated strait connecting unap-
propriated waters, they are subject to a right of innocent use by all man-
kind for the purposes of commercial navigation. (The case of gulfs or other
inlets would seem to be upon a different footing, except in so far as they are
used for purposes of refuge. Any right to their navigation must be founded
on a right of access to the state itself.) The general consent of nations,
which was seen to be wanting to the alleged right of navigation of rivers,
may fairly be said to have been given to that of the sea. Even the earlier
and more uncompromising advocates of the right of appropriation reserved
a general right of innocent navigatien:; for more than two hundred and
fifty years no European territorial marine waters which could be used as
a thoroughfare, or into which vessels could accidentally stray or be driven,

have been closed to commercial navigation; and since the beginning of the
nineteenth century no such waters have been closed in any part of the
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civilized world. The right therefore must be considered to be established
in the most complete manner.

Counsel for the accused insists tha,t the Excise Act was never
intended to and does not apply to vessels but counsel for the
prosecution invokes section 111 of the Customs Act (as set out
in part above) obviously referring to goods imported by sea and
providing when the importation of such goods shall be deemed to
have been completed and contends that the waters in question
here are “not international” waters but territorial waters. In
this connection however it should be noted that in sections 151
and 207 of the Customs Act where Parliament is apparently
dealing expressly and specifically with the seizure of any “hov-
ering”’ vessel whether registered in Canada or not it expressly
uses the words “Territorial waters of Canada” and specifically
defines “Territorial waters of Canada,” said sections reading in
part as follows:

151. (1) If any vessel is hovering in territorial waters of Canada, any
officer may go on board such vessel and examine her cargo and may also
examine the master or person in command upon oath touching the cargo
and voyage and may bring the vessel into port. -

(7) For the purposes of this section and section two hundred and seven
of this Act, “Territorial waters of Canada” shall mean the waters forming
part of the territory of the Dominion of Canada and the waters adjacent
to the Dominion within three marine miles thereof, in the case of any
vessel, and within twelve marine miles thereof, in the case of any vessel

registered in Canada, or any other vessel which is owned by any person
domiciled in Canada.

By section 207, as enacted by Cap. 16 of the Act of 1928, it
is provided that:

1f upon examination by any officer of the cargo of any vessel hovering in
territorial waters of Canada, any dutiable goods or any goods the importa-
tion of which into Canada is prohibited are found on board, such vessel
with her apparel, rigging, tackle, furniture, stores and cargo shall be seized
and forfeited. ’

On the other hand, a perusal of section 111 of the Customs

Act as aforesaid shews that when Parliament was dealing with
the question of when the importation of goods by sea should be
deemed to have been completed, it did not state that it should be
deemed to be completed in all cases where the goods were brought
within the territorial waters of Canada or within three miles of
the coasts or shores of Canada but only in cases “when the
waters are not international.” The latter expression seems hard
to interpret but I think a fair interpretation or inference is that
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Parliament in the Act was safeguarding the right of commercial
navigation and recognizing the distinction between ships hover-
ing on territorial waters and ships merely passing through them.
Counsel for the prosecution however strenuously contends that
in any event it is only innocent passage that is not interfered
with and that as the alcohol was not shewn on what is called the
ship’s manifest jurisdiction could be asserted. In addition to
said section 151 counsel for the prosecution refers to sections
10-23, 143 and 146 of the Customs Act providing that vessels
may be boarded when within three miles by a customs officer
who is also authorized in certain cases to seize goods on board
or search and detain vessels for the prevention of smuggling. As
has been pointed out however these sections refer to ships
“bound for” or “arriving at” a ('anadian seaport and I do not
think that they should be strained or misapplied to a case such
as this where the ship is a foreign one bound from one foreign
port to another and the charge is not with respect to hovering
or smuggling. That the sections must be strictly interpreted is
apparent from one of the cases cited on the argument Rex v.
Langille (1932), 57 Can. C.C. 151 in which it was held that
despite section 208 (4) of the Customs Act, which declares that
the offence of smuggling shall be complete when any vessel con-
taining goods mot reported pursuant to section 11 of the Aect
arrives within three miles of the coast of Canada, the offence is
not complete until the master of the vessel has had an oppor-
tunity of complying with the conditions laid down in section 11,
te., of reporting to the Customs IHouse after the vessel is
anchored or moored.

As to what would not be considered “innocent passage” it
might be observed that Hall in his book on International Law,
supra, says at p. 163:

This right of innocent passage does not extend to vessels of war. Its
possession by them could not be explained upon the grounds by which
commercial passage is justified. The interests of the whole world are con-
cerned in the possession of the utmost liberty of navigation for the purposes
of trade by the vessels of all states. DBut nc general interests are neces-
sarily or commonly involved in the possession by a state of a right to
navigate the waters of other states with its ships of war.

It would seem as though the principle of “the utmost liberty
of navigation for the purposes of trade by the vessels of all
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states” would be in peril if the cargo of a foreign vessel not
bound for or arriving at a Canadian seaport but bound on a
foreign voyage and merely passing through Canadian territorial
waters can be seized along with the vessel and its possessor
charged in the local Courts with unlawful possession of goods
“unlawfully imported” and an otherwise innocent passage cease
to be so merely by reason of the nature of the cargo on board
without any more offence being suggested than that part of the
cargo was simply mentioned as stores and not more particularly
described in what is called the ship’s manifest at the time it left
a foreign port. Such manifest was apparently part of what are
called the clearance documents from the port of Seattle and any
offence in connection therewith would appear to have been com-
mitted in such foreign port. In this connection reference might
be made to the case of The Ship “D. C. Whitney” v. St. Clair
Navigation Co. (1907), 38 S.C.R. 303 where at pp. 309-11

Davies, J. says:

I do not think that the “D. C. Whitney,” a foreign ship, while sailing
from one port of a foreign country to another port of that country and
passing through, in the course of her voyage, one of the channels declared
by convention or treaty to be equally free and open to the ships, vessels
and boats of both countries, can be said to be within any jurisdiction con-
ferred on any Canadian Court by the sovereign authority in the control of
the Dominion of Canada, even though that channel happened to be Cana-
dian waters. . . . The wrongdoing for which she was arrested took
place (if at all) in a foreign port a year previously, and the ship’s arrest
while exercising her right of innocent passage in Canadian waters in
accordance with the treaty rights of her nation from one foreign port to
another cannot, of itself, justify the attempted exercise of jurisdiction. . . .

I do not think that that is the law. Jurisdiction only attaches over the
res when it comes or is brought within the control or submits to the juris-
diction of the Court and not till then. Such jurisdiction does not exist
against a ship passing along the coast in the exercise of innocent passage
or through channels or arms of the sea which, by international law or
special convention, are declared free and open to the ships of her nation-
ality, unless expressly given by statute. T do not think it is possible
successfully to argue that the right to initiate an action, make affidavits
and issue a warrant, can exist before the foreign ship even comes within our
territorial jurisdiction.

My conclusion on the whole matter is that even on the assump-
tion that the waters in question here are Canadian territorial
waters they are so placed that passage over them is necessary or
at least convenient and generally used for the navigation of open
seas and that they should be deemed international waters in that

July 12,

159

FISHER, J.

1932

REX
.
Harpy

Judgment



160

FISHER, J.

1932
July 12.

REX
V.
HARDY

Judgment

BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS. [Vor.

sense and for the purpose of said section 111 of the Customs
Act. I am satisfied that said section 181 of the Excise Act,
when read with said section 111 and also the other sections of
the Customs or Excise Act referred to, clearly recognizes the
principle of the freedom of even territorial waters for commer-
cial passage by foreign ships and that if any offence has been
committed by the accused the circumstances are not such that
he may be tried for the offence charged before the convicting
magistrate here. I do not think the statutory provisions relied
upon by the prosecution were intended by Parliament to assert
or confer jurisdiction upon the local magistrate to convict the
accused of unlawful possession of unlawfully imported goods as
charged under the circumstances here when the accused is a
foreigner sailing on a foreign vessel from a foreign port bound
on a foreign voyage and merely passing through territorial
waters which are so placed that passage over them is convenient
and admittedly generally used as the most convenient and direct
route by vessels such as the accused was on when en roufe from
Seattle to Alaska. If Parliament had so intended it would have
been a simple matter to have manifested the intention in express
words. In any event I hold that such jurisdiction must be given
by express and specific legislation and in the absence of such I
hold that want of jurisdiction has been established by the
accused and he is entitled to be discharged from custody.

The conclusion I have just indicated renders it unnecessary
for me to deal specifically with the second objection raised by
the applicant to the effect that forfeiture of the vessel “Advance”
would necessarily follow or be implied as part of the penalty
and that therefore in any event the summary jurisdiction would
not exist.

Order accordingly.

Application granted.




“COURT RULES OF PRACTICE ACT.”

HIS HONOUR the Lieutenant-Governor in Council has
been pleased to order that, in pursuance of the “Court Rules of
Practice Act,” being chapter 224 of the “Revised Statutes of
British  Columbia, 1924,” and all other powers thereunto
enabling, Schedule No. 2 of Appendix “M” of the “Supreme
Court Rules, 1925,” as amended, be further amended by
striking out Item 1 and Item 2 and substituting therefor the
following :—

“1. To witnesses, being Chinese or Indians, their
reasonable expenses actually incurred in travelling, in lieu
of mileage, and a sum not exceeding, per diem......... $1.50

“2. To witnesses, other than Police Officers and those
mentioned in Item 1, per diem....... ... ... ... ... 3.00

R. H. Poorzy,
Attorney-General.

Attorney-General’s Department,
Victoria, B. O., January 26th, 1933.
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STIRN v. VANCOUVER ARENA COMPANY LIMITED C‘EE;L’;Y'
AND LEWIS. —
1931
Mechanics’ liens — Lease of arena for sim-day bicycle race — Race-track — ee. 12.
installed by lessee— Track to be removed after race— Right to lien

thereon—R.8.B.C. 192}, Cap. 156, Sec. 6. COURT OF
APPEAL
The Canadian Cycle Race Association obtained a lease from the Vancouver 1932

Arena Company for its arema for the purpose of holding a six-day
bicyele race, the association to have the exclusive use of the arena for June 7.
the six days and two full working days without charge immediately
prior to the race for the purpose of erecting and installing a race-track
and necessary equipment, and the same time after the race to remove Vaxcouver
the same. Portions of the race-track along the fence of the arena at Arewa Co.
the sides were fixed to the freehold in a slight way but the ends were Lxp.
built up and fixed in a substantial way to the arena structure, and
solidly nailed wherever the special nature of the track demanded for
safety. The track was removed immediately after the race, but the
bicycle race proved a financial failure and the workmen and those
supplying material for building the track recovered judgment in a
mechanic’s lien action for a lien on the premises.

Held, on appeal, afirming the decision of Caviey, Co. J. (MACDONALD, s
(.J.B.C. dissenting), that the defendant is the owner of the land with
knowledge of the construction of the race-track and the building in
which it was installed is admittedly part of the land. Upon the true
construction of the statute, temporary alterations and changes in or
additions to a buikling which are essential to the use and purpose for
which it was designed, are a proper foundation for a mechanic’s lien
for the work done and material furnished thereupon, and this is par-
tieularly so as to property employed in the production of shows and
entertainments, the alterations and additions to the buildings and land
of which would of necessity be continuous and relatively frequent, and
the judgment establishing the liens should be aflirmed.

STIRN

AAPPEAL by defendants from the decision of Cavrey, Co. J.
in consolidated actions by workmen and material supply men
against the Vancouver Arena Company, Limited, under the
Mechanies” Lien Act, for a lien on the premises on which the
work was done and material supplied, tried by him at Van-
couver on the 9th of November and 3rd of December, 1931, On
the 10th of July, 1931, the Canadian Cyecle Race Association
Limited represented by one Peck, a promoter, leased the Van-
couver Arena near Stanley Park in Vancouver from the Van-
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couver Arena Company represented by one Patrick, for six days,
in order to carry on a six-day bicyele race, commencing on the
13th of July, 1931. The lease provided that the lessees should
have two full working days free of charge in order to install a
race-track and two days at the end of the race to remove it. Peck
contracted with the defendant Lewis for the construction of the
track and installing the necessary equipment. The track was
built on the floor of the arena and in order to keep it firm, espe-
cially at the ends, it was nailed firmly to the building. Imme-
diately after the race was over the track was removed. The race
proved a failure financially, the workmen only receiving a small
portion of their wages, and the lumber supply was not paid for.
By an order in Chambers the Stirn action was consolidated with
fifteen others.

H. C. Green, and Swencisky, for plaintiff.
(irossman, and A. H. Miller, for defendants.

12th December, 1931.

Cavrey, Co. J.: By an order in Chambers the present action
has been consolidated with fifteen others, making sixteen actions
by workmen and material supply men against the parties who
employed them and bought the goods, and against the Vancouver
Arena Company Limited, under the Mechanics’ Lien Act, for a
lien on the premises on which the work was done and material
supplied.

It appears by the evidence that in July, 1931, a promoter
named Peck, who has since left the country, entered into an
arrangement with Patrick, manager of the Arena Company,
to hold a bieyele race meeting in the arena. Patrick was to be
paid for the company $1,000 by Peck, and additional funds
during the course of the contest. Patrick also had to guarantee
the expenses of bringing bicycle riders from other parts of the
country to Vancouver, to take part in the contest. The amount
which he so guaranteed was $2,694. A race-track was con-
structed, being the race-track in question, on the floor of the
arena. The arena, as is well known, is a place for holding
shows of various kinds, and the holding of a bieycle race would
be well within the kind of show which they would offer to the
public. Peck paid Patrick $700 in cash and gave him a promis-
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sory note of $300, which was paid out of gate receipts. In
order to protect the Arena Company Patrick took in the gate
receipts. In this way all the money that was taken in for the
contest was in hishands as manager for the Arena Company. The
contest was not a success. The workmen, the present plaintiffs,
received very little on their wages. The lumber supply was

not paid for. Patrick gave Peck $300 and Peck left the coun-

try. It comes out in the evidence that Patrick was one of the
provisional directors or incorporators of the Peck company,
although this I do not think affects the case. The total amount
taken in from gate receipts seems to have been in the neighbour-
hood of $9,000 out of which Patrick also paid the prize money
to the contestants, and other expenses.

The question is does a mechanic’s lien lie against the
property ¢

The contention here of the Arena Company was that the erec-
tion of the race-track on the premises known as the Arena, was
for temporary purposes only; that it was specified in the con-
tract between the Arena Company and the Canadian Cycle Race
Association, represented by Peck, that after the race meeting
was over the track should be removed, and therefore under the
decision given by the Supreme Court of Canada in Haggert v.
The Town of Brampton (1897), 28 S.C.R. 174:

The purposes to which premises have been applied should be regarded in
deciding what may have been the object of the annexation of moveable
articles in permanent structures with a view to ascertaining whether or not
they thereby became fixtures incorporated with the freehold, and where
articles have been only slightly affixed but in a manner appropriate to their
use, and shewing an intention of permanently affixing them with the object
of enhancing the value of mortgaged premises or of improving their useful-
ness for the purposes to which they have been applied, there would be suffi-
cient ground, in a dispute between a mortgagor and his mortgagee, for
concluding that both as to the degree and object of the annexation, they
became parts of the realty.

and that by parity of reasoning, the race-track here was not a
part of the realty, not being affixed even in a slight manner to
the other structure of the arena. '

A number of cases were cited by the plaintiffs; particularly
Lamoges v. Scratch (1910), 44 S.CLR. 86 which was cited in
support of the contention that section 10 of the Mechanics’ Lien
Act provides that works or improvements mentioned in section
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6 construeted upon any lands with the knowledge, but not at the
request, of the owner, ete., shall be held to have been constructed
at the instance and request of the owner, ete., unless such owner
has posted a notice in writing that he will not be responsible for
such works or improvements. The Chief Justice at p. 88 says:

I would dismiss this appeal for the reason that, as the trial judge found,
the appellant, owner of the property, allowed the improvements in connee-
tion with which the mechanic’s lien arises to be made without notice or
protest.

To shew how broadly the interpretation of improving a prop-
erty 1s construed from affixing chattels to a property, Dobey v.
Gray (1906), 42 N.S.R. 259 is cited; where storm windows
were held by Longley, J. as passing for fixtures.

King, J., in the previously recited case, HHaggert v. The Town
of Brampton, at p. 182, says:

In passing upon the object of the annexation, the purposes to which the
premises are applied may be regarded; and if the object of setting up the
articles is to enhance the value of the premises, or to improve its usefulness
for the purposes for which it is used, and if they are affixed to the freehold
even in a slight way, but such as is appropriate to the use of the articles,
and shewing an intention not of occasional but of permanent affixing, then
both as to the degree of annexation and as to the object of it, it may very
well be concluded that the articles are become part of the realty, at least
in questions as between mortgagor and mortgagee.

This case was cited by counsel for the defence, contending
that the object of the anmexation should be the ruling feature in
coming to a decision. 1 find the case rather favourable to the
plaintiff, inasmuch as the putting in of the race-track in ques-
tion was to improve the usefulness of the arena for the purposes
for which the arena is used. The arena is a structure in which
shows of different kinds are exhibited. Undoubtedly the hold-
ing of a bieyele race largely advertised, and with riders brought
from a distance is such a show. Therefore the words of King,
J., “to enhance the value of the premises or improve its useful-
ness for the purposes for which it is used” ave direetly applic-
able to the erection of a bieyele race-track.  Also in regard to the
annexing of the race-track to the structure of the arena. Admit-
ting that the structure was fixed to the freehold only in a slight
way, directly applies to the present case where the evidence was
that in order to keep the race-track steady the race-track was
nailed to the arena structure. After the race-track meeting had
been concluded, Patrick, manager for the Avena Company, and



XLVI.] BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS.

his foreman, went over the race-track for the purpose of drawing
out the nails that had been affixed for that purpose, and the
foreman stated that he drew out about 100 nails. The race-track
comes well within the definition of an article annexed slightly
to a structure for the purpose of improving its usefulness and
thereby becomes, in the words of King, J., “an improvement.”
This would bring the race-track under the terms of section 6 of
the Mechanics’ Lien Aect.

But T do not think it is a proper interpretation of the
decisions to say that a purpose which is unknown to the parties
who supply the labour, or supply the materials becomes an ele-
ment in the decision. The race-track was to be a temporary
structure according to the contract between Patrick for the
Arena Company, and Peck, for the Bicycle Race Association.
This was a private arrangement between those parties, and what
their intentions were is not a matter of concern to those who
were not a party to the contract. King, J. in the case cited says
that is more applicable to questions as between mortgagor and
mortgagee, a purpose known to a mortgagor and mortgagee
would be known to the parties to a contract signed by both, in
which case a common purpose may properly be imputed to the
parties, but no common purpose can be imputed to the workmen,
and supply men in the case before me; that is a purpose in
common with the arena and the Clanadian Cycle Race Associa-
tion Limited.

It was acknowledged by the defence that the Arena Company
did not post a notice on the premises as they might have done
under section 10 of the Mechanices” Lien Act. Not having done
so it seems to me that that fault on their part, together with the
fact that I must hold the affixing of the race-track to the arena
to have been a matter which comes within the meaning of the
words “Improving its usefulness for the purposes for which it
is used”; and its not being disputed that the lien was filed in
time and on properly deseribed premises and premises owned
by the Arena Company, I must come to the conclusion that the
plaintiffs are entitled to a lien in the premises on which the
work was done.

From this decision the defendants appealed. The appeal was
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argued at Vancouver on the 24th of March, 1932, before
Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C., Marrix, McPururies and Macpoxatp,
JJA.

(frossman, for appellants: We are only appealing in two of
the actions, first as to the claim of Lewis who was the contractor
who built the track, and the building company that supplied the
material. The lease was for six days with an option for further
leases within one year. We submit that the claims do not come
within section 6 of the Mechanies’ Lien Act as this was a special
structure for a special purpose and was only attached to the
building by nails sufficiently to keep it firm. Under the agree-
ment the structure had to be moved immediately after the race
and it was so removed: see Haggert v. The Town of Brampton
(1897), 28 S.C.R. 174; Wallace on Mechanics’ Liens, 3rd Ed.,
63; Beaver Lumber Co., Ltd. v. Saskatchewan General Trusts
Corporation Ltd. (1922), 3 W.W.R. 1061. This was a tem-
porary structure: Dobey v. Gray (1906), 42 N.S.R. 259.

Swencisky, for respondent: The terms of the lease with the
Arena Company do not affect us. The erection was attached to
the premises and its purpose was patent to all interested: see
Haggert v. The Town of Brampton (1897), 28 S.C.R. 174 at
p. 1825 Stack v. Eaton (1902), 4 O.L.R. 335 at p. 338.

Grossman, replied. Cur. adv. vult.

7th June, 1932.

Macpvoxarp, C.J.B.C.: The trend of opinion appears to be
in favour of the idea that a mechanic’s lien such as the one in
question here cannot attach to chattel interests unconnected
with land. This idea appears, however, to have been broken in
upon by the Saskatchewan case of Galvin Lumber Yards, Lid.
v. BEnsor (1922), 2 W.W.R. 15, in which the Court of Appeal
of that Province decided that a lien on a building erected by a
lessee of land who had the right to remove it, the building being
nnattached to the soil, was a good lien on the lessee’s interest in
the lease and attached upon the building and the said interest.
The lease expired before the action to enforce it was taken and
it was admitted that it no longer was affected by the lien. Our
Aet 1s not part maleria with the Saskatchewan Act but is not
essentially different in effect so far as this case is eoncerned.
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Here the lien is claimed on the fee simple and is sought to be
enforced against the owner of the property on which the erection
in question was built and the case was argued on the footing that
the lien attached to the fee simple. The building is a skating
and hockey rink and the change made in it was the installation
of a bicyele-track for the temporary purpose of a six days’ lease
for the holding of races by the lessee. At the end of the lease
he was to remove the track. It is true there was also a term in
the lease that it might be used again within one year. That
term was subject to certain contingencies mentioned in the lease.
It was not in fact used during that period and the material
erected was removed. The structure was erected in the building
and rested by its own weight on the floor, except for some nails
driven into the building to steady it which, in my opinion, did
not constitute a sufficient attachment to affect this case.

It is clear to me that the structure on which the work was
done and material supplied was a temporary one and was never
intended to be anything else. The facts above recited are cogent
proof of this. The owner did not post notices enabling him to
avoid liability but if the structure did not in fact become a part
of the land this precaution was unnecessary.

Referring again to Galvin Lumber Yards, Litd. v. Ensor,
supra, I think it must be conceded that the lien if it attached at
all was confined to the building only after the lease expired.
The learned judge who delivered the judgment of the majority
of the Court stated that since the Lien Act invades the common
law its terms must be strictly construed when dealing with
attachments of it to the property but I understand him to hold
that with respect to the enforcement of the lien it ought to be
construed liberally. If I read the judgment aright it is a strict
construction that a lien did attach to the leasehold interest
because at the time of attachment it was supported by the lease-
hold interest but that when subsequently it came up for enforce-
ment after the lien had expired he was at liberty to give the Act
a liberal construction. In the end, I think, it came to this that
in the opinion of the Court the lien subsisted upon a chattel
only. At that time it was a lien upon a chattel resting upon no
interest in land to support it, and, I think, with deference, it
could not be supported in law upon the authorities to which we
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were referred, or on any which T have been able to find. In
Wallace on Mechanic’s Liens, 8rd Ed., the Canadian and Ameri-
can cases on this point are fully considered, and I can find noth-
ing in them to support the proposal that a mechanic¢’s lien under
the Aet can attach upon a chattel. (See Phillips on Mechanics’
Liens, 3rd Ed., sees. 176 and 177).

The judgment in Galvin Lumber Yards, Ltd. v. Ensor, supra,
is opposed to the judgment of the same Court in an earlier case,
The Galvine Watson Lumber Co. v. McKinnon et al. (1911), 4
Sask. L.R. 68, where the only distinetion in the facts is that in
the latter case the building was erected by a squatter and the
Court held that the lien had never attached on the land.

The two principal factors to be considered in a case of this
kind are the attachment of the erection to the land and the inten-
tion of the parties in relation to that attachment. Tt is said in
the cases that a slight attachment to the land will help to support
a finding that the chattel has become part of the land, yet when
the intention is clear that it shall not as is the case here then T
think we should have no hesitation in finding that no mechanic’s
lien attached in this case and that the appeal should be allowed.

Martin, J.A.: This case raises a question of importance on
the construction of section 6 of the Mechanies’ Lien Act, Cap.
156, R.8.B.C. 1924, which provides that:

Every person:—(a.) Who does work or service or causes work or service
to be done upon, or places or furnishes any material to be used in the
making, eonstrueting, erecting, altering, or repairing, either in whole or in
part, of, or adding to, any erection, building, railway, tramway, road,
bridge, trestle-work, wharf, pier, mine, quarry, well, excavation, embank-
ment, sidewalk, sewer, drain, ditch, flume, tunnel, aqueduct, dyke, or other
work, or the appurtenances to any of them, or improving any street, road,
or sidewalk adjacent thereto, for any owner, contractor, or sub-contractor,
or who does such work, or causes such work to be done, and places or
furnishes any such material; or

(b.) Who does such work or service, or causes work or service to be
done, or places or furnishes any material for or in respect of clearing,
excavating, filling, grading, or ditching any land for any owner, contractor,
or sub-contractor, or who does such work, or causes such work to be done,
and places or furnishes any sueh material,—shall, by virtue thereof, have a
lien for the price of such work, service, or material, or work, service, and
material, apon:—

(e.) Said erection, building, railway, tramway, road, bridge, trestle-
work, wharf, pier, mine, quarry, well, excavation, embankment, sidewalk,
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sewer, drain, ditch, flume, tunnel, aqueduet, dyke, or other work, and the
appurtenances to any of them:
(d.) The material so placed or furnished for said works or improvements:
{e.) The lands occupied or benefited thereby or enjoyed therewith, or
upon or in respect of which such work or service is done, or upon which
such material is placed or furnished to be used.

Under this section the respondents elaim liens for “work or
service” and for “material” used in the construction of a special
type of bieyele-track in the defendant’s large building, a sports
arena, used as a skating-rink and for shows of “various different
ammusements . . . requiring constant alteration,” as the
defendant put it.

The track was primarily built for the purpose of holding a
six-day bicycle race, beginning on the 13th of July, 1931, under
a contract for lease between the defendant and the Canadian
Cycle Race Association Limited which recited that during the
said six days said company was to have “exclusive use” of the
arena for said race

together with an option to conduet further bicyele races at any time when

the said building is available during the ensuing year, but it is agreed and
understood that the arena shall be available at least twice during the year
commencing the 20th day of July, 1931.

The company was allowed “two full working days without
charge immediately prior to the starting of any race for the
purpose of erecting and installing tracks and necessary equip-
ment” and the same time after any race to remove the same. On
the 7th of July the City of Vancouver granted a permit to the
defendant (per Guy W. Patrick owner or agent’) “to alter the
following building (arena)” and the “‘special details” of the
alteration authorized are deseribed as “Temporary Ramp,”
Arena, class of construction B, value $1,000. It is admitted
that the track would have to be and was of solid construection
particularly at the ends where the riders would turn at a 45
degrees slope and where as many as twelve riders would some-
times be expected to take the turn at the same time at high speed
and that such a great strain would have to be safeguarded
against. The track was built in that central portion of the
building used during the winter months as a skating-rink and
was about 220 feet long and fifteen feet wide on each side with
sleeping accommodation for the riders in the centre and at the
said turning ends it was “banked up” fourteen feet high.
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The learned judge below has found as a fact that “in order
to keep the race-track steady [it] was nailed to the arena struc-
ture,” and there is abundant evidence, including defendant’s
admissions on discovery, to support that finding not only in
those portions of the evidence to which our attention was
directed but in other portions thereof, all of which I have read
with care, with the result that the learned judge has, if any-
thing understated the case, and that while portions of the track
along the fence of the arena at the sides were “fixed to the free-
hold in a slight way” yet other and considerable portions, the
ramps, were built up and fixed in a substantial way to the arena
structure as the special nature of the track demanded for safety
aforesaid: ‘‘solidly nailed wherever it was necessary.

Tt would stay in there forever as well as the time it was needed,”
as one of the carpenters who built it describes it.

The main submission of appellant’s counsel was based upon
the fact that this large track structure was for an alleged “tem-
porary” purpose and that a lien attaches only where it is a per-
manent fixture to the land, and cases bearing upon the question
of fixtures as between landlord and tenant, mortgagor and mort-
gagee, and vendor and purchaser, ete., were cited, e.g.. Haggert
v. The Town of Brampton (1897), 28 S.C.R. 174, at 179;
Stack v. Eaton (1902), 4 O.L.R. 335, and Dobey v. (iray
(1906), 42 N.S.R. 259; but these, and several other similar
reported cases based on the common law which have come before
us, afford inadequate assistance in the consideration of cases in
general, and the present in particular, under the sweeping lan-
gnage of Mechanics’ Lien Acts like this one which are in
derogation of the common law, as was pointed out by the
Supreme Court of the United States in a leading case on the
subject, Canal Company v. Gordon (1867), 6 Wall. 561 at
5371, viz.

Llens of this kind were unknown in the common law and equity juris-
prudence both of England and of this country. They were clearly defined
and regulated in the civil law (Domat, secs. 1742, 1744). Where they exist
in this country they are the creatures of local legislation. They are gov-
erned in everything by the statutes under which they arise. These statutes
vary widely in different States. Henece we have found no adjudication in
any other State which throws any light upon the question before us, and
there has been none in California. We are, therefore, compelled to meet
the case as one of the first impression.
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The same tribunal later said in Springer Land Association v.
Ford (1897), 168 U.S. 513, at 524:

Although mechanies’ liens are the creation of statute, the legislation
being remedial should be so construed as to effectuate its object. Davis v.
Alvord [(1876)1, 94 U.S. 545; Mining Ce. v. Cullins [1881)], 104 U.S.176.

Substantial compliance, in good faith, with the requirements of the par-
ticular law is sufficient, and the test of suech compliance is to be found in
the statute itself.

These enactments vary in the different States and Territories, and to the
variance in their terms, judicial decisions necessarily conform.

And at p. 530:

The truth is that what area of land is subject to lien in a given case
largely depends on the character of the improvement. The extent of ground
proper and necessary to the enjoyment of a building, a wall, or a fence,
would not be the same as that required for or appertaining to an irriga-
tion system, but the principle of determination is the same.

This is in accord with the leading judgment of the Court of
Appeal (Exchequer Chamber) in Holland v. Hodgson (1872),
41 L.J., C.P. 146 (per Blackburn, J., afterwards Lord Black-
burn) (approved by the Supreme Court in Haggert's case,
supra) wherein is to be found his oft-cited “classic illustration”
(per Sargant, J. in Vaudeville Electric Cinema Ld. v. Muriset
(1928), 2 Ch. 74, 83) of an anchor as being a part of the land
or not according to circumstances, and also of blocks of stone
placed one on the top of another in different circumstances: the

Court said:

“There is no doubt that the general maxim of law is, that what is
annexed to the land becomes part of the land; but it is very difficult, if
not impossible, to say with precision what constitutes an annexation suffi-
cient for this purpose. It is a question which must depend on the circum-
stances of each case, and mainly on two circumstances as indicating the
intention, viz., the degree of annexation and the objeet of the annexation.
Where the article in question is no further attached to the land, than by
its own weight it is generally to be considered a mere chattel: see Wilt-
shear v. Cottrell (1853), 1 E. & B. 674; [s.c. 22 1.J., Q.B. 177], and the
cases there cited. But even in such a case, if the intention is apparent to
make the articles part of the land, they do become part of the land: see
D’Byncourt v. Gregory (1866), L.R. 3 Eq. 382.”

And again, p. 150, as to “temporary purpose” :

trade or tenant fixtures might in one sense be said to be fixed
merely for a temporary purpose, but we connot suppose the Court of
Exchequer meant to decide that they were not part of the land, though
liable to be severed by the tenant. The words “merely for a temporary
purpose” must be understood as applying to such a case as we have sup-
posed of the anchor dropped for the temporary purpose of mooring the ship,
or the instance immediately afterwards given by Parke, B., of a carpet
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tacked to the floor for the purpose of keeping it stretched whilst it was
there used, and not to a case such as that of a tenant, who, for example,
affixes a shop-counter for the purpose (in one sense temporary) of more
effectually enjoying the shop whilst he continued to sell his wares there.
Subject to this observation, we think that the passage in the judgment of
Hellawell v. Eastwood [(1851)], 6 Ex. 295; s.. 20 L.J., Ex. 154, does
state the true principles, though it may be questioned if they were in that
case correctly applied to the facts.

The first of the two quoted “considerations” of attachment to
the soil laid down by the Hellawell case (which it is now thought
should have been decided in favour of the fixture—e.g., Hay-

gert’s case, supra, p. 18), was, p. 149:

The mode of annexation to the soil or fabric of the house, and the extent
to which it is united to them, whether it can easily be removed integre salve
et commode, or not, without injury to itself or the fabric of the building.

This “consideration” is of much importance here because it
is admitted by the defendants’ witnesses that the large end
ramps had to be destroyed in removing them but the side “bents”
and “decking” were stored in the basement of the arena after
removal and ave still there. This removal was completed about
the 5th of September, so as to have the arena ready for a labour
meeting on the 6th, and was done by the defendant’s engineer
with a gang of five men, who began the dismantling on or about
the 28th of August, and the engineer said also:

1 suppose it is quite a common thing to change the arena about in that
way? Oh, yes.

In changing it for exhibitions and skating and prize fights? Yes.

And that is in the ordinary course of business that the arena should be
changed about? Yes.

This considerable delay in removal was doubtless because the
original contract had contemplated further races as aforesaid,
and during the construction of the track its use for the Canadian
Olympic trials in August and also for another six-day race
about the end of September was discussed and contemplated,
but the first one proved to be a financial loss and so those races
were not held, doubtless for that reason, but these intentions of
further use of the track have a weighty bearing on the meaning
of “temporary” use, if that element is of substance.

The said Vaudeville case, in applying the decision in Hol-
land’s case, supra, is also a remarkable instance of the way in
which things change with circumstances, there fixed seats in a
cinema hall being held to be part of the land (p. 85) though in
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Lyon & Co. v. London City and Midland Bank (1903), 2 K.B.
135 similar chairs in a hippodrome screwed to the floor in “sub-
stantially the same manner” were held not to be so, for reasons
explained “upon the special facts” by Lords James and Lindley
in Reynolds v. Ashly & Son (1904), A.C. 466.

The section before us is a very wide one in its scope, more so
than most and not exceeded, indeed equalled, by any one that I
have found. It extends not only to work or service . . . done
but to “cause” them to be done, and to “placing or furnishing
any material to be used” not only in the making, constructing,
or erecting of any of the many specified classes of work, “either
in whole or in part” but to alterations additions and repairs
thereof and covers every field of “work” from that upon “any

erection, building, railway . . . road . . . wharf . . .
mine, quarry, well, excavation, embankment, sewer . . .

tunnel, aqueduct, dyke, or other work or the appurtenances to
any of them” to “clearing, excavating, filling, grading, or ditch-
ing any land for any owner, contractor or sub-contractor . . .”

There is no requirement therein, it is important to note, in
view of certain decisions, that the work should be an improve-
ment {save as regards the “improving” of “adjacent streets,
roads and sidewalks”) or add to the value of the premises, and
o the lien attaches (with that one exeeption) even if the work
is or should turn out to be a detriment to the property, and the
word “improvements” is only added in (d) alternatively to
“work” so as to cover, apparently, the said exception of adjacent
streets.

By (e¢) the lien is given upon “said erection, building .
or other work and the appurtenances to any of them”; by (d)
upon the material so placed or furnished for such works and by
(e) upon “the lands ocenpied or benefited or enjoved there-
with . . .7

Tt is only nuder section 9 and in favour of mortgagees that
the “increase in value of the mortgaged premises by reason of
the works or improvements” comes into consideration, but that
section has no application to this case wherein the “works or
improvements” were “constructed upon the lands with the
knowledge . . . of the owner” within section 10.
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By interpretation section 2,—

“Owner” includes a person having any estate or interest, legal or equit-
able, in the lands upon or in respect of which the work or service is done,
or material is placed or furnished, at whose request and upon whose credit,
or on whose behalf, or with whose privity or consent, or for whose direct
benefit any such work or service is done, or material is placed or furnished,
and all persons claiming under him whose rights are acquired after the
work or service in respect of which the lien is claimed is commenced or
the material placed or furnished have been commenced to be furnished.

It was pointed out by the Court of Appeal of Saskatchewan,
in an instructive judgment per Lamont, J.A. in Galvin Lumber
Yards, Ltd. v. Ensor et al. (1922), 15 Sask. L.R. 349; 2
W.W.R. 15; that the lien attaches to the building and also to
the “land occupied . . . thereby,” saying, p. 352:

I do not agree that the building must be attached to the soil so as
to become part of the land itself before a mechanics’ lien can attach thereto.
And that for two reasons: (1) Because the statute has not made the
affixing of the building to the soil a condition precedent to a right of lien;
(2) Because, neither the object of the Act nor the evil it sought to remedy
requires that it should be so affixed. Where a statutory right is given upon
the performance of certain conditions precedent, or the existence of certain
prervequisites, that right may be claimed the moment that the statutory
requirements have been complied with, unless the object of the legislation
shews that it could not have been intended that such right should be exer-
cised without something further being done. Here, the plaintiffs have
established the fulfihment of every condition required by the statute to
entitle them to a lien. That lien, by sec. 7, attaches to the “building and
the lands occupied thereby and enjoved therewith.” Tt will be observed
that it does not say that the lien shall attach to the building and the land
to which it is “affixed.” A building placed on sills sitting on the top of
the land “oceupies” the land on which it is placed just as much as if it
were affixed to the soil.

And after quoting from Phillips on Mechanics’ Liens, 3rd
Ed., p. 309, that:

The whole object under this Act is to prevent the owner of lands, what-
ever his estate in them, from getting the labour and capital of others with-
out compensation.

and from Wallace on Mechanies’ Liens, 3rd Ed., p. 10, he

proceeds :

To hold, therefore, that a right of lien can only be exercised where the
building is affixed to the soil, would, in my opinion, be to impose a con-
dition which neither the object of the legislation nor the language of the
Act requires. The right of the lienholder is to sell the owner’s interest in
the building and the lands occupied thereby and enjoyed therewith. In
the case of a leasehold interest, that right is to sell the term for which the
tenant holds the lands and his interest in the building. If the building is
to become the property of the landlord at the expiration of the lease, the
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purchaser would be entitled to have possession of the land and building for  cAYLEY,
the term of the lease, but subject to its provisions. If the building is to 0. J.
remain the property of the tenant with a right of removal, the purchaser, -
in addition to the term, aequires the tenant’s property in the building and
his right to remove it. Dee. 12.

1931

e cites in approval the appellate decision of the Supreme ooyrror
Court of Nebraska in Zabriskie v. Greater America Exposition — APPEAL
Co. (1903), 93 N.W. 958; 62 L.R.A. 369; that leasehold  jg39
interests and tenant’s buildings are subject to these liens, and

continues, p. 354:

In my opinion the right of the tenant to remove the structure at the STIRN
expiration of his term is not the test by which to determine whether or not VAN(/)U(;UVER
the lien can attach. The test under our Act is: Were the materials fur- Agpya Co.
nished “to be used in the making, constructing, erecting, fitting, altering, Lirp.
improving or repairing of any erection, building, land, wharf, pier, bulk-
head, bridge, trestle-work, or mine, or the appurtenances to any of them,
for any owner, contractor or subcontractor (sec. 4)” and did the owner
have an interest or estate in land which was to be occupied by the building,
ete., or enjoyed therewith? If these are answered in the affirmative, it does
not seem to me to be material whether at the expiration of the term the
building is to belong to the landlord or to the tenant with a right of
removal.

In the case at Bar the test is the same—uvuz., putting it briefly,
was the work done upon the building and were the materials MARTIN,
furnished therefor ?

In the Galvin case the lease was for a year, and therefore if
that decision is sound, and I have no doubt it is, then in the
case at Bar if the lease had been for the same period, or say for
six months for the summer period, between skating seasons, or
even for three months, or less, the plaintiffs could have filed
their liens for the construction of the race-track within 31 days
after its completion, pursuant to section 19 because the said
definition of “owner” includes a leasehold interest as in Galvin’s
case; and though the shorter the lease the less the interest yet
the principle is the same. But the case at Bar is on a higher
ground because the defendant is the owner with knowledge of
the “work” as aforesaid and the building upon which it was
done is admittedly part of the land.

The importance of the Galvin decision, however, is that it
shews the question of ‘“‘temporary” or ‘‘permanent” use or
attachment, which is of such consequence in ordinary cases of
fixtures, is not the test under this statute, because the “occupa-



176

CAYLEY,
co. J.

1931
Dec. 12.

COURT OF
APPEAL

1932

June 7.

STIRN
v.
VANCOUVER
Arexa Co.
Lap.

MARTIN,
J.A.

BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS. [Vor.

tion” of the lands by the lessee might be of a very short—*“tem-
porary”’—duration.

4

There is, moreover, in property of the present public “show
and entertainment” kind the additional element that from its
very nature and object continuous structural changes and altera-
tions in it, small or great in extent as may be necessary, must
or may be made at varying intervals to attract and satisfy the
fickle public taste for amusement or exercise, and this was
admitted by the defendant’s evidence above quoted. The pecu-
liarity of “show” buildings is generally recognized by the Courts
of the United States to which we must largely turn for prece-
dents because our legislation of this kind originated therein and
is unknown in England. Many illustrations could be cited but
three will suffice, viz.:

Tuec Co. v. McKnight (1918), 203 S.W. 338, a unanimous
decision of the Supreme Court of Tennessee wherein the
numerous loose detachable parts of a vacunum-cleaner system in
a theatre were held to be subject to a mechanic’s lien, the Court
saying:

We consider the question to have been settled in the case of Halley v.
Alloway, 10 Lea, 523. In that case it was said, in substance, that the old
idea as to fixtures, which was whether the thing was permanently attached
and fixed in and to the freehold, has given way in cases of this kind to the
nature of the thing done, the character of the house repaired, or constructed,
and for which the materials were furnished, as well as the intention of the
parties comnstructing the building.

In Waycross Opera-llouse Co. v. Sossman (1894), 20 S.E.
252, the Supreme Court of Georgia unanimously held that loose
stage furnishings and fittings of opera houses were snbject to
sueh a lien, saying:

In a strict sense, these articles, or some of them, may not be fixtures, but

they are nevertheless essential to the completeness of a building of that
kind. They necessarily form a part and parcel of the edifice itself.
No one would ordinarily consider household furniture and belongings as a
part of the premises, but every one would naturally regard the drop cur-
tain, wings, borders, set houses, set trees, balustrades, ete., as being parts
of an opera house edifice. These things nsually remain permanently in the
louse where they are first set up, and are not moved about, as furniture is,
from house to house, when the owners change their places of abode. It is
true, perhaps, that some traveling theatrical companies carry with them
special scenery to more properly and advantageously set off partieular
plays: but this is the exception to the general rule, and in such instances
the permanent outfit of the house is only temporarily displaced.
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In Hardwood Interior Co. v. Bull (1914), 140 Pac. 702, a
unanimous decision of the Supreme Court of California in
which it was held that smoothing and waxing the floor of a
dance pavilion was an alteration to a building which created a
mechanic’s lien, the Court saying:

Having in mind matters of alteration, we can readily imagine instances
where a change in a part of a building would be a detriment to the prop-
erty, and yet be so unquestionably an alteration as to come clearly within
the language of section 1183, Code of Civil Procedure, and be lienable. In
the present case, while we think that the question is a close one, we are
of the opinion that the work done upon the building was a more substan-
tial character than the mere cleaning or polishing of the floor, or super-
ficial work of that character, and was in fact an alteration of the floor as
the word “alteration” is defined by the standard lexicographers (Sessions
v. State [ (1902) 1, 115 Ga. 18, 41 S.E. 259, 260), and that consequently the
contractor doing or furnishing the same is entitled to a lien under the
section of the Code mentioned, notwithstanding that the record fails to
shew that the work was of any benefit to the owner of the building on
which it was bestowed. If this work had been done for the owner of a
building after it was a completed structure, we have no doubt it would be
considered lienable. If lienable in such a case, it is lienable in this case also.

It is to my mind clear upon the true construction of the
statute before us in the light of the authorities cited that tem-
porary alterations and changes in, or additions to a building
which are essential to the use and purpose for which it was
designed are a proper foundation for a mechanic’s lien for the
work done and materials furnished thereupon, and this is par-
ticularly so as to property employed in the production of shows
and entertainments the alterations and additions to the buildings
and land of which would, of necessity, be in, e.g., the case of a
general amusement or exhibition park, continuous and relatively
frequent, and so the question of temporary or permanent use
would not apply to such alterations or additions, though it might
to the original building in or to which they were made: that
piece of land which, e.g., might this month be Jaid out for racing
and other track events might next month be excavated and used
for aquatic events, swimming and diving, and the month there-
after filled in and levelled for tennis, basketball, badminton,
bowling, or dancing, etc., all of which necessitated alterations
in the land itself, but it would not be seriously suggested, T
apprehend, that these activities would not also of necessity con-
stitute the doing of work and the furnishing of materials upon
the land itself.
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CAYLEY, It is not to be overlooked that the statute covers great and
every-day operations of labour, such as clearing and levelling
1931 land, that have nothing to do with fixtures at all, and if an
Dec.12. gwner of land hires men to clear his property from a grove of
courror DIg trees, or to blast off an outerop of rock, or remove a hillock
APPEAL  therefrom, there is no doubt about their right to a lien for their
1932 work in so doing even if it was most detrimental to the property
and in no sense a fixture. And, furthermore, if, e.g., a builder
made a contract with a rich property owner to build sleeping-
ST;RN porches and sun-rooms as substantial additions to the bedrooms
Vaxcouver of his mansion and make a bathing pool in his garden all for
AREIZ‘\;‘;CO' only two months’, or less, summer accommodation of certain
distinguished visitors that he wished to honour, and thereafter
to remove the porches and sun-rooms and fill up the pool and
\arrmy, | Testore everything to its original state, then in such case I have
1A no doubt that under our statute the contractor would have his
lien despite the fact that the temporary nature of the work was

the basis of the entire contract.

June 7.

It follows that in my opinion the judgment herein establish-
ing the liens should be affirmed and the appeal dismissed.

McPuirores, J.A.: Upon the argument of this appeal T was
of the opinion that the learned trial judge had arrived at the
proper conclusion so well set forth in that learned judge’s
reasons for judgment. However, we had the benefit of able
arguments upon both sides in this appeal and as it is a branch
of the law purely statutory, and very important cases arise from
time to time in relation to the extent to which the Mechanies’
Lien Act (Cap. 156, R.S.B.C. 1924) may be carried, judgment

MCPHILLIPS, was reserved. Since then careful consideration of the matter
T.A. .
has not led me to any change of mind and I have been very
greatly strengthened in my view by the reading of the reasons
for judgment of my learned brother Marrin—an advantage 1
have had—and if I may be permitted to say so, my learned
brother has in such an illuminative way and so completely
traversed the facts of the present case and the relevant law in a
manner so convineing that I find it quite unnecessary to add
anything thereto; in truth, the reasons supported by the cita-
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tion of authorities from the highest Courts is so borne out that  CAYLEY,

. co. J.
nothing further need be added. —_
I would dismiss the appeal. 1931
Dee. 12.
Macooxarp, J.A.: T agree with the reasons for judgment of
) COURT OF
my brother MarrIx. APPEAL
Appeal dismissed, Macdonald, C.J.B.C. dissenting. 1932
] June 7.
Solicitors for appellants: Grossman, Holland & Co.
Solicitor for respondent: A. H. J. Swencisky. Mf‘\
VANCOUVER
ARrena Co.
Lrp.
MOORE AND MOORE v. LARGE. COURT OF
APPEAL
Negligence ~— Damages — Physicians and surgeons — Injured shoulder—
Erroneous diagnosis—Failure to advise X-ray—~Evidence of care taken. 1932
June 7.
The plaintiff fell on the pavement, and injuring her shoulder consulted the
defendant, a practising physician and surgeon, who after examination Mooge
concluded she only had a bad sprain. The doctor advised her to mas- 1 v.
LARGE

sage the shoulder and report in four or five days. She did not see the
doctor again but her shoulder did not improve, and three months after
the last interview with the defendant she consulted another doctor,
who on taking an X-ray examination found her shoulder was dis-
located, the lateness of the discovery necessitating a major operation.
The plaintiff recovered judgment in an action for damages.

Held, on appeal, reversing the decision of MacpoxaLp, J., per MACDONALD,
C.J.B.C. and Macpoxarp, J.A,, that where a shoulder is injured and
dislocation is suspected, the fact that the surgeon consulted does not
advise the taking of an X-ray after applying the recognized tests and
giving the usual instructions, does not necessarily constitute negligence
on his part, even where it is subsequently disclosed that his diagnosis
was erroneous. .

Per MARTIN, J.A.: That the appeal should be allowed on the ground that
the trial judge had not passed upon an important, if not the most
important piece of evidence upon which the question of the defendant
surgeon’s alleged negligence turned, namely, that after the second visit
he gave her instructions to report to him in four or five days, but with
this she did not eomply. To send the case back for a new trial would
not be justified in the circumstances, the defendant’s evidence supported
as it is by other evidence, should be believed and the action fails,
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APPEAL by defendant from the decision of Macpowxarp, J.
of the 31st of December, 1931 (reported, 45 B.C. 43) in an
action for damages for negligence in treating Mrs. Moore, who
consulted him as a surgeon in relation to an injured shoulder.
On the 18th of December, 1930, Mrs. Moore fell on the pave-
ment in Vancouver, injuring her shoulder, and she consulted
the defendant the same evening. Ile examined her and on the
following morning concluding that she had a bad sprain with
bruises, instructed her as to massaging the arm and told her to
report in four or five days, but she did not report and he did
not see her again. Her shoulder did not improve and three
months later she consulted another doctor who found there was
a dislocation which, owing to the lateness of its discovery,
necessitated a severe operation. The plaintiff recovered judg-
ment for $1,800.

The appeal was argued at Vancouver on the 18th to the
22nd of March, 1932, before Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C., MartIw,
McPurnrirs and Macopoxarp, JJ.A.

Wood, K.C., for appellant: The evidence shews that the
defendant tried the usual methods of testing whether there was
dislocation, and it must be shewn there was want of competent
and ordinary care and skill to such a degree as to leave bad
vesults: see Rich et uxor v. Pierpont (1862), 3 F. & F. 35 at
p. 40; Hancke v. Hooper (1835), 7 Car. & P. 81 at p. 83;
Town v. Archer (1902), 4 O.L.R. 383 at pp. 388-9; Jarvis v.
International Nickel Co. (1929), 2 D.L.R. 842,

Burns, K.C., for respondent: The methods of moving the
arm about are not conclusive in disclosing a dislocation as this
case shews on its face. The doetor should have suggested an
X-ray in order to be sure. He knew what the result would be
in case of delay in treating a dislocation, and the learned judge
below having found negligence in not suggesting an X-ray, his
finding should not be disturbed.

Wood, replied.

Cur. ade. vult.
7th June, 1932,
Macpoxarn, C.J.B.C.: This i¢ an action against a surgeon
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for malpractice. The situation is this—the plaintiff fell on the
street injuring her shoulder. She called in the defendant, a
well-known practitioner of Vancouver, who made a thorough
examination at which he applied the usual and proper tests for
the discovery of dislocation and came to the conclusion after
careful re-examination and consideration that there was no
dislocation; that it was a case of a severe sprain and bruises.
During this time a friend of the plaintiff who was present, Mrs.
Hamar, suggested an X-ray photograph. The defendant did
not advise that course on account of the expense, the plaintiff
not being a person of means. He felt that after the complete
examination he had made and the application of the usual tests
for dislocation approved of by the profession and finding none
of the reactions usually found in dislocations, it was not neces-
sary to put his patient to the expense of an X-ray. He says he
advised her to call him in if the remedies to be applied effected
no improvement in her condition. The shoulder got no better
but instead of calling him in she applied liniments and other
remedies to it of her own. This went on for three months
during which time her shoulder not only did not improve but
became more painful. The defendant remained in entire ignor-
ance of her condition. After three months she visited her son-
in-law, a Dr. Lyons, at the town of Powell River who examined
her and advised an X-ray. He had an X-ray machine of his
own with which he took the picture. That shewed that the shoul-
der had been dislocated and owing to the lapse of time since the
dislocation a serious surgical operation was necessary which was
afterwards performed by Dr. Patterson of Vancouver, a noted
specialist. Before Dr. Patterson operated he saw the X-ray
picture and knew that the shoulder was dislocated. He, how-
ever, before operating applied the usual tests which surgeons
apply independently of X-ray and could find no indication of
dislocation. The shoulder did not react to the usual and
ordinary tests which were applied by him and which had been
applied by the defendant. In operating on her shoulder he
discovered that the rim of the socket had a gap in it which he
says he believes was congenital since there were no signs of a
fracture and no fragments of the bone to be found. This, in his
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opinion, explained the reasons why the usual tests failed to
disclose the dislocation.

The judge has not founded his judgment on the want of skill
of the defendant. He founds it entirely upon what he consid-
ered the negligence of the defendant in not having an X-ray
picture taken. The skill and cave required of a physician in
like circumstances is ordinary care and skill, not the highest
possible degree of both. Lanphier v. Phipos (1838), 8 Car. & P.
4755 drmand v. Carr (1926), S.C.R. 575. It is not the latest
and best appliances available but what are recognized as the
usual and efficient appliances then in use which are required.
In Jarvis v. International Nickel Co. (1929), 2 D.L.R. 842,
Wright, J. at p. 847 said (a dislocation case):

that the statements of law in 20 Hals, p. 332, para. 815, are
particularly apt in defining the degree of skill. There it is stated that all
the practitioner is required to bring to the performance of his duty is
reasonable care and average skill and that he is not responsible merely
because some other practitioner of greater skill and greater knowledge
might have prescribed a different treatment.

And in the same case on p. 848, the same learned judge, after
referring to the fact that the defendant in that case was unable

to diagnose the trouble, said:

The only other negligence alleged is that the defendant MeCauley, being
unable to diagnose the trouble, should have called in a specialist. I have
failed to find in any of the authorities any support for the proposition that
if a physician in charge of a ease is unable to diagnose the trouble he is
under legal obligation so to inform the patient and to advise the calling
in of a specialist.

See also Fields v. Rutherford et al. (1878), 29 U.C.C.P. 113
and Town v. Archer (1902), 4 O.L.R. 383.

Unlike the Jarvis case, supra, the defendant came to a firm
decision as to the condition of the shoulder. Ie was not in
doubt; had he been there might have been some reason for an
N-ray, but he was not in doubt and although, as it afterwards
turned out, he was mistaken in his diagnosis as the result shews,
there is no suggestion of any unskilfulness or want of care on his
part except that of his failure to advise an X-ray. The two
eminent specialists called for the defendant at the trial approved
of the defendant’s diagnosis and stated that X-ray ought not to
be advised in cases where the surgeon is convinced by the use
of the usual tests that that course was unnecessaryv. It has not
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surely come to this that if the cause of the trouble is not appar-
ent to the eye of the surgeon or physician he must advise an
X-ray or take the consequences to his reputation and to his
pocket for not having done so. Is the X-ray to be the only
arbitrator in such a case and are years of study and experience
to be cast aside as negligible?

Therefore with due respect to the learned trial judge I think
that the defendant was guilty of no negligence whatever in
this ease.

In this conclusion it is not necessary to enquire whether the
plaintiff was guilty of negligence for not informing the defend-
ant of her failure to improve; but lest the case should go higher
I think I should express my opinion upon that point. I think
she ought to have advised the defendant even if she were not
asked to do so. It is not the practice of medical men nowadays
to eontinue visits unless the case clearly demands it or unless
the patient requests it. Her failure to do this is the most prob-
able cause of her subsequent suffering and expense. In fact, I
think, it may be said to be the undoubted cause and on this
ground alone she has herself been the cause of her suffering and
loss and the appeal should be allowed.

Marrin, J.A.: This appeal should, in my opinion, be allowed
because it is, to me at least, apparent that the learned judge
below has not taken into consideration an important, if not the
most important, fact upon which the question of the defendant’s
negligence turns, viz., that after his second visit to the female
plaintiff he gave her instructions which she failed to comply
with, as he states:

I told her to continue on with her massage and rest, and before I left
her I told her to report to me in a matter of four or five days, those bruises
should be well in from seven to ten days. She left, and I never heard any-
thing more from her.

You heard nothing more from her? No, not for four months.

And again, in answer to the question of Court:

On the day you saw Smith (plaintiff’s son-in-law} did you use the
expression “trivial?” Yes, if she had carried out my orders I would have
seen it was not a trivial matter, or a sprain, or a bruise, and would have
had an X-ray.

The plaintiff denied this, saying in answer to her counsel:

The doctor suggests, I may tell you here, that he told you, on leaving
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days, you were to see him again? Oh, no, he didn’t say that, no.
Or anything indicating to you that you should see him again? No,
not at all.

On cross-examination she said:

And did he say anything to you about letting him know how you got
on? No.

Didn’t suggest you let him know how you got on? No.

In his judgment the learned judge sets out the evidence upon
which he founds it, saying, “These facts, shortly stated, consti-
tute the basis of the complaint by the plaintiffs as to negligence,”
but he unfortunately, with respect, then entirvely overlooked, and
did not later notice, this very important ‘basis of the defence

as to negligence,” because there can be no doubt that if
the plaintiff had been instructed to report to the defendant
within a few days and had done so, that he would have then
seen that it was a case where an X-ray should be taken (from
the unnecessary expense of which he had been properly desirous
of saving her, as a person of small means) and also beyond ques-
tion the true nature of the injury would have been discovered
and rectified, as could easily have been done at that time,
becanse it is found that “the defendant had the necessary skill
and knowledge.”

This omission to pass upon this primary piece of evidence
while considering other portions as speecially enumerated,
including minor ones, leaves the case in a very unsatisfactory
position, and so we must now, acting as the learned judge should
have done, pass upon it, but without the benefit of having the
witnesses before us, or else send the case back for a new trial at
great expense and delay, which in the circumstances would not
be justified.

The matter has caused me much difficulty, not to say anxiety,
having regard to its consequences to the parties concerned, but
after giving it very careful consideration I am of opinion that
the defendant’s evidence should be aceepted as being the truth,
not only because of his own definite statements but because it
1s the most probable thing that would have happened under the
cireumstances, which view is fortified by the evidence of Dr.
P. A. McLennan upon cross-examination.

In coming to this conclusion I have not overlooked another
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weighty objection taken to the judgment, wviz., that it states:
“ The plaintiff, reposing confidence in the defendant,
expected an early recovery.” This is directly contrary to her

own testimony :

I had confidence in Dr. Large. He said it would take time, and it was
badly bruised and sprained and it would take time to get well. There was
no use going to another doctor.

Did Dr. Large not tell you it should be well in a week or ten
days? No, he did not.

Nothing of that kind? No, he did not.

And her husband’s evidence is to the same effect.

It follows that the judgment ecannot be supported on the

whole evidence, and therefore the appeal should be allowed.
McPurvores, J.A. would allow the appeal.

Macporarp, J.A.: This is an appeal from a judgment
awarding damages against appellant, a medical practitioner.
for malpractice. Respondent slipped and fell on the street
pavement in Vancouver dislocating a shoulder. She fell on the
elbow, throwing her weight on the arm. Appellant, called in a
few hours later, spent three-quarters of an hour applying tests
by observation and manipulation to ascertain if a fracture or a
dislocation oceurred. He concluded that she sustained a bad
sprain of the muscles or tendons and a severe bruise. On the
following morning after a further examination he “was quite
satisfied there was no fracture.” Ile decided that there was no
dislocation on the first visit “a very few minutes after 1 had
seen her.”

The conversation between doctor and patient at the end of
the second examination is lmportant and there is conflict
between them. We have not the assistance of a finding by the
learned trial judge on this point. Appellant testified that he
told her he did not think it was necessary to take an X-ray;
that she should massage the arm and “report to me in a matter
of four or five days,” as “those bruises should be well in from
> Respondent said appellant told her that
there would be no need of an X-ray; he “did not wish to put
me to that expense’”; that it was very badly bruised and
sprained, also that she should exercise and massage the arm.
“Of course” (he said) according to her evidence “it would take

seven to ten days.’
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time but if you do as I tell you it will be all right in time.”
The impression she sought to convey was that appellant was so
fully satisfied with his diagnosis that there was no necessity for
a further call on his part, nor for respondent to report progress
to him. The proper deduction from her evidence however is
that the question of further possible attention was left open: in
other words “there was no mention that he would call again.”
The inference from her reference to the X-ray too is, not that
it would not be of assistance but that, at that stage, at all events,
the expense might be avoided.

Four months later—mno improvement of course taking place
in the meantime, as therve was a dislocation—she consulted Dr.
Lyons of Powell River where she was visiting her daughter.
He X-rayed the shoulder; found the dislocation and sent her
to Dr. Patterson in Vancouver who specializes in bone and joint
surgery. A major operation was performed to reduee it.

The trial judge based his finding of negligence solely on the
ground that appellant should have had the shoulder X-rayed as

Dr. Lyons did four months later
“or at any rate placed the responsibility upon the plainiffs [husband and
wife] if they were not willing to undertake the expense.”

If it is true that in all cases where one sustains injuries to
the shoulder or elsewhere likely to result in a fracture or dis-
location a skiagram must be obtained if liability in damages is
to be avoided in case of a faulty diagnosis the issue is simple.
The evidence might then be confined to one question of fact not
in dispute. I cannot, however, with great respect, agree that
the decision depends solely upon this alleged omission. It may
be, as the evidence shews, that in some cases it may transpire
that the original diagnosis was faulty and that later as disclosed
by failure of the injured member to improve an X-ray would
be necessary. It was because of that possibility that appellant,
according to his evidence, asked her “to report to me in the
matter of four or five days” nsing as he stated a stock expression
by doctors. It is natural to assume that he used words, at least
of similar import but I do not rest on that conclusion.

An X-ray involves expense and far from being a ground of
ceriticism it is commendable that a doctor, having regard to the
means of the patient should at times dependent on eireum-
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stances, avoid it, always assuming that with co-operation
between doctor and patient (both have responsibilities) it may
be resorted to, if necessary, at a later stage without in the mean-
time causing injury to the patient because of the delay. Tt is
self-evident that, assuming harm through delay for a reasonable
time will not ensue (and respondent’s medical witness did not
say it would) a doctor who follows this course is not negligent.
Mr. Burns did not rest on the failure on appellant’s part to
order an X-ray on his first or second visit. He submitted that
in any event proper tests were not applied to exclude the pos-
sibility of a dislocation and that some of the symptoms found
actually pointed to a dislocation. That requires examination.
The ground upon which the trial judge based his judgment
explains the failure to make a finding of fact on the important
point referred to, viz., the conversation that took place between
doctor and patient as to future conduct, at the end of the second
visit. If appellant’s evidence should be accepted—assuming for
the moment that he otherwise displayed reasonable skill—he
ought to be acquitted of negligence because a later examination
with the assistance of the X-ray would have disclosed the true
condition and the dislocation could then be adjusted. TFailure
to progress, had it been reported to him would have led him to
secure a skiagram. In the absence of a finding, T would, if
necessary, accept the appellant’s evidence, viz., that he asked
her to report progress. If on the other hand we accept respond-
ent’s evidence on this point what follows? Her evidence only
amounts to this—that the question of further communication
was not mentioned; certainly it was not excluded. She there-
fore acting prudently and fairly was obliged to report her con-
dition to appellant if she failed to find that normal progress
followed. 1f, as Dr. McLennan testified, a patient does not
progress as expected the doctor naturally expects to be advised.
Unnecessary calls are then avoided. That is the reasonable
view. It protects the patient from ncedless expense while the
doctor in the absence of an adverse report is satisfied that his
original diagnosis was correct. This co-operation is essential
to minimize the ever-present possibility of error. Respondents
recognized that this obligation to advise the doctor might
reasonably be expected because evidence was led by them to
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shew that although partially erippled and suffering pain at times
the injured respondent was justified in believing for four
months that the prolonged discomfort suffered might naturally
be expected to follow a severe bruise or sprain; hence no neces-
sity to report. Lay witnesses on her behalf (her medical witness
did not say so—he was not asked) testified that they knew of
cases where months elapsed before the injured member funec-
tioned normally after a bruise or sprain thus justifying the con-
tention that suspicion of a more serious injury involving the
need of further treatment was not aroused. We can, of course,
say as the trial judge stated—it is common ground—that “her
condition did not materially improve” and find from the evi-
dence that she knew or ought reasonably to have known long
before the end of four months and at a time when the mischief
could be remedied without a major operation, that normal
progress was not made and that fact should have been reported
to appellant. In the statement of claim it is properly, I think,
alleged that “the plaintiff’s shoulder did not heal but on the
contrary it became more and more painful.” Respondent did
not, of course, wilfully try to maim herself in order to collect
damages. She was simply careless.

If, therefore, failure to obtain an X-ray at the outset was not
per se a negligent act but depends, as I think it does, on other
factors and surrounding circumstances, we have to ascertain if
appellant used reasonable skill in applying recognized tests to
exclude the reasonable possibility of a dislocation. To find
what tests he applied we must depend upon his own evidence
and that of the patient and another non-professional witness.
These lay witnesses would not be technically accurate in deserib-
ing what took place but substantially having regard to their
limitations there is no important difference in the evidence of
all parties concerned. We may, therefore, freely accept appel-
lant’s evidence in this respect. He said that he examined the
arm and shoulder, felt the muscles and bones and “tried the
various signs for dislocation.” The shoulder was swollen taking
ap the loss of rotundity which otherwise would be apparent.
Deformity, if found, would settle it. He could not feel the head
of the humerus out of the normal position. Her arm
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lay right against her side, that is vertically and I was able to manipulate,
to adduet the arm slowly (i.e, draw it away) and the arm would come
right in again to the side.

She could also adduct the arm of her own volition (t.e., draw
it in again to the side). This according to recognized tests
should indicate no dislocation. He lifted her arm to see what
traction he could get and tried unsuccessfully to get her to touch
her nose and forehead with the fingers. She was able to place
her fingers on the opposite shoulder over the clavicle. This too
was not indicative of a dislocation. The symptoms more likely
pointed to a fracture.

After further examination on the second visit he was satisfied
there was no fracture (1) because she could adduct the arm,
(2) bring her finger tips up to the opposite shoulder, (3) no
deformity in the shoulder, and because (4) he could not feel
the head of the bone out of its socket. The muscles and tendons
were bruised. As to treatment he asked her to apply hot
fomentations and to gently massage the injured part. He did
not advise exercise—that would be impossible. She is evidently
mistaken on that point—no doctor would advise it.

On cross-examination he admitted that limitation of the move-
ment is a sign of dislocation along with other features; also that
pain in the shoulder joint (and she complained of it) was
another sign. But “pain covers so many different things.” It
was a sub-coracoid dislocation and is often cansed by a fall on
the outstretched arm. The head of the humerus comes out of
the glenoid cavity and under the coracoid, a projected spur
under the armpit. It is a common form of dislocation because
the muscles to prevent it ave chiefly all over rather than under
the shoulder. He summed up many symptoms and on the whole
the controlling evidence did not indicate dislocation. She had,
he found, certain limitations of movements indicating a sprain,
a dislocation, a fracture, or some nerve condition and he had to
exclude each one in arriving at a conclusion. Dislocation was
excluded on several grounds already referred to. Appellant
admitted that none of these and other tests referred to are infal-
lible: on the contrary one has to explore in various directions
(and he claimed he did so) to form an opinion by process of
exclusion. He did not rely on any one test. From his diagnosis
and examination he was convineed there was no disloeation.
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It is important to ascertain if the tests applied should reason-
ably, in the opinion of other medical men, lead to the conclusion
that there was no dislocation without resort to the X-ray having
special regard to the views of Dr. Lyons respondent’s witness
in view of the decision of the trial judge in respondent’s favour.
Unless, however, his evidence differs materially from other
experts called by the appellant we should also accept their evi-
dence. Dr. Lyons’s suspicions were naturally aroused by the
time that had elapsed without any improvement in the injured
member as well as by the nature of the fall. When he examined
her four months later he looked at the back to compare the two
shoulders and from the prominence of the left shoulder (differ-
ence in the contour) and the angle of the left arm he suspected
a dislocation. The point of the shoulder stood out. This showed
that the head of the humerus was not in place. This evidence
is not of value unless he also testified—and he did not—that
this abnormality would be visible when appellant examined her.
He did not in fact spend many minutes in examination—merely
hastily made certain observations. She couldn’t put her left
hand (the injured one) on her right shoulder. He did not
notice how far up she could place it “just from my own casual
observations” but thought ‘“she would possibly reach to the
middle of the clavicle.”

Dr. Lyons found her arm hanging out from her side at an
angle of 20 degrees—away from the side—a sign also of disloca-
tion. “She can’t bring it to the side.” “That” he said “is a
classical symptom of dislocation.” It existed when he saw her.
She could not adduet the arm—a primary symptom and “yet”
he conceded “the time Dr. Large examined her she could adduet
the arm; that would be an indication that there was no disloca-
tion”” and “a very strong one.” After four months some atrophy
of the muscles would take place, and this would make the
markings more prominent to locate a dislocation. The swelling
of the tissues too was gone when he examined her. His evidence
is not at all conclusive against the appellant. Ile does not pro-
fess to say ov to indicate that the tests applied by appellant, if
made, were inconclugive nor that the movements of the patient’s
arm described by appellant could not have been secured or if
secured would not reasonably lead a skilful physieian to the con-
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clusion that there was no dislocation. Neither does he say that
no conclusion of reasonable certainty could or ought to be
arrived at without resort to the X-ray.

As to his own practice in cases of this kind, upon being asked,
“when any one comes to you what do you do first” he said
“examine it: probably X-ray it.” At another stage, speaking
for himself he said “I have no hesitation in X-raying any aceci-
dent that comes under my observation,” but did not, I think,
intend that this answer should be taken literally. He did say,
as the trial judge quoted, “You can locate the nature of the
injury by X-ray whereas you can’t without it.” That however
should be qualified as he also said “If I think it needs it T do”
and again “I X-ray every accident that I think should be
X-rayed regardless of cost” and again “If you don’t think it is
necessary you don’t have it taken,” adding “It is resorted to to
resolve the doubt.” He also said one could tell by feeling with
the hand “whether the shoulder is dislocated or not.” That is
not consistent with the suggestion that an X-ray is imperative.

Dr. Patterson (who specializes in bone and joint surgery) to
whom the patient was sent by Dr. Lyons testifying for appellant,
said that he first examined her with special reference to signs
of dislocation and could not find any present. He agreed that
the tests applied by appellant should reveal it. He said:

Dr. Lyons had ’phoned me that he found a dislocated shoulder and that
is why I was particularly interested in finding whether or not the signs
were there and I really thought there had been some mistake in the inter-
pretation of the X-ray until I saw it.

It showed dislocation. This was confirmed on operating. Tt
was not the typical dislocation. The most important feature of
his evidence, explaining the whole difficulty was that he found
that “the front portion of the socket of the glenoid cavity was
missing.” In his opinion this was a congenital condition of an
unusual character and explained the faet that ordinary tests

did not reveal the true condition.

When I did find it I realized that was the reason that I hadn’t found
signs of a dislocated shoulder.

As to the missing portion, he said:

I could find no evidence that it ever had been there.

There was no fragment of bone shewn by the X-ray or by

his search.
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On the question of taking X-rays in such cases Dr. Patterson
said:

1 don’t take many X-rays. I would like to have them in a very much
larger percentage of cases, but if I can reasonably make up my mind that
I can treat a case without X-ray, I don’t have it, on account of the cost,
without the patient is wealthy or can afford to spend the money.

And again:

Several times a month I tell people not to go to the expense of an X-ray
even when they suggest it, because I know they can’t afford it, and I think
1 can get on without it; and in some of these cases I find later I have to
get an X-ray.

It would, of course, “make it much easier for me” to have it.

I am not always right: I sometimes find later on that I have to get one.

But if he took one in every case:

T would consider I was running myself out of business.

Further:

I don’t have anything like the X-rays some men have—not nearly as
many now as I used to. It is a question of judgment in each case.

As an example, he said:

1 had a case at noon today where something fell on a patient’s foot, and
there is a fracture, 1 am satisfied. I don’t know whether it bas gone into
the joint or not. Now, he was willing to have an X-ray, and I told him
I thought we could do without it. I think that I can find in two or three
days if it has involved the joint, without an X-ray, and if T am not sure
in the course of a week or so, I will get an X-ray, but T am not going to
put them to the expense of an X-ray if it is not necessary. That is my
attitude. T would like to have them, I would like to have had it in this
case, it would have cleared my mind at once. Now I still have it on
my mind.

The skiagram taken by Dr. Lyons was lost. There is no
suggestion that it was deliberately destroved. It would not,
however, assist in determining the existence or otherwise of the
abnormal or congenital condition referred to.

It didn’t shew this condition of abnormality.

It would, however, shew that the bone was not where it
usually would be in a sub-coracoid dislocation.

Dr. Patterson’s decision that the condition was congenital
was based first on the appearance found at the operation and secondly on
the absence of any fragment showing in the X-ray.

It is of some significance too that Dr. Patterson
asked everybody in the operating room to look at it.

It was an unusnal condition. After proceeding as he
described in his evidence he
came to the conclusion that it was congenital because there was no evidence
of fracture surface or any covering tissue that would exist following fraec-
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ture—there was no raw bone surface; there was no granulated tissue, that
is the formation of fibrous tissue over the bony surface.

He wanted to make sure that it was congenital and not frac-
tured in dislocation. The absence of fragments would be addi-
tional evidence of congenital condition—also the surface of the
bone would be entirely different if it were the result of a frac-
ture. Notwithstanding this abnormal condition it could at the
outset have been put back by manipulation in the same position
as before the accident.

This unusual congenital condition would interfere with or
possibly prevent a proper diagnosis in the first place. This view
was supported by Dr. McLennan who also specializes in bone and
joint surgery. He stated it would “tend to minimize the con-
dition—make it more difficult to determine by manipulation or
feeling or on inspection.” He also testified that the methods
adopted by appellant in his diagnosis were “the usual methods
to be adopted by any capable careful physician or surgeon.” It
was ‘“ a reasonable examination to give.”

Dr. Lyons was called in rebuttal but did not displace the
evidence given by Dr. Patterson and Dr. McLennan. In an
attempt to shew that this abnormal condition did not exist as
disclosed by an examination of the stereo films taken by him

and later lost he was asked:
What did it shew as to the abnormality of the glenoid cavity?

and said:

I saw no fractures.

No question of a missing part? I did not see any.

Could you have seen it if the missing part that is suggested was existing
there? I presume that it would be—it could be detected.

It could be detected? Although I am not an authority on X-ray.

You looked for fracture and was satisfied it was not there? Yes.

Or a deficiency in the glenoid cavity? Yes.

But later, he said:

My examination of the film was merely for the purpose of determining
whether there was dislocation or not.

Asked to explain why the film would not shew it Dr. Lyons
said:

I won’t attempt to explain it because I can’t.

Well do you mean that sometimes X-rays make mistakes? Yes, they do
sometimes.

It is apparent that this evidence, not dissimilar to Dr. Pat-
terson’s does not shew that the congenital condition did not

13
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exist. That would be disclosed beyond question upon operating
and as the trial judge made no finding on the point I think we
must irresistibly draw the inference that it did exist.

On the foregoing facts, adopting the law as outlined by the
learned trial judge, appellant should be acquitted of the charge
of negligence. Ie can only be so charged on the assumption
that in all cases where an injury results from an ordinary fall,
and dislocation is suspected an X-ray must be taken. No bind-
ing aunthority lays down that requirement as essential. Dr.
Lyons’s evidence, read as a whole, does not support that view.
If that is conceded it is only necessary to add that there is no
serious question on the part of any witness called that the
ordinary tests, although not infallible, would in the vast
majority of cases point to a definite conclusion. Undoubtedly
the abnormality referred to, openly exposed by Dr. Patterson to
others in the course of the operation, prevented or at least inter-
fered with an accurate diagnosis. The unfortunate result arose
not from want of reasonable care on appellant’s part but
because of respondent’s failure, when she knew or ought to have
known that the shoulder was not improving, to notify appellant.
Reasonable co-operation would have prevented the serious results
that followed. Dr. Large I have no doubt, is, as was testified,
a skilful and capable physician of long experience and the
evidence does not warrant a finding that would impair a
reputation obtained by years of devotion to professional work.

I would allow the appeal.

Appeal allowed.

Solicitors for appellant: Wood, Hogg & Bird.
Solicitors for respondents: Burns, Walkem & Thomson.
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HARNAM SINGH v. KAPOOR SINGH ET AL. 02:3;;;“‘
Partnership agreement—No transfer of interest without consent of part- 1932
ners—Transfer of a partner’s interest—No consent obtained—Transfer
of assets to an incorporated company—Dissolution—Right to an June 10.
accounting—D>Pleadings—Right of amendment—R.8.B.C. 192}, Cap. 191, HaRNAM
Secs. 84 and 41. SINGH
v

Five East Indians entered into a partnership on equal terms under written Karoor
agreement of the 16th of October, 1916, under the name of “Mayo SiNen
Lumber Company.”” The agreement contained a clause that no partner
could sell his share in the partnership without the consent in writing
of the other partners. On October 2nd, 1917, one partner, Sheam
Singh, sold two-sevenths of his interest to one Inder Singh, and on
July 19th, 1920, Inder Singh sold his interest to the plaintiff. Two of
the original partners, Mayo Singh and Kapoor Singh acquired all the
interests in the partnership with the exception of the share held by
the plaintiff, and on November 24th, 1932, they incorporated the Mayo
Lumber Company, Limited with a capital of $100,000, divided into
1,000 shares of $100 each, and on the 3rd of December following in
consideration of $70,000, they transferred to the incorporated company
all the assets of the Mayo Lumber Company except a 50-ton Shay loco-
motive and a donkey-engine, taking 700 shares of the incorporated
company as payment in full for said assets, and later by resolution
they transferred to the incorporated company the said locomotive and
donkey-engine for $29,800, receiving in lieu thereof 268 shares of the
incorporated company. The remaining 30 shares of the incorporated
company were then offered to the plaintiff for his interest in the Mayo
Lumber Company but he refused to accept them, and brought action
for a declaration that he is the owner of a one-twenty-third interest in
the Mayo Lumber Company, alternatively that Sheam Singh has been
a trustee for him for his interest, that the transfer to the Mayo
Lumber Company Limited was fraudulent and void, for an accounting,
and that the Mayo Lumber Company be wound up. The action was
dismissed.

Held, on appeal, affirming the decision of Morrisow, C.J.8.C,, that the part-
pership agreement against transferring shares without the consent of
the remaining partners was never abandoned and the transfer by Sheam
Singh was a nullity as no consent was given by the other partners,
and the plaintiff therefore had no interest in either of the companies.

Held, further, that under section 34 of the Partnership Act the assignee of
a partner’s share is entitled, after dissolution, to an account, and there
was here a dissolution. He may therefore have been entitled to an
account for the partnership under said section but he did not plead for
that relief or ask for it in his notice of appeal. He does not ask for
an amendment and in the circumstances it should not be granted.
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APPEAL by plaintiff from the decision of Mozrrison, C.J.S8.C.
of the 9th of December, 1931, in an action for a declaration that
he is the owner of a one-twenty-third interest in a business
known as the Mayo Lumber Company, alternatively that the
defendant Sheam Singh has since the 19th of July, 1920, been
a trustee for the plaintiff for said one-twenty-third interest in
said company; that an alleged transfer of the assets and busi-
ness of the Mayo Lumber Company to the Mayo Lumber Com-
pany, Limited, on the 28th of November, 1924, is fraudulent
and void, for an accounting of said business and payment of the
plaintiff’s share, and winding up of said business and for an
injunction restraining the Mayo Lumber Company, Limited
from dealing in any way with the assets of the Mayo Lumber
Company, and for damages. On the 16th of October, 1916,
Kapoor Singh, Mayo Singh, Sheam Singh, Doman Singh and
Jawalla Singh entered into a co-partnership agreement in writ-
ing under the name of the Mayo Lumber ('ompany, each having
a one-fifth interest, the capital subscribed being $23,000. One
of the terms of the parinership agreement was that no partner
of the firm was entitled to sell his share without the consent in
writing, of the other partners, but on the approval of any sale
the purchaser would become a partner and be entitled to all the
privileges and rights of a partner. On October 2nd, 1917,
Sheam Singh, owing one Inder Singh $1,000, transferred to
him a two-sevenths’ interest in his share in the business, and
shortly prior to July 19th, 1920, the plaintiff purchased Inder
Singh’s interest (being one-twenty-third of the whole business)
for $2,000. In Oectober, 1921, Mayo Singh acquired the inter-
ests of Doman Singh and Jawalla Singh and the remaining
interest of Sheam Singh, and in November, 1924, Mayo Singh
and Kapoor Singh incorporated the Mayo Lumber Company,
Limited, and representing themselves as the sole owners of the
partnership business they transferred to the Mayo Lumber Com-
pany, Limited, all the assets of the partnership business pre-
viously carried on under the name of Mayo Lumber Company,
with the exception of a 50-ton Shay locomotive and one donkey-
engine. The capital stock of the Mayo Lumber Company, Lim-
ited was 1,000 shares of $100 cach, and the consideration for the
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transfer was $70,000, Mayo Singh and Kapoor Singh accepting
therefor 350 shares each in the capital stock of the incorporated
company. The Shay locomotive and the donkey-engine above
referred to were transferred to the incorporated company by the
partnership in October, 1925, the consideration therefor being
268 shares of the incorporated company. The remaining 30
shares in the company were reserved and later offered to the
plaintiff for his interest in the Mayo Lumber Company, but he
refused to accept them. The plaintiff’s action was dismissed.

The appeal was argued at Vancouver on the Tth, 8th and 9th
of March, 1932, before Macvoxarn, C.J.B.C., Marriz, Mc-
Puirries and Macponarp, JJ.A.

Mayers, K.C., for appellant: This action is for an accounting
after dissolution. The plaintiff is entitled as assignee of a por-
tion of Sheam Singh’s interest, Sheam Singh being a trustee for
the plaintiff: see Dodson v. Downey (1901), 2 Ch. 620 at p.
622; Watts v. Driscoll (1901), 1 Ch. 294 at p. 308; Bonmin
v. Neame (1910), 1 Ch. 732; Whetham v. Davey (1885), 30
Ch. D. 574; Halsbury’s Laws of England, Vol. 28, p. 48, sec.
93, p. 207, sec. 415.  As to the property being mixed up see In
re Hallett’s Estate (1879), 13 Ch. D. 696 at p. 709.

J. W. deB. Farris, K.C., for vespondent: The trial was on

the issue as to whether Harnam Singh was a partner. On the.

question of trusteeship there is no proof that the defendant had
any knowledge of it, and it was never pleaded. There was no
proof of dissolution of the partnership and there is no allegation
of dissolution. The partners never consented to the transfer of
Sheam Singh’s interest and the plaintiff has no stafus to bring
this action.

Matheson, for respondent Sheam Singh: The pleadings dis-
close no cause of action against us.

Mayers, in reply, referred to W. H. Malkin Co. Lid. v. Cross-
ley (1923), 32 B.C. 207 at p. 209; Loveridge v. Taylor
(1896), 17 N.S.W.L.R. 50; In re Steel Wing Company
(1921), 1 Ch. 349 at p. 355.

Cur. adv. vult.

10th June, 1932.
Macvoxarp, C.J.B.C.: Five East Indians entered into a
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partnership on equal terms under written agreement of the 16th

of October, 1916, which contained the following articles:

10. No partner of the firm shall be entitled to sell his share of the part-
nership without the consent in writing of the other partners and it is hereby
agreed that if a sale by one partner of his interest in the firm be approved
by the other partners the purchaser shall become a partner and entitled to
the same rights and privileges and subject to the same liabilities das if he
were one of the parties hereto.

11. Upon the dissolution of the partnership the property of the firm
shall be realized and the proceeds thereof applied in paying the debts and
liabilities of the firm and then in paying to each partner his share of the
balance thereof.

The partnership was to be for five years but it was carried on
until the transfer of the assets to the limited company on
December 3rd, 1924.

On the 2nd of October, 1917, one of the partners Sheam
Singh otherwise known as Shiam Singh sold to one Inder Singh
two-sevenths of his interest in the partnership without the con-
sent in writing or otherwise of his co-partners and on the 19th
of July, 1920, Inder Singh assigned this interest to the plaintiff.
It is on this title that the plaintiff founds his action and, infer
alia, claims an accounting from the Mayo Lumber Company and
from the limited company.

As between himself and his co-partners Sheam Singh’s sale
was a nullity since it was prohibited by the partnership agree-
ment. It is, however, good as between Sheam and Inder.

Before the sale of the assets of the Mayo Lumber Company to
the incorporated company, Mayo Singh in Oectober, 1921,
obtained from Jawalla Singh his share in the company and also
received a power of attorney from Sheam Singh authorizing
him to dispose of that partner’s further interest in the assets.
He also obtained from Doman Singh a similar power of attorney
to dispose of his interest. Thus Mayo Singh became by said
purchase and said powers of attorney, along with the remaining
partner Kapoor Singh, in control of the partnership and its
assets with power to transfer them to the incorporated company.
That company paid for these assets with shares in the company.

I think, therefore, that the plaintiff had no intervest whatever
in the Mayo Lumber Company, except as hereinafter mentioned,
nor in the limited company when those assets were transferred.
There is nothing in the case to shew that the covenant in article
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10 of the partnership deed was ever repealed or modified. It is
true that one or two of the partners acted in contravention of it
but without the consent of the other partmers in writing or
otherwise.

The situation, therefore, is that the plaintiff appears to own
as against Sheam Singh a two-sevenths’ interest in Sheam’s
share. There is nothing on which Sheam could be constituted
trustee for the plaintiff. The plaintiff is a mere assignee of an
interest in Sheam’s share. e was not a partner. Ile was not
a partner in the partnership company, nor a shareholder in the
incorporated company.

The appellant does not ask for relief against Sheam Singh in
his notice of appeal, except as trustee which he is not. As a
partner plaintiff has no legal claim to an account by the defend-
ants. By section 34 of the Partnership Aect, however, the appli-
cation of which to this case is denied by the plaintiff, the
assignee of a partner’s share is entitled, after dissolution, to an
account by the partnership of that partner’s share. As set out
above there was, I think, a dissolution. If there was not a
dissolution then nothing further need be said on the subject I
am now dealing with. The plaintiff, therefore, may have been
entitled to an account from the partnership under said section
34 but he has not pleaded that relief, nor asked for it in his
notice of appeal. The assignor Sheam Singh is a defendant in
this action and by paragraph 16 of the statement of claim the
plaintiff alternatively alleges that Sheam Singh is a trustee for
him of an undivided one-twenty-third interest in the co-partner-
ship and in the limited company, and asks for an account by
the defendants of the profits of said interest. This pleading is
not in accordance with his right under said section 34. The
defendant Sheam Singh in his statement of defence denies
privity between himself and the plaintiff and denies any present
interest in the partnership or in the company. He is now resid-
ing and has for years been residing in India and disclaims any
interest in this dispute and denies that the plaintiff has any
cause of action against him. The only claim made against him
either in the pleadings or in the notice of appeal is that he is
trustee for the plaintiff but the plaintiff has entirely failed to
prove that he holds any money or land in trust for him. There
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was no accounting between himself and his co-defendants and it
is not shewn that there is anything of which he could be a
trustee for the plaintiff.

An amendment was not asked for and I do not think that we
ought now to amend so as to set up the plaintiff’s real right of
action, if any, against the defendants. It would mean a trial of
the new issue and the incurring of a large amount of additional
expense caused by the plaintif’s failure to set up his true cause
of aetion in the first place.

The appeal should therefore be dismissed.

MarTiw, J.A.: T would dismiss the appeal.

McPnrries, J.A.: This is a most complicated case and T
cannot help observing that the case which is attempted to be
made out by the appellant is wholly unsupported by the neces-
sary evidence. Try as one can to unravel the chain of events
and alleged agreements as between the parties it is always
profitless and leads to no real result and fails to establish that
the appellant has any enforceable action at law as against any
one or more of the parties to the action. The evidence is left
in a most inextricable state and it is impossible to found any
judgment thereon. It occurs to me that the appellant in view
of the state of matters might well have been advised to accept
the shares in the corporation which were tendered to him.
Certainly no case is made upon the facts as I read them notwith-
standing the persuasive argument of Mr. Mayers the learned
counsel for the appellant. I am, therefore, of the opinion that
the learned trial judge (Mozrrison, C.J.8.C.) rightly—after
hearing the voluminous evidence and seeing the witnesses—dis-
missed the action. It is not possible to take a different view.
The onus was upon the appellant to make out his case and in
this he woefully failed.

The appeal, in my opinion, should be dismissed.

Macooxarp, J.A.: On October 16th, 1916, a partnership
known as the “Mayo Lumber Company” was formed by an
agreement in writing executed by five East Indians, viz., Kapoor
Singh, Mayo Singh, Doman Singh, Sheam Singh and Jawalla
Singh to carry on the business of lumber and shingle manufac-
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turers. The agreement provided for a working capital of
$20,000 to which each partner should contribute equally. It
also stipulated that “the property of the business shall belong

to the partners equally.” A further clause provided that:

No partner of the firm shall be entitled to sell his share of the partner-
ship without the consent in writing of the other partners and it is hereby
agreed that if a sale by one partner of his interest in the firm be approved
by the other partners the purchaser shall become a partner and entitled to
the same rights and privileges and subjeet to the same liabilities as if he
were one of the parties hereto.

On October 15th, 1921, Jawalla Singh for the consideration
of $2,000 by agreement transferred to Mayo Singh all his inter-
ests in the partnership. Mayo Singh also apparently acquired
the interest of Doman Singh in 1921.

The appellant herein acquired his interest in the following
manner: ,,

By agreement of October 2nd, 1917, Sheam Singh, for the
consideration of $1,000 transferred to one Inder Singh a two-
sevenths’ part of his interest in the capital and profits of the
Mayo Lumber Company partnership and on the 19th of July,
1920, for the sum of $2,000 Inder Singh transferred the said
two-sevenths’ interest to this appellant. Sheam Singh also
apparently disposed of his remaining interest in the partnership
In parts to various other parties. This purchase of a part of
Sheam Singh’s original share did not make the appellant a
partner in the business of the Mayo Lumber Company. He only
became the assignee of a part interest. In any event appellant
could not become a member of that company. As assignee of a
part of Sheam Singh’s share he could only look to him for his
share of the profits, etc. There is some reference in the evidence
to a further investment by appellant of $700—an alleged half-
interest with Sheam Singh—but as there is no claim in the
pleadings in respect thereto (it is confined to a one-twenty-third
interest of the whole or two-sevenths of Sheam Singh’s share)
and his counsel at the trial stated that “there is no such claim,”
thus closing the door to further possible inquiries, it should not
be considered.

Appellant alleges by his statement of claim that because of
the foregoing events he became (or was admitted as) a partner
of the Mayo Lumber Company, to the extent of a one-twenty-
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third part share or interest therein. There is, as already inti-
mated, no basis in law for this claim. On November 21st, 1924,
Mayo Lumber Company, Limited (one of the respondents) was
ineorporated with a capital of $100,000 divided into 1,000
shares of $100 each and on the 3rd of December, 1924, the
respondents Mavo Singh and Kapoor Singh, deseribed as
“carrying on business under the firm name and style of Mayo
Lumber Company,” in consideration of $70,000 (700 shares of
$100 each) trasferred by bill of sale to the lumber company all
the goods, chattels and personal property hitherto owned by the
partnership including sawmill plant, machinery, lumber (except
one 50-ton Shay locomotive and one (11 x 14) donkey-engine
(Empire). Mayo Singh and Kapoor Singh were apparently in
sole control over these assets when this bill of sale was executed.
The remaining original partners either surrendered their inter-
ests or sold out to Mayo Singh and Kapoor Singh. The whole
700 shares were allotted to Mayo Singh and Kapoor Singh plus
two other shares which thev purchased as incorporators. The
two last-mentioned chattels excepted from the bill of sale were
by resolution transferred to the incorporated company by the
partnership (Kapoor Singh signing as manager) on October
29th, 1925, for the purchase price of $29,800 to be paid by the
allotment of 298 fully-paid shaves, 268 of which were to be
delivered to various allottees while the remaining 30 were to be
reserved and held presumably for the appellant in satisfaction
of his interest. A certificate for these 30 shares was issued by
the company to the appellant and at the same time and to be
executed contemporaneously with delivery of the shares a release
was prepared to be signed by appellant acknowledging that the
rveceipt of the 30 shares wounld be in full settlement for “what
share or interest [he] had in the Mayo Lumber Company before
incorporation.” This appellant refused to execute and the 30
shares were returned by him.

Appellant issued a writ against the respondents in September,
1925, and by endorsement asked for a declaration that “he is
the owner of two-thirty-fifths’ share or interest in the partner-
ship business of the Mayo Lumber Company. It is obvious that
he never had a share or interest in the business as such (he is
the assignee of part of a partner’s interest) and the action in
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“this respect was misconceived. He algo asks “for an account of
the partnership business” and “dissolution and winding-up of the
said partnership business.” It is obvious that, as assignee, he
cannot “interfere in the management or administration of the
partnership business or affairs or require any accounts of the
partnership transaction” (R.S.B.C. 1924, Cap. 191, Seec. 34
(1)) ; and equally obvious that until dissolution he cannot have
the more limited accounting provided by section 34 (2). Far
from alleging dissolution he asks the Court to order it.

This material misconception as to the nature of his rights and
the relief, if any, to which he is entitled persists in the state-
ment of claim. He alleges (par. 4) that the five men who
entered into the partnership agreement of October 16th, 1916,
had “interested with them other members of their countrymen
who had subseribed money to the partnership funds and that
the prohibition in the partnership agreement against transfer-
ring shares without the consent of the remaining partners was
abandoned. All this is contrary to the true facts. Neither the
appellant nor ‘“other members of their countrymen”—all
assignees of individual shares—subscribed to the “partnership
funds” and even if they did no consent was obtained. The
allegation in paragraph 5 too is equally without basis in fact.

Paragraph 6 alleges that these assignees were not in fact
assignees of individual shares but subseribed to the partnership
capital and ‘“were recognized as having an interest in the part-
nership business.” Paragraph 7 recites the manner in which
appellants’ predecessor in title acquired his two-sevenths’ inter-
est from Sheam Singh, an original partner, on Oectober 2nd,
1917, and alleges that by reason thereof Inder Singh acquired a
one-twenty-third interest “in the whole partnership business.”
That is not so. Paragraph 8 alleges that appellant “advanced
money”’ to Sheam Singh “for the purpose of the partnership
business” (for aught we know a loan) and also purchased “the
said one-twenty-third part in the said partnership business
owned by the said Inder Singh, [referred to in the last para-
graph] and all acerued profits . . . aceruing to . . . Inder
Singh from the 2nd day of October, 1917” for $2,000 and “the
said plaintiff [appellant] was thereupon admitted to the said
partnership to the extent of a one-twenty-third part share of
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interest therein.” No attempt was made, or could be made to
support this allegation. It is an additional misconception of
the true situation.

Then follows a narrative of the transfer of the assets of the
partnership by the respondents—IKapoor Singh and Mayo Singh
—to the Incorporated company with an allegation of fraud in
respect to which no evidence was offered and it is again
reiterated In paragraph 11 that the appellant was “a member of -
the said partnership and the owner of a one-twenty-third share
therein.” Paragraph 12 simply outlines the share consideration
for the transfer to the limited company while paragraph 13
alleges that this transfer was fraudulent and void as against the
appellant because it was carried out without the knowledge or
consent of one of the partners, viz., the appellant. This too is
beside the mark. In paragraph 13 he alleges that he frequently
requested an accounting and particularly on the 10th of June,
1925, from “the Mayo Lumber Company” (i.e., the partner-
ship) of the “assets and liabilities and profits of the partnership
business since the 22nd day of October, 1917.” This too is on
the basis that he was a partner. He cannot mean an assignee’s
accounting as that arises only upon dissolution. Before that
event he must look only to his vendor and “inust accept the
accounts of profits agreed to by the partners (section 34 (1)).

Paragraph 16, the final paragraph, contains the only material
and relevant allegations affecting however only the respondent
Sheam Singh, separately represented on this appeal and in the
action. Alternatively he claims a declaration that the latter was
a trustee for him of an undivided one-twenty-third interest in
the said co-partnership and asks for an acconnting of the profits
of the interest. This will be briefly dealt with later as a
separate claim.

In the prayer appellant asks for a declaration that he was the
owner of a one-twenty-third share or interest in the business of
the partnership and in the profits thereof since October 2nd,
1917. What he should ask for is to receive the share of profits
to which his vendor was entitled on the basis of no dissolution;
or the share of the partnership assets to which his vendor was
entitled as between the latter and the other parties on the basis
that dissolution took place when the partnership assets were
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transferred to the limited company. He asks therefore for a
declaration to which he is not entitled. Alternatively he asks
for an accounting as against Sheam Singh. This demand must
be confined strictly to the two parties immediately concerned,
viz., appellant and Sheam Singh, leaving aside the intervention
of Inder Singh. He asks for a declaration that the transfer to
‘the limited company was fraudulent and void: for an account
“of the partnership business” an order that the “partmership
business be wound up” and an injunction, damages for trespass
and damages for conversion.

I have taken the trouble to analyze the statement of claim
because (apart from the allegations against Sheam Singh) we
are virtually asked on this appeal to disregard it (counsel for
the appellant insisted at the trial that the pleadings must be
adhered to) and based upon the true facts disclosed in evidence
~—facts necessarily elicited in the light of the pleadings as
framed—grant to appellant the relief, not that he claimed but
rather the relief he should have claimed. Courts are naturally
reluctant to withhold relief warranted by the true facts and at
times overlook an erroneous plea if satisfied no prejudice would
result and that all the facts have been brought to light. There
must however be some limit to this indulgence. The appellant’s
case was a comparatively simple one. Ile never was a partner
and therefore wholly misconceived his rights. He should have
alleged that he was the assignee of part of a partner’s share:
that the partnership was dissolved by the transfer of assets to a
limited company or by deed or otherwise; that he was entitled
to receive the actual share of his assignor in the partnership
assets irrespective of any dealing in the partnership assets as
between his vendor and the other partners among themselves or
by transfer to a joint-stock company; that the remaining part-
ners had knowledge of his interest and that he was entitled to
an accounting from the date of dissolution to ascertain the value
of his assignor’s share. This is the case now presented for the
first time on appeal without any request for an amendment of
the pleadings. It means that appellants should be permitted to
assert one cause of action at the trial and having failed to estab-
lish it, prosecute on appeal a second, and entirely different cause
of action and compel the respondents to meet it with evidence

205

COURT OF
APPEAL

1932
June 10.

HarNAM
SixeH
V.
Karoor
Siven

MACDONALD,
JA,



206

COURT OF
APPEAL

1932
June 10.

HARNAM
SiNgH
v.
KAPOOR
SINGH

MACDONALD,
J.A.

BRITISH COLUMBIA REPORTS. [Vor.

adduced in defending the first case put forward. I do not think
we can ignore so complete a departure from the pleadings.

It was urged that we have all the facts (on that point I am
not fully satisfied) and that we should apply the principles out-
lined in such cases as Watts v. Driscoll (1901), 1 Ch. 294 and
Whetham v. Davey (1885), 30 Ch. D. 574; and give effect to
the provisions of section 34 of the Partnership Act. On the
question of knowledge, in view of the denials of the respondents,
Mayo Singh and Kapoor Singh, and the fact that the point was
not material on the action as framed and tried, I would hesitate
to hold that they or either of them acting for the partnership
had notice of the appellant’s interest as assignee. They may
have only known that all the original partners (like themselves)
transferred part of their shares without receiving information
as to the circuitous dealings of each partner (including Sheam
Singh) with their shares; or possibly ascertained the true facts,
as they say, only after the lumber company was formed when
they reserved 30 shares for the appellant in respect to his inter-
est. We should not make such a finding at this stage on a point
that should have been pleaded so that evidence might be directed
to that issue. On the question of dissolution the same observa-
tions apply. It is doubtless true that the partnership was dis-
solved when all but a few of the assets were transferred to the
Mayo Company Limited (Loveridge v. Taylor (1896), 17
N.S.W. L.R. 50) and that the later transfer represents only the
continuance of the partnership to complete transactions begun
but not finished at the time of the dissolution (section 41). Far,
however, from alleging it, the appellant asks in his writ not
only for a winding-up order but for dissolution.

As to the respondent Sheam Singh the plea in paragraph 16
of the statement of claim would appear to be sufficient and
ordinarily appellant would be entitled to relief as against him
under section 34 (2) of the Partnership Act. But although the
evidence of the respondent Sheam Singh was taken on commis-
sion in India it was not directed to this point. The same
observation applies to the evidence offered at the trial on appel-
lant’s behalf. This claim was not litigated. Appellant does not
shew that this respondent failed to account to him for any profits
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received or that he has in his hands as trustee any money belong-
ing to appellant.
I would dismiss the appeal.
Appeal dismissed.

Solicitors for appellant: Courtney & Elliott.

Solicitors for respondents (other than Sheam Singh): Farris,
Farris, Stultz & Sloan.
¢ Solicitor for respondent Sheam Singh: Mackenzie Matheson.

OVERN v. STRAND ET AL.

Practice—Costs—Taxation—I udgment against all defendants with costs—
No apportionment by tawing officer—Item 13 of Appendix “N’-—
Distribution.

In an action for tort against four defendants, who defended separately, the
formal judgment, as to costs, restored by the Supreme Court of
Canada, read, “That the defendants do pay to the plaintiff her costs
of this action, such payment to be made forthwith after taxation.”
On the taxation it appeared that the costs of the action had been
augmented by certain proceedings taken by individual defendants and
not joined in by the others. The taxing officer allowed against all the
defendants the costs occasioned by them all and segregated and appor-
tioned the special costs occasioned by the acts of the individual
defendants to the defendant who occasioned same.

Held, affirming the decision of Morrisox. C.J.8.C. ((1930), 42 B.C. 358),
that the taxing officer has no right to go behind the directions con-
tained in the judgment. If any apportionment or segregation is to be
made it should be set out in the judgment.

On the contention by defendants that four items in the plaintiff’s bill,
namely (1), fee on motion for enlargement of trial; (2), fee on motion
for trial by jury; (3), process for setting down for trial in June; and
(4), process for setting down for trial in September, were all covered
by item 13 of Appendix “N” and carried only the one fee:—

Held, that item 13 should be read distributively and that the four items
were allowable {Macpoxarp, C.J.B.C. dissenting).

Bradshaw v. British Columbia Rapid Transit Co. (1927), 38 B.C. 430,
approved.

APPEAL by defendant, Hudson’s Bay Company, from the
decision of Morrtsox, C.J.S.C. of the 17th of February, 1930
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(reported, 42 B.C. 358), on appeal from the taxation of costs in
the action. The judgment in the action provided that the
defendants do pay to the plaintiff her costs of this action forth-
with after taxation, and the judgment of the Supreme Court of
Canada provided that the appellant (plaintiff) was entitled to
her costs throughout against all the defendants. The registrar’s
certificate recited that the plaintiff’s costs against all the defend-
ants jointly were allowed at $1,731.30, that the plaintiff’s extra
costs against all defendants except the Hudson’s Bay Company
were allowed at $100.30, that the plain